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We have 
re-imagined 

the basics of 
banking

As an institution, we are 

committed to serve all stakeholders 

that include our customers, 

community, country & colleagues.

Our vision for IDFC Bank is to 

transform it into a mass retail 

bank in 5 years. We will do this 

by delivering banking anytime, 

anywhere at scale by using 

technology to relentlessly drive 

efficiency and set new standards 

of customer experience and 

convenience.

We thank all our customers, 

shareholders and other 

stakeholders who have reposed 

their faith in us. We are happy 

that within a short span of 

approximately nine months, we 

have 65 Branches, 14 ATMs and  

15 Offices spread across India.



The Companies Act, 2013, as a part of 

Green Initiative, allows companies to go 

for paperless compliances by sending 

Notice, Annual Report and other related 

documents by e-mail to its Shareholders. 

Many of the Shareholders have registered 

their e-mail address and we thank them 

for the same. Shareholders, who have not 

registered their e-mail address so far, may, 

as a support to this initiative, register their 

e-mail address by sending an e-mail to 

‘bank.info@idfcbank.com’ quoting their 

Name, Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID and 

e-mail address to be registered with us 

for enabling us to send documents in 

electronic form.

Also, registering your e-mail address with 

us will ensure that we directly connect with 

you and no important communication from 

our side is missed by you as a Shareholder 

of the Bank.

save PaPer,
save trees,

save the earth.
300,000+ Shareholders have 

already asked for a paperless 

annual report. Join them and save 

paper. Just drop us an e-mail.



AwArded ‘IndIA Bond House’   
2015 By IFr AsIA 

IDFC Bank was named the ‘India Bond 

House’ for the year 2015, by International 

Financing Review Asia (‘IFR Asia’). 

The award validates the strength 

of IDFC Bank’s Debt Capital Market 

(‘DCM’) business in creating landmark 

transactions.

AWARDS &  

ACCOLADES 

AwArded ‘Best Hr & tAlent  
PrActIces’ By BAnkIng 

FrontIers 

IDFC Bank was named as the bank with 

‘Best HR & Talent Practices’ among 

private sector banks by the Banking 

Frontiers magazine, at its Inspiring 

Workplaces 2015 event.

MIcro AtM AwArded netAPP  
InnovAtIon AwArd 2016 

IDFC Bank has won the ‘NetApp 

Innovation Award 2016’ for its innovative 

concept of Micro ATM, which is set to 

transform rural banking.

Internet BAnkIng PlAtForM  
AwArded For Product 
InnovAtIon By gloBAl 
FInAnce MAgAzIne 

IDFC Bank’s Corporate Internet Banking 

Platform BXP, has been recognized 

with ‘The Innovators 2016’ Awards by 

the highly respected Global Finance 

magazine.
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I deem it a privelege to address my first 

message to the shareholders of IDFC Bank, 

as the Chairman of the Board of Directors. I 

have been associated with the IDFC Limited, 

as Chairman of the IDFC Foundation for the 

last 5 years. The IDFC Group has played a 

leading role in the nation’s infrastructure 

development through its multiple financial 

entities. As we now embark on the journey 

of building a bank, we will continue our 

agenda of nation building and develop a 

truly universal bank that serves the interests 

of all segments of society.  

Fiscal 2016 was truly historic for us.  

It witnessed the creation of IDFC Bank  

on October 01, 2015 and its formal 

inauguration by the Hon’ble Prime Minister, 

Shri Narendra Modi, on October 19, 2015, at 

an event in New Delhi.

The timing of the Bank launch seems to 

be opportune. India is well placed in the 

global context of uncertain and slowing 

growth, albeit some distance away from 

achieving its full potential. The confluence 

of the trinity of JAM (Jan Dhan, Aadhaar 

and mobile technology), increasing models 

of payment platforms and FinTech has 

ChAIRmAn'S 
STATEmEnT
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transformational potential for delivery 

of financial services at affordable costs 

to disadvantaged and low-income 

segments of society. And herein we see 

an opportunity to re-imagine banking and 

deliver innovative solutions to customers 

across businesses.

We will focus on a calibrated organic 

growth of branch network across India. 

As of the last financial year, our Bank 

had 60 branches, 45 of which are in the 

underbanked / unbanked areas of Madhya 

Pradesh and Karnataka.

As a new age bank, our efforts are 

to leverage the digital space and use 

technology to deliver banking to our 

customers in a simple and transparent 

manner. Customers can now speak to 

trained bankers 24x7, through our  

Banker-on-Call facility, instead of IVRs. The 

Bank’s micro-ATMs, positioned outside the 

branches, function like a Bank in a Box, 

enabling customers of all banks to carry 

out transactions any time any where.

Customer response to our products 

and offerings in the last few months has 

been very encouraging. Feedback on 

our internet portal for corporate banking 

customers, branch design, Banker-on-Call, 

seamless opening of savings account - 

based on Aadhaar, micro-ATMs and many 

other products and services has been very 

positive. Such feedback and response give 

us the confidence that we are on the right 

path to fulfil our vision.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I 

want to assure you that we are committed 

to providing the highest standards of 

governance and to ensure this, all the 

systems, procedures and structures of 

good governance have been put in place. 

Your Board comprises eminent members 

drawn from diverse backgrounds; requisite 

Board Committees have been constituted; 

and policy framework and operating 

procedures needed for smooth banking 

operations have been laid down. The Bank 

is extremely well capitalised and is ideally 

placed to take advantage of available 

opportunities. The executive Committee 

of the Bank under the proven leadership of 

the Founder Managing Director & CeO has 

developed a robust strategy for the build 

out of the Bank. 

Your Bank is fully committed to its remit 

of Corporate Social Responsibility in letter 

and spirit of the extant law. It will continue 

to focus on sustainable and outcome based 

programmes through the platform of IDFC 

Foundation. 

I thank you all the esteemed 

shareholders in facilitating a complex but 

successful transition to IDFC Bank. I look 

forward to your continued support and 

guidance, as we march ahead to fulfil the 

vision of our Bank.

Anil Baijal

Independent Non-executive Chairman

As we now embark on the 

journey of building a bank, we 

will continue our agenda of 

nation building and develop 

a truly universal bank that 

serves the interests of all 

segments of society.
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Over the last two years, the Government 

has taken several steps to ensure a 

steady revival in economic growth. The 

positive implications of its proactive 

steps were visible in the country’s stable 

macroeconomic fundamentals for the 

fiscal 2016, which were further supported 

by a comfortable current account deficit, 

manageable fiscal deficit and low crude 

prices.

In its continued pursuit of fiscal 

consolidation, the Government has set 

a fiscal deficit target of 3.5% of GDP for 

FY17. Against such a backdrop, the easing 

of monetary policy will hinge on domestic 

and international factors, with inflation and 

monsoons playing a key role. 

In the recent Union Budget of February 

2016, the Government spelt out its agenda 

for transforming India, a key component 

of which is a significant step up in public 

investments in rural India, and in social  

and physical infrastructure. Public 

investment in infrastructure and energy is 

likely to go up to H 246,246 crore in FY17  

FOunDER 
mD & CEO’S 
STATEmEnT

Our vision for IDFC Bank is to transform 

it into a mass retail bank in 5 years. 

Credible partnerships will play a key 

role in this. Through partnerships, we 

intend delivering banking products and 

solutions across networks and customers 

that are not necessarily owned by us.
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from H 180,610 crore in FY16. A large share of 

this is to be directed to roads and railways 

with a view to enhancing efficiency in 

transportation of goods, thereby reducing 

the cost of logistics. Government investment 

in agriculture and irrigation has also been 

increased from H 25,988 crore in FY16 to  

H 54,212 crore in FY17. The expectation is that 

this should help improve the productivity of 

the farm sector, which is prone to droughts. 

Apart from this, the Government is expected 

to invest  

H 25,000 crore during the year to recapitalize 

PSU banks. This will be critical for shoring 

up overall credit given that PSU banks still 

account for more than 70% of the system’s 

total advances. The combined effect of 

these measures along with the Government’s 

ambitious initiatives to liberalize our FDI 

regime, should improve the business 

climate restore some momentum to private 

corporate investment and strengthen the 

country’s growth outlook. 

The banking landscape in India is also 

changing with the Reserve Bank of India 

(‘RBI’) providing in-principle approval to 

small finance banks and payment banks. 

Small finance banks will offer basic banking 

services and lend to un-served and  

under-served sections including small 

business units, small and marginal farmers, 

micro and small industries and entities in 

the unorganized sector. On the other hand, 

payments banks will offer basic savings, 

deposit, payment and remittance services to 

people without access to the formal banking 

system. RBI has also floated the idea of 

allowing more differentiated banks, such 

as wholesale banks. Further, it proposes 

to allow Non-Banking Financial companies 

(‘NBFCs’), experienced individuals, and 

companies that are not part of large 

conglomerates to seek bank licenses on tap.

For IDFC Bank, FY16 has been historic 

with the launch of the Bank by the Hon’ble 

Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi in 

October 2015. We launched with 23 

branches and a state-of-the-art digital 

banking platform. We are among the 

few banks to start wholesale and retail 

operations simultaneously in line with our 

stated position of being a universal bank. 

Soon after launch, in November 2015, the 

Bank was also listed on the BSe limited and 

National Stock exchange of India limited 

demonstrating our robust commitment to 

Corporate Governance.

In our maiden half year of banking 

operations, IDFC Bank reported a profit 

before tax of H 625 crore and after providing 

income tax of H 218 crore, the net profit after 

tax stood at H 407 crore for the half year 

ended March 31, 2016. The Bank is extremely 

well capitalized and has a AAA credit rating.

Our aim is to build an institution that 

stands the test of time and is committed to 

serving all stakeholders. We are committed 

to take forward the IDFC legacy – of serving 

the nation. A Bank that goes much beyond 

servicing just the needs of the country’s 

infrastructure sector, being our historical 

sector of focus, to focus particularly on the 

needs of mid-market, small business, the 

self-employed and the wider retail customer 

base in our cities and in underserved 

communities of rural India.

Our banking activities will allow us to 

serve the full range of financial needs of 

a more diversified client base, while also 

enabling us to serve our infrastructure clients 

better. We look upon the large segments 

of the economy that are under-penetrated 

from a financial services perspective as an 

opportunity for us to deliver stable earnings 

growth for shareholders.

Our vision for IDFC Bank is to transform 

it into a mass retail bank in 5 years. Credible 

partnerships will play a key role in this. 

Through partnerships we intend delivering 

banking products and solutions across 

networks and customers that are not 

necessarily owned by us. Our partnership 

with ASA India, an MFI, is one such example. 

We will leverage its network across north-

east India, north Bengal and Bihar to 

complement its asset offerings, source 

liabilities and facilitate remittances.

Our consumer banking foray is currently 

focused on the top 5-8 cities to deliver 

a multi-channel user friendly access to 

customers that relies on fewer physical 

branches. Our “click-and-mortar” model 

combines state of the art branches with an 

easy-to-use digital platform and ‘Banker on 

Call’ services. Digital marketing, acquisition 

and servicing will be a thrust area.

Our Bharat Banking business aims to 

deliver banking anywhere, anytime in 

a simple, ‘no-nonsense’ way. Its unique 

concept involves creating hub branches 

with an ecosystem of access points 

and an ambulatory sales force. This 

unique distribution model is intended to 

substantially increase financial access in 

India’s vast hinterland.

Solutions through technology for 

simplicity and transparency for customers 

are the underlying theme for all our banking 

products and solutions. Be it our internet 

portal for our corporate banking customers 

or our Banker-on-Call or our  

Straight-Through-Process (‘STP’) for 

account opening for customers having an 

Aadhar number or internet banking for 

urban consumers or the bank-in-a-box 

offering called a micro-ATM; customer 

feedback on all of these has been extremely 

encouraging. This initial positive feedback 

on differentiating through simplicity and 

transparency, gives us a lot of confidence 

that we will fulfil our vision of transforming 

into a mass retail bank in 5 years.

We have made significant progress in the 

first six months of launch on the back of our 

investments in people and technology. We 

believe these two pillars are the cornerstone 

to help us deliver a differentiated superior 

customer experience.

In line with our nation building purpose, 

the Bank’s staff is closely involved 

in implementing IDFC Foundation’s 

community engagement initiatives at 

locations where the intervention is in the 

vicinity of its branches. To engage with 

the local communities, IDFC Foundation in 

conjunction with the Bank has identified 

requirements such as digital education for 

children, vision care, and cattle care for 

livelihood enhancement.

There is a wave of transformation 

happening across the economy and the 

banking industry. Being a new Bank we 

are extremely well poised to leverage 

the opportunities that this presents. As 

we embark on this exciting journey, I 

look forward to the cooperation of our 

stakeholders and wish to sincerely thank the 

entire IDFC Bank staff and our shareholders 

for their contribution and support.

Rajiv B. Lall

Founder Managing Director & CeO
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Ms. veenA MAnkAr

Independent Director

dr. AsHok gulAtI

Independent Director
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 DeMeRGeR 

IDFC limited was granted an In-principle 

approval by the Reserve Bank of India 

(‘RBI’) on April 09, 2014 (‘RBI In-Principle 

Approval’) to set up a new bank in the 

private sector under Section 22 of the 

Banking Regulation Act, 1949. Accordingly, 

a new company namely IDFC Bank limited 

(‘IDFC Bank’ or the ‘Bank’) was incorporated 

on October 21, 2014. 

The terms and conditions contained 

in the RBI In-principle Approval and the 

Guidelines for licensing of New Banks in the 

Private Sector dated February 22, 2013 (‘RBI 

New Banking Guidelines’) required IDFC 

limited to transfer its lending and borrowing 

business (‘Financing Undertaking’) to 

IDFC Bank. Accordingly, the Financing 

Undertaking was demerged into IDFC Bank 

pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement 

amongst IDFC limited and IDFC Bank and 

their respective Shareholders and Creditors 

under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies 

Act, 1956 (‘Demerger Scheme’).

Dear Members, 

Your Directors have pleasure in 

presenting the second Annual report 

of IDFC Bank together with the audited 

financial statements for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2016. 

BOARD’S 

REpORT
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Your Bank received final approval from 

RBI on July 23, 2015 to commence banking 

business.

The Demerger Scheme became effective 

and your Bank started its Banking Operations 

on October 01, 2015.

On October 09, 2015, your Bank issued 

and allotted to the Shareholders of IDFC 

limited; whose names were recorded in the 

Register of Members of IDFC limited as 

on the Record Date (i.e. October 05, 2015), 

equity shares of IDFC Bank in the ratio of one 

(1) equity share having a face value of H 10 

each of IDFC Bank for every one (1) equity 

share having a face value of H 10 each of 

IDFC limited, each equity share being fully 

paid-up.

On completion of Demerger, 

approximately 53% of equity share capital 

of IDFC Bank was held by IDFC Financial 

Holding Company limited, a 100% subsidiary 

of IDFC limited and approximately 47% by 

the Shareholders of IDFC limited (as on the 

Record Date).

Your Bank was formally inaugurated by the 

Hon’ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi at 

a ceremony in New Delhi on October 19, 2015. 

Union Minister of Finance, Corporate Affairs, 

and Information & Broadcasting, Shri Arun 

Jaitley and Minister of State for Finance, Shri 

Jayant Sinha, were also present at the launch. 

Your Bank got listed on November 06, 

2015 on the National Stock exchange of India 

limited (‘NSe’) and BSe limited (‘BSe’).

 BUSINeSS OVeRVIeW AND OUTlOOK 

Your Bank’s overall business strategy is to 

replicate IDFC limited’s success as an NBFC, 

through a differentiated and calibrated foray 

into the banking sector, with a diversified 

focus on Commercial and Wholesale Banking, 

Bharat Banking and Personal and Business 

Banking business and an added emphasis on 

infrastructure financing. Accordingly, your 

Bank’s banking business consists of three 

distinct strategic business verticals as follows:

Commercial and Wholesale Banking caters 

to large corporates, mid-markets & SMe 

clients (commercial banking), Government 

business, financial institutions, treasury, 

cash management, transaction banking and 

investment banking. 

Bharat Banking caters to semi-urban and 

rural areas. 

personal and Business Banking caters to the 

urban retail consumers.

IDFC Bank is the first universal bank in India 

to adopt a differentiated service strategy 

for catering to people in rural and semi-

urban locations, through intensive use of 

technology.

Your Bank performed well in FY16 with a 

Net Profit of H 467 crore. In its first six months 

of operations, your Bank has successfully 

and steadily diversified its business mix and 

added new revenue streams. It has expanded 

its reach to serve new customer segments 

both on the retail as well as wholesale side 

of the business, and is thus well positioned 

to build a sustainable banking franchise. 

Total deposits and borrowings of your Bank 

stood at H 8,219 crore and H 47,914 crore 

respectively. The gross advances of your 

Bank were H 49,667 crore and after reducing 

provisions of H 3,968 crore, your Bank 

reported net advances of H 45,699 crore.  

As at March 31, 2016, your Bank’s total 

balance sheet was of H 73,970 crore.

As at March 31, 2016, your Bank’s network 

comprised 60 branches, 45 of which were 

suMMAry  
oF FInAncIAl 
PerForMAnce 
IN H CRORe

Fy16 *

DePOSITS AND BORROWINGS

56,133
ADVANCeS

45,699
TOTAl INCOMe

4,052
PROFIT BeFORe DePReCIATION  
AND TAX

757
NeT PROFIT

467
PROFIT BROUGHT FORWARD **

1,194

AppROpRIATIOnS

TOTAl PROFIT AVAIlABle FOR 
APPROPRIATION

1,661
TRANSFeR TO STATUTORY ReSeRVe

118
TRANSFeR TO SPeCIAl ReSeRVe

145
TRANSFeR TO CAPITAl ReSeRVe

83

DIvIDEnD

PROPOSeD DIVIDeND

85
TAX INClUDING SURCHARGe AND 
eDUCATION CeSS ON DIVIDeND

17
BAlANCe CARRIeD OVeR TO 
BAlANCe SHeeT

1213
*Includes financial performance of your 
Bank before commencement of banking 
operations i.e. for the period April 01, 
2015 to September 30, 2015.

**Includes H 1,196 crore brought forward 
on account of Demerger of Financing 
Undertaking of IDFC limited and loss of  
H 2 crore brought forward from previous 
year.
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Bharat Bank branches in the states of Madhya 

Pradesh and Karnataka.

Further, details on Financial Summary and 

Business Review are appearing in the Chapter 

Management Discussion and Analysis, which 

forms part of this Annual Report.

 DIVIDeND 

Your Directors are pleased to recommend 

a dividend of H 0.25 per equity share of H 10 

each (i.e. 2.5%), entailing a payout of H 102 

crore including tax on dividend, for the year 

ended March 31, 2016. 

The Register of Members and Share 

Transfer Books will remain closed from 

Thursday, July 21, 2016 to Wednesday, 

July 27, 2016 (both days inclusive) for the 

purpose of payment of dividend for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2016. 

Dividend will be paid to those Members 

whose names appear in the Register of 

Members as on Wednesday, July 20, 2016; 

in respect of shares held in dematerialized 

form, it will be paid to those Members whose 

names are furnished by National Securities 

Depository limited and Central Depository 

Services (India) limited, as beneficial owners 

as on that date. 

Above dividend would be paid subject 

to approval by the Members at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’).

 AWARDS AND ReCOGNITIONS 

During the year under review, your Bank was 

recognized in various ways and the significant 

awards presented to your Bank are listed 

below:

  n IDFC Bank’s Corporate Internet Banking 

Platform BXP, has been recognized with 

‘The Innovators 2016 Awards’ by the highly 

respected Global Finance magazine.

  n IDFC Bank has won the ‘NetApp Innovation 

Award 2016’ for its innovative concept of 

Micro ATM, which is set to transform rural 

banking. 

  n IDFC Bank was named as the bank with 

‘Best HR & Talent Practices’ among private 

sector banks by the Banking Frontiers 

magazine, at its Inspiring Workplaces 2015 

event.

  n IDFC Bank was named the ‘India Bond 

House’ for the year 2015, by International 

Financing Review Asia (‘IFR Asia’). The award 

validates the strength of IDFC Bank’s Debt 

Capital Market (‘DCM’) business in creating 

landmark transactions.

 CAPITAl RAISING & CAPITAl  

 ADeQUACY RATIO 

During FY16, the Board of Directors of the 

Bank at its meeting held on April 29, 2015 

and August 25, 2015 issued 1,250,000,000 

and 547,462,668 equity shares respectively 

to IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 

(Holding Company) by way of Rights Issue 

and subsequently the allotment was made.

Pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, the 

Allotment & Share Transfer Committee of the 

Bank at its meeting held on October 09, 2015 

allotted 1,594,020,668 equity shares of H 10 

each to 492,106 equity shareholders of IDFC 

limited whose names were recorded in the 

Register of Members of IDFC limited as on 

the Record Date, i.e. October 05, 2015. 

Additionally, the Bank issued and allotted 

1,090,000 equity shares of H 10 each of the 

Bank to eligible employees of the Bank on 

exercise of Options granted under IDFC Bank 

limited employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 

(‘IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015’). 

As on March 31, 2016, the issued, 

subscribed and paid-up share capital of your 

Bank was H 33,926,233,360 comprising of 

3,392,623,336 equity shares of H 10 each.

Subsequently in April 2016, the Bank 

issued and allotted 2,223,674 equity shares 

of H 10 each of the Bank to eligible employees 

of the Bank on exercise of Options granted 

under IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015 which resulted 

in an increase in share capital and the share 

capital now stands at H 33,948,470,100 i.e. 

3,394,847,010 equity shares of H 10 each.

Your Bank is well capitalised and has a 

Capital Adequacy Ratio (‘CAR’) under  

Basel III as at March 31, 2016 of 22.04% with 

Tier I being 21.50%. 

During the year, your Bank has not issued 

any instrument eligible under Tier II. 

Also, your Bank has not issued any equity 

shares with differential voting rights during 

the year.

 DePOSITS 

Being a banking company, the disclosures 

required as per Rule 8(5)(v)&(vi) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, read with 

Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are not applicable to your Bank.

 lOANS, GUARANTeeS OR  

 INVeSTMeNTS IN SeCURITIeS 

Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, loans made, guarantees given or 

securities provided or acquisition of securities 

by a banking company in the ordinary course 

of its business are exempted from disclosure 

requirements under Section 134(3)(g) of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

 SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATe COMPANIeS 

IDFC Bank does not have any subsidiary 

company. However, it has two associate 

Your Bank got listed on november 06, 2015  

on the national stock exchange of India Limited and 

Bse Limited.
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companies namely Feedback Infra Private 

limited and Millennium City expressways 

Private limited in which it holds 24.61% and 

29.98% equity stake respectively.

The Bank’s policy for determining material 

subsidiaries is available on the Bank’s 

website: www.idfcbank.com.

Further, a statement containing salient 

features of the financial statement of 

associate companies in Form AOC-I is 

appended as Annexure 1.

 eMPlOYeeS 

IDFC Bank considers gender diversity during 

its recruitment process. The employee 

strength of your Bank was 2,405 as of 

March 31, 2016 out of which 466 are women 

employees.

In terms of the provisions of Section 

197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a 

statement showing the names and other 

particulars of the employees drawing 

remuneration in excess of the limits set out 

in the said rules are provided in this Annual 

Report. Having regard to the provisions 

of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report 

excluding the aforesaid information is being 

sent to the Members of the Bank. The said 

information is available for inspection at the 

Registered Office and Corporate Office of the 

Bank during working hours and any Member 

interested in obtaining such information 

may write to the Company Secretary & Chief 

Compliance Officer and the same will be 

furnished on request. 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration 

and other details as required under Section 

197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 

appended as Annexure 2.

 eMPlOYee STOCK OPTION  

 SCHeMe 

The Stock Option Scheme enables the 

Bank to hire the best talent for its senior 

management. 

 Pursuant to the Resolution passed by the 

Members of the Bank at the extraordinary 

General Meeting held on December 09, 2014; 

your Bank had introduced ‘IDFC Bank eSOS 

- 2015’ and approved grant of Options not 

more than 2.5% of the paid up capital of the 

Bank, from time to time, to enable the eligible 

employees of the Bank to participate in the 

future growth and financial success of the 

Bank. 

 Pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, on 

the effective Date, the employees that were 

transferred with the Financing Undertaking 

to IDFC Bank, as well as all remaining 

employees of IDFC limited or their respective 

subsidiaries, who had been granted Options 

under IDFC limited employee Stock Option 

Scheme 2007, which were not exercised 

(vested or unvested), as of the Record Date, 

were granted One (1) stock option by IDFC 

Bank under IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015 for every 

One (1) stock option held in IDFC limited by 

such employee. 

 Accordingly, it was necessary to increase 

the pool of eSOPs that can be granted 

under IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015 from 2.5% 

to 7% so as to accomodate grants to IDFC 

Group employees (pursuant to the Demerger 

Scheme) and grants to new employees of 

IDFC Bank. Therefore, the shareholders at the 

1st AGM of the Bank approved and increased 

the pool of eSOPs from 2.5% to 7% of the 

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend 

of ` 0.25 per equity share of ` 10 each (i.e. 2.5%) for 

the year ended March 31, 2016. 
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paid-up equity share capital of the Bank at 

any point of time. 

However, the Management is now of 

the view that with large capital base, 

the reduced eSOP pool of 6% would be 

sufficient to adequately compensate 

employees of IDFC Bank and its subsidiary 

companies (present & future) in next 2-3 

years.  

Accordingly, at the ensuing AGM to be 

held on July 27, 2016, the Board of Directors 

recommends reduction in eSOP pool from 

7% to 6% of the paid up share capital of the 

Bank.

 Being a new company, there were no 

outstanding Options at the beginning of the 

financial year. During FY16, Options granted 

pursuant to the Demerger Scheme were 

32,210,878 Options. Also, 45,440,500 fresh 

Options were granted to eligible employees 

under IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015. Further, 

1,910,217 Options lapsed / forfeited and 

1,090,000 Options were exercised during the 

year. Accordingly, 74,651,161 Options remain 

outstanding as of March 31, 2016. All Options 

vests in graded manner and are required to 

be exercised within a specific period. The 

Bank has used the intrinsic value method to 

account for the compensation cost of stock 

to employees of the Bank. Intrinsic value is 

the amount by which the quoted market price 

of the underlying share on the date, prior to 

the date of the grant, exceeds the exercise 

price on the Option. IDFC Bank eSOS - 

2015 is administered by the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) of the 

Board of the Bank. 

 During FY16, there has been no material 

change in IDFC Bank eSOS – 2015 and 

the said scheme is in compliance with 

SeBI (Share Based employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014, as amended from time 

to time. Disclosures as required under 

SeBI (Share Based employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014 and circulars issued 

thereunder, is disclosed on the Bank’s 

website: www.idfcbank.com.

 DIReCTORS AND KeY MANAGeRIAl  

 PeRSONNel 

APPoIntMents

Based on the recommendation of NRC of 

the Bank and subject to the approval of the 

Members at the AGM and RBI, the Board of 

Directors of the Bank at its meeting held on 

July 27, 2015, accorded its consent to appoint 

Mr. Abhijit Sen (DIN: 00002593), Mr. Ajay 

Sondhi (DIN: 01657614), Dr. Ashok Gulati 

(DIN: 07062601), and Ms. Veena Mankar  

(DIN: 00004168) as Independent Directors 

(‘IDs’) of the Bank under the Companies Act, 

2013, for a period of three (3) consecutive 

years w.e.f July 27, 2015 and also consented 

to the appointment of Mr. Vinod Rai  

(DIN: 01119922) as Nominee Director 

representing IDFC limited / IDFC Financial 

Holding Company limited.

IDFC Bank commenced its banking 

operations on October 01, 2015. Accordingly, 

Dr. Rajiv B. lall stepped down as the 

executive Chairman of IDFC limited w.e.f. 

September 30, 2015 and took the position of 

Founder Managing Director & CeO of IDFC 

Bank w.e.f October 01, 2015. Dr. Rajiv B. lall 

shall hold office of Founder Managing 

Director & CeO of the Bank for a period of 

three (3) years w.e.f October 01, 2015. 

The aforesaid appointments have been 

approved by the RBI, Board of Directors and 

the Shareholders of the Bank. Based on the 

recommendation of the NRC of the Bank and 

subject to the approval of the Members at the 

AGM and RBI, the Board appointed Mr. Rajan 

Anandan (DIN: 02395272) as an Additional 

Director in the category of Independent 

Director of IDFC Bank w.e.f. December 01, 

2015. It is proposed to appoint him for a 

period of three (3) consecutive years at the 

ensuing AGM to hold office from December 

01, 2015 to November 30, 2018. 

None of the Directors of the Bank are 

disqualified to be appointed as Directors 

in accordance with Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Further, the Bank has received a 

declaration from all the aforesaid IDs, at 

the time of appointment and also before 

the first meeting of the Board of Directors 

held in FY16, that they meet the criteria of 

independence specified under sub-section 

(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules 2014, for holding the position of 

Independent Director and that they shall 

abide by the ‘Code for Independent Directors’ 

as per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 

2013.

In terms of Section 160 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, your Bank has received notice in 

writing from a Member along with requisite 

deposit of H 1,00,000 proposing candidature 

of Mr. Rajan Anandan for appointment as an 
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Independent Director. The Board recommends 

the appointment of Mr. Rajan Anandan to the 

shareholders at the ensuing AGM.

Brief Profiles and other details of all 

the aforesaid Directors are set out in the 

Corporate Governance Report which forms 

part of this Annual Report.

cessAtIon

During the year, Mr. Gautam Kaji  

(DIN: 02333127), Independent Director of the 

Bank resigned from the Board with effect 

from September 30, 2015 for complying with 

RBI regulations.

The Board placed on record its 

appreciation for the valuable services 

rendered by him during his tenure as a 

Director of the Bank.

retIreMent By rotAtIon

In accordance with the Articles of Association 

of the Bank and pursuant to the provisions 

of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Mr. Vinod Rai (DIN: 01119922) would retire 

by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being 

eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

key MAnAgerIAl Personnel

The Board identified the following officials as 

Key Managerial Personnel pursuant to Section 

203 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

Dr. Rajiv B. Lall 

Founder Managing Director & CeO

mr. Sunil Kakar 

Chief Financial Officer

mr. mahendra n. Shah 

Company Secretary &  

Chief Compliance Officer

 FAMIlIARISATION PROGRAMMeS FOR  

 BOARD MeMBeRS 

The Board members are provided with 

necessary documents, reports and internal 

policies to enable them to familiarise with the 

Bank’s procedures and practices.

Periodic presentations are made 

at the Board meetings, on business 

and performance of the Bank, global 

business environment, business strategy 

and associated risks, roles, rights and 

responsibilities of IDs etc. Detailed 

presentations on the Bank’s business were 

made at the meetings of the Directors held 

during the year.

The details of the said programmes are 

available on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com.

 BOARD eVAlUATION 

Pursuant to Securities and exchange Board 

of India (listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘listing 

Regulations’) and Companies Act, 2013, 

the process indicating the manner in which 

formal annual evaluation of the Directors, 

Board and Board-level committees are given 

in detail in the Corporate Governance Report, 

which forms part of this Annual Report.

 BOARD MeeTINGS 

During the period under review, eight (8) 

board meetings were held; details of which 

are given in the Corporate Governance 

Report which forms part of this Annual 

Report.

 BOARD COMMITTeeS 

The Board has constituted various Board 

Committees to delegate various matters that 

require greater and more focused attention. 

Brief overview of some of the Board-level 

Committees is furnished below. The details 

of the constitution, terms of reference and 

meetings of all the Board-level Committees 

is given in the Corporate Governance Report 

which forms part of this Annual Report.

 AUDIT COMMITTee 

The Audit Committee of the Bank as 

constituted under Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 has the following 

members:

mr. Abhijit Sen 

Chairman | DIN: 00002593

mr. Ajay Sondhi 

Member | DIN: 01657614

ms. veena mankar 

Member | DIN: 00004168

mr. vikram Limaye 

Member | DIN: 00488534

B O A R D ' S  R e P O R T  15



The Audit Committee of the Bank 

met two (2) times during FY16 i.e. on 

October 26, 2015 and January 27, 2016. All 

the recommendations made by the Audit 

Committee during the year were accepted by 

the Board. 

 CORPORATe SOCIAl  

 ReSPONSIBlITY 

Being the 1st year of operations, the provision 

relating to contribution towards CSR as per 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was 

not applicable to IDFC Bank for FY16. 

Pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, the 

Financing Undertaking of IDFC limited 

was transferred to IDFC Bank w.e.f. 

October 01, 2015 (effective date of the 

Demerger Scheme). 

Accordingly, the CSR spend from the 

Financing Undertaking was carried out by IDFC 

limited (Ultimate Holding Company of IDFC 

Bank) through IDFC Foundation, a Section 8 

company under the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors at its meeting 

held on August 25, 2015 constituted the CSR 

Committee of the Bank comprising of the 

following:

Dr. Rajiv B. Lall 

Chairman | DIN: 00131782

mr. Anil Baijal 

Member | DIN: 01608892

Dr. Ashok Gulati 

Member | DIN: 07062601

The Board at its meeting held on 

April 26, 2016 approved the CSR Policy of 

the Bank. The CSR Policy is available on the 

Bank’s website: www.idfcbank.com. The CSR 

initiatives undertaken by IDFC limited are 

given in Annexure 3.

 NOMINATION AND ReMUNeRATION  

 COMMITTee / ReMUNeRATION POlICY 

In compliance with the RBI New Banking 

Guidelines and the directions and circulars 

issued by the RBI, from time to time 

and in accordance with Section 178 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder; the Board of Directors 

at its meeting held on December 09, 

2014 constituted the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of the Bank. 

As on March 31, 2016, the Committee 

consisted of:

mr. Ajay Sondhi 

Chairman | DIN: 01657614

mr. Anil Baijal 

Member | DIN: 01608892

ms. veena mankar 

Member | DIN: 00004168

mr. vinod Rai 

Member | DIN: 01119922

The Bank has a process in place for 

identification of independence, qualifications 

and positive attributes of Directors. The 

Board approved the Remuneration Policy 

for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 

Senior Management Personnel and other 

employees which is formulated in line with 

the applicable regulations. The aforesaid 

Remuneration Policy is available on the 

Bank’s website: www.idfcbank.com.

NRC recommends the remuneration of all 

the Directors to the Board for its approval. 

The details of the remuneration to 

Directors and related disclosures have 

been included in the Report on Corporate 

Governance, which is forming part of this 

Annual Report.

 INTeRNAl FINANCIAl CONTROlS 

The Bank has adequate internal controls and 

processes in place with respect to its financial 

statements which provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and preparation of financial 

statements. These controls and processes are 

driven through various policies, procedures 

and certification. The controls and processes 

shall be reviewed periodically. The Bank has 

a mechanism of testing the controls and 

processes at regular intervals for their design 

and operating effectiveness to ascertain 

the reliability and authenticity of financial 

information.

 STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered 

Accountants, Ahmedabad (‘DHS’) 

(Registration No - 117365W), will retire as 

the Statutory Auditors of the Bank at the 

ensuing AGM. In terms of Section 139 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

(Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of 

Directors has recommended the appointment 

of DHS as Statutory Auditors of the Bank 

for a period of One (1) year, subject to the 

approval of the RBI, to hold office from the 

conclusion of the ensuing 2nd AGM till the 

conclusion of 3rd AGM, on remuneration to be 

decided by the Board or Committee thereof. 

DHS, the retiring auditors, have confirmed 

that their appointment, if made, would be 

in conformity with the provisions of Section 

139(1) read with Rule 4 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and Section 

141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and have 

given their consent to be appointed. 

The Board recommends the appointment 

of DHS as the Statutory Auditors of the Bank 

at the ensuing AGM.
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 AUDITORS’ RePORT 

There were no qualifications, reservations, 

adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the 

Statutory Auditors in their report.

 SeCReTARIAl AUDIT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 

Bank had appointed Bhandari & Associates, 

Company Secretaries to undertake the 

Secretarial Audit of the Bank for FY16. 

The Bank provided all assistance and 

facilities to the Secretarial Auditor for 

conducting their audit.

The Secretarial Audit Report is appended 

as an Annexure 4 to this report. 

There were no qualifications, reservations, 

adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the 

Secretarial Auditors in their report.

 CONCURReNT AUDIT 

Your Bank has a regular process of getting 

concurrent audit done for the treasury 

operations. The concurrent audit is done by 

BSR & Co. llP, Chartered Accountants. The 

concurrent audit reports are placed before 

the Audit Committee for review.

 INSTANCeS OF FRAUD, IF ANY  

 RePORTeD BY THe AUDITORS OR 

 MANAGeMeNT 

There have been no instances of fraud 

reported by the Auditors under Section 

143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 or by the 

Management.

 RISK MANAGeMeNT POlICY 

Your Bank operates within an effective 

risk management framework to actively 

manage all the material risks faced by 

the Bank, in a manner consistent with 

the Bank’s risk appetite. Your Bank aims 

to establish itself as an industry leader 

in the management of risks and strive 

to reach the efficient frontier of risk and 

return for the Bank and its shareholders. 

The Board has ultimate responsibility for 

the Bank’s risk management framework. 

It is responsible for approving the Bank’s 

risk appetite, risk tolerance and related 

strategies and policies. To ensure the Bank 

has a sound system of risk management 

and internal controls in place, the Board 

has established the Risk Management 

Committee of the Board. The Risk 

Management Committee of the Board 

reviews risk management policies of the 

Bank pertaining to credit, market, liquidity 

and operational risks. The Committee also 

reviews the Risk Appetite & enterprise Risk 

Management frameworks, Internal Capital 

Adequacy Assessment Process (‘ICAAP’) 

and stress testing. Your Bank has in place a 

Risk Management Policy approved by the 

Board.

 VIGIl MeCHANISM / WHISTle BlOWeR  

 POlICY 

The Bank has implemented a Whistle Blower 

Policy pursuant to which Whistle Blowers 

can raise concerns relating to reportable 

matters (as defined in the policy) such as 

breach of IDFC Bank Code of Conduct, 

employee misconduct, fraud, illegal unethical 

imprudent behaviour, corruption, safety and 

misappropriation or misuse of Bank funds / 

assets, etc. Further, the mechanism adopted 

by the Bank encourages the Whistle Blower 

to report genuine concerns or grievances 

and provides for adequate safeguards 

against victimization of Whistle Blower to 

those who avail of such mechanism and also 

provides for direct access to the Chairman 

of the Audit Committee, in exceptional 

cases. The Audit Committee reviews the 

functioning of the Vigil mechanism from 

time to time. None of the Whistle Blowers 

has been denied access to the Audit 

Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower 

Policy is available on the Bank’s website: 

www.idfcbank.com. The Whistle Blower 

Policy has been periodically communicated 

to the employees and also posted on the 

Bank’s intranet.

In addition to the above, IDFC Bank has 

formulated Vigilance Policy for effectively 

managing the risks faced by the Bank on 

account of corruption, malpractices and 

frauds. In accordance with RBI circular,  

Dr. Rajeev Uberoi is the Chief Vigilance 

Officer of IDFC Bank.

 ANTI SeXUAl HARASSMeNT POlICY 

Your Bank has in place a policy on Anti 

Sexual Harassment, which reflects the Bank’s 

zero-tolerance to any form of prejudice, 

gender bias and sexual harassment at the 

workplace. Your Bank undertakes ongoing 

trainings to create awareness on this 

policy. There were no instances of Sexual 

Harassment that were reported during FY16.

 SIGNIFICANT AND MATeRIAl ORDeRS  

 PASSeD BY THe ReGUlATORS /  

 COURTS / TRIBUNAl 

The Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at 

Madras, vide its Order dated June 25, 2015, 

had sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement 

among IDFC limited and IDFC Bank limited 

The Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Madras, vide its Order 

dated June 25, 2015, had sanctioned the scheme of Arrangement 

among IDFC Limited and IDFC Bank Limited and their respective 

shareholders and Creditors under sections 391 to 394 of the 

Companies Act, 1956.
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and their respective Shareholders and 

Creditors under Sections 391 to 394 of the 

Companies Act, 1956.

 MATeRIAl CHANGeS AND  

 COMMITMeNT AFFeCTING FINANCIAl  

 POSITION OF THe BANK 

There are no material changes and 

commitments, affecting the financial position 

of the Bank which have occurred between the 

end of the financial year of the Bank i.e. March 

31, 2016 and the date of this Board’s Report.

 TRANSFeR OF AMOUNTS TO INVeSTOR  

 eDUCATION AND PROTeCTION FUND 

The Bank will update the details of 

unclaimed  / unpaid dividend / interest on the 

Bank’s website: www.idfcbank.com and on 

MCA website: www.mca.gov.in, from time to 

time. 

 RelATeD PARTY TRANSACTION 

All the Related Party Transactions that were 

entered into during the financial year were 

on arm’s length basis and were in ordinary 

course of business. IDFC Group including 

the Bank has always been committed to 

good corporate governance practices, 

including in matters relating to Related Party 

Transactions. 

All Related Party Transactions are placed 

before the Audit Committee for approval. 

Prior omnibus approval is also obtained from 

the Audit Committee for the related party 

transactions which are of repetitive nature as 

well as for the normal banking transactions 

which cannot be foreseen and accordingly 

the required disclosures are made to the 

Committee on quarterly basis in terms of the 

approval of the Committee.

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies 

Act, 2013 and Rules made there under & 

listing Regulations and in the back-drop of 

the Bank’s philosophy on such matters, on 

the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 

the Board approved ‘Policy on Related Party 

Transactions’ at its meeting held on January 

27, 2016. The said policy is also uploaded on 

the Bank’s website: www.idfcbank.com. Since 

all related party transactions entered into 

by the Bank were in the ordinary course of 

business and were on an arm’s length basis, 

Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Bank.

 CONSeRVATION OF eNeRGY,  

 TeCHNOlOGY ABSORPTION, FOReIGN  

 eXCHANGe eARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with  

Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 are not applicable to your Bank. 

However, your Bank has been taking 

steps at all times for conservation of energy. 

The initiatives taken for conservation of 

energy has been mentioned in the Business 

Responsibility Report, which is hosted on the 

Bank’s website: www.idfcbank.com. 

Also, your Bank has been increasingly 

using information technology in its 

operations, for more details please refer the 

section on Information Technology under 

Management Discussion & Analysis, which 

forms part of this Annual Report. 

SPeCIAl BUSINeSS 

The Board of Directors recommends the 

following items under special business for 

approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing 

AGM: 

1. Appointment of Mr. Rajan Anandan as an 

Independent Director

2. Offer and Issue of Debt Securities on 

Private Placement Basis

3. Reduction in eSOP pool from 7% to 

6% of the paid up share capital of the 

Bank and Ratification of IDFC Bank 

limited employee Stock Option Scheme 

2015 (‘IDFC BANK eSOS - 2015’ or the 

‘Scheme’)

4. Ratification of IDFC Bank limited 

employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 

(‘IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015’ or the ‘Scheme’) 

and grant of Options to the eligible 

employees / Directors of the Subsidiary 

Company(ies) of the Bank under the 

Scheme

5. Payment of Commission to Non-executive 

Directors

6. Approval of remuneration payable to  

Dr. Rajiv B. lall, Founder Managing 

Director & CeO of the Bank.

 GReeN INITIATIVe 

In accordance with the ‘Green Initiative’, the Bank 

will be sending the Annual Report  / Notice of 

AGM in electronic mode to those Shareholders 

whose e-mail Ids are registered with the Bank 

and  / or the Depository Participants.

Your Directors are thankful to the 

Shareholders for their participation in this 

Green Initiative.

 MANAGeMeNT DISCUSSION AND  

 ANAlYSIS RePORT 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Report for the year under review, as required 
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by Regulation 34(2)(e) of the listing 

Regulations forms part of this Annual Report.

 CORPORATe GOVeRNANCe 

The Bank is committed to achieve the highest 

standards of Corporate Governance. A 

separate section on Corporate Governance 

standards followed by your Bank and the 

relevant disclosures, as stipulated under 

listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 

and rules made thereunder forms part of this 

Annual Report.

A Certificate from the Statutory Auditors 

of the Bank, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, 

Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 

117365W), conforming compliance to the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated under listing Regulations, forms 

part of this Annual Report.

 CeO & CFO CeRTIFICATION 

Certificate issued by Dr. Rajiv B. lall, Founder 

Managing Director & CeO and  

Mr. Sunil Kakar, Chief Financial Officer of the 

Bank, in terms of Regulation 17(8) of listing 

Regulations, for the year under review was 

placed before the Board of Directors and 

forms part of this Annual Report.

 BUSINeSS ReSPONSIBIlITY  

 RePORT 

The Business Responsibility Report, in terms 

of Regulation 34(2)(f) of listing Regulations, 

describing the initiatives taken by IDFC Bank 

from an environmental, social and governance 

perspective is hosted on the Bank’s website: 

www.idfcbank.com. Any Member interested in 

obtaining a physical copy of the same  

may write to the Company Secretary of  

the Bank by sending an e-mail on  

mahendra.shah@idfcbank.com.

 eXTRACTS OF ANNUAl ReTURN 

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 

134 and sub-section (3) of Section 92 of 

the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 

12 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, the extracts 

of the Annual Return (Form MGT-9) as at 

March 31, 2016 forms part of this report and is 

appended as Annexure 6.

 DIReCTORS’ ReSPONSIBIlITY  

 STATeMeNT 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is 

hereby confirmed that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, 

the applicable accounting standards had 

been followed along with proper explanation 

relating to material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting 

policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank 

at the end of the financial year and of the 

profit of the Bank for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and 

sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Bank 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual 

accounts on a going concern basis;

e. the Directors had laid down internal 

financial controls to be followed by the Bank 

and that such internal financial controls are 

adequate and were operating effectively; and

f. the Directors had devised proper systems 

to ensure compliance with the provisions 

of all applicable laws and that such systems 

were adequate and operating effectively.
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Independent Non-executive Chairman

New Delhi | Date: June 25, 2016

B O A R D ' S  R e P O R T  19



a SUBSIDIARIeS  (H IN CRORe)

SR  

nO.

nAmE OF 

SuBSIDIARy 

COmpAny

ShARE 

CApITAL

RESERvES 

AnD 

SuRpLuS

TOTAL 

ASSETS

TOTAL 

LIABILITIES

InvEST- 

mEnTS

TuRnOvER pROFIT 

BEFORE 

TAX

pROvISIOn 

FOR TAX

pROFIT 

AFTER 

TAX

pROpOSED 

DIvIDEnD 

(%)

% OF 

ShAREhOLDInG

Not Applicable, since IDFC Bank does not have any Subsidiary Company.

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Not Applicable
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable

b ASSOCIATeS AND JOINT VeNTUReS

[Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associates Companies and Joint Ventures]

SR.  

nO.

nAmE OF ASSOCIATE COmpAnIES FEEDBACK InFRA pRIvATE LImITED mILLEnnIum CITy EXpRESSWAyS pRIvATE 

LImITED

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date march 31, 2016 march 31, 2016

2.
Shares of Associate held by the Bank on  

the year end

Number of equity Shares 4,026,689 194,000,000

Amount of Investment in Associate Company 

(H in crore)
20.09 194.00

extent of Holding (%) 24.61% 29.98%

3. Description of how there is significant influence extent of equity holding in the associate company exceeds 20%

4. Reason why the Associate is not consolidated 

The Bank does not have any subsidiaries and hence not required to prepare 

consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, consolidation of investments in 

associates is not applicable.

5.
networth attributable to Bank’s Shareholding as 

per latest audited Balance Sheet (J in crore)
19.58 118.29

6.

profit / (Loss) attributable to Bank’s 

Shareholding for the year ended march 31, 2016 

(J in crore) 

I. Considered in Consolidation - -

II. Not Considered in Consolidation 1.45 (24.40)

notes:
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Not Applicable.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable.

3. The financials of Millennium City expressways Private limited are unaudited.

4. Investment in associates were acquired by the Bank as part of demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC limited i.e. w.e.f. October 01, 2015.

 ANNeXURe 1 

stAteMent contAInIng sAlIent FeAtures oF tHe FInAncIAl stAteMent oF 
suBsIdIArIes / AssocIAte coMPAnIes / joInt ventures

[Pursuant to first proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014]

For And on BeHAlF oF tHe BoArd oF 
dIrectors oF IdFc BAnk lIMIted 

Anil Baijal
Chairman

Rajiv B. Lall

Founder Managing Director & CeO

Sunil Kakar
Chief Financial Officer

Abhijit Sen
Director

vikram Limaye 
Director

mahendra n. Shah
Company Secretary & 
Chief Compliance OfficerApril 26, 2016
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SR. nO. REQuIREmEnT DISCLOSuRE

I The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 

remuneration of the employees for the financial year

Dr. Rajiv B. lall: 64 X 

II The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, 

CFO, CeO, CS in the financial year

IDFC Bank was launched on October 01, 2015. There has 

been no increase in the remuneration of any Director / Key 

Managerial Personnel till March 31, 2016.

III The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 

employees in the financial year

IDFC Bank was launched on October 01, 2015. There has been 

no increase in the remuneration of any employee till  

March 31, 2016. 

IV The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Bank 2,405 as on March 31, 2016.

V The explanation on the relationship between average increase 

in remuneration and Bank performance

Not Applicable

VI Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial 

Personnel against the performance of the Bank

Being a new bank, the remuneration for all Key Managerial 

Personnel is based on their last drawn compensation in their 

previous organisation and is in line with what similar roles are 

paid in other Indian Private Sector Banks. 

VII Variations in the market capitalization of the Bank, price 

earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current FY and 

previous FY and percentage increase over decrease in the 

market quotations of the shares of the Bank in comparison to 

the rate at which the Bank came out with the last public offer.

IDFC Bank got listed on November 06, 2015. The Market 

Capitalization of IDFC Bank as at March 31, 2016 was  

H 16,352.44 crore. The earning per share of the Bank was 

H 2.34 as at March 31, 2016. The stock price of the Bank as 

at March 31, 2016 on the National Stock exchange of India 

limited was H 48.20 per share.

VIII Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 

employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 

in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof 

and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 

increase in the managerial remuneration

Not Applicable. There was no increase in remuneration for 

Bank employees during FY16.

IX Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial 

Personnel against the performance of the Bank 

Not Applicable

X The key parameters for any variable component of 

remuneration availed by the Directors

The variable component depends on the performance 

assessment done by the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee of the Bank against key performance parameters 

set at the beginning of the year and market benchmarks for 

similar roles.

XI The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director 

to that of the employees who are not Directors but receive 

remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the 

year

Nil

XII Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration 

policy of the Bank

We confirm.

 ANNeXURe 2 

rAtIo oF dIrector reMunerAtIon to eMPloyee MedIAn reMunerAtIon
The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 

197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:
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 ANNeXURe 3 

corPorAte socIAl resPonsIBIlIty
note: Being the 1st year of operations, the provision relating to contribution towards CSR as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was 

not applicable to IDFC Bank for Fy16. pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, the lending and borrowing business (Financing undertaking) of IDFC 

Limited was transferred to IDFC Bank Limited w.e.f. October 01, 2015 (Effective date of the Demerger Scheme). Accordingly, the CSR spend 

from the Financing undertaking was carried out by IDFC Limited (ultimate holding Company of IDFC Bank) through IDFC Foundation, a Section 

8 company under the Companies Act, 2013. The below statement shows the amount spent by IDFC Limited on CSR activities during Fy16.

 (J IN CRORe)

SR. 

nO. CSR pROJECT OR ACTIvITy IDEnTIFIED

SECTOR In WhICh ThE pROJECT IS COvERED 

(CLAuSE nO. OF SChEDuLE vII TO ThE ACT, 

AmEnDED)

pROJECTS OR pROGRAmS (1) LOCAL AREA OR OThER (2) SpECIFy 

ThE STATE AnD DISTRICT WhERE pROJECTS OR pROGRAmS WAS 

unDERTAKEn

AmOunT 

OuTLAy 

(BuDGET) 

AmOunT SpEnT On ThE 

pROJECTS OR pROGRAmS 

SuB hEADS: (1) DIRECT 

EXpEnDITuRE On pROJECTS 

OR pROGRAmS (2) OvER 

hEADS

CumuLATIvE 

EXpEnDITuRE 

up TO ThE 

REpORTInG 

pERIOD

AmOunT 

SpEnT: DIRECT 

OR ThROuGh 

ImpLEmEnTInG 

AGEnCy

1 Improvement in the learning environment in night schools—which cater to underprivileged 
students.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Maharashtra-Mumbai

5.12

 0.74  1.35 
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2 Improvement in learning outcomes through pedagogical interventions for children 
attending anganwadi centers set up under the Integrated Child Development Scheme of the 
Government of India.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Uttarakhand-Dehradun, Nainital, Haridwar, Udham Singh 
Nagar and Tehri.

 0.34  1.42 

3 Improvement in learning outcomes and universalization of primary education for a set of 
60 schools in the backward blocks of Ramgarh and Kishangarh through an identified set of 
interventions and infrastructure improvements.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Rajasthan-Alwar 1.04  1.93

4 Promoting Digital literacy amongst School Students to enable access to universal 
knowledge, quality education, healthcare, transparent governance and economic 
opportunities.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad  0.89  0.89 

5 Support to Janaagraha Centre for Citizenship and Democracy to strengthen and improve the 
quality of life in Indian cities and towns.

Cl.(ii) promoting education 
Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects

Gujarat-Ahmedabad & Surat, Karnataka-Bangalore, Madhya 
Pradesh-Bhopal, Odisha-Bhubaneswar, Chandigarh, 
Tamilnadu-Chennai, Kerala-Thiruvananthapuram, 
Uttarakhand-Dehradun, Delhi, Andhra Pradesh-Hyderabad, 
Rajasthan-Jaipur, Uttar Pradesh-Kanpur & lucknow, West 
Bengal-Kolkata, Punjab-ludhiana, Maharashtra-Mumbai, 
Bihar-Patna, Chhattisgarh-Raipur, Jharkhand-Ranchi

 0.53  0.53 

6 Improvement of infrastructure facilities at Anganwadi centre and Primary Schools at 
Sanghakheda Kalan Village.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad  0.25  0.25 

totAl  3.79  6.37 

7 Improvement in access to maternal and neo-natal health services for poor slum dwellers by 
strengthening the linkages with existing public health systems.

Cl.(i) promoting health care including 
preventive health care

Maharashtra-Mumbai

3.43

 0.95  1.97 

8 Providing emergency food supplies, house hold items and non-food items (NFIs) to meet 
the urgent needs of families affected by flood in Chennai.

Cl.(i) promoting health care including 
preventive health care

Tamilnadu-Chennai  1.22  1.22 

9 Support to Kamla Nehru Memorial Hospital for the maintenance cost of the essential 
cancer treatment equipment used for providing cancer treatment to underprivileged/
economic weaker section of the society.

Cl.(i) promoting health care including 
preventive health care

Uttar Pradesh-Allahabad  0.67  0.67 

 totAl  2.84  3.86 

10 Cattle Care programme for breed improvement by providing services such as Artificial 
Insemination (AI) & other Veterinary Services to the Cattle farmers which have helped in 
their livelihood promotion.

Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad, Harda, Khandwa, Khargone 
and Dhar

3.20

 0.80  0.80 

11 Improving the aspired quality of life for the people through the development of 
infrastructure projects - (i) Setting up of Micro Hydel for supply of electricity; (ii) Solar street 
light; and (iii) Clean drinking water in Mawlyngbwa Village, Meghalaya.

Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects;
Cl.(iv) ensuring environmental 
sustainability; 
Cl.(x) rural development projects.
 

Meghalaya-Across State  0.69  2.08 

12 Setting up a Centre of excellence for developing Handloom and Crafts as a means of 
sustainable livelihoods for the women in the remote areas of Uttarakhand.

Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects Uttarakhand-Almora  0.45  0.45 

13 Skill development programme for improving the employment opportunities for the youth. Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad  0.19  0.19 

 totAl  2.13  3.52 

14 Other programmes (including research & studies). Various clauses of Schedule VII All India coverage 11.65  3.84  7.75 

 totAl 11.65  3.84  7.75 

total direct expense of Project & Programmes (A)  12.60  21.50 

overhead expense (restricted to the 5% of total csr expenditure) (B)  1.09  2.23 

total (A) + (B) 23.40  13.69  23.73 

*IDFC Foundation, a not for profit company within the meaning of Section 8 of Act (erstwhile Section 25 company of the Companies Act, 1956) has a comprehensive 
approach towards promoting the development of livelihoods, rural areas, social Infrastructure such as healthcare and education and other infrastructure that would meet 
the objectives of Inclusion and environmental sustainability such as water supply, sanitation, renewable energy, slum re-development and affordable housing.

we hereby certify that the implementation and monitoring of csr Policy 
is in compliance with csr objectives and Policy of IdFc limited.
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 (J IN CRORe)

SR. 

nO. CSR pROJECT OR ACTIvITy IDEnTIFIED

SECTOR In WhICh ThE pROJECT IS COvERED 

(CLAuSE nO. OF SChEDuLE vII TO ThE ACT, 

AmEnDED)

pROJECTS OR pROGRAmS (1) LOCAL AREA OR OThER (2) SpECIFy 

ThE STATE AnD DISTRICT WhERE pROJECTS OR pROGRAmS WAS 

unDERTAKEn

AmOunT 

OuTLAy 

(BuDGET) 

AmOunT SpEnT On ThE 

pROJECTS OR pROGRAmS 

SuB hEADS: (1) DIRECT 

EXpEnDITuRE On pROJECTS 

OR pROGRAmS (2) OvER 

hEADS

CumuLATIvE 

EXpEnDITuRE 

up TO ThE 

REpORTInG 

pERIOD

AmOunT 

SpEnT: DIRECT 

OR ThROuGh 

ImpLEmEnTInG 

AGEnCy

1 Improvement in the learning environment in night schools—which cater to underprivileged 
students.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Maharashtra-Mumbai

5.12

 0.74  1.35 
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2 Improvement in learning outcomes through pedagogical interventions for children 
attending anganwadi centers set up under the Integrated Child Development Scheme of the 
Government of India.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Uttarakhand-Dehradun, Nainital, Haridwar, Udham Singh 
Nagar and Tehri.

 0.34  1.42 

3 Improvement in learning outcomes and universalization of primary education for a set of 
60 schools in the backward blocks of Ramgarh and Kishangarh through an identified set of 
interventions and infrastructure improvements.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Rajasthan-Alwar 1.04  1.93

4 Promoting Digital literacy amongst School Students to enable access to universal 
knowledge, quality education, healthcare, transparent governance and economic 
opportunities.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad  0.89  0.89 

5 Support to Janaagraha Centre for Citizenship and Democracy to strengthen and improve the 
quality of life in Indian cities and towns.

Cl.(ii) promoting education 
Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects

Gujarat-Ahmedabad & Surat, Karnataka-Bangalore, Madhya 
Pradesh-Bhopal, Odisha-Bhubaneswar, Chandigarh, 
Tamilnadu-Chennai, Kerala-Thiruvananthapuram, 
Uttarakhand-Dehradun, Delhi, Andhra Pradesh-Hyderabad, 
Rajasthan-Jaipur, Uttar Pradesh-Kanpur & lucknow, West 
Bengal-Kolkata, Punjab-ludhiana, Maharashtra-Mumbai, 
Bihar-Patna, Chhattisgarh-Raipur, Jharkhand-Ranchi

 0.53  0.53 

6 Improvement of infrastructure facilities at Anganwadi centre and Primary Schools at 
Sanghakheda Kalan Village.

Cl.(ii) promoting education Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad  0.25  0.25 

totAl  3.79  6.37 

7 Improvement in access to maternal and neo-natal health services for poor slum dwellers by 
strengthening the linkages with existing public health systems.

Cl.(i) promoting health care including 
preventive health care

Maharashtra-Mumbai

3.43

 0.95  1.97 

8 Providing emergency food supplies, house hold items and non-food items (NFIs) to meet 
the urgent needs of families affected by flood in Chennai.

Cl.(i) promoting health care including 
preventive health care

Tamilnadu-Chennai  1.22  1.22 

9 Support to Kamla Nehru Memorial Hospital for the maintenance cost of the essential 
cancer treatment equipment used for providing cancer treatment to underprivileged/
economic weaker section of the society.

Cl.(i) promoting health care including 
preventive health care

Uttar Pradesh-Allahabad  0.67  0.67 

 totAl  2.84  3.86 

10 Cattle Care programme for breed improvement by providing services such as Artificial 
Insemination (AI) & other Veterinary Services to the Cattle farmers which have helped in 
their livelihood promotion.

Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad, Harda, Khandwa, Khargone 
and Dhar

3.20

 0.80  0.80 

11 Improving the aspired quality of life for the people through the development of 
infrastructure projects - (i) Setting up of Micro Hydel for supply of electricity; (ii) Solar street 
light; and (iii) Clean drinking water in Mawlyngbwa Village, Meghalaya.

Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects;
Cl.(iv) ensuring environmental 
sustainability; 
Cl.(x) rural development projects.
 

Meghalaya-Across State  0.69  2.08 

12 Setting up a Centre of excellence for developing Handloom and Crafts as a means of 
sustainable livelihoods for the women in the remote areas of Uttarakhand.

Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects Uttarakhand-Almora  0.45  0.45 

13 Skill development programme for improving the employment opportunities for the youth. Cl.(ii) livelihood enhancement projects Madhya Pradesh-Hoshangabad  0.19  0.19 

 totAl  2.13  3.52 

14 Other programmes (including research & studies). Various clauses of Schedule VII All India coverage 11.65  3.84  7.75 

 totAl 11.65  3.84  7.75 

total direct expense of Project & Programmes (A)  12.60  21.50 

overhead expense (restricted to the 5% of total csr expenditure) (B)  1.09  2.23 

total (A) + (B) 23.40  13.69  23.73 

*IDFC Foundation, a not for profit company within the meaning of Section 8 of Act (erstwhile Section 25 company of the Companies Act, 1956) has a comprehensive 
approach towards promoting the development of livelihoods, rural areas, social Infrastructure such as healthcare and education and other infrastructure that would meet 
the objectives of Inclusion and environmental sustainability such as water supply, sanitation, renewable energy, slum re-development and affordable housing.

we hereby certify that the implementation and monitoring of csr Policy 
is in compliance with csr objectives and Policy of IdFc limited.
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 1  A BrIeF outlIne oF tHe 
coMPAny’s csr PolIcy, IncludIng 
overvIew oF Projects or 
ProgrAMMes ProPosed to Be 
undertAken And A reFerence to 
tHe weB-lInk to tHe csr PolIcy 
And Projects or ProgrAMMes.

The CSR policy is to ensure that CSR 

activities are not performed in silos and that 

it be skilfully and inextricably woven into the 

fabric of the IDFC Group’s business strategy 

for overall value creation for all stakeholders. 

IDFC Group believes that profitability 

must be complemented by a sense of 

responsibility towards all stakeholders with 

a view to make a material, visible and lasting 

difference to the lives of disadvantaged 

sections of the people, preferably in the 

immediate vicinity in which the company 

operates but at the same time ensure 

widespread spatial distribution of its CSR 

activities Pan-India befitting its status as a 

conscientious corporate citizen.

Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 

Act’) read with Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 requires 

IDFC limited to mandatorily spend on CSR.

During the year, IDFC limited carried 

out CSR activities through its wholly 

owned subsidiary company, namely, IDFC 

Foundation, a not-for-profit Company within 

the meaning of Section 8 of the Act, 2013 

(erstwhile Section 25 of the Companies Act, 

1956).

The object of the CSR activities would 

seek to:

a. serve the poor, marginalised and 

underprivileged

b. promote inclusion

c. be sustainable

d. meet needs of the larger community and 

society

IDFC Foundation, as implementing agency 

on behalf of IDFC limited and its group 

companies, undertook the following CSR 

activities which fall within the ambit of the 

activities listed in Schedule VII of the Act for 

promoting the development of:

a. livelihoods

b. rural areas

c. social infrastructure such as healthcare 

and education; and 

d. other infrastructure that would meet the 

objectives of Inclusion and environmental 

sustainability such as water supply, 

sanitation, renewable energy, slum  

re-development and affordable housing.

 2  AverAge net ProFIt oF IdFc 
lIMIted For lAst tHree FInAncIAl 
yeArs 
H 2,339.65 CRORe

 3  PrescrIBed csr exPendIture 
(two Per cent oF tHe AMount As 
In IteM 3 ABove)  
H 46.79 CRORe

H 23.40 CRORe FOR HAlF YeAR

 4  totAl AMount to Be sPent 
For tHe FInAncIAl yeAr By IdFc 
lIMIted  
H 23.40 CRORe

detAIls oF csr sPent durIng tHe 
FInAncIAl yeAr By IdFc lIMIted 
H 23.40 CRORe

AMount unsPent, IF Any; 
NIl
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 ANNeXURe 4 

secretArIAl AudIt 
rePort

FOR ThE FInAnCIAL yEAR EnDED 

mARCh 31, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

IDFC BAnK LImITED

CIn: u65110Tn2014pLC097792

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit 

of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by IDFC BAnK LImITED 

(hereinafter called “the Bank”) having CIn: 

u65110Tn2014pLC097792. Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided 

us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts / statutory compliances 

and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Bank’s 

books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Bank and also the information 

provided by the Bank, its officers, agents 

and authorized representatives during the 

conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the Bank has, 

during the audit period covering the 

financial year ended on march 31, 2016 

complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Bank has 

proper Board-processes and compliance 

mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, 

minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Bank for 

the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 

according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and 

the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) 

Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made 

thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the 

Regulations and Bye-laws framed 

thereunder;

iv. Foreign exchange Management Act, 

1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment and external Commercial 

Borrowings. The Bank does not have any 

Overseas Direct Investment during the 

financial year.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines 

prescribed under the Securities and 

exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SeBI 

Act’):

a. The Securities and exchange Board of 

India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 ;

b. The Securities and exchange Board 

of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992 and Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and exchange Board 

of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and exchange Board of 

India (employee Stock Option Scheme 

and employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 

Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and 

exchange Board of India (Share Based 

employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014;

e. The Securities and exchange Board 

of India (Issue and listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and exchange Board of 

India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing 

with client;

g. The Securities and exchange Board 

of India (Delisting of equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009#; and

h. The Securities and exchange Board of 

India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998#;

i. The Securities and exchange Board of 

India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 

1992;

j. The Securities and exchange Board of 

India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 

1994;

k. The Securities and exchange Board 

of India (Stock Brokers & Sub-Brokers) 

Regulations, 1992.
# The Regulations or Guidelines, as the case 

may be were not applicable for the period 

under review.

The list of Acts, laws and Regulations 

specifically applicable to the Bank are 

given below:

vi. The Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

We have also examined compliance with the 

applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India.;

ii. The listing Agreements entered into by 

the Company with Stock exchange(s) 

under erstwhile listing Agreement and 

SeBI (listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (“listing 

Regulations, 2015”). 

During the period under review, the Bank 

has generally complied with the provisions 

of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above, to the 

extent applicable.

We further report that the Board of 

Directors of the Bank is duly constituted 

with proper balance of executive Directors, 

Non-executive Directors and Independent 

Directors. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during 

the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors 

to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent 

at least seven days in advance, and a 

system exists for seeking and obtaining 

further information and clarifications on the 

agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. As 

confirmed by Management the meeting of 

Independent Directors is schedule to be held 

on April 26, 2016.

During the period under review, decisions 

were carried through unanimously and 

no dissenting views were observed, while 

reviewing the minutes.

We further report that there are 

adequate systems and processes in the 

Bank commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Bank to monitor and 

ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit 

period, the Company has undertaken 

following events / actions—

I. The Hon’ble High Court of Judicature 

at Madras, vide its Order dated 

June 25, 2015, had sanctioned the Scheme 

of Arrangement among IDFC limited and 

IDFC Bank limited and their respective 

shareholders and creditors under Section 

391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 
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(‘Demerger Scheme’). On July 23, 2015, 

Reserve Bank of India has granted a 

final banking license to the Bank. The 

Shareholders of IDFC limited as on the 

record date i.e. October 05, 2015 have 

received 1,594,020,668 equity Shares of 

H 10 each of IDFC Bank limited pursuant 

to the Demerger Scheme as approved 

by the Hon’ble Madras High Court. The 

equity Shares of the Bank got listed on 

Stock exchanges on November 06, 2015.

II. Member’s approval has been obtained 

at the Annual General Meeting held 

on September 29, 2015 pursuant to 

Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013 to borrow from time to time such 

sum(s) of money(ies) such that the 

money to be borrowed together with 

the money(ies) already borrowed by the 

Bank would exceed the aggregate of the 

paid-up share capital of the Bank and 

its free reserves, provided that the total 

amount up to which money(ies) may be 

borrowed shall not exceed the sum of 

H 1,50,000 crore, outstanding at any point 

of time.

III. Member’s approval has been obtained 

at the Annual General Meeting held on 

September 29, 2015 for borrowing/raising 

funds, from time to time by issue of debt 

instruments including but not limited to 

bonds and non-convertible debentures 

upto H 150,000 crore, outstanding at any 

point of time, on private placement basis.

IV. Member’s approval has been obtained 

at the Annual General Meeting held on 

September 29, 2015 to the Board of 

Directors of the Bank to create, issue, 

offer and allot, such number of equity 

shares not exceeding in aggregate 7% 

(seven) percent of the issued equity 

shares of the Bank, from time to time, 

under IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015, or any 

modifications thereof.

V. Board of Directors of the Bank at its 

meeting held on April 29, 2015 and 

August 25, 2015 has issued 1,250,000,000 

and 547,462,668 equity Shares 

respectively to existing shareholders by 

way of Rights Issue and subsequently the 

allotment was made.

For Bhandari & Associates

Company Secretaries

S. n. Bhandari

partner

FCS No: 761; C P No. : 366

Mumbai | April 23, 2016

This report is to be read with our letter of 

even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ 

and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure A

To

The Members,

IdFc BAnk lIMIted

CIn: u65110Tn2014pLC097792 

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the 

Financial Year ended on March 31, 2016 of 

even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the 

responsibility of the management of the 

Bank. Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices 

and processes as were appropriate to 

obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the 

Secretarial records. The verification 

was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. We believe that the processes 

and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness 

and appropriateness of financial records 

and Books of Accounts of the Bank. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained 

the Management representation about 

the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions 

of Corporate and other applicable 

laws, rules, regulations, standards is 

the responsibility of management. 

Our examination was limited to the 

verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an 

assurance as to the future viability of the 

Bank nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 

with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the bank. 

For Bhandari & Associates

Company Secretaries 

S.n.Bhandari

partner 

FCS No: 761; CP. No: 366

Mumbai | April 23, 2016.
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01 ReGISTRATION AND OTHeR DeTAIlS

1. CIN U65110TN2014PlC097792

2. Registration Date October 21, 2014

3. Name of the Company IDFC BANK lIMITeD

4. Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares 

Indian Non-Government Company

5. Address of the Registered office and contact details KRM Tower, 8th Floor, 

No. 1 Harrington Road, Chetpet, 

Chennai - 600 031, Tamil Nadu, India.

Tel: +91 44 4564 4000, Fax: +91 44 4564 4022

6. Whether listed company Yes / No Yes

7. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, if any

Karvy Computershare Private limited (Unit: IDFC Bank limited)

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31 & 32, 

Financial District, Gachibowli, Nanakramguda, 

Serilingampally, Hyderabad-500 032, Telangana, India.

Contact Person: M R V Subrahmanyam 

Tel: +91 40 6716 2222 Fax: +91 40 2342 0814 

Toll Free: 1800 345 4001

e-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com 

Website: www.karvycomputershare.com

02 PRINCIPAl BUSINeSS ACTIVITIeS OF THe COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Bank shall be stated

SR. nO. nAmE AnD DESCRIpTIOn OF mAIn pRODuCTS / SERvICES nIC CODE OF ThE pRODuCT / SERvICE % TO TOTAL TuRnOvER OF ThE BAnK

1. Banking Services 64191 100

 ANNeXURe 5 

Form no. mGT-9

extrAct oF AnnuAl return As on tHe FInAncIAl yeAr ended on 
MArcH 31, 2016
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014].

03 PARTICUlARS OF HOlDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATe COMPANIeS 

SR. 

nO.

nAmE AnD ADDRESS OF ThE COmpAny CIn / GLn hOLDInG / SuBSIDIARy /

ASSOCIATE

% OF ShARES 

hELD

AppLICABLE 

SECTIOn

1.

IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 

KRM Tower, 8th Floor, No.1 Harrington Road, 

Chetpet, Chennai–600 031, Tamil Nadu, India

U65900TN2014PlC097942 Holding Company 52.98 Section 2(46)

2.

IDFC limited 

KRM Tower, 8th Floor, No.1 Harrington Road, 

Chetpet, Chennai–600 031, Tamil Nadu, India

l65191TN1997PlC037415
Ultimate Holding 

Company

Indirectly 

52.98
Section 2(46)

3.

Feedback Infra Private limited 

311, 3rd Floor, Vardhaman Plaza Pocket 7, Plot 

No. 6, Sector 12, Dwarka  

New Delhi - 110078, India

U74899Dl1990PTC040630 Associate Company 24.61 Section 2(6)

4.

Millennium City expressways Private limited  

IGI Toll Plaza Building Opp Radisson Hotel, 

Mahipalpur  

New Delhi - 110037, India

U45204Dl2014PTC266306 Associate Company 29.98 Section 2(6)
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4a SHARe HOlDING PATTeRN (eQUITY SHARe CAPITAl BReAKUP AS PeRCeNTAGe OF TOTAl eQUITY)

CATEGORy OF 

ShAREhOLDERS

nO. OF ShARES hELD AS AT mARCh 31, 2015 nO. OF ShARES hELD AS AT mARCh 31, 2016 % ChAnGE 

DuRInG ThE 

yEAR

DEmAT phySICAL TOTAL % OF 

TOTAL 

ShARES

DEmAT phySICAL TOTAL % OF 

TOTAL 

ShARES

A. pROmOTERS

1. Indian

a. Individual/ 

HUF
- - - - - - - - -

b. Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

c. State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -

d. Bodies Corp. - 50,000 50,000 100 1,797,512,608 60 1,797,512,668 52.98 (47.02)

e. Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

f. Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total A. 1. - 50,000 50,000 100 1,797,512,608 60 1,797,512,668 52.98 (47.02)

2. Foreign - - - - - - - -

a. NRIs-

Individuals
- - - - - - - - -

b. Other-

Individuals
- - - - - - - - -

c. Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

d. Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

e. Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total A. 2. - - - - - - - -

Total 

shareholding of 

promoter  

A. = A. 1.+A. 2.

- 50,000 50,000 100 1,797,512,608 60 1,797,512,668 52.98 (47.02)

B. puBLIC 

ShAREhOLDInG
- - - - - - - - -

1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a. Mutual Funds - - - - 57,896,594 - 57,896,594 1.71 1.71

b. Banks/FI - - - - 8,488,245 - 8,488,245 0.25 0.25

c. Central Govt - - - - 261,400,000 - 261,400,000 7.70 7.70

d. State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

e. Venture 

Capital Funds
- - - - - - - - -

f. Insurance 

Companies
- - - - 48,522,313 - 48,522,313 1.43 1.43

g. FPIs - - - - 768,151,580 - 768,151,580 22.64 22.64

h. Foreign 

Venture Capital 

Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i. Others 

(specify)
- - - - - - - - -

Foreign 

Corporate 

Bodies

- - - - 5,151,271 - 5,151,271 0.15 0.15

Bodies 

Corporate
- - - - 122,216,102 - 122,216,102 3.60 3.60

Overseas 

Corporate 

Bodies

- - - - 2,000 - 2,000 - -

Sub-total B. 1. - - - - 1,271,828,105 - 1,271,828,105 37.49 37.49

2 8  I D F C  B A N K  A N N U A l  R e P O R T  2 0 1 5 – 2 0 1 6



SHARe HOlDING PATTeRN (eQUITY SHARe CAPITAl BReAKUP AS PeRCeNTAGe OF TOTAl eQUITY) (CONTINUeD)

CATEGORy OF 

ShAREhOLDERS

nO. OF ShARES hELD AS AT mARCh 31, 2015 nO. OF ShARES hELD AS AT mARCh 31, 2016 % ChAnGE 

DuRInG ThE 

yEAR

DEmAT phySICAL TOTAL % OF 

TOTAL 

ShARES

DEmAT phySICAL TOTAL % OF 

TOTAL 

ShARES

2. non-

Institutions

a. Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian - - - - - - - - -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b. Individuals - - - -

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital 

upto H 1 lakh

- - - - 183,521,102 54,431 183,575,533 5.41 5.41

ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital 

in excess of 

H 1 lakh

- - - - 113,261,261 - 113,261,261 3.34 3.34

c. Others 

(specify)
- - - - - - - - -

Clearing 

members
- - - - 1,624,284 - 1,624,284 0.05 0.05

Non Resident 

Indians
- - - - 13,688,929 1,527 13,690,456 0.40 0.40

Trusts - - - - 9,869,586 - 9,869,586 0.29 0.29

NBFC registered 

with RBI
1,261,443 - 1,261,443 0.04 0.04

Sub-total B. 2. - - - - 323,226,605 55,958 323,282,563 9.53 9.53

Total public 

Shareholding  

B. = B.1. + B.2.

- - - - 1,595,054,710 55,958 1,595,110,668 47.02 47.02

C. ShARES 

hELD By 

CuSTODIAn 

FOR GDRS & 

ADRS - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) - 50,000 50,000 100 3,392,567,318 56,018 3,392,623,336 100.00 -
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4b SHAReHOlDING OF PROMOTeRS

ShAREhOLDInG AS AT mARCh 31, 2015 ShARE hOLDInG AS On mARCh 31, 2016 % ChAnGE In 

ShAREhOLDInG DuRInG 

ThE yEAR

SR. 

nO.

ShAREhOLDER’S nAmE nO. 

ShARES 

% OF TOTAL ShARES 

OF ThE COmpAny

% OF ShARES pLEDGED/

EnCumBERED TO TOTAL ShARES

ShAREhOLDER’S nAmE nO. ShARES % OF TOTAL ShARES 

OF ThE COmpAny

% OF ShARES pLEDGED/

EnCumBERED TO TOTAL ShARES

1. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 49,940 99.88 - IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 1,797,512,668 52.98 - (47.02)

2. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Mahendra N. Shah 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

3. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Sunil Kakar 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

4. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Vikram limaye 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

5. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Dr. Rajeev Uberoi 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

6. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Bipin Gemani 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

7. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Ketan Kulkarni 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

Total 50,000 100 - 1,797,512,668 52.98 - (47.02)

4c CHANGe IN PROMOTeRS’ SHAReHOlDING

SR. 
nO.

nAmE OF ThE 
ShAREhOLDER

ShAREhOLDInG AT ThE 
BEGInnInG OF ThE 

yEAR AS On 01.04.2015

DATE REASOn InCREASE/DECREASE In 
ShAREhOLDInG

CumuLATIvE ShAREhOLDInG 
AT ThE EnD OF ThE yEAR

nO. OF 
ShARES

% OF TOTAL 
ShARES OF 

ThE BAnK

nO. OF ShARES % OF TOTAL 
ShARES OF 

ThE BAnK

nO. OF 
ShARES

% OF TOTAL 
ShARES OF 

ThE BAnK

1.

IDFC Financial 
Holding 
Company 
limited (‘IDFC 
FHCl’)

50,000 100 - - - - 50,000 100

- - - 07.07.2015
Rights issue to 
IDFC FHCl

1,250,000,000 100 1,250,050,000 100

- - - 30.09.2015
Rights issue to 
IDFC FHCl

547,462,668 100 1,797,512,668 100

- - - 09.10.2015

Shares issued 
to Shareholders 
of IDFC limited 
pursuant to 
Demerger 
Scheme

- - 1,797,512,668 52.98

4d SHAReHOlDING PATTeRN OF TOP TeN SHAReHOlDeRS 

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRS and ADRS)

SR. 
nO.

ShAREhOLDInG AT ThE BEGInnInG 
OF ThE yEAR 01.04.2015

CumuLATIvE ShAREhOLDInG AT ThE 
EnD OF ThE yEAR 31.03.2016**

nAmE OF ThE ShAREhOLDER* nO. OF 

ShARES

% OF TOTAL ShARES 

OF ThE BAnK

nO. OF ShARES % OF TOTAL ShARES 

OF ThE BAnK

1. President of India - - 261,400,000 7.70

2. Sipadan Investments (Mauritius) limited - - 151,145,989 4.46

3.
National Westminster Bank PlC as Depositary of First 
State Asia Pacific leaders Fund a Sub Fund of First State 
Investments ICVC

- - 88,125,165 2.60

4. ClSA Global Markets Pte. limited - - 61,289,435 1.81

5. Orbis Sicav-Asia ex-Japan equity Fund - - 42,215,857 1.24

6. Actis Hawk limited - - 37,091,569 1.09

7. HSBC Pooled Investment Fund A/C HSBC Pooled Invest - - 29,431,469 0.87

8.
First State Investments (Hongkong) limited A/c First 
State Asian equity Plus Fund

- - 21,771,232 0.64

9. Orbis Global equity Fund limited - - 17,919,198 0.53

10. Wellington Trust Company National Association MUl - - 13,506,948 0.40

* Top Ten Shareholders of the Bank as on March 31, 2016 have been considered on the basis of Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID for the above disclosure. 
** The shares of the Bank are listed on NSe & BSe and hence are being traded on daily basis, the date wise increase / decrease in shareholding is not indicated.
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4b SHAReHOlDING OF PROMOTeRS

ShAREhOLDInG AS AT mARCh 31, 2015 ShARE hOLDInG AS On mARCh 31, 2016 % ChAnGE In 

ShAREhOLDInG DuRInG 

ThE yEAR

SR. 

nO.

ShAREhOLDER’S nAmE nO. 

ShARES 

% OF TOTAL ShARES 

OF ThE COmpAny

% OF ShARES pLEDGED/

EnCumBERED TO TOTAL ShARES

ShAREhOLDER’S nAmE nO. ShARES % OF TOTAL ShARES 

OF ThE COmpAny

% OF ShARES pLEDGED/

EnCumBERED TO TOTAL ShARES

1. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 49,940 99.88 - IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 1,797,512,668 52.98 - (47.02)

2. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Mahendra N. Shah 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

3. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Sunil Kakar 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

4. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Vikram limaye 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

5. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Dr. Rajeev Uberoi 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

6. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Bipin Gemani 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

7. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited jointly with Mr. Ketan Kulkarni 10 0.02 - - - - 0.00

Total 50,000 100 - 1,797,512,668 52.98 - (47.02)

4e SHAReHOlDING OF DIReCTORS AND KeY MANAGeRIAl PeRSONNel

SR. 

nO.

nAmE OF ThE ShAREhOLDER ShAREhOLDInG AT ThE BEGInnInG 

OF ThE yEAR 01.04.2015

ChAnGES In ThE ShAREhOLDInG 

DuRInG ThE yEAR

(On ACCOunT OF DEmERGER)

ShAREhOLDInG AT ThE EnD OF 

ThE yEAR 31.03.2016

nO. OF  

ShARES

% OF TOTAL ShARES 

OF ThE BAnK 

InCREASE DECREASE nO. OF  

ShARES

% OF TOTAL 

ShARES OF ThE 

BAnK

1
Dr. Rajiv B. lall, Founder MD 

& CeO
- - 1,198,984 - 1,198,984 0.04

2 Mr. Vikram limaye, Director - - 2,043,728 - 2,043,728 0.06

3 Mr. Sunil Kakar, CFO - - - - - -

4 Mr. Mahendra N. Shah, CS - - 210,000 - 210,000 0.01

05 INDeBTeDNeSS (`  IN CRORe)

(Indebtedness of the Bank including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment)

SECuRED LOAnS 

EXCLuDInG DEpOSITS*

unSECuRED LOAnS DEpOSITS** TOTAL InDEBTEDnESS

Indebtedness at the beginning of 

the financial year

i) Principal Amount - - - -

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the 

financial year

•

Additions on demerger of 

Financing Undertaking of 

IDFC limited

                                  -   56,720.74                               -   56,720.74

• Addition 874,867.36 68,765.69 - 943,633.05

• Reduction 874,857.42 77,582.54 - 952,439.96

net Change 9.94 47,903.89 - 47,913.83

Indebtedness at the end of the 

financial year
  

i) Principal Amount 9.94 47,903.89 - 47,913.83

ii) Interest due but not paid -                                    -   -                                    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.05                        2,696.38 - 2,696.43

Total (i+ii+iii) 9.99 50,600.27 - 50,610.26

* Includes Borrowings under Collateralised Borrowing and lending Obligations, market repurchase transactions with banks and financial institutions.

** Deposits accepted by the Bank are in normal course of banking business and an operating activity of the Bank and hence not included in the Indebtedness Disclosure.
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06 ReMUNeRATION OF DIReCTORS AND KeY MANAGeRIAl PeRSONNel

6a ReMUNeRATION TO FOUNDeR MANAGING DIReCTOR & CeO (IN H)

SR. nO. pARTICuLARS OF REmunERATIOn mD / WTD / mAnAGER TOTAL AmOunT

FOunDER mAnAGInG DIRECTOR & CEO

(FROm OCTOBER 01, 2015 TO mARCh 31, 2016

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the  

Income-tax Act, 1961
17,046,058 17,046,058

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 1,606,597 1,606,597

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - -

2. Stock Option - -

3. Sweat equity - -

4. Commission - -

(a) as % of profit - -

(b) others, specify - -

5. Others - Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 576,000 576,000

Total (A) 19,228,655 19,228,655

Ceiling as per the Act Refer Notes

Note: 1.  For the period from April 01, 2015 to September 30, 2015, Dr. Rajiv B. lall was paid remuneration from IDFC limited. The remuneration paid to him from IDFC 
limited was within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 2. Dr. Rajiv B. lall was appointed as the Founder Managing Director & CeO of IDFC Bank w.e.f. October 01, 2015. He was paid an amount of H 1.92 crore (approved 
by RBI) for the period from October 01, 2015 to March 31, 2016 from IDFC Bank. For the full year FY16, performance bonus of H 2 crore has been awarded to  
Dr. lall, subject to approval from the RBI. The performance bonus for FY15 of H 2.5 crore was paid to Dr. lall in May 2015 by IDFC limited. 

 3. In FY16, Dr. lall’s combined remuneration on accrual basis from IDFC limited and IDFC Bank was H 5.70 crore (Previous Year - H 5.40 crore)
 4. The remuneration paid / payable to him from IDFC Bank is within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

6b ReMUNeRATION TO OTHeR DIReCTORS  (IN H)

SR. nO. pARTICuLARS OF 

REmunERATIOn

nAmE OF ThE DIRECTORS TOTAL 

AmOunT
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1. Independent Directors

Fee for attending board 

and committee meetings
800,000 600,000 900,000 550,000 850,000 200,000 - - 50,000 3,950,000

Commission - - - - - - - - - -

Others, please specify - - - - - - - - - -

Total (1) 800,000 600,000 900,000 550,000 850,000 200,000 - - 50,000 3,950,000

2. Other non-Executive 

Directors

Fee for attending board 

committee meetings
- - - - - - - - - -

Commission - - - - - - - - - -

Others, please specify - - - - - - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - - - - - - -

Total (B) = (1 + 2) 800,000 600,000 900,000 550,000 850,000 200,000 - - 50,000 3,950,000

Total managerial 

Remuneration (A+B)
23,178,655

Overall Ceiling as per 

the Act
Refer Notes

Notes:  1. Mr. Gautam Kaji resigned from the Board w.e.f. September 30, 2015.
  2. Mr. Vikram limaye and Mr. Vinod Rai, Nominee Directors representing IDFC limited, have not been paid sitting fees during FY16.
  3. Commission will be paid as per the limits approved by the Shareholders of the Bank at the ensuing 2nd AGM to be held on July 27, 2016; not exceeding 1% of the 

net profits of the Bank as computed in the manner laid down in Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 or maximum of H 10 lakhs to each of such Directors, 
whichever is lower. 

  4. In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration to Directors other than executive Director shall not exceed 1 % of the Net Profits of the 
Bank. The remuneration paid to all the Directors is well within the said limits.
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6c ReMUNeRATION TO KeY MANAGeRIAl PeRSONNel OTHeR THAN MD (IN H)

SR. nO. pARTICuLARS OF REmunERATIOn KEy mAnAGERIAL pERSOnnEL

mR. mAhEnDRA n. ShAh mR. SunIL KAKAR

(COmpAny SECRETARy & 

ChIEF COmpLIAnCE OFFICER)

(ChIEF FInAnCIAL 

OFFICER)

TOTAL

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961
6,908,233 8,869,092 15,777,325

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 5,400 169,800 175,200

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the  

Income-tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat equity - - -

4. Commission

(a) as % of profit - - -

(b) Others, specify. - - -

5. Others, Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 332,012 1,005,689 1,337,701

Total 7,245,645 10,044,581 17,290,226

Note:  

1. Mr. Mahendra N. Shah and Mr. Sunil Kakar have been paid remuneration for the period beginning from October 01, 2015 (date of commencement of banking 
operations) to March 31, 2016 from IDFC Bank.

2.  In May 2016, Mr. Kakar and Mr. Shah were awarded by IDFC Bank a Performance Bonus of H 0.90 crore and H 0.82 crore respectively for their performance during FY16 
(Previous Year H 1.66 crore and H 1.35 crore, respectively were paid by IDFC limited while they were on the payroll of IDFC limited, for their performance during FY15).

3.  For FY16, combined remuneration on accrual basis from IDFC limited and IDFC Bank of Mr. Kakar and Mr. Shah was H 2.87 crore and H 2.21 crore respectively (Previous 
Year H 3.31 crore and H 2.41 crore respectively).

4.  Details of stock options granted during the year to Key Managerial Personnel are provided on the website of the Bank - www.idfcbank.com under ‘Regulation 14 of 
SeBI (Share Based employee Benegits) Regulations, 2014 Disclosures’.

07 PeNAlTIeS / PUNISHMeNT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFeNCeS

TypE SECTIOn OF ThE 

COmpAnIES ACT

BRIEF DESCRIpTIOn DETAILS OF pEnALTy/ 

punIShmEnT/ COmpOunDInG 

FEES ImpOSED

AuThORITy [RD/

nCLT/COuRT]

AppEAL mADE, 

IF Any (GIvE 

DETAILS)

A. BAnK nIL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS nIL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OThER OFFICERS In DEFAuLT   nIL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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Your Bank was incorporated on 

October 21, 2014, as a Public Limited 

Company under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Universal Banking License was granted by 

the reserve Bank of India (‘rBI’) to the 

Bank on July 23, 2015. We started banking  

operations on October 01, 2015.

mAnAGEmEnT 
DISCuSSIOn 
AnD 
AnALySIS
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MACrOeCOnOMIC enVIrOnMenT 

India’s macro economy exhibited stability 

through the year, aided by the sharp declines 

in global oil and commodity prices. But a 

second year of poor monsoons had a drag 

effect on rural incomes, depressing rural 

and overall consumption demand. Inflation 

and the twin deficits-current account 

deficit and the fiscal deficit-were well under 

control through the year, giving regulators 

a stronger hand in managing the growth-

inflation dynamics. 

Despite pressures on the public 

exchequer from arrears arising out of the 

7th Pay Commission and the outgo on 

account on One-Rank-One-Pay (‘OROP’) 

recommendations, the Government stood 

steadfast by the path of fiscal consolidation, 

with a stated target of 3.5% of FD / GDP. The 

Government has committed to channelizing 

savings from targeted subsidies etc. into 

public spending on infrastructure projects, 

principally roads and railways.

The investment push from the 

Government sector holds hope for a revival 

in the economic cycle, even as private sector 

investment remains subdued for a variety 

of reasons. There are some signs of green 

shoots of revival in the economy, but these 

remain vulnerable to policy shocks. Despite 

the global head winds, India is estimated 

to have grown at 7.6% in FY16, the highest 

growth registered by any country in 2016.

growtH-InFlAtIon dynAMIcs get 
Better 

The Central Statistical Organisation (‘CSO’) 

has put the advance estimate for real GDP 

growth in FY16 at 7.6%, higher than 7.2% 

in FY15. However, in nominal terms, GDP 

decelerated to 8.6% in FY16 from 10.8% in 

FY15, due to deflationary pressures. On the 

production side, growth in FY16 was led by 

agriculture (Gross Value Added in agriculture 

increased by 1.1%, while for industry it 

increased by 7.3%). Poor monsoons for the 

second year in a row dampened agricultural 

incomes, thereby casting a long shadow 

on rural demand. For the services sector, 

GVA growth decelerated to 9.2% in FY16 

compared to a strong 10.3% growth in FY15 

with lower Government expenditures and 

lower growth in trade, hotels, transport, 

communication and financial, real estate and 

business services segments. 

In FY16, industrial production was flat 

with manufacturing growth averaging at 

2.2% (2.3% last year). The drag came from 

lacklustre investment demand from the 

private sector, reflected in capital goods 

production continuing to exhibit negative 

growth of (-)2%. Further, a modest 3.3% 

growth in consumer goods production 

in FY16, reflected sluggish consumption 

demand, expectedly from rural India. 

Notably, consumer durables production 

bucked the trend with a relatively robust 

growth of 12% in FY16, reflecting more 

robust demand in urban markets, fuelled 

in part by rapid growth in consumer debt. 

Personal loans from the banking sector 

grew on average by 17% in the period under 

review. This was in sharp contrast with bank 

lending to industry which grew by a meagre 

5.7% in April-February 2015–16. 

On the inflation front, the pressures seem 

to have relented. Headline Consumer Price 

Index (‘CPI’) inflation remained more or less 

contained in FY16, averaging at 4.9% (6% 

in FY15). Favourable base effects even led 

to a drop in headline CPI inflation in July 

and August 2015 to sub-4% levels. As the 

base effect wore off, CPI inflation rose till 

January 2016, before easing off again to 

end in March 2016 at 4.8%. even as headline 

CPI inflation fell, inflation persisted on the 

services side, such as in areas of ‘Household 

goods and services’, ‘Healthcare’, ‘education’ 

and ‘Recreation and Amusement’. 

Core CPI inflation averaged at 4.5% in 

FY16 (5.6% in FY15) with the drop coming 

from ‘Transport and Communication’, which 

in turn reflected in reductions in petrol and 

diesel prices. Food inflation witnessed some 

swings in FY16 with volatility in price of 

pulses and vegetables. Headline Wholesale 

Price Index (‘WPI’) inflation remained in the 

negative zone through FY16, averaging at (-) 

2.5% (2.1% in FY15). 

Principally, the drag came from the ‘Fuel 

and Power’ group where inflation averaged 

at (-)11.5% compared to (-)0.6% average in 

FY15. 

MonetAry PolIcy, lIquIdIty And 
g-sec yIelds 

The rigidities in the monetary transmission 

mechanism showed up in contrast during 

the year. Despite the Reserve Bank of 

India’s accommodative stance through 

the year—with the repo rate being cut by 

a cumulative 75 basis points— from 7.50% 

at the beginning of FY16 to 6.75% by 

September 29, 2015—the median of the base 

lending rate of banks dropped by just 30 

bps. Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) started to 

shift its focus of monetary action towards 

ensuring that the impediments faced by 

banks in transmitting rates were removed. 

This found greater expression in the 

April 05, 2016 monetary policy whereby repo 
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rate was reduced by 25 bps to 6.50% and 

the existing liquidity Adjustment Framework 

(‘lAF’) was revised. Under the new system, 

the RBI will work towards bringing it to a 

‘neutral’ mode and provide more ‘durable’ 

liquidity (via build up on net foreign 

exchange assets or net domestic assets 

Open Market Operations (‘OMO’) purchases 

of Government rupee securities) as a first 

line action. Short-term liquidity needs 

will subsequently be fine-tuned through 

lAF. Daily Cash Reserve Ratio (‘CRR’) 

maintenance was reduced to 90% from 95% 

while the gap between reverse repo rate and 

repo rate was reduced by 50 bps to 50 bps. 

This along with other measures such as the 

move towards Marginal Cost of Funds based 

lending Rate (‘MClR’) and linking of small 

savings rate to Government security yields 

should ensure better transmission from the 

banking system. 

While money market liquidity was 

adequate in the initial part of the year, it 

started to tighten post advance tax outflows 

in mid-September. A mix of factors such as 

slowing pace of Government expenditure, 

higher currency demand (high currency in 

circulation sustained till the close of the FY16) 

and an uptick in credit growth relative to 

deposit growth in the January–March quarter 

of FY16, led to tight liquidity conditions, 

that sustained through to the end of the 

fiscal. The 10-year benchmark yield opened 

the year at 7.74% and moved up to 8% with 

rupee weakness, global bond market sell-off 

and fears of another weak monsoon. After 

the 50 bps cut in repo rate by the RBI on 

29 September, 2015, the 10-year yield fell 

to its lowest during the year to a range of 

7.50–7.55%. G-sec yields tended to move 

higher in the build-up to the Union Budget 

with fears that the Government may deviate 

from its fiscal consolidation path as it absorbs 

higher salary payments on account of the Pay 
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Commission awards. As the Union Budget 

stuck to the fiscal consolidation roadmap and 

with the help of OMO purchases by the RBI to 

ease liquidity conditions, 10-year yield closed 

FY16 at 7.47%. 

externAl Accounts And 
currency dynAMIcs 

Current Account Deficit (‘CAD’) remained 

comfortable as a significant drop in global 

crude oil prices helped contract imports. 

From 4.7% in FY13, CAD / GDP ratio fell to 

1.7% in FY14 and further to 1.4% in FY15. For 

FY16, in the April-December period of FY16, 

CAD was comfortable at $ 22 billion (1.4% of 

GDP) compared to $26.2 billion (1.7% of GDP 

in the corresponding period of FY15). While 

oil imports had totalled $117 billion in the 

nine month period ended December of FY15, 

the same was at $71.7 billion in the same 

period in FY16. However, CAD correction was 

muted by a fall in the exports, reflecting a 

general slump in global trade. On a Balance 

of Payment (‘BoP’) basis, exports totalled 

$245 billion in April–December period of 

FY15 compared to $200.5 billion in the same 

period in FY16. Accretion of invisible receipts 

in the first nine months of FY16 dropped 

to $83.6 billion against $87.2 billion in the 

same period of the previous fiscal. even 

as CAD was comfortable, the BoP position 

deteriorated in the April-December period of 

FY16. This was primarily due to significantly 

weaker capital flows at US$37.8 billion in 

the first nine months of FY16 compared to 

US$59.3 billion in the same period last year, 

with the drag mainly coming from much 

lower Foreign Portfolio flows. 

Broadly, USD / INR maintained a 

depreciating trend through FY16 on account 

of fears of US monetary policy normalisation 

and other global risk-aversion sentiments—

such as devaluation of the Chinese Renminbi 

and a large sell-off in the Chinese equity 

markets. Domestically, weaker export growth 

and also lower portfolio flows impacted 

the USD / INR trends. USD / INR was at 

around 62.19 in the beginning of the year, 

traded at its weakest at 68.71 closer to end-

February 2016, before finally ending the 

FY16 at 66.25. Thus, over the year, USD / INR 

witnessed a depreciation of around 6.5%.

reForMs In tHe BAnkIng sector 

A key highlight of the banking sector in 

2015–16 fiscal was a renewed focus on asset 

quality. As on September 2015, net  

Non- Performing Advances (‘NPAs’) of the 

banking sector were at 2.8% (up from 1.5% 

in FY13) while the ratio of restructured 

standard assets to gross advances was 

at 6.2%. For the first time ever, the RBI 

conducted a concurrent audit of banks 

called the Asset Quality Review (‘AQR’) and 

gave each bank a list of accounts which had 

to be classified as Non-Performing loans 

(‘NPls’) by March 2017. 

The main objective of this direct 

intervention was to ensure that banks clean 

their balance sheets by 2016–17. The AQR 

related clean-up has resulted in banks’ NPls 

rising sharply by 30% sequentially for the 

quarter ending December 31, 2015, and 

further in the quarter ended March 2016. 

During the year, RBI gave banks more 

options to resolve stressed loans including 

the scheme on Strategic Debt Restructuring 

(‘SDR’) where banks can get in a new 

promoter for a stressed company by 

converting debt into equity. 

Another significant initiative announced 

by the Government for revival of power 

distribution companies was the Ujwal 

DISCOM Assurance Yojna (‘UDAY’) Scheme. 

Under this plan, state-owned banks were 

able to convert their loans to Distribution 

Companies (‘DISCOMs’) into higher rated 

Government bonds which helped address 

concerns on the ability of DISCOMs to 

repay banks. Ten states have signed up for 

the scheme with total debt of H 2 trillion of 

which H 1 trillion has already been converted 

to bonds in FY16 while H 0.5 trillion will be 

converted in FY17. Under INDRADHANUSH, 

a scheme to improve the efficiency of 

state-owned banks, the Government laid 

down a long-term capitalization plan under 

which public sector banks would get capital 

infusion of H 700 billion over four years.

The banking landscape in India is also 

changing with the RBI providing in-principle 

approval to 10 small finance banks and 11 

payment banks. Small finance banks will offer 

basic banking services and lend to un-served 

and under-served sections including small 

business units, small and marginal farmers, 

micro and small industries and entities in 

the unorganized sector. On the other hand, 

payments banks will offer basic savings, 

deposit, payment and remittance services 

to people without access to the formal 

banking system. It has also floated the idea 

of allowing more differentiated banks, such 

as wholesale banks. Further, RBI proposes 

to allow Non-Banking Financial companies 

(‘NBFCs’), experienced individuals, and 

companies that are not part of large 

conglomerates to seek bank licences on tap.

Further, in a first step towards 

consolidation of the banking sector, the 

State Bank of India has proposed a merger 

of five associate banks—State Bank of 

Bikaner & Jaipur, State Bank of Hyderabad, 

State Bank of Mysore, State Bank of Patiala 

and State Bank of Travancore—and the 

Bharatiya Mahila Bank, with itself, to emerge 

as a financial behemoth. The effort is to 

create a large lender with scale to fulfil the 

funding needs of a growing economy.

 A key highlight of the banking sector in 2015–16 fiscal was  

 a renewed focus on asset quality. As on september 2015,  

 net nPAs of the banking sector was at 2.8% (up from 1.5%  

 in FY13) while the ratio of restructured standard assets  

 to gross advances was at 6.2%. 
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FInAnCIAL sUMMArY 
FInAncIAl PerForMAnce And 
stAte oF AFFAIrs

Your Bank was incorporated on 

October 21, 2014, as a Company under the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Universal banking 

license was granted by the Reserve Bank of 

India (‘RBI’) to the Bank on July 23, 2015, 

and pursuant to the filing and approval 

of the Scheme of Arrangement under 

Section 391–394 of the Companies Act, 

1956, between IDFC limited and IDFC Bank 

limited and their respective shareholders 

and creditors (‘Demerger Scheme') by the 

Hon'ble Madras High Court, vide its order 

dated June 25, 2015 and on fulfilment of all 

conditions for the banking license as well 

as those specified under the Demerger 

Scheme, your Bank commenced its banking 

operations on October 01, 2015.

Pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, net 

assets amounting to H 6,234 crore were 

transferred from IDFC limited to your Bank, 

and in consideration, equity shares of your 

Bank, in the ratio of 1:1 have been issued 

to the shareholders of IDFC limited. In 

addition, shares were issued to the Non-

operative Financial Holding Company, IDFC 

Financial Holding Company limited, in 

compliance with RBI Guidelines for licensing 

of new banks in the private sector.

Financial Results of your Bank before 

commencing banking operations (i.e. for the 

period ended September 30, 2015) and after 

commencing banking operations (i.e. for the 

period October 01, 2015, to March 31, 2016) 

are on the facing page.

FInAncIAl PerForMAnce oF your 
BAnk AFter coMMenceMent oF 
BAnkIng oPerAtIons

In its first six months of banking operations, 

your Bank has successfully and steadily 

diversified its business mix and added new 

revenue streams. It has expanded its reach 

to serve new customer segments both on 

the retail as well as wholesale side of the 

business, and is thus well positioned to build 

a sustainable banking franchise. Customer 

acquisition has gained traction, led by 

diversification of products. Total number of 

customers was at 16,440 by the close of the 

financial year.

The financial performance of your Bank 

during the half year ended March 31, 2016, 

was healthy with total net revenues (net 

interest income plus other income) of  

H 1,159 crore. Your Bank reported Net Interest 

Margin (‘NIM’) of 2.05% (NIM on loans is 

2.95%) backed by net interest income of  

H 808 crore. Other income stood at H 351 

crore, comprising trading gains of H 256 

crore, fees and commission income of H 68 

crore and other income of H 27 crore. Your 

Bank exhibited robust growth in both funded 

and non-funded businesses. Generation 

of fee-based income has been remarkably 

robust, reflecting the introduction of new 

offerings, mostly non-funded products. 

This is an important matrix to track the 

diversification of the business away from 

infrastructure and term lending.

Operating expenses stood at R 510 

crore, out of which HR related cost was 

of H 269 crore. During the year, your Bank 

continued to make substantial investments 

in human capital, information technology 

and branch infrastructure. Your Bank had a 

total headcount of 2,405 employees at the 

end of fiscal. Moreover, your Bank opened 

60 new branches, 11 new ATMs and 33 new 

Micro ATMs, which resulted in higher cost to 

income ratio of 44.01%. 

Total provisions and contingencies were 

of H 242 crore, out of which, provision for 

tax stood at H 218 crore. In addition to the 

minimum provisioning level prescribed 

by RBI, your Bank on a prudent basis, 

makes provisions on specific advances in 

infrastructure sector that are not NPAs 

('identified advances') but has reason to 

believe risk of possible slippages on the 

basis of the extant environment or specific 

information or current pattern of servicing. 

During the year, your Bank made additional 

specific provision of H 31 crore.

In its maiden half year of banking 

operations, your Bank reported a profit 

before tax of H 625 crore and after providing 

income tax of H 218 crore, the net profit after 

tax stood at H 407 crore for the half year 

ended March 31, 2016. Your Bank enhanced 

its shareholder’s value by delivering healthy 

financial return ratios. Basic earnings per 

share was H 1.20, Return on equity (‘ROe’) 

was 6.04% and Return on Assets (‘ROA’) 

stood at 1.10%.

As at March 31, 2016, your Bank’s total 

balance sheet was of H 73,970 crore. The 

retail depository franchise and overall 

depository franchise showed healthy growth. 

Total deposits of your Bank stood at H 

8,219 crore and net advances at H 45,699 

crore. Total deposits of your Bank comprise 

Current Account, Savings Account (‘CASA’) 

deposits of H 445 core, term deposits of  

H 4,263 crore and certificate of deposits of  

H 3,511 crore.
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The gross advances of your Bank were 

H 49,667 crore and after reducing provisions 

of H 3,968 crore, your Bank reported 

net advances of H 45,699 crore. As on 

March 31, 2016, total credit (funded + non-

funded book) was of H 53,580 crore and 

funded credit (net advances + NCDs) was 

H 48,474 crore. 

As on March 31, 2016, your Bank had 

restructured loans of H 4,998 crore and 

provisions of H 2,694 crore thereon. The 

gross NPAs and net NPAs of your Bank 

stood at H 3,058 crore and H 1,139 crore 

respectively. The ratio of gross NPA to gross 

advances was 6.16%, and net NPA ratio stood 

at 2.39%. The overall size and volume of the 

stressed asset book did not grow; therefore 

there has been no deterioration in asset 

quality of your Bank. 

cAPItAl AdequAcy

As on March 31, 2016, your Bank’s Capital 

Adequacy Ratio (‘CAR’) under Basel III was 

22.04% (minimum regulatory requirement of 

13%) and Tier I CAR was 21.50%. Your Bank 

is extremely well capitalised and has a AAA 

credit rating.

 The financial performance of your 

Bank during the half year ended 

March 31, 2016, was healthy with total net 

revenues (net interest income plus other 

income) of H 1,159 crore. 
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LAUnCH OF IDFC BAnk 

IDFC group brings a deep understanding 

of credit risk management, relationships in 

the large corporates space, a large balance 

sheet and very substantive equity capital. 

Importantly, it has introduced a new banking 

architecture that features interplay of 

technology, customer engagement and a 

new service mindset. 

IDFC Bank’s vision is to deliver banking 

anytime, anywhere, at scale, by using 

technology to relentlessly drive efficiency 

and set new standards of customer 

experience and convenience.  Our aim is 

to build an institution that stands the test 

of time, an institution that is committed 

to serving all stakeholders, including 

our customers, community, country and 

colleagues, not just shareholders.

Your Bank opened for business on 

October 01, 2015, with 23 branches and a 

state-of-the-art digital banking platform. It 

was among the few banks to start wholesale 

and retail operations simultaneously – true 

to the concept of a universal bank. 

Your Bank was formally inaugurated by 

the Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi at a 

ceremony at 7 Race Course in New Delhi. 

IDFC Bank, thus, became the first bank in 

the history of India to be declared open by a 

sitting Prime Minister. 

Within 35 days of starting operations, 

your Bank listed on the Bombay Stock 

exchange and National Stock exchange. 

No bank in the history of corporate India 

has listed within such a short time of 

commencing business. This was another 

industry first. The listing is recognition of 

the high standards of corporate governance, 

fiduciary responsibility and exemplary 

efforts by the management in ensuring that 

all compliance and regulatory guidelines 

were adhered to.

Since launch, your Bank has harnessed 

technology to introduce innovative products 

such as the Business experience Platform 

(‘BXP’), the state-of-the-art corporate 

internet banking portal, and an inter-

operable Aadhar-enabled Micro ATM. 

These products, coupled with the Bank’s 

relationships and robust experience of its 

teams, will help expand share of wallet 

within the Bank’s existing infrastructure 

client base. More importantly, it will also 

enable the Bank to diversify and grow 

its business & customer base beyond 

infrastructure progressively towards the 

mass retail space.

IDFC Bank was profitable in its maiden 

year of operations. To support a further 

scale-up of its business, your Bank has also 

acquired the best talent. 

tHe oPPortunIty For IdFc BAnk

Banking is at the cusp of a new era – that of 

disruption, encouraged by an unprecedented 

change in customer behaviour. 

Banks are today operating in an 

environment where use of smartphones, 

coupled with the ubiquitous internet 

connectivity, has led to an incredible rise 

in online purchasing and transacting. The 

rapidly increasing availability of e-commerce 

platforms has resulted in a tipping point in 

customer acceptability, of buying things 

online without touching or feeling them. 

These factors have led to the emergence of 

a customer ecosystem that has embraced 

new ways of paying, managing finances and 

banking. 

The regulatory architecture for banking 

has also started to reflect a new openness 

and flexibility. Acceptance of Aadhar-based 

authentication, the confluence of the Jan 

Dhan, Aadhar and Mobile, use of Business 

Correspondents to build last mile financial 

access, launch of the United Payment 

Interface – is evidence that the way banking 

was traditionally done, is now set for a 

change.

This presents an excellent opportunity for 

a new age bank that has the capability to 

gain market share through disruption, using 

technology and by leveraging service. 

Your Bank is determined to take forward 

the IDFC legacy – of serving the nation. 
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Our goal is, step by step, to build a mass 

retail bank. A Bank that goes much beyond 

servicing just the needs of the country’s 

infrastructure sector, being our historical 

sector of focus, to focus particularly on the 

needs of mid-market, small business, the 

self-employed and the wider retail customer 

base in our cities and in underserved 

communities of rural India.

 Your Bank was formally inaugurated  

 by the Prime Minister shri narendra

 Modi  at a ceremony at 7 race Course

 in new Delhi. IDFC Bank, thus, became  

 the first bank in the history of India  

 to be declared open by a sitting Prime  

 Minister. 
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 Prime Minister compliments 

 IDFC’s successful Journey 

 of 18 Years 
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COMMerCIAL AnD WHOLesALe BAnkIng 

commercial Banking 

large corporates are spoilt for choice. 

Smaller firms are still relatively under-

banked. True to its vision of serving all 

stakeholders, IDFC Bank has identified 

Commercial Banking as a key growth area. 

As your Bank builds its franchise, it aims 

to be the ‘Bank of Choice’ for Commercial 

Banking clients.

IDFC Bank’s Commercial Banking business 

comprises:

i. Middle Market Group (‘MM’) & 

ii. Small & Medium enterprises Group 

(‘SMe’)

Middle Market Group: This Group has a  

pan-India presence, with dedicated 

relationship and product teams. A full-

service organisation enables the front line 

staff to anticipate and meet client needs. 

Our aim is to build long term relationships 

and help create the large corporates of 

tomorrow.

Your Bank is uniquely positioned to 

offer an integrated corporate banking and 

financial advisory proposition to our high-

growth clients. 

Small & Medium Enterprises Group: 

This Group caters primarily to working 

capital requirements of the fast growing 

trading and manufacturing entities in the 

SMe Segment. These are largely owner-

manager driven businesses with unique 

requirements. We have a dedicated team of 

Relationship Managers (‘RMs’) supporting 

such enterprises. As these entities grow, we 

would like to partner with them by offering 

more sophisticated products and services 

based on their needs. We intend to grow 

our all-India footprint for this segment in a 

calibrated manner over the medium term. 

wholesale Banking

IDFC Bank’s Wholesale Banking business 

caters to the needs of large corporate 

customers.

In this space, IDFC Bank will build on its 

inherited strength of serving the needs of 

the infrastructure sector. Our aim is to now 

supplement our traditional term lending 

and project finance expertise with the full 

range of banking products & solutions of 

our infrastructure clients. Additionally, we 

now have the opportunity to expand our 

presence in non-infrastructure segments. 

During the year, the Wholesale Banking 

business made significant strides by building 

on our established reputation as a corporate 

bank by introducing the full range of 

banking solutions, backed up with innovative 

technology.

The Wholesale Bank is setting new 

service standards by working closely with 

customers to co-create customer solutions 

to serve their working capital, trade finance, 

cash management, corporate linked finance 

and term financing requirements.  The 

Bank’s digital technology platform enabled 

it to respond to client requirements in a far 

more user-friendly and meaningful way.

During the year, your Bank was successful 

in transforming its loan book (largely 

long term infrastructure assets), which it 

inherited from IDFC limited, into a mix of 

funded and non-funded assets book spread 

across infrastructure and non-infrastructure 

segment. 

The Bank’s technology-backed offerings 

and robust expertise in structuring solutions 

for corporates, supported the diversification 

of the loan book. With the slowdown in fresh 

capital expenditure and capacity addition, 

infrastructure and non-infrastructure 

corporates were open to refinancing their 

existing portfolios to benefit from lower 

interest rates and cost efficiencies. 

 Going forward, your Bank intends 

to build a strong non-funded book by 

aggressively pursuing opportunities and 

through differentiated product offerings. 

It also expects a robust pipeline of 

relationships from across Debt Capital 

Market (‘DCM’), trade finance, working 

capital financing and selective investment 

banking mandates. Given IDFC Bank’s 

focus on technology, it is seeing significant 

traction in adding new non-infra clients to 

the portfolio.

Overall, the Bank believes that there 

would be opportunities in large corporate 

space in the short to medium term, triggered 

by several growth-oriented policies of 

the Government, including ease of doing 

business, initiatives to unlock project 

profitability and increased Government 

spending on infrastructure.

robust system for early identification and 

management of stress

Your Bank has effectively put in place a 

robust system for management of stressed 

assets inherited from IDFC limited, to deal 

with the concerned borrowers and take 

proactive steps that enhance your Bank’s 

position with respect to security, asset 

coverage, improvement in the likelihood of 

recovery and actual recovery. 

Your Bank has identified the problem 

areas affecting the assets / investments 

and has, subsequent to a detailed internal 

analysis and understanding of the account 

with the promoter / management, effectively 

implemented meaningful exit options in 

certain cases.  It has also taken steps for 

restructuring and improving liquidity in 

others. 

BusIness revIew
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A full-service organisation enables 

the front line staff to anticipate and 

meet client needs. Our aim is to 

build long term relationships 

and help create the large 

corporates of tomorrow.
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treasury

The Bank’s Treasury carries out Financial 

Markets business for its clients apart from 

managing Asset liability gaps (Asset liability 

Management function) and Investments 

of the Bank. For its clients, the Financial 

Markets group provides solutions to meet 

(a) their interest rates & foreign exchange 

conversion and risk hedging needs and  

(b) their debt capital markets financing 

needs. Treasury manages asset-liability 

mismatches and interest rate sensitivities 

of the Bank’s portfolio by utilizing various 

market investments, money markets and 

permitted derivative products. It also 

ensures that the Bank meets its regulatory 

requirements on Cash Reserve Ratio (‘CRR’) 

and Statutory liquidity Ratio (‘SlR’) 

through efficient liquidity management and 

sovereign bonds position management. 

Another key area of opportunity was the 

DCM segment, where the Bank leveraged 

its well-established presence in bond 

markets to grow the DCM business.  The 

DCM business has been credited with 

putting together some unique bond offering 

solutions which have been accepted by both 

our issuer clients and the wholesale bond 

investors’ community.

Transaction Banking

Your Bank’s Transaction Banking Group 

(‘TBG’) is the driving force behind the 

conceptualization and seamless delivery of 

solutions and services. The Group specialized 

in core finance areas like Corporate Current 

Accounts, Cash Management Services, Trade 

Finance & Services, Supply Chain (Corporate 

linked Finance - ClF) and Capital Markets & 

escrow Services.

Your Bank exceeded customer 

expectations by offering an efficient 

transaction banking desk, continuously 

expanding its product suite and has been 

able to deliver superior services as evident 

from customer feedback.

The TBG team has introduced an 

innovative corporate banking solution - the 

BXP - that offers a seamless experience to 

corporate customers. It is a key differentiator 

for your Bank in the Transaction Banking 

space. 

 Your Bank is uniquely positioned  

 to offer an integrated corporate  

 banking and financial advisory 

 proposition to our high-growth 

 clients. 
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COnsUMer BAnkIng 

Your Bank’s goal for Consumer Banking is to 

set new industry benchmarks for simplicity 

of service and customer orientation. It is our 

belief that technology can help deliver more 

personalized and better quality service at 

scale to a customer base particularly in our 

cities, that is shifting rapidly to conducting 

banking transactions outside of the branch. 

In the first phase our consumer banking 

foray will focus on India’s top 5-8 cities by 

delivering multi-channel user friendly access 

to customers, that relies on fewer physical 

branches. Our ‘click-and-mortar’ model 

combines state of the art branches with an 

easy-to-use digital platform & doorstep and 

‘Banker on Call’ services.

This combination will allow the customer 

to choose to be serviced either through a 

branch, through the internet or through his 

phone. It will allow customers to transact 

seamlessly across all touch points making 

their banking experience simpler, more 

personalised and accessible. 

Your Bank has ensured that a banker is 

available 24/7 to all customers. Our very 

own Banker-on-Call unit is staffed with 

trained bankers and is equipped to deal 

with any query, at any time. The service is 

available even on public holidays. Customer 

calls are thus answered by our bankers, not 

an Interactive Voice Response (‘IVR’). This 

unit has received considerable appreciation 

from customers for its problem solving 

approach, and customer centricity. 

We believe that real growth in economic 

activity and job creation in business can 

come from Small and Medium enterprises 

(‘SMe’). India is a nation of entrepreneurs.  

This segment, however, does not have 

adequate access to banking services, even 

for the simplest of requirements. Your 

Bank intends to create access and simplify 

banking for this segment significantly. We 

are rolling out solutions that are intuitive and 

will meet their most pressing needs.

On the lending side, your Bank has 

launched an innovative mortgage product 

called the ‘Short N Sweet’ Home loan. This 

offering enables customers to save interest 

versus a traditional home loan. It has elicited 

a robust response from customers. This 

offering will be further enhanced and a 

range of new products, including personal 

loans, will be launched in the new financial 

year. 
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BHArAT BAnkIng

IDFC Bank is the first universal bank in India 

to adopt a differentiated service strategy 

for catering to people in rural and semi-

urban locations, through intensive use of 

technology. 

The goal of Bharat Banking is to deliver 

banking anywhere, anytime in a simple, ‘no-

nonsense’ way. Its concept involves creating 

hub branches with an ecosystem of access 

points and an ambulatory sales force. This 

unique distribution model is intended to 

substantially increase financial access in 

India’s vast hinterland. 

 Bharat Banking will enable inclusive 

growth in the following ways: 

InnovAtIng A PuBlIc PAyMent 
InFrAstructure

Your Bank is creating a network of Micro 

ATMs in villages that will provide real-time 

connectivity in the most inaccessible and 

financially excluded areas. This is supported 

by extensive outreach by the branch staff, to 

ensure last mile financial access.

The Bank’s Micro ATM - the first-of-its-

kind - functions like a ‘Bank in a Box’. An 

innovative device, it is inter-operable and 

enables customers of all banks to transact at 

any time of the day or night. It uses multiple 

identifiers including Aadhaar, mobile and 

account numbers for authentication. As 

the ATM is positioned outside the branch 

premises, it is within easy reach of citizens. 

The device can also be used for opening a 

bank account.

Your Bank is expanding this unique 

Micro ATM initiative to establish the public 

payments infrastructure in the country – one 

that will benefit citizens in the remotest 

places as well as in semi-urban locations. 

It simplifies ‘digital banking’ to citizens 

who are new to the concept and works in 

locations where connectivity is a concern. 

In addition to being used for banking 

transactions, bill payment, mobile / DTH 

recharges, the Micro ATM will serve as a 

two-way payment channel between the 

Government and citizens, facilitating Direct 

Benefit Transfers to citizens, and for tax 

and utility payments by citizens to the 

Government.  Thus, your Bank is helping 

create an innovative public payment 

infrastructure that is completely cashless. 

trAnsForMIng BHArAt, one 
dIstrIct At A tIMe

Under Bharat Banking, we are building a 

contiguous distribution network, such that 

the Bank’s services will be made available to 

every village or at several access points in 

the same village.

custoMIzed Products: 

Your Bank’s first product was the Joint 

liability Group loan for women, called Sakhi 

Shakti, aimed at enhancing livelihoods. With 

this, Bharat Banking has started with serving 

customers at the bottom of the pyramid. 

To deepen financial inclusion, your Bank is 

placing a special focus on segments such as 

marginal farmers, micro enterprises and the 

self-employed.  

PersonAlIzed servIce

Our bankers reach out with the help of 

hand held technology to serve customers in 

places where they reside - doorstep banking 

in the truest sense. 

coMMunIty engAgeMent

entwined into our Bharat Banking offering is 

community engagement, because we believe 

that districts can be transformed only when 

individual lives stand improved. This ties in 

with our legacy of building the nation - now, 

serving the community. 

Members of your Bank’s staff support 

the IDFC Foundation in implementing 

its initiatives, which include ‘Digishala’, 

‘Shwetdhara’ and ‘Nayantara’ – so far 

successfully launched in Madhya Pradesh. 

‘Digishala’ is a computer education 

programme for primary school children. 

The Bank’s staff supports Digishalas in 18 

schools.

 ‘Shwetdhara’ helps improve the income 

levels of small and marginal farmers 

engaged in dairy activities. This is done 

through permanent cattle care centres and 

cattle camps. 

 ‘Nayantara’ aims to eradicate preventable 

blindness through improved access to eye 

care. 

gOVernMenT BAnkIng 
IDFC Bank’s Government Business Group 

works closely with Government entities 

to advise and assist them in formulating 

solutions that support their complex cash 

management and accounting needs using 

customised technology platforms.

Your Bank has also been appointed as 

one of the receiving offices of the newly 

launched Sovereign Gold Bond Scheme 

managed by RBI. This would be an 

important avenue for the Bank to reach out 

to retail customer segments and help the 

Government in the success of this scheme.

rIsk 
IDFC Bank operates within an effective 

risk management framework to actively 

manage all the material risks faced by 

the Bank, in a manner consistent with the 

Bank’s risk appetite. The Bank aims to 

establish itself as an industry leader in the 

management of risks and strive to reach the 
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efficient frontier of risk and return for the 

Bank and its shareholders. The Board has 

ultimate responsibility for the Bank’s risk 

management framework. It is responsible 

for approving the Bank’s risk appetite, 

risk tolerance and related strategies and 

policies. To ensure the Bank has a sound 

system of risk management and internal 

controls in place, the Board has established 

the Risk Management Committee of the 

Board (‘RMC’). The RMC assists the Board 

in relation to the oversight and review of 

the Bank’s risk management principles and 

policies, strategies, appetite, processes and 

controls. 

Risk Appetite

The risk appetite is an expression of the risks 

the Bank is willing to take in pursuit of its 

financial and strategic objectives. The risk 

appetite thus sets the outer boundaries for 

risk taking at the Bank. The risk appetite is 

a top-down process and consists of specific 

risk appetite statements, which are approved 

by the Board and reviewed quarterly. 

Credit Risk 

The Bank’s credit risk is controlled and 

governed by the Board approved Credit Risk 

Management Policy. The Credit Risk group 

has been established to independently 

evaluate all proposals to estimate the various 

risks and their appropriate pricing, as well as 

their mitigation. 

Your Bank has rigorously adhered to 

the RBI mandated prudential norms on 

provisioning of stressed assets and has 

adopted a stringent approach in taking 

aggressive provisioning which is aimed at 

preserving and protecting shareholder value. 

We believe that the required steps have 

been taken in arresting further deterioration 

of economic value and rehabilitating 

stressed assets. With these measures, the 

Bank is well positioned to harness any 

improvement in the Indian economy.

Market Risk 

The Bank’s positions in debt, foreign 

exchange, derivatives, and equity are subject 

to Market Risk. Such risks faced by the Bank 

are monitored by the Market Risk Group. 

Several models and their tools are used to 

support the continuous monitoring of such 

risks. The tools, models and underlying risk 

factors are reviewed periodically to enhance 

their effectiveness. 

 The Bank’s Micro ATM—  

 the first-of-its-kind—  

 functions like a  

 ‘Bank in a Box’ 
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The group also supports the Asset-

liability Management (‘AlM’) function. The 

purpose of the Asset liability Management 

Committee (‘AlCO’) is to act as a decision 

making unit responsible for integrated 

balance sheet risk management from 

risk-return perspective including strategic 

management of interest rate and liquidity 

risks. 

operational risk

The objective of operational risk 

management is to manage and control 

operational risk in a cost effective manner 

within targeted levels as defined in the risk 

appetite. Operational risks at the enterprise 

wide level are overseen by a Group 

Operational Risk Management Committee 

while the Operational Risk Management 

group is engaged in continuous collection 

and assimilation of data related to 

operational risk. Such inputs are regularly 

analysed to highlight any critical risks and to 

engage with the concerned business units to 

effectively mitigate these. 

Information technology and Information 

security risk

Given that the Bank’s expansion strategy 

is more digital oriented, Information 

Technology risk is identified as a material 

risk for the Bank. The Bank strives to 

continuously improve its IT systems, with 

appropriate contingency plans in case of any 

unforeseen events that affect the server’s 

functionality. Unplanned downtimes in the 

systems or software, licensing fees of captive 

applications, information security breaches 

and the level of automation in the systems 

are key factors in our risk assessment. 

The Information Security Group (‘ISG’) is 

an independent group that oversees risks 

related to information technology and 

operates under the Information Security 

Management System framework (‘ISMS’) 

framework aligned with RBI guidelines and 

the ISO 27001 standard. 

capital Adequacy

The Bank manages its capital position to 

maintain strong capital ratios well in excess 

of regulatory and Board approved minimum 

capital adequacy at all times. The strong 

Tier I capital position of the Bank is a source 

of competitive advantage and provides 

assurance to regulators, credit rating 

agencies, depositors and shareholders. 

In accordance with the RBI guidelines 

on Basel III, the Bank adopts the 

standardized approach for credit risk, basic 

indicator approach for operational risk 

and standardised duration approach for 

market risk. Capital management practices 

are designed to maintain a risk reward 

balance, while ensuring that businesses are 

adequately capitalised to absorb the impact 

of stress events.

Internal capital Adequacy Assessment 

Process (‘IcAAP’)

The Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment 

Process (‘ICAAP’) forms an integral part 

of the Supervisory Review Process (‘SRP’) 

under Pillar 2 of the Basel II Framework. 

SRP under the Basel II Framework (pillar II) 

envisages the establishment of appropriate 

risk and capital management processes in 

banks and their review by the supervisory 

authority. ICAAP is a structured approach 

to assess the risk profile of the Bank and 

determine the level of capital commensurate 

with the scale and complexity of operations. 

Capital planning under ICAAP takes into 

account the demand for capital from 

businesses for their growth plans and 

ensures that the Bank is adequately 

capitalised for the period ahead and holds 

sufficient buffers to withstand stress 

conditions. The ICAAP framework thus 

assists in aligning capital levels with the risks 

inherent in the business and growth plans.

stress testing

Stress testing forms an essential part of 

ICAAP. It requires the Bank to undertake 

rigorous, forward looking assessment of 

risks by identifying severe events or changes 

in market conditions which could adversely 

impact the Bank. The ICAAP ensures 

that stress testing reports provide senior 

management with a thorough understanding 

of the material risks to which the Bank is 

exposed. Stress testing complements other 

approaches in the assessment of risk. It is 

the primary indicator of the Bank’s ability to 

withstand tail events and maintain sufficient 

levels of capital. It is used to evaluate the 

financial position of the Bank under a severe 

but plausible scenario to assist in decision 

making. It also assists the Bank in improving 

its risk monitoring processes. 
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OPerATIOns 

The Operations function at your Bank has 

been designed to deliver a superior and 

differentiated customer experience. Your 

Bank has developed technology-enabled 

processes that minimize paper flow and 

ensure seamless processing with minimal 

manual intervention. 

Commercial & Wholesale Banking 

Operations (‘CWBO’) provide transaction 

and accounting execution for all corporate 

banking products to all client segments in 

the Bank. It ensures superior client service 

and delivery for these. With a view to 

giving focussed service to corporate clients, 

dedicated wholesale branches have been 

established with experienced staff. The client 

servicing team is built to provide targeted 

service to clients and has experienced client 

focussed bankers with versatility across 

different products. 

With technology being a key focus area of 

the Bank, the implementation team plays an 

important role in the delivery of our market 

leading BXP – a user friendly, intelligent 

and interactive digital banking solution 

that enables a corporate, for the first time, 

to perform trade, treasury, forex and cash 

operations on its own – on one platform.

TeCHnOLOgY 
Your Bank has taken up the challenge of 

leveraging technology, both cutting edge as 

well as time tested , to acquire and service 

customers through the channel of their 

choice and time preference. The technology 

team has put in place the foundation for 

a digital bank—in line with its intent of 

delivering customer experience that is quite 

‘unlike any other bank’. 

Digitisation and operational excellence to 

reduce costs are the core tenets that drive 

technology investments and the solutions 

adopted by your Bank are reflective of that. 

They are designed to give a multi-channel 

experience to customers with concepts 

such as Banker-on-Call, video conferencing; 

straight through processing with minimal 

human intervention and agile and flexible 

platforms. The section on specific businesses 

elaborates the unique customer experience 

resulting from the Bank’s superior and 

integrated technology solutions. 

To ensure customer data security, your 

Bank has invested in leading technology 

solutions that are in sync with fast paced 

digital innovation seen in the industry. 

Governance and control is an area of focus 

with systems being deployed for internal 

audit automation, anti-money laundering, 

negative name screening, asset-liability 

management and compliance management 

from day zero along with requisite 

processes.

Your Bank plans to build on digital 

innovation with upcoming models servicing 

business-to-business, business-to-consumer 

and peer-to-peer requirements. 

IDFC Bank’s technology strategy 

converges with trends around social 

collaboration, mobility, cloud-computing and 

big data analytics. Some key achievements 

in 2015–16 include:

  n 80 applications in production as on 

March 31 

  n Facilitated technology needs resulting 

from IDFC ltd. and IDFC Bank ltd. demerger 

  n Deployed in a year, the technology 

footprint that is similar to a bank that has 

been in existence for over 10 years 

  n BXP—our state-of-the-art and innovative 

corporate internet banking portal is a unique 

solution for corporate customers

  n Retail Internet Banking—a highly 

responsive solution that is fully-functional, 

yet nimble enough to accommodate future 

development efforts

  n Single repository of all customer 

information—demographics and collaterals

  n Micro ATM based solution for our Bharat 

Banking business.

HUMAn resOUrCes 
Your Bank’s People Agenda is guided by five 

themes - culture, diversity, learning, sense of 

community and people orientation. These 

are the key underlying philosophies that 

your Bank follows in acquiring, managing 

and nurturing talent. We believe that putting 

these into play will help build a winning 

organization and motivate our people to 

transform banking for the better.

culture toPs our PeoPle 
AgendA

It is central to the Bank’s hiring strategy. 

The culture of your Bank is spelt out in its 

values: Balance, Collaboration, Drive and 

Honesty. Your Bank has used sophisticated 

assessment processes, psychometrics tests 

and third party assessments for senior level 

hires, to ensure that employees across the 

hierarchy are aligned with the articulated 

cultural position of the Bank.

we would lIke to BuIld An 
orgAnIzAtIon tHAt Is truly 
dIverse And InclusIve 

It includes both gender diversity as well as 

talent from outside the traditional banking 

sphere. This, we believe, will bring greater 

transparency and empowerment. A healthy 

mix of talent will inspire efficient work 

practices and we expect will improve the 

quality of service. 

 Your Bank’s People Agenda is guided by five  

 themes - culture, diversity, learning, sense of  

 community and people orientation. These are the  

 key underlying philosophies that your Bank follows in  

 acquiring, managing and nurturing talent. 
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Your Bank is driving a lot of initiatives 

aimed at making it an attractive workplace 

for women. Your Bank has hired women 

from management institutes including an 

all-women batch coming from the academia 

route. About 60-70% of our management 

trainees are women. A focussed intervention 

around this area, we believe, will give 

the Bank a unique and truly diversified 

workforce and thereby a competitive edge.

drIvIng A leArnIng culture 
Is key AsPect oF our PeoPle 
AgendA

At IDFC Bank we are committed to 

‘reimaging banking’; hence the emphasis to 

re-skill and re-orient new hires around this 

strategy is critical. As the Bank ramps up 

its workforce, strengthening this ability to 

take talent from industry and redirect their 

thinking would be a very large part of the 

People Agenda to achieve our objective of 

‘reimaging banking’. 

rePlAcIng Process orIentAtIon 
wItH PeoPle orIentAtIon–
turnIng tHe trAdItIonAl MInd 
set on Its HeAd

The entire design framework of employee 

facing processes and systems is designed 

around the thought of employee experience. 

Routine HR processes and data analysis 

are being digitized, thereby enabling 

the HR team to focus on the qualitative 

aspects of its function—such as employee 

engagement, experience and assessment. 

The same philosophy will be rolled out for 

performance management, compensation 

and benefits. 

BuIldIng A sense oF coMMunIty 
InternAlly

It is a theme that flows from the culture and 

values journey. Various interaction tools have 

been deployed to encourage employees 

to connect, collaborate and communicate 

– irrespective of where they are placed 

geographically.

enVIrOnMenT & 
sOCIAL POLICY AnD  
APPrAIsAL PrOCess 

Over the past few decades, there is 

increasing awareness and sensitivity towards 

addressing the environmental and social 

impact of business.

 IDFC Bank has framed an environment 

and social policy and environment and social 

risk management framework for all our 

businesses.

The environmental Risk Group (‘eRG’) 

of IDFC Bank works proactively with 

clients  / internal teams to identify, mitigate 

and manage environment & Social 

(‘e&S’) risks associated with projects  / 

transactions.  IDFC Bank obtains information 

on environment related regulatory and 

compliance norms so as to ensure that the 

projects / transactions it finances are in 

compliance with the applicable national 

environmental legislation.

IDFC Bank has developed and adopted 

an exclusion list comprising sectors where 

it will not engage in any financing activity. 

For the purpose of financing activities, IDFC 

Bank has also identified sensitive sectors 

which have a potentially high impact on the 

environment and communities, and where 

the Bank may have to deal with critical e&S 

issues. 
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InTernAL COnTrOLs 
AnD THeIr ADeQUACY 
The Bank has a proper and adequate system 

of internal controls to ensure that all assets 

are safeguarded and protected against 

loss from unauthorised use or disposition 

and that the transactions are authorised, 

recorded and reported correctly. Such 

internal controls are supplemented by an 

extensive programme of internal audits, 

review by management and documented 

policies, guidelines and procedures. These 

are designed to ensure that financial and 

other records are reliable for preparing 

financial information and other reports and 

for maintaining regular accountability of the 

Bank’s assets. Internal Audit Department 

provides independent and objective 

assurance to the Audit Committee of the 

Board of Directors (‘ACB’) and Management 

of the organization on the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal controls 

and risk management framework. Internal 

Audit Department presents their findings on 

a quarterly basis to the Audit Committee.

IDFC InsTITUTe 

Your Bank has established IDFC Institute, 

an independent, not-for-profit, think / do 

tank, with a mandate to investigate issues of 

economic development and growth, keeping 

in mind their political context. 

Specifically, the IDFC Institute will identify 

and provide solutions to bottlenecks that 

hold back rapid and inclusive economic 

development in India, as it makes the 

transition from a low-income, state-led 

economy to prosperous, market-based one. 

With a focus on the political economy 

of implementation, the Institute provides 

quality, in-depth and actionable research and 

recommendations to multiple stakeholders, 

including Government, academia and 

civil society. Through its research and 

partnerships with those who implement, the 

IDFC Institute seeks to develop toolkits for 

execution and fresh perspectives on difficult 

problems.

 Digishala —the 3-year project has  

 been successfully rolled out in 18  

 government schools, impacting over  

 7,000 children. 
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IDFC Institute’s work currently focuses on:

a.  Facilitating the country’s rural-to-urban 

transition 

b. Jobs and livelihood creation, with 

particular focus on the transition from 

informal to formal sectors, and farm to 

non-farm activities

c. Building the vital state and governance 

capacity to facilitate these transitions.

In addition, the Institute convenes the 

IDFC Institute Dialogues and IDFC Institute 

Conversations as private and off-the-

record platforms to foster cutting edge and 

innovative thinking in an informal setting, 

focused on the ‘what’ and ‘how’ of policy 

formulation and implementation. 

COrPOrATe sOCIAL 
resPOnsIBILITY (‘Csr’) 
& IDFC FOUnDATIOn 

Social engagement and community 

development has been a way of life at 

IDFC Bank. 

CSR is a key element of our Bank’s 

philosophy. Initiatives to benefit local 

communities are carefully woven into the 

fabric of our business. These initiatives 

are carried out through IDFC Foundation, 

a not-for-profit organisation, dedicated 

to bringing about change at the grass 

root level. Dedicated initiatives include 

focussed interventions in the areas of health, 

education and livelihood creation.

IDFC Foundation’s initiatives will 

increasingly be focussed in areas where the 

Bank establishes its operations. The Bank’s 

staff is closely involved in implementing 

IDFC Foundation’s initiatives at locations 

where the intervention is in the vicinity 

of its branches. To engage with the 

local communities, IDFC Foundation in 

conjunction with the Bank has identified 

requirements such as digital education for 

children, vision care, and cattle care for 

livelihood enhancement. 

Some recent initiatives include: 

nAyAntArA: vIsIon cAre 

A 2001 survey estimated a prevalence of 

10.8% in India, while the global prevalence 

 shwetdhara is an initiative set up  

 with the objective of helping small and  

 marginal farmers improve their income   

 from dairy development activities. 
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of blindness is 0.7%. We decided to focus on 

reducing preventable blindness in rural India. 

To improve access to good quality eyecare 

by qualified medical professionals, IDFC 

Foundation, in partnership with Seva Sadan 

eye Hospital Trust in Bhopal has launched 

‘Nayantara’ - A programme to provide free 

diagnosis and vision care in all districts, we 

serve as a Bank.

dIgIsHAlA: dIgItAl educAtIon In 
scHools

In the first month of the Bank’s operations, 

IDFC Foundation initiated a pilot project 

for promoting digital literacy amongst 

school students in Hoshangabad district of 

Madhya Pradesh in partnership with Pratham 

InfoTech Foundation (‘PIF’), a non-profit 

organisation. The 3-year project has been 

successfully rolled out in 18 Government 

schools, impacting over 7,000 children. 

Aside from digital education, IDFC 

Foundation also focusses on need-based 

interventions. For example, two schools in 

Sangakheda, MP, have been adopted for 

upgrading physical infrastructure, thereby 

helping the village in its aim to become 

a model village under the Government’s 

Pradhan Mantri Aadarsh Gram Yojna. 

sHwetdHArA: cAttle cAre 
Project 

Shwetdhara is an initiative set up with the 

objective of helping small and marginal 

farmers improve their income from dairy 

development activities. Such healthcare 

interventions are carried out at permanent 

cattle care centres exclusively set up for 

the purpose, equipped with a para-vet who 

covers the villages nearby, treats cattle, 

provides vaccination and medical care for 

cattle. In areas not covered by cattle care 

centres, the Foundation organises regular 

cattle care camps throughout the year. IDFC 

Foundation has partnered with one of India’s 

premier animal husbandry organizations, J K 

Trust, for delivering this programme. 

MAsooM: nIgHt scHool 
trAnsForMAtIon In MuMBAI

IDFC Foundation has been supporting 

Masoom, an organization working towards 

improving education in night schools 

of Mumbai through a ‘Night School 

Transformation Program’. The grant 

 The Bank’s staff is closely involved  

 in implementing IDFC Foundation’s  

 initiatives at locations where the  

 intervention is in the vicinity of its  

 branches. To engage with the local  

 communities. 
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extended by IDFC Foundation covered a 

large part of the administrative expenses 

of Masoom and has helped improve its 

organizational performance and program 

delivery. Over three years, Masoom has been 

able to scale up its interventions to 30 night 

schools, impacting the life of about 3,500 

students. 

sneHA: suPPortIng MAternAl 
And newBorn HeAltH In MuMBAI

IDFC Foundation has been supporting the 

Society for Nutrition, education and Health 

Action (‘SNeHA’) since June 2012 through 

grants and capacity building for its ‘Maternal 

& Newborn Health Beyond Boundaries’ 

program. Under this program, referral 

systems have been established between 

healthcare facilities for safe deliveries. 

SNeHA has partnered with 104 health 

facilities (hospitals, maternity homes and 

health posts) in four Municipal Corporations 

of Mumbai Metropolitan Region. About 1 lakh 

pregnant women with normal conditions 

and 20,000 with high risk and emergency 

conditions have benefitted from the 

program. The referral linkages have also 

significantly contributed in saving lives of 

2,164 pregnant women.

coMMunIty develoPMent In 
MegHAlAyA

As part of its engagement with the 

Government and the community in 

Meghalaya, IDFC Foundation commissioned 

a Solar Street lighting Project in 

Mawlynnong Village. Named Asia’s Cleanest 

Village, Mawlynnong attracts a large number 

of tourists; up to 500 a day during peak 

season. Inaugurated in May 2015, the project 

has had a positive impact on both tourism 

and life in general.

This project now has become a 

benchmark for Public-Private-Community 

Partnerships for the Meghalaya Government 

to replicate in other rural areas. The project 

has also been included under Salient 

Features of Mawlynnong Village in the 

Good Practice Document showcased by the 

Ministry of Panchayati Raj.

 IDFC Foundation has been supporting    

 Masoom, an organization working  

 towards improving education in night  

 schools of Mumbai through a ‘night  

 school Transformation Program’. 
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PrIMAry educAtIon In rAjAstHAn

This initiative is aimed at improving the 

learning levels of students studying in 60 

Government primary schools (Classes I to V) 

in Ramgarh and Kishangarh Bas blocks of 

Alwar district, Rajasthan. This is being done 

in partnership with the District Authority, 

Alwar District and Ibtada (an NGO based in 

Alwar, Rajasthan). The program involves a 

‘whole-school approach’ targeting holistic 

improvements across a set of intervention 

areas. These include development of 

specialized remedial packages for students 

who are lagging, training of Government 

school teachers for improved teaching 

techniques and better school management, 

building leadership qualities among school 

children, and capacity building of the local 

community for playing a greater role in 

School Management Committees (‘SMCs’). 

The program is expected to benefit 8,000 

students over 3 years.

 solar panels installed for use at all 

 Bharat Banking branches 
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settIng uP centre oF 
excellence, textIle MuseuM 
And vIsIon centre In AlMorA, 
uttArAkHAnd

In September 2015, IDFC Foundation 

committed to providing grant support to 

Panchacholi Women Weavers (‘PWW’) as a 

partner for setting up centres of excellence 

for women across five districts of Almora, 

Rudraprayag, Uttarkashi, Bageshwar and 

Pithoragarh in Uttarakhand. The grant was 

made in order to develop handlooms as a 

means of sustainable livelihood for women.

IMProvIng eArly cHIld cAre And 
educAtIon In uttArAkHAnd

IDFC Foundation partnered with Sesame 

Workshop India Trust (‘SWIT’) for improving 

preschool literacy and hygiene awareness for 

over 1.5 lakh children in 6000 Government-

run primary care centres. This involved 

training master trainers and specialists 

and monitoring the training of Anganwadi 

workers. It also comprised developing 

content to be taught and encouraging 

Anganwadi workers to use the latest 

pedagogical tools and training concepts. The 

final report on the outcome of the project 

has been shared with the state Government.

IMProved cIty systeMs In urBAn 
centres

The year marked the successful initiation 

of an advocacy project for improved 

city systems in India with Janaagraha, a 

Bangalore-based non-profit organisation 

that works towards transforming quality 

of life in India’s cities and towns. IDFC 

Foundation supported Janaagraha through 

grants and assistance for its Transforming 

Quality of life in Indian Cities & Towns 

programme from 2015–16 fiscal to 2017–18. 

The project aims to benefit a total of 

3.4 crore population in three years from 

21 major cities in India, comprising capital 

cities of 16 major states chosen based on 

population and coverage of states.

cAncer treAtMent For 
underPrIvIleged

IDFC Foundation recognises that health care 

expenses are well known to drag families 

into poverty. In the absence of any insurance 

and social security system, ailments like 

cancer sink millions into poverty each year 

due to high cost and often long-drawn 

course of treatment and relapse. Charitable 

hospitals in India play an important role 

in reducing the burden on families that 

cannot afford high quality cancer treatment. 

Kamala Nehru Memorial Hospital (‘KNMH’) 

& Regional Cancer Centre in Allahabad is 

a premier charitable hospital in India that 

addresses the cost of cancer treatment 

for the underprivileged. last year, IDFC 

Foundation provided a grant to KNMH 

towards the cost of running and maintain 

equipment used in providing radiation 

therapy to needy cancer patients. Our 

support is likely to benefit at least 800 new 

patients involving at least 20,000 sittings 

over the course of a year. Several families 

will benefit financially from the reduced cost 

of treatment.
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 IDFC BANK’S PHIlOSOPHY ON  

 CORPORATe GOVeRNANCe 

IDFC Bank limited (‘IDFC Bank’ or the 

‘Bank’), since its inception is committed to 

adopting the highest standards of Corporate 

Governance through its commitment to 

values and ethical business conduct. IDFC 

Bank strongly believes that sound Corporate 

Governance is an essential ingredient 

for corporate success and sustainable 

economic growth. IDFC Bank, through its 

stringent adherence to compliances aims to 

enhance and retain investor trust and social 

acceptability. 

IDFC Bank endeavors to conduct its 

operations with transparency and honesty 

towards all its stakeholders including 

customers, shareholders, regulators, 

employees and the general public. IDFC 

Bank’s businesses focus on maximising 

return on assets while managing inherent 

risks, thus ensuring that the Bank’s 

performance goals are met with integrity. 

The Bank’s systems, policies and frameworks 

are regularly upgraded to meet the 

IDFC Bank strongly believes that 

sound Corporate governance is an 

essential ingredient for corporate 

success and sustainable economic 

growth. IDFC Bank, through its 

stringent adherence to compliances 

aims to enhance and retain investor 

trust and social acceptability. 

CORpORATE  
GOvERnAnCE  
REpORT
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challenges of rapid growth in a dynamic 

external business environment. Governance 

practices not only deal with the growing 

size of the business, but also increase in 

complexities of the organizational structure 

that supports such growth. 

In India, Corporate Governance standards 

for listed companies are regulated by the

Securities and exchange Board of India 

(‘SeBI’) through SeBI (listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (‘listing Regulations’). As a Bank, 

which believes in implementing Corporate 

Governance practices that go beyond just 

meeting the letter of law, IDFC Bank not only 

meets with the Companies Act, 2013 and 

mandated elements of listing Regulations, 

but also incorporates most of the  

non-mandatory recommendations. 

This Chapter, read with the chapters on 

Management Discussion & Analysis and 

Board’s Report confirms IDFC Bank’s 

compliance with listing Regulations.

 BOARD OF DIReCTORS 

The Board of Directors of the Bank bring 

with them, a wide range of significant 

professional expertise and rich experience 

across a wide spectrum of functional areas 

such as Management and Administration, 

economics, Banking, Commercial Banking, 

Investment Banking, Micro-Finance, Finance, 

Audit and Accounting, Agriculture etc.

The Board has been constituted in 

compliance with the Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949, the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules made thereunder, listing Regulations 

and in accordance with the best practices in 

Corporate Governance across the Industry. 

The appointment of Directors on the Board 

of IDFC Bank has also been approved by the 

Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’).

The Board of the Bank has an optimum 

combination of executive and Non-executive 

Directors (‘NeDs’) including one (1) Woman 

Director. listing Regulations mandate 

that for a company with a Non-executive 

Chairman, at least one-third of the Board 

shall comprise of Independent Directors 

(‘IDs’). The Board of the Bank consists of 

nine (9) Directors; out of which six (6) are 

IDs i.e. 66.67% of the Board is Independent, 

which is more than the requirements of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing 

Regulations. The Board has two (2) Nominee 

Directors representing IDFC limited / 

IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 

(‘IDFC FHCl’). As on March 31, 2016, IDFC 

FHCl held 52.98% equity shares of IDFC 

Bank. Also, IDFC FHCl is a wholly owned 

subsidiary of IDFC limited. The Board 

has one (1) executive Director namely 

Dr. Rajiv B. lall who is the Founder Managing 

Director & CeO of the Bank. Mr. Anil Baijal is 

the Independent Non-executive Chairman of 

the Bank. 

Brief Profiles of all the Directors are 

available on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com and also at the end of 

this Chapter.

During FY16, Mr. Abhijit Sen, Mr. Ajay 

Sondhi, Dr. Ashok Gulati, Ms. Veena Mankar 

and Mr. Vinod Rai were inducted on the 

Board w.e.f. July 27, 2015 and Mr. Rajan 

Anandan was inducted w.e.f. December 01, 

2015. Also, Mr. Gautam Kaji resigned from 

the Board w.e.f. September 30, 2015. 

IDFC Bank commenced its banking 

operations on October 01, 2015. Accordingly, 

Dr. Rajiv B. lall stepped down as the 

executive Chairman of IDFC limited w.e.f. 

September 30, 2015 and took the position of 

Founder Managing Director & CeO of IDFC 

Bank w.e.f October 01, 2015. Dr. Rajiv B. lall 

shall hold office as Founder Managing 

Director & CeO of the Bank for a period of 

three (3) years w.e.f October 01, 2015.

All the new NeDs inducted on the Board 

were introduced to the culture and vision 

of the Bank through special induction 

programmes. The Founder Managing 

Director & CeO and the Senior Management 

Personnel (‘SMP’) provided an overview of 

Bank’s operations and familiarized all the 

new NeDs with them.

The Board has complete access to all 

the information about the Bank. The Board 

members are frequently provided with 

necessary documents, reports and internal 

policies to enable them to get familiarized 

with the Bank’s procedures and practices.

The details of familiarization programmes 

imparted to Directors are disclosed on the 

Bank’s website: www.idfcbank.com.  

 CODe OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors have laid down 

a Code of Conduct for all Directors and 

designated SMP of the Bank. The Code is 

available on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com. All Board members 

and designated SMP have affirmed their 

compliance with the Code. A declaration 

to this effect duly signed by the Founder 

Managing Director & CeO is enclosed at the 

end of this Chapter. 

Further, all the IDs have confirmed that 

they meet the criteria mentioned under 
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Regulation 16(1)(b) of the listing Regulations 

read with Section 149(6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. Also, they have given a declaration 

of independence pursuant to Section  149(7) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 

alongwith their affirmance to the Code of 

Independent Directors as prescribed under 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

 BOARD MeeTINGS 

The Board meets at least once a quarter to 

review the quarterly results and other items 

on the agenda, and also on the occasion 

of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’). 

Additional meetings are held whenever 

necessary.

The dates of the Board Meetings for 

the next financial year are decided well in 

advance and are informed to the Directors 

to enable them to manage their schedule 

effectively and prepare for the meetings in 

advance. Also, the Bank makes use of video 

conferencing facility or other audio visual 

means, whenever necessary, to enable larger 

participation of Directors in the meetings. 

In consultation with the Chairman & 

Founder Managing Director & CeO, the 

Company Secretary prepares the agenda 

and the explanatory notes and circulates 

these in advance to the Directors. Members 

of the Board are also free to recommend 

inclusion of any matter in the agenda for 

discussion. 

Members of the Senior Management are 

invited to attend the Board Meetings, make 

presentations and provide additional inputs 

to the items under discussion. 

The responsibilities of the Board  

inter alia include formulating and monitoring 

of plans, business strategy, budgets, 

reviewing financial results, appointment / 

cessation and remuneration of SMP and Key 

Managerial Personnel, perusing of policies 

and procedures, etc. The Board reviews on 

a quarterly basis the compliance reports of 

all laws applicable to the Bank, including the 

Corporate Governance reports submitted to 

Stock exchanges.

During FY16, eight (8) Board Meetings 

were held on April 29, 2015, July 27, 2015 

(2 meetings), August 25, 2015, October 26, 

2015, December 12, 2015, January 27, 2016 

and March 29, 2016. The maximum gap 

between any two consecutive meetings was 

less than 120 days. The necessary quorum 

was present for all the meetings.

Detailed presentations on the Bank’s 

business segments were made at the Board 

Meetings held during the year. Periodic 

presentations are made at the Board / 

Committee Meetings on business strategy, 

performance updates, financial statements 

etc. Minimum Information to be placed 

before the Board of Directors as mentioned 

in Schedule II Part A of the listing 

Regulations is placed before the Board for 

its consideration, as and when applicable.

The names of the Board members 

along with their attendance at the Board 

Meetings held during FY16 and the last 

AGM, their directorships, memberships and 

chairmanships in committees of companies 

(including IDFC Bank) are given in Table 01.

The Board / Committees also pass 

resolutions by circulation on need basis. The 

resolutions passed by circulation is placed 

for noting at the next Board / Committee 

01 COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIReCTORS FOR FY16

nAmE OF ThE DIRECTOR DIn pOSITIOn nO. OF BOARD 

mEETInGS hELD In 

Fy16

nO. OF BOARD 

mEETInGS 

ATTEnDED In Fy16

WhEThER ATTEnDED 

FIRST AGm hELD On 

SEpTEmBER 29, 2015

numBER OF DIRECTORShIpS nO. OF COmmITTEE 

mEmBERShIp 

(ChAIRmAnShIp) OF 

COmpAnIES2

(InCLuDInG IDFC BAnK)

OF InDIAn puBLIC 

LImITED COmpAnIES

OF OThER 

COmpAnIES1

(InCLuDInG IDFC BAnK)

Mr. Anil Baijal 01608892 Independent Non-executive Chairman 8 8 No 5 2 3 (1)

Mr. Abhijit Sen* 00002593 Independent Director 5 5 No $ 4 2 3(3)

Mr. Ajay Sondhi* 01657614 Independent Director 5 5 No 2 2 2(None)

Dr. Ashok Gulati* 07062601 Independent Director 5 5 No 2 1 -

Mr. Rajan Anandan** 02395272 Independent Director 3 2 N.A 1 4 -

Dr. Rajiv B. lall 00131782 Founder Managing Director & CeO 8 8 Yes 1 2 1(None)

Ms. Veena Mankar* 00004168 Independent Director 5 4 No$ 2 3 3(2)

Mr. Vikram limaye 00488534 Nominee Director (Nominee of IDFC limited-equity investor) 8 8 Yes 9 3 3(None)

Mr. Vinod Rai* 01119922 Nominee Director (Nominee of IDFC limited-equity investor) 5 5 No 4 2 3(1)

Mr. Gautam Kaji*** 02333127 Independent Director 4 2 No$ - - -

* Mr. Abhijit Sen, Mr. Ajay Sondhi, Dr. Ashok Gulati, Ms. Veena Mankar and Mr. Vinod Rai were appointed w.e.f. July 27, 2015. 
**Mr. Rajan Anandan was appointed w.e.f. December 01, 2015.
***Mr. Gautam Kaji resigned w.e.f. September 30, 2015.
$ 1st Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of IDFC Bank was held on September 29, 2015 and IDFC Bank got listed on November 06, 2015. Mr. Abhijit Sen, Chairman of the Audit 
Committee, Mr. Gautam Kaji, Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Ms. Veena Mankar, Chairperson of Stakeholders’ Relationship and Customer 
Service Committee could not attend the AGM for personal commitments.

1. Includes directorship held in Foreign Companies, Private limited Companies and Section 8 Companies in India.
2. Includes memberships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of all Indian Public limited Companies including IDFC Bank limited; figures in 
brackets indicate number of Committee Chairmanships as per Regulation 26 of the listing Regulations.
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meetings, as applicable. There were six (6) 

circular resolutions passed by the Board 

during FY16.

The Minutes of each Board / Committee 

Meeting are recorded in the Minutes Book 

after its confirmation at the respective 

meetings. 

 MeeTINGS OF INDePeNDeNT  

 DIReCTORS 

As per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the rules made thereunder, the 

IDs of the Bank shall hold atleast one (1) 

meeting in a year, without the attendance of 

Non-Independent Directors and members 

of the Management. These meetings are 

expected to review the performance of 

Non-Independent Directors and the Board 

as a whole, as well as the performance of the 

Chairman of the Board, taking into account 

the views of executive Directors and NeDs; 

assess the quality, quantity and timeliness 

of the flow of information between 

the Management and the Board that is 

necessary for it to effectively and reasonably 

perform their duties.

A meeting of IDs of the Bank was held on 

April 26, 2016. The meeting was attended by 

all six (6) IDs.

The IDs unanimously agreed that since 

this was the first year of the operations 

of the Bank and most of the Directors 

had joined the Board during the year, the 

formal process of evaluation as mentioned 

aforesaid would be carried out when the 

Bank completes one full year of operations.

 BOARD COMMITTeeS 

The Board has constituted various Board 

Committees to delegate particular matters 

that require greater and more focused 

attention. The Committees take informed 

decisions in the best interest of the 

Bank. Also, these Committees monitor 

the activities falling within their terms of 

reference and recommend their views to the 

Board. 

Majority of the members of most of 

the below mentioned Committees consist 

of IDs and most of these Committees are 

chaired by IDs. Mr. Mahendra N. Shah, 

Company Secretary & Chief Compliance 

Officer officiates as the Secretary for all the 

Board Committees and adheres to all laws 

and regulations for conducting Committee 

meetings.

During FY16, some of the Committees 

of the Board were reconstituted and their 

terms of reference were revised to align with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the 

listing Regulations.

The composition of all Board Committees 

is available on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com

Details on the terms of reference and 

composition of these Committees, including 

the number of meetings held during FY16, 

are given hereinafter :

01 | AudIt coMMIttee 

The Audit Committee comprises of four (4) 

members, three (3) of whom are IDs and 

one (1) Nominee Director. All members of 

the Audit Committee are financially literate 

and have accounting and related financial 

management expertise. 

notes:

a. None of the Directors of the Bank was Member of more than 10 committees or acted as Chairperson of more than 5 committees across all Public limited Companies in 
which they were Directors in terms of Regulation 26 of the listing Regulations.
b. None of the Directors held directorship in more than 10 Public limited Companies.
c. None of the Directors was related to any other Director.
d. None of the Independent Directors of the Bank served as Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies.
e. Dr. Rajiv B. lall, Founder Managing Director & CeO, was not an Independent Director of any other listed company.
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The Committee met two times during 

FY16 on October 26, 2015 and January 

27, 2016. The time gap between two 

consecutive meetings was less than 120 

days. The quorum of the meeting is two 

(2) members. The Chief Financial Officer, 

Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors 

are permanent invitees to the meetings of 

the Audit Committee.

The Minutes of the Audit Committee are 

circulated to the Members of the Board and 

are taken note of. 

The composition, name of members and 

chairman and their attendance at Audit 

Committee meetings held during FY16 is 

given in Table 02.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit 

Committee includes the following:

A. Financial Statements 

1. Oversight of the Bank’s financial 

reporting process and the disclosure of 

its financial information to ensure that the 

financial statement is correct, sufficient and 

credible.

2. Reviewing, with the management, the 

annual financial statements and draft 

auditors report thereon before submission 

to the Board for approval, with particular 

reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the 

Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of 

clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies 

and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving 

estimates based on the exercise of 

judgment by management.

d. Significant adjustments made in the 

financial statements arising out of audit 

findings.

e. Compliance with listing and other 

legal requirements relating to financial 

statements.

f. Disclosure of any related party 

transactions.

g. Modified Opinion(s) in the draft Audit 

report.

3. Reviewing, with the management, the 

quarterly financial statements and results 

before submission to the Board for approval. 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the 

statement of uses / application of funds 

raised through an issue (public issue, 

rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 

statement of funds utilized for purposes 

other than those stated in the offer 

document / prospectus / notice and the 

report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilisation of proceeds 

of a public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board 

to take up steps in this matter.

5.  Approval or any subsequent modification 

of transactions of the Bank with related 

parties.

6. To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and 

investments.

7. To review report on valuation of 

undertakings or assets of the Bank, wherever 

it is necessary.

8. evaluation of internal financial controls 

and risk management systems.

9. Pre-approval, approval or any subsequent 

modification of transactions of the Bank with 

related parties.

10. Audit Committee may grant omnibus 

approval for related party transactions in 

accordance with applicable regulations.

11. Review of housekeeping-particularly 

balancing and reconciliation of long 

outstanding entries Suspense / Sundries / 

Drafts payable / paid / Funds in Transit / 

Clearing / SGl / CSGl accounts. 

12. Suggest change in accounting policy and 

practices which may have significant bearing 

on financial statements. A confirmation that 

accounting policies are in compliance with 

accounting standards and RBI guidelines 

(Annual).

13. Review of accounting policies / systems 

of the Bank with a view to ensuring greater 

transparency in the Bank's accounts and 

adequacy of accounting standards (Annual).

14. Investigate any activity within its terms 

of reference, seek information from any 

employee, have full access to information 

contained in the records of the Bank and 

obtain outside legal or professional advice.

B. Statutory Audit

1. Recommending to the Board, the 

appointment, re-appointment, remuneration, 

terms of appointment and, if required, the 

replacement or removal of the statutory 

auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

2. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s 

independence and performance, and 

effectiveness of audit process.
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3. Approval of payment to statutory 

auditors for any other services rendered by 

the statutory auditors. 

4. Reviewing, with the management, 

performance of statutory auditors & internal 

auditors and adequacy of the internal 

control systems.

5. Discussion with statutory auditors before 

the audit commences, about the nature 

and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

6. Review the long Form Audit Report 

(‘lFAR’) issued by the statutory auditors.

7. Review of the management letters / 

letters of internal control weaknesses issued 

by the statutory auditors.

c. Internal Audit

1. Discussing with internal auditors any 

significant findings and follow up there on. 

2. Reviewing the findings of any internal 

investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or 

irregularity or a failure of internal control 

systems of a material nature and reporting 

the matter to the Board. 

3. Review of the internal audit reports 

relating to internal control weaknesses.

4. Review of the appointment, removal and 

terms of remuneration of the chief internal 

auditor.

5. Review of Audit plan and status of 

achievement thereof.

6. Review of significant Audit Findings 

of the following audits along with the 

compliance thereof-(i) Concurrent Audit 

(ii) Internal Inspection (iii) I.S.Audit of Data 

Centre (iv) Treasury and Derivatives  

(v) Management Audit at Controlling  

Offices / Head Offices (vi) Audit of Service 

Branches (vii) Currency Chest (viii) FeMA 

Audit of branches authorized to deal in 

foreign exchange, etc. 

7. Review of Systems and Procedures 

adopted by the Bank.

8. Review of IS Audit Policy (Annual).

9. Review of adequacy of the internal 

audit function, including the structure of 

the internal audit department, staffing 

and seniority of the official heading the 

department, reporting structure, coverage 

and frequency of internal audit (Annual).

10. Review of report on Revenue leakage 

detected by Internal / external Auditors 

and status of recovery thereof-reasons for 

undercharges and steps taken to prevent 

revenue leakage (Annual).

d. Compliance with RBI Guidelines

1. Review of exposure to sensitive sectors 

i.e. capital market & real estate.

2. KYC / AMl Guidelines-(i) Review of 

implementation (ii) Periodic AMl Update  

(iii) Review of compliance of concurrent 

audit reports with respect to adherence to 

KYC / AMl guidelines at branches.

3. Review compliance report on directives 

issued by ACB / Board / RBI.

4. Information in respect of equity share 

holdings in borrower companies more than 

30% of their paid up capital.

5. Review status of implementation of 

Ghosh and Jilani Committee reports (Half 

Yearly).

6. Review penalties imposed / penal action 

taken against Bank under various laws and 

statutes and action taken for corrective 

measures (Annual).

7. Review the Anti-Money laundering 

(‘AMl’) / Counter-Financing of Terrorism 

(‘CFT’) policy annually and review the 

implementation of the Companies AMl / 

CFT programme. 

8. Review the application of KYC procedures 

at the branches and comment on the lapses 

observed in this regard.

9. Report on compliance of regulatory 

requirements of regulators in host countries 

in respect of overseas branches.

e. Compliance with Companies Act 

2013 / Other Statutes / Regulations

1. To look into the reasons for substantial 

defaults in the payment to the depositors, 

debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 

non-payment of declared dividends) and 

creditors.

2. Approval of appointment of Chief 

Financial Officer after assessing the 

qualifications, experience, background etc.

3. Recommending to the Board, the 

appointment, re-appointment, remuneration, 

terms of appointment and, if required, 

the replacement or removal of auditors of 

the Bank-both for domestic and overseas 

operations.

4. Review of housekeeping-particularly 

balancing and reconciliation of long 

outstanding entries Suspense / Sundries / 

Drafts payable / paid / Funds in Transit / 

Clearing / SGl / CSGl accounts.

5. Review of Frauds (frauds of H 1 crore 

and above to be reviewed as and when 

reported).

6. Review of information on violations 

by various functionaries in the exercise of 

discretionary powers.

7. Review detailed report on fraudulent 

transactions relating to Internet Banking 

through phishing attacks pointing out in 

particular the deficiencies in the existing 

systems and steps taken by the IT 

department to prevent such cases (Half 

Yearly).

8. Review of the Bank's results and risk 

management policies (Annual).

9. Review of the management discussion 

and analysis of financial condition and 

results of operations.

10. Review the statement of significant 

related party transactions (as defined 

by the audit committee), submitted by 

management.

11. Review of Statement of deviations. 

02 ATTeNDANCe DeTAIlS OF AUDIT COMMITTee MeeTINGS HelD DURING FY16

nAmE OF ThE mEmBER pOSITIOn STATuS nO. OF mEETInGS hELD nO. OF mEETInGS ATTEnDED

Mr. Abhijit Sen Independent Director Chairman 2 2

Mr. Ajay Sondhi Independent Director Member 2 2

Ms. Veena Mankar Independent Director Member 2 1

Mr. Vikram limaye Nominee Director Member 2 2
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a. Quarterly statement of deviation(s) 

including report of monitoring agency, 

if applicable, submitted to stock 

exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) 

of the listing Regulations. 

b. Annual statement of funds utilized for 

purposes other than those stated in the 

offer document / prospectus / notice 

in terms of Regulation 32(7) of listing 

Regulations.

12. The Auditors of the Bank and the Key 

Managerial Personnel shall have a right 

to be heard in the meetings of the Audit 

Committee when it considers the auditors’ 

report but shall not have the right to vote.

13. The Audit Committee of the listed entity 

shall review the financial statements, in 

particular, the investments made by the 

unlisted subsidiary, whenever applicable.

F. RBI Inspection

Review of compliance in respect of the 

Annual Financial Inspection conducted by 

RBI (to review this on on-going basis till the 

Bank furnishes full compliance). To closely 

monitor persisting deficiencies pointed out 

in RBI Inspection Reports. 

g. Whistle Blower

To review the functioning of the Whistle 

Blower / Vigil Mechanism. To ensure that 

the procedures ensure adequate safeguards 

against victimization of persons using such 

mechanism and make provision for direct 

access to the chairperson of the Audit 

Committee in appropriate or exceptional 

cases. 

H. IT Governance

To review IT Governance & Infrastructure and 

Information Security Risk related aspects of 

the Bank.

I. Other requirements

Any other requirement in accordance with 

the applicable provisions of the listing 

Agreement with the Stock exchanges and / 

or the Companies Act, or any re-enactment, 

amendment or modification thereto from 

time to time.

It governAnce & InFrAstructure 
coMMIttee

The IT Governance & Infrastructure and 

Information Security Risk related aspects 

of the Bank are reviewed by the Audit 

Committee of the Bank. Accordingly, IT 

Governance & Infrastructure Committee is 

monitored by the Audit Committee of the 

Bank. The IT Governance & Infrastructure 

Committee comprises of five (5) members, 

one (1) of whom is the Founder Managing 

Director & CeO and four (4) are Officers of 

the Bank. The Officers of the Bank consist 

of Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial 

Officer, Chief Risk Officer and General 

Counsel & Head – legal & Audit. 

The Committee met six times during 

FY16 on October 14, 2015, November 26, 

2015, December 16, 2015, January 11, 2016, 

February 23, 2016 and March 10, 2016. The 

quorum of the meeting is fifty percent (50%) 

members. All the meetings were held during 

the year with requisite quorum.

03 ATTeNDANCe DeTAIlS OF NOMINATION AND ReMUNeRATION COMMITTee MeeTINGS HelD DURING FY16

nAmE OF ThE mEmBER pOSITIOn STATuS nO. OF mEETInGS hELD nO. OF mEETInGS ATTEnDED

Mr. Ajay Sondhi 1a & 1b Independent Director Chairman 3 3

Mr. Anil Baijal Independent Director Member 5 5

Ms. Veena Mankar 2 Independent Director Member 1 1

Mr. Vinod Rai 2 Nominee Director Member 1 1

Mr. Gautam Kaji3 Independent Director Chairman 3 3

Dr. Rajiv B. lall 4 Founder Managing Director & CeO Member 4 4

1a Appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f. July 27, 2015; 1b Appointed as Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. October 01, 2015.

2 Appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f. October 26, 2015.
3 Resigned as Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. September 30, 2015.
4 Resigned as Member of the Committee w.e.f. October 26, 2015. 
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The Terms of Reference of IT Governance 

& Infrastructure Committee includes the 

following:

1. Approving IT strategy and policy 

documents of the Bank.

2. ensuring IT investments represent a 

balance of risks and benefits for sustaining 

Bank’s growth and that budgets are 

acceptable.

3. Monitoring the IT resources needed to 

achieve strategic goals and provide  

high-level direction for sourcing and use of  

IT resources.

4. Reviewing IT performance measurement 

and contribution of IT to businesses  

(i.e., delivering the promised value).

5. ensuring that all critical projects have a 

component for ‘project risk management’ 

from IT perspective (by defining project 

success measures and following up progress 

on IT projects).

6. Defining and ensuring effective 

implementation of standards of IT 

Governance, Business Continuity and Data 

Governance.

7. ensure that there is an appropriate 

framework of information security risk 

assessment within the Bank.

8. Provide direction to IT architecture 

design and ensure that the IT architecture 

reflects the need for legislative and 

regulatory compliance, the ethical use of 

information and business continuity.

02 | noMInAtIon And 
reMunerAtIon coMMIttee 

The Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (‘NRC’) comprises of four (4) 

members, three (3) of whom are IDs and one 

(1) Nominee Director.

The Committee met five times during 

FY16 on July 27, 2015 (2 meetings), August 

25, 2015, October 26, 2015 and March 29, 

2016. The quorum of the meeting is two (2) 

members.

The composition, name of members 

and chairman and their attendance at NRC 

meetings held during FY16 is given in  

Table 03.

The Terms of Reference of the nRC includes 

the following:

1. Formulation of the criteria for 

determining qualifications, positive 

attributes and independence of a Director 

and recommend to the Board of Directors 

a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 

directors, key managerial personnel and 

other employees.

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation 

of performance of IDs and the Board of 

Directors. 

3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of 

Directors.

4. Identifying persons who are qualified 

to become Directors and who may be 

appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, and 

recommend to the Board of Directors their 

appointment and removal and shall carry out 

evaluation of every Director’s performance.

5. Determine whether to extend or continue 

the term of appointment of the Independent 

Director, on the basis of the report of 

performance evaluation of IDs.

6. Determine the Bank’s policy on specific 

remuneration packages for Whole-time 

Directors / executive Directors including 

pension rights and any compensation 

payment. 

7. Decide the Salary, Salary Grades, 

Overseas Allowance, Perquisites, Retirals and 

Increment of Whole-time Directors.

8. Define and implement the performance 

linked incentive scheme and evaluate the 

performance and determine the amount of 

incentive of the Whole-time Directors for 

that purpose.

9. Decide the amount of commission 

payable to each Whole-time Director.

10. Periodically review and suggest revision 

of the total remuneration package of the 

Whole-time Directors keeping in view 

performance of the Bank, standards 

prevailing in the industry, Norms specified by 

RBI ,statutory guidelines, etc.

11. Abide by any other requirement in 

accordance with the applicable provisions 

of the listing Agreement with the Stock 

exchanges, Companies Act, 2013 and / or 

applicable RBI Guidelines / Regulations, 

or any re-enactment, amendment or 

modification thereto from time to time.

12. The Committee shall plan for CeO / 

Senior Management succession including 

plans for interim succession in the event of 

an unexpected occurrence and submit a 

report to the Board to nominate potential 

successors to CeO / Senior Management 

personnel.

13. Oversee the Director’s succession 

planning process for ensuring the right mix 

of Directors on the Board.

14. In cases where Director provides any 

services to the Bank in any other capacity, 

evaluating whether the Director possesses 

the requisite qualification for the practice of 

such profession. 

15. Keep abreast of external remuneration 

trends and market conditions.

16. Develop an Orientation (new Directors) 

and Continuing education Program (‘CeP’) 

for the Board and individual Directors so as 
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to keep abreast of changes in the Bank and 

the environment in which it operates.

17. To co-ordinate and oversee the annual 

self-review of the performance of the 

Board, its Committees and of the Individual 

Directors (including IDs) in the governance 

of the Bank.

18. To review the performance of each 

existing Director and consider the results of 

such review when determining whether or 

not to recommend the nomination of such 

Director for the next year.

19. To ensure that a Deed of Covenant and a 

declaration and undertaking in Bank’s favor, 

as may be specified by RBI is obtained from 

every Director.

20. To scrutinize Deed of Covenant and 

declaration and undertaking submitted by 

each of its Directors and on a continuing 

basis perform due diligence in respect of 

each of its Directors and shall report to the 

RBI if any of its Directors fails to fulfil the ‘fit 

and proper’ criteria as specified by RBI from 

time to time. The Committee shall review 

and assess its performance as and when 

required. 

21. To seek and obtain external legal and 

professional advice and assistance, if 

considered necessary, at the cost of the 

Bank.

PerForMAnce evAluAtIon 
crIterIA 

The Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 

19 of the listing Regulations stipulate the 

performance evaluation of the Directors 

including Chairperson, Board and its 

Committees. 

Accordingly, the performance evaluations 

for Directors including Chairperson, Board 

and its Committees was done in April 2016 

through circulation of questionnaires 

which would assess the performance of 

the Board on select parameters related to 

roles, responsibilities and obligations of the 

Board and functioning of the Committees 

including assessing the quality, quantity and 

timeliness of flow of information between 

the Bank management and the Board that 

is necessary for the Board to effectively and 

reasonably perform their duties.

The Directors unanimously agreed 

that since this was the first year of the 

operations of the Bank and all the Directors 

had joined the Board during the year, the 

formal process of evaluation as mentioned 

aforesaid would be carried out when the 

Bank completes one full year of operations.

reMunerAtIon oF dIrectors 

The Board, based on the recommendation of 

the NRC, approved the Remuneration Policy 

for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 

SMP and other employees. The said policy is 

posted on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com.

IDFC Bank pays remuneration to Founder 

Managing Director & CeO by way of salary, 

allowance, perquisites including retirement 

benefits (fixed component) and a variable 

component based on the recommendation 

of the NRC and approval of the RBI, Board 

of Directors and Members of the Bank. The 

remuneration paid to Founder Managing 

Director & CeO is determined keeping in 

view the industry benchmark and the relative 

performance of the Bank vis-à-vis industry 

performance. The Bank at its 1st AGM held  

on September 29, 2015 approved the 

payment of a total remuneration of H 3.29 

crore p.a. to Dr. Rajiv B. lall, Founder 

Managing Director & CeO. Since, IDFC 

Bank started its banking operations only 

on October 01, 2015, Dr. Rajiv B. lall was 

04 DeTAIlS OF THe ReMUNeRATION PAID TO THe DIReCTORS IN `

nAmE OF ThE DIRECTOR DIn SITTInG FEES SALARy AnD 

pERQuISITES

COnTRIBuTIOn TO 

pROvIDEnT AnD OThER 

FunDS

pAID DuRInG Fy16 

TOTAL

Mr. Anil Baijal 01608892 8,00,000 - - 8,00,000

Mr. Abhijit Sen* 00002593 9,00,000 - - 9,00,000

Mr. Ajay Sondhi* 01657614 8,50,000 - - 8,50,000

Dr. Ashok Gulati* 07062601 6,00,000 - - 6,00,000

Mr. Rajan Anandan*** 02395272 2,00,000 - - 2,00,000

Dr. Rajiv B. lall 00131782 - 18,652,655 576,000 19,228,655

Ms. Veena Mankar* 00004168 5,50,000 - - 5,50,000

Mr. Vikram limaye 00488534 - - - -

Mr. Vinod Rai* 01119922 - - - -

Mr. Gautam Kaji** 02333127 50,000 - - 50,000

* Mr. Vinod Rai, Mr. Abhijit Sen, Ms. Veena Mankar, Mr. Ajay Sondhi and Dr. Ashok Gulati were appointed w.e.f. July 27, 2015.
**Mr. Gautam Kaji resigned w.e.f. September 30, 2015.
***Mr. Rajan Anandan was appointed w.e.f. December 01, 2015.

Note: 1.  For the period from April 01, 2015 to September 30, 2015, Dr. Rajiv B. lall was paid remuneration from IDFC limited. The remuneration paid to him from IDFC limited 
was within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 2. Dr. Rajiv B. lall was appointed as the Founder Managing Director & CeO of IDFC Bank w.e.f. October 01, 2015. He was paid an amount of H 1.92 crore (approved by 
RBI) for the period from October 01, 2015 to March 31, 2016 from IDFC Bank. Details of performance linked incentives to Dr. lall are given in the Board’s Report.The 
remuneration paid / payable to Dr. lall from IDFC Bank is within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 3. During the year, Dr. Rajiv B. lall was granted 3,000,000 stock options under IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015. The stock options granted to Dr. lall would vest in a graded 
manner over a period of 3 years from the date of grant of options and are exercisable over a period of 4 years from the date of vesting. Options were granted at ‘fair 
value’ as defined under the SeBI (Share Based employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. 

 4. During the year, Mr. Vikram limaye was granted 775,000 stock options under IDFC Bank eSOS - 2015, subject to the regulatory approvals, as applicable. The stock 
options granted to Mr. limaye would vest in a graded manner over a period of 3 years from the date of grant of options and are exercisable over a period of 4 years 
from the date of vesting. Options were granted at ‘fair value’ as defined under the SeBI (Share Based employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

6 6  I D F C  B A N K  A N N U A l  R e P O R T  2 0 1 5 – 2 0 1 6



paid remuneration from October 01, 2015 to 

March 31, 2016 during FY16 from IDFC Bank. 

The detailed break-up of the remuneration 

for FY16 has been disclosed in the Boards’ 

Report.

The NeDs are paid remuneration by 

way of commission and sitting fees. Based 

on the recommendation of the NRC, the 

Board at its meeting held on August 25, 

2015 approved sitting fees to be paid to 

NeDs @ H 100,000 per Board Meeting and 

H 50,000 per Committee Meeting. Further, 

based on the recommendation of the NRC, 

the Board at its meeting held on March 29, 

2016 approved Commission to be paid to 

the NeDs not exceeding 1% of the net profits 

of the Bank as computed in the manner 

laid down in Section 198 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 or maximum of H 1,000,000 to 

each of such Directors, whichever is lower. 

The aforesaid Commission is proposed for 

approval of the Shareholders of the Bank at 

the ensuing 2nd AGM to be held on July 27, 

2016. The criteria for making payments to 

NeDs has been disseminated on the Bank’s 

website: www.idfcbank.com. 

eventhough most of the Non-executive 

Independent Directors were appointed on 

the Board before October 01, 2015 (date of 

commencement of banking operations), all 

these Non-executive Independent Directors 

shall be paid commission on a pro-rata basis 

from the period beginning from  

October 01, 2015. For FY16, IDFC Bank will 

pay a sum of H 2,833,333 as commission to 

its Non-executive Independent Directors, 

subject to the approval of the Shareholders 

at the ensuing AGM.

The Bank has not granted any stock 

Options to Non-executive Independent 

Directors of the Bank. 

Table 04 gives details of remuneration 

paid to the Directors during FY16. The Bank 

did not advance loans to any of its Directors 

during FY16. None of the Directors is 

entitled to severance fee. The notice period 

for Dr. Rajiv B. lall, Founder Managing 

Director & CeO is three months. None of the 

employees of the Bank is related to any of 

the Directors. There are no  

inter-se relationships between Board 

members. None of the Directors of the Bank 

is related to each other. None of the NeDs 

hold any shares or convertible instruments 

of IDFC Bank except Mr. Vikram limaye who 

holds 2,043,728 equity shares of the Bank as 

on March 31, 2016.

03 | stAkeHolders' relAtIonsHIP 
And custoMer servIce 
coMMIttee 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship and 

Customer Service Committee comprises 

of four (4) members, two (2) of whom are 

IDs, one (1) Nominee Director and one (1) 

executive Director. The Committee met 

once during FY16 on January 27, 2016. The 

quorum of the meeting is two (2) members.

Mr. Mahendra N. Shah, Company 

Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer is the 

designated person responsible for handling 

Investor Grievances. 

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement 

between IDFC limited and IDFC Bank 

and their respective shareholders and 

creditors under Sections 391 to 394 of the 

Companies Act, 1956 (‘Demerger Scheme’), 

the lending and borrowing business 

(‘Financing Undertaking’) of IDFC limited 

was transferred to IDFC Bank w.e.f. October 

01, 2015 (effective Date of Demerger 

Scheme). Accordingly, Infra Bonds issued 

by IDFC limited under Section 80CCF of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Bonds 

issued by IDFC limited on private placement 

basis were transferred to IDFC Bank w.e.f. 

October 01, 2015. The Bank has a dedicated 

team of professionals to respond to queries 

and grievances received from the aforesaid 

bondholders. The designated e-mail address 

for equity and bond complaints is ig@

idfcbank.com.

Details of queries and grievances received 

and attended by the Bank from October 

09, 2015 (Date of Allotment of IDFC Bank’s 

equity Shares pursuant to Demerger 

Scheme) to March 31, 2016 for equity Shares 

and from October 01, 2015 (effective Date 

of Demerger Scheme) to March 31, 2016 for 

Infrastructure Bonds are given in Table 5A 

and Table 5B respectively. No complaints 

were received in respect of the bonds issued 

by the Bank on private placement basis. 

During FY16, there were no complaints 

received from the customers of the Bank. 

The composition, name of members 

and chairperson and their attendance at 

Stakeholders’ Relationship and Customer 

Service Committee meetings held during 

FY16 is given in Table 06.

The Terms of Reference of the 

Stakeholder’s Relationship & Customer 

Service Committee  includes the following:

For security and other stakeholders

1. To consider and resolve the grievances 

of security holders of the Bank relating to 

transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance 

sheet, non-receipt of declared dividend and 

complaints etc.

2. Review the existing ‘Stakeholder 

Redressal System’ and suggest measures for 

improvement.

3. Receive the report of the Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent about investor’s 

grievances and follow up for necessary 

action taken for redressal thereof.

4. Take measures to enhance operational 

transparency to Stakeholders and suggest 

measures for improvement in Stakeholder 

relations.

5. Consider and take on record the 

certificate from a practicing Company 

Secretary under Regulation 40 of listing 

Regulations.

6. Propose to the Board of Directors, 

the appointment / re-appointment of 

the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, 

including the terms and conditions, 

remuneration, service Charge / fees.

7. Decide the frequency of audit of 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and 

consider the Auditors’ Report thereon.

8. Develop mechanism to provide access 

to Stakeholders to relevant, sufficient and 

reliable information on a timely and regular 

basis to enable them to participate in 

Corporate Governance process.

9. Any other requirement in accordance 

with the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, listing Regulations 

and RBI Guidelines, including any 

amendment or modification thereto from 

time to time.

For customers

1. To oversee the functioning of the Bank’s 

internal committee set-up for customer 

service.

2. To review the level of customer service in 

the Bank including customer complaints and 

the nature of their resolution.

3. To provide guidance in improving the 

customer service level.

4. To ensure that the Bank provides and 

continues to provide, best-in-class service 

across all its category of customers which 
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07 THe COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTee

nAmE OF ThE mEmBER pOSITIOn STATuS

Dr. Rajiv B. lall Founder Managing Director & CeO Chairman

Mr. Anil Baijal Independent Director Member

Mr. Ashok Gulati Independent Director Member

5a

NATURe OF COMPlAINTS ReCeIVeD AND ATTeNDeD FROM OCTOBeR 09, 2015 (DATe OF AllOTMeNT OF 

IDFC BANK’S eQUITY SHAReS PURSUANT TO DeMeRGeR SCHeMe) TO MARCH 31, 2016 FOR eQUITY SHAReS

SR. 

nO.

nATuRE OF COmpLAInT pEnDInG AS On 

OCTOBER 09, 2015

RECEIvED DuRInG ThE 

yEAR

AnSWERED DuRInG 

ThE yEAR

pEnDInG AS On 

mARCh 31, 2016

1. Non receipt of Refund NIl NIl NIl NIl

2. Non Receipt of electronic Credit NIl 76 76 NIl

3. Non receipt of Annual Report NIl NIl NIl NIl

4. Non receipt of Securities NIl 160 160 NIl

5. Non receipt of Dividend Warrants NIl NIl NIl NIl

6. SeBI NIl 10 10 NIl

7. Stock exchange NIl 3 3 NIl

TOTAL 249 249

5b

NATURe OF COMPlAINTS ReCeIVeD AND ATTeNDeD FROM OCTOBeR 01, 2015 (eFFeCTIVe DATe OF DeMeRGeR 

SCHeMe) TO MARCH 31, 2016 FOR INFRASTRUCTURe BONDS ISSUeD UNDeR SeCTION 80CCF OF INCOMe TAX ACT, 1961

SR. 

nO.

nATuRE OF COmpLAInT pEnDInG AS On 

OCTOBER 01, 2015

RECEIvED DuRInG  

ThE yEAR

AnSWERED DuRInG 

ThE yEAR

pEnDInG AS On 

mARCh 31, 2016

1. Non receipt of Bond Certificates NIl 1,791 1,791 NIl

2. Non Receipt of electronic Credit NIl 5 5 NIl

3. Non receipt of Refund NIl 43 43 NIl

4. Non receipt of Interest Warrant NIl 3,035 3,035 NIl

5. SeBI NIl 89 89 NIl

6. Stock exchange / Depositories NIl 6 6 NIl

7. ROC NIl NIl NIl NIl

TOTAL 4,969 4,969

06

ATTeNDANCe AT STAKeHOlDeRS’ RelATIONSHIP AND CUSTOMeR SeRVICe COMMITTee MeeTINGS HelD 

DURING FY16

nAmE OF DIRECTOR pOSITIOn STATuS nO. OF mEETInGS hELD nO. OF mEETInGS ATTEnDED

Ms. Veena Mankar Independent Director Chairperson 1 1

Mr. Anil Baijal Independent Director Member 1 1

Dr. Rajiv B. lall Founder Managing Director & CeO Member 1 1

Mr. Vikram limaye Nominee Director Member 1 1
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will help the Bank in protecting and growing 

its brand equity.

5. To ensure customers are treated fairly all 

the times and complaints raised by them is 

dealt with courtesy and in time.

6. To examine any other issues having a 

bearing on the quality of customer service 

rendered.

7. To formulate comprehensive deposit 

policy incorporating the issues arising out of 

the demise of a depositor for operation of 

his account, the product approval process, 

the annual survey of depositor satisfaction 

and the triennial audit of such services.

8. To monitor implementation of awards 

under the Banking Ombudsman Scheme.

9. To evaluate feedback on quality 

of customer service and to oversee 

implementation of commitments towards 

customers as per the directions received 

from Banking Codes and Standards Board of 

India (‘BCSBI’).

10. To ensure implementation of directives 

received from RBI with respect to rendering 

services to customers of the Bank. 

04 | corPorAte socIAl 
resPonsIBIlIty coMMIttee 

Being the 1st year of operations, the 

provisions relating to contribution towards 

Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) was 

not applicable to IDFC Bank for FY16. 

However, pursuant to the Demerger 

Scheme, the Financing Undertaking of IDFC 

limited was transferred to IDFC Bank w.e.f. 

October 01, 2015 (effective date of the 

Demerger Scheme). 

Accordingly, the CSR spend from the 

Financing Undertaking was carried out by 

IDFC limited (Ultimate Holding of IDFC 

Bank) through IDFC Foundation, a  

Section 8 company under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and a wholly owned subsidiary of 

IDFC limited.  

The Board of Directors have constituted 

the CSR Committee pursuant to Section 

135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

corresponding Rules pertaining to CSR. 

The CSR Committee comprises of three 

(3) members, two (2) of whom are IDs, and 

one (1) executive Director. The quorum of 

the meeting is two (2) members.

The composition along with the name of 

members and chairman is given in Table 07.

One meeting of the CSR Committee 

was held on April 26, 2016, where the CSR 

Policy was approved by the Committee and 

recommended to the Board for adoption. 

The Board at its meeting held on April 26, 

2016 adopted the CSR Policy recommended 

by the CSR Committee. A copy of the said 

CSR Policy is also placed on the Bank’s 

website: www.idfcbank.com.

The Terms of Reference of the CSR 

Committee includes the following:

1. Formulate and recommend to the 

Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the 

activities to be undertaken by the Bank as 

specified in Schedule VII of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and applicable rules as amended 

from time to time.

2. Recommend the amount of expenditure 

to be incurred on the activities referred to in 

Point No. 1 above.

3. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Bank from 

time to time.

4. Review and monitor the CSR activities 

of the Bank on behalf of the Board to 

ensure that the Bank is in compliance with 

appropriate laws and legislations.

5. Formulate a transparent monitoring 

mechanism for implementation of 

CSR Projects or programs or activities 

undertaken by the Bank.

6. Regularly report to the Board on 

the CSR initiatives and status and also 

provide reasons to the Board if the amount 

earmarked for CSR initiatives has not been 

spent and action steps for the same.

7. Review management’s position on 

key stakeholder expectations involving 

CSR and provide perspectives for Board’s 

consideration.

8. Review on a continuous basis the Bank’s 

communication strategies relating to CSR.

9. Review the Bank’s annual CSR report 

prior to its issuance.

10. Review and assess the remit and reports 

of any audit process to gain assurance over 

the CSR activities.

11. Review management-identified 

opportunities to optimize the use of 

technology for the use of CSR activities.

05 | rIsk MAnAgeMent  
coMMIttee 

IDFC Bank has in place mechanisms to 

inform the Board about its risk assessment 

and minimisation procedures with periodical 

reviews to ensure that the Management 

controls risk through a Board-approved 

properly defined framework. The Board is 

responsible for framing, implementing and 

monitoring the risk management plan for 

the Bank. This is done through its Board 

level Risk Management Committee and 

it monitors and reviews risks of the Bank 

on a regular basis. The Risk Management 

Committee reviews and monitors mainly 

four types of risks across the organization: 

credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and 

operational risk. This is done under the 

overall framework of the enterprise Risk 

Management System.

The Risk Management Committee 

comprises of six (6) members, four (4) of 

whom are IDs, one (1) Nominee Director and 

08 ATTeNDANCe DeTAIlS OF THe RISK MANAGeMeNT COMMITTee MeeTINGS HelD DURING FY16

nAmE OF ThE mEmBER pOSITIOn STATuS nO. OF mEETInGS 

hELD

nO. OF mEETInGS 

ATTEnDED

Mr. Anil Baijal Independent Director Chairman 2 2

Mr. Abhijit Sen Independent Director Member 2 2

Mr. Ajay Sondhi Independent Director Member 2 2

Mr. Ashok Gulati Independent Director Member 2 2

Dr. Rajiv B. lall Founder Managing Director & CeO Member 2 2

Mr. Vikram limaye Nominee Director Member 2 2
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one (1) executive Director. The Committee 

met two times during FY16 on October 26, 

2015 and January 27, 2016. The quorum of 

the meeting is four (4) members.

The composition, name of members 

and chairman and their attendance at Risk 

Management Committee meetings held 

during FY16 is given in Table 08. 

The Terms of Reference of the Risk 

management Committee includes the 

following:

1. To identify, monitor and measure the risk 

profile of the Bank (including market risk, 

liquidity risk, operational risk, reputational 

risk, fraud management and credit risk).

2. To review and monitor the activities of 

‘AlCO committee’.

3. To review and monitor the activities 

of the ‘Credit Risk and Market Risk 

Management Committee’.

4. To review and monitor the activities 

of the ‘Operational Risk, Information 

Security Risk and Fraud Risk Management 

Committee’.

5. To approve the annual Risk Appetite 

Framework for the Bank. 

6. To oversee the risk management policy 

for approval by the Board.

7. To develop Bank's credit risk, operational 

risk, fraud management, liquidity risk, 

information security risk and market risk 

policies for approval by the Board.

8. To oversee promotion of awareness of a 

risk-based culture and achieving a balance 

between risk minimization and reward for 

risks accepted.

9. To review the returns and reports to the 

RBI pertaining the Risk Monitoring Function. 

10. To monitor and review the risk 

management plan of the Bank.

11. To oversee the Bank’s integrated risk 

measurement system.

12. To review management’s formulation of 

procedures, action plans and strategies to 

mitigate risks on short term as well as long 

term basis.

13. To liaise, as necessary, with other 

Board Committees, especially where there 

is a perceived or actual overlapping of 

responsibilities regarding particular risk and 

compliance issues.

14. To oversee the Bank’s Basel 

(Standardized and Advance Approaches) 

preparedness and RBI Application.

15. To review and recommend to the Board 

the Bank’s ICAAP proposal.

16. To monitor compliance of various risk 

parameters by operating departments.

17. Design stress scenarios to measure the 

impact of unusual market conditions and 

monitor variance between actual volatility 

of portfolio value and that predicted by risk 

measures.

18. To ensure that the Bank's credit exposure 

to any one group or industry does not 

exceed the internally set limits and that the 

risk is prudently diversified.

19. The Committee shall have direct access 

to, and complete and open communication 

with the Bank’s management and may 

obtain advice and assistance from legal, risk 

or other advisors. 

20. The Bank shall provide for appropriate 

funding, as determined by the Committee, 

for the payment of (i) ordinary 

administrative expenses of the Committee 

that are necessary or appropriate in carrying 

out its duties and responsibilities and (ii) 

compensation to independent legal, risk and 

other advisors retained by the Committee.

21. Reviewing adequacy of insurance policies 

taken by Management to cover risks / 

transfer risk exposures.

22. To carry out any other function as is 

referred by the Board from time to time 

or enforced by any statutory notification  / 

amendment or modification as may be 

applicable.

09 ATTeNDANCe DeTAIlS OF THe CReDIT COMMITTee MeeTINGS HelD DURING FY16

nAmE OF ThE mEmBER pOSITIOn STATuS nO. OF mEETInGS 

hELD

nO. OF mEETInGS 

ATTEnDED

Mr. Vinod Rai Nominee Director Chairman 4 4

Mr. Abhijit Sen Independent Director Member 4 4

Dr. Rajiv B. lall Founder Managing Director & CeO Member 4 4

Mr. Vikram limaye Nominee Director Member 4 4
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06 | credIt coMMIttee

The Credit Committee comprises of four (4) 

members, one (1) of whom is Independent 

Director, one (1) executive Director and two 

(2) Nominee Directors.

The Committee met four times during 

FY16 on October 26, 2015, November 30, 

2015, February 16, 2016 and March 14, 2016. 

The quorum of the meeting is two (2) 

members.

There were eight (8) circular resolutions 

passed by the Credit Committee during 

FY16.

The composition, name of members and 

chairman and their attendance at Credit 

Committee meetings held during FY16 is 

given in Table 09.

The Terms of Reference of the Credit 

Committee includes the following:

1. To formulate clear policies on standards 

for presentation of credit proposals, 

financial covenants, rating standards and 

benchmarks, delegation of credit approving 

powers, prudential limits on large credit 

exposures, asset concentrations, standards 

for loan collateral, portfolio management, 

loan review mechanism, risk concentrations, 

risk monitoring and evaluation, pricing of 

loans, provisioning, norms for write-off 

and compromise / settlement proposals, 

recovery procedures, sale of NPAs, 

regulatory / legal compliance, etc.

2. To approve credit exposures which are 

beyond the powers delegated to executives 

of the Bank as per the Delegation of 

Authority. 

3. To control the risk through effective 

loan review mechanism and portfolio 

management.

07 | AllotMent And sHAre 
trAnsFer coMMIttee

The Allotment and Share Transfer 

Committee comprises of four (4) members, 

two (2) of whom are Directors and two (2) 

are Officers of the Bank.

The Committee met eighteen times during 

FY16 on July 07, 2015, September 30, 2015, 

October 09, 2015, November 09, 2015, 

November 28, 2015, December 09, 2015, 

December 17, 2015, December 29, 2015, 

January 07, 2016, January 16, 2016, January 

27, 2016, February 03, 2016, February 12, 

2016, February 22, 2016, March 03, 2016, 

March 05, 2016, March 09, 2016 and  

March 16, 2016. These meetings were 

held mainly for dematerialisation / 

rematerialisation of Infra Bonds issued under 

Section 80CCF of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

and also for share transfer requests. The 

quorum of the meeting is two (2) members. 

All the meetings were held during the year 

with requisite quorum.

The Terms of Reference of the Allotment 

and Share Transfer Committee includes the 

following:

1. To address, approve and monitor 

all matters related with the allotment, 

transfer, transmission, transposition, name 

deletion, consolidation, rematerialization, 

dematerialization and splitting of share and 

debenture certificates of the Bank.

2. To issue duplicate share / debenture 

certificates.

3. To authorize persons to sign on behalf of 

the Bank Share Certificates, Share Allotment 

letters and Deposit Receipts.

4. To authorize officials of the Bank to 

execute transfer deeds on behalf of the 

Bank.

otHer coMMIttees

In addition to the above mentioned Board-

level Committees, the Bank has put in place 

a Management Committee framework to 

ensure that the various submissions to 

the Board and its Committees are first 

reviewed, approved and recommended by 

the Management Committees. This would 

enhance governance and help strengthen 

the compliances within the Bank. Some 

of the significant Management-level 

Committees at IDFC Bank are -

1. Credit & Market Risk Committee (includes 

Investment Committee)

2. Operational and Information Security 

Risk Committee (includes Fraud Risk 

Management Committee)

3. Business Planning / Strategic Initiatives 

Committee

4. Asset liability Management Committee

5. Product & Process Approval Committee

6. Internal Audit & Controls Committee

7. IT Governance & Infrastructure 

Committee

8. Premises  & Outsourcing Committee

9. Brand and Public Relations Committee

10. HR, eX and Culture Committee

 RelATeD PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Board of Directors at its Meeting held 

on January 27, 2016 had adopted a policy 

on Related Party Transactions in compliance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the listing Regulations. The same 

is displayed on Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com 

During FY16, all transactions entered 

into with Related Parties as defined under 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing 

Regulations, were in the ordinary course of 

business and on an arm's length basis and 

do not attract the provisions of Section 188 
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of the Companies Act, 2013. There were 

no materially significant transactions with 

related parties during the financial year 

which were in conflict with the interest of 

the Bank. Suitable disclosure as required 

by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has 

been made in the notes to the Financial 

Statements. The details of the transactions 

with related parties, if any, are placed before 

the Audit Committee from time to time. 

 FOUNDeR MD & CeO AND CFO 

CeRTIFICATION 

In Compliance with Regulation 17 of the 

listing Regulations, the Founder Managing 

Director  & CeO and Chief Financial Officer 

certification on the financial statements 

and internal controls relating to financial 

reporting for FY16 is enclosed at the end of 

this Chapter.

 POlICY FOR DeTeRMINING ‘MATeRIAl’  

 SUBSIDIARIeS 

In accordance with the provisions of 

listing Regulations, every listed entity shall 

formulate a policy for determining ‘material’ 

subsidiary. 

In the case of IDFC Bank, presently there 

is no subsidiary company. However, a policy 

for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries needs 

to be adopted (being a listed company) 

and hence the policy for determining 

material subsidiaries was approved by the 

Board of Directors at its meeting held on 

April 26, 2016. The policy is available on the 

Bank’s website: www.idfcbank.com

 CODe OF CONDUCT FOR PReVeNTION  

 OF INSIDeR TRADING 

During FY16, the Bank adopted Code of 

Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading 

(the ‘Code’) in accordance with the 

requirements of the SeBI (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 with a 

view to regulate trading in securities by 

the Board of Directors and employees 

of IDFC Bank, their Immediate Relatives 

and other Insiders as defined in the 

Code. When the trading window is open, 

‘Designated Persons’ as defined in the 

Code are required to obtain pre-clearance 

from the Compliance Officer before trading 

(buy / sell) in securities of any listed 

company. Also, during the period of closure 

of the trading window, no employee / 

Designated Person is permitted to trade 

with or without pre-clearance in securities 

of restricted companies as informed by the 

Compliance Department, from time to time.  

Timely disclosures are made to the Stock 

exchanges by the Bank where transactions 

over any calendar quarter, aggregates to a 

traded value in excess of H 10 lakhs.

No employee / Designated Person is 

permitted to communicate, provide, or allow 

access to any Unpublished Price Sensitive 

Information relating to IDFC limited / IDFC 

Bank, its securities or any other company 

(listed or proposed to be listed), to any 

person except where such communication 

is in furtherance of legitimate purposes, 

performance of duties or discharge of legal 

obligations.

The Bank periodically monitors 

and facilitates compliance of the SeBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015. 

 VIGIl MeCHANISM / WHISTle BlOWeR  

 POlICY 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177(9) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and listing 

Regulations and other application laws, the 

Bank has established the Vigil Mechanism, 

as part of the Whistle Blower Policy, for 

the Directors and employees to report 

concerns about unethical behaviour, actual 

or suspected fraud or violation of the Bank's 

Code of Conduct or ethics policy. It also 

provides adequate safeguards against the 

victimisation of employees who avail this 

mechanism and allows direct access to the 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 

exceptional cases. No personnel has been 

denied access to the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee overseas the Vigil 

Mechanism. The Whistle Blower Policy has 

been periodically communicated to the 

employees and also posted on the Bank’s 

intranet. Also, the Whistle Blower Policy has 

been posted on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com.

In addition to the above, IDFC Bank has 

formulated Vigilance Policy for effectively 

managing the risks faced by the Bank on 

account of corruption, malpractices and 

frauds. In accordance with RBI circular,  

Dr. Rajeev Uberoi is the Chief Vigilance 

Officer of IDFC Bank.

 PeNAlTIeS AND STRICTUReS 

IDFC Bank has complied with all the 

requirements of regulatory authorities. 

There were no instances of non-compliance 

by the Bank, penalties, strictures imposed 

on the Bank by stock exchange(s) or SeBI 

or any statutory authority, on any matter 

10 DeTAIlS OF ANNUAl GeNeRAl MeeTING HelD lAST YeAR

FInAnCIAL yEAR LOCATIOn OF ThE mEETInG DATE TImE SpECIAL RESOLuTIOn pASSED WITh REQuISITE mAJORITy

FY15

KRM Tower, 8th Floor, 

No. 1 Harrington Road, 

Chetpet, 

Chennai 600 031

Tamil Nadu, India.

September 29, 2015 10.00 a.m.

(i) Approval of the Borrowing limits of the Bank

(ii) Offer and Issue Debt instruments under Private 

Placement 

(iii) Setting up of aggregate non-resident / foreign 

shareholding limit upto an aggregate of 49% of the 

paid-up voting equity capital of the Bank.

(iv) Issuance of shares under eSOS upto 7% of the 

issued equity shares of the Bank.
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related to capital markets, from the time of 

incorporation of the Bank.

 ANNUAl GeNeRAl MeeTING HelD 

lAST YeAR 

IDFC Bank was incorporated on 

October 21, 2014. The first AGM of the Bank 

was held on September 29, 2015. Details of 

the first AGM are given in Table 10.

 POSTAl BAllOT 

No Special Resolution was passed during 

FY16 through postal ballot. However, the 

Bank may seek to pass Special Resolution(s) 

in FY17 through Postal Ballot, as and when 

required.

 MeANS OF COMMUNICATION 

As per Regulation 46 of listing Regulations, 

IDFC Bank maintains a website viz.  

www.idfcbank.com containing basic 

information about the Bank, such as details 

of its business, financial results, shareholding 

pattern, compliance with corporate 

governance, contact information of the 

designated officials who are responsible for 

assisting and handling investor grievances. 

It also displays all official press releases 

and presentation to institutional investors or 

analysts made by the Bank. Information on 

this website is regularly updated.

National Stock exchange of India 

limited (‘NSe’) and BSe limited (‘BSe’) 

have introduced their respective electronic 

platforms namely NSe electronic Application 

Processing System ('NeAPS') and BSe 

listing Centre Online Portal for submission 

of various filings by listed companies. IDFC 

Bank ensures that the requisite compliances 

are done / filed through these systems.

The financial and other information 

filed by the Bank from time to time is 

also available on the website of the Stock 

exchanges i.e. BSe & NSe. 

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual 

results of IDFC Bank’s performance and 

other news articles are published in leading 

newspapers like the Hindu Business line (All 

India) & Makkal Kural in Chennai and are also 

displayed on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com.

 COMPlIANCe WITH MANDATORY AND 

 NON-MANDATORY ReQUIReMeNTS 

IDFC Bank has complied with all the 

mandatory Corporate Governance 

requirements as given under Regulations 

17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 

46(2) of the listing Regulations to the 

extent applicable. 

The Bank has also adopted and complied 

with the non-mandatory requirements as 

follows:

sePArAte Posts oF cHAIrMAn 
And ceo

The Bank has complied with the requirement 

of having separate persons to the post of 

Chairman and Managing Director & CeO.

Mr. Anil Baijal is the Independent Non-

executive Chairman and Dr. Rajiv B. lall is 

the Founder Managing Director & CeO of 

the Bank.

AudIt quAlIFIcAtIon

For the year under review, there were no 

audit qualifications in the Bank’s financial 

statements. IDFC Bank strives to adopt best 

practices to ensure regime of unqualified 

financial statements.

rePortIng oF InternAl AudItor

The Internal Audit team presents its reports 

directly to the Audit Committee.

 AUDITORS’ CeRTIFICATe ON  

 CORPORATe GOVeRNANCe 

As required under Schedule V of listing 

Regulations, the Auditors’ Certificate on 

Corporate Governance is annexed and forms 

part of the Annual Report.
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 GeNeRAl SHAReHOlDeR INFORMATION 

SpECIAL RESOLuTIOnS SOuGhT TO 

BE pASSED AT ThE EnSuInG AGm 

IDFC Bank seeks the approval of Members 

of the Bank by way of Special Resolution in 

respect of the following proposals:

1. Offer and Issue of Debt Securities on 

Private Placement basis

2. Reduction in eSOP pool from 7% to 6% 

of the paid up share capital of the Bank and 

Ratification of IDFC Bank limited employee 

Stock Option Scheme 2015 (‘IDFC BANK 

eSOS - 2015’ or the ‘Scheme’)

3. Ratification of IDFC Bank limited 

employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 (‘IDFC 

Bank eSOS - 2015’ or the ‘Scheme’) and 

grant of Options to the eligible employees / 

Directors of the Subsidiary Company(ies) of 

the Bank under the Scheme

Detailed explanatory statement pursuant 

to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 

respect of the above items forms part of the 

Notice of the 2nd AGM.

dIvIdend PAyMent dAte 

The dates of book closure for the purpose of 

payment of dividend shall be from Thursday, 

July 21, 2016 to Wednesday, July 27, 2016 

(inclusive of both days).

A final dividend of H 0.25 per equity share 

will be paid from July 28, 2016, subject to 

approval by Shareholders at the ensuing 

AGM.

FInAncIAl cAlendAr 

Financial year-April 01, 2015 to 

March 31, 2016

For the year ended march 31, 2016, results 

were announced on:

  n January 27, 2016 for third quarter

  n April 26, 2016 for fourth quarter and 

annual.

For the year ending march 31, 2017, results 

will be announced latest by:

  n Second week of August 2016 for the first 

quarter.

  n Second week of November 2016 for the 

second quarter and half year.

  n Second week of February 2017 for the 

third quarter.

  n last week of May 2017 for the fourth 

quarter and annual.

stock excHAnge wHere IdFc 
BAnk securItIes Are lIsted

equity shares 

The equity Shares of IDFC Bank got listed on 

November 06, 2015 on BSe and NSe.

Bse limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001

national stock exchange of India limited

exchange Plaza, C/1, G Block,

Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (e)

Mumbai – 400 051

The Stock exchange Codes for equity shares 

of the Bank are as follows:

BSE: 539437

nSE: IDFCBAnK 

ISIn: InE092T01019 

The annual listing fees for equity shares for 

FY17 have been paid.

Private Placement Bonds &  

80ccF Infrastructure Bonds

Pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, the 

Financing Undertaking of IDFC limited was 

transferred to IDFC Bank w.e.f. October 01, 

2015 (effective Date of Demerger Scheme). 

Accordingly, Infra Bonds issued by IDFC 

limited under Section 80CCF of the  

Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Bonds issued 

by IDFC limited on private placement  

basis were transferred to IDFC Bank on 

October 01, 2015. The 80CCF Infrastructure 

Bonds of IDFC Bank are listed on  

NSe & BSe. Private placement bonds of 

IDFC Bank are listed on NSe. The security 

codes for the bonds mentioned above  

can be obtained by sending an e-mail to 

bank.info@idfcbank.com 

The annual listing fees for FY17 for both 

the aforesaid bonds have been paid. 

Market Price data 

Table 11 gives details of the stock market 

prices of IDFC Bank’s equity shares. A 

comparison of the share price of the Bank 

at NSe and BSe with their respective indices 

are given in Charts A and B.

10
TIME

27 JULY
DATE

2016
WEDNESDAY AM

T.T.K. AUDITORIUM (MAIN HALL),

NEAR ACROPOLIS BUILDING,

NEW NO. 168 (OLD NO.306),

T.T.K. ROAD, ROYAPETTAH,

CHENNAI 600 014

TAMIL NADU, INDIA.

VENUE

THE MUSIC ACADEMY

2ND
ANNUAL

GENERAL
MEETING
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unclAIMed sHAres lyIng In tHe  
escrow Account 

Pursuant to SeBI’s Circular No. CIR / CFD  / 

DIl / 10 / 2010 dated December 16, 2010, 

IDFC limited had credited the unclaimed 

shares lying in the escrow Account, allotted 

in the Initial Public Offer of the company 

during July – August 2005, into a Demat 

Suspense Account opened specifically for 

this purpose. 

Pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, the 

shareholders of IDFC limited as on the 

record date i.e. October 05, 2015 were 

allotted one equity share of IDFC Bank for 

every one equity share held by them in IDFC 

limited. Therefore, 100 members who were 

holders of 28,453 shares lying in the escrow 

Account of IDFC limited were also eligible 

for equity shares of IDFC Bank. Accordingly, 

the escrow Account of IDFC Bank holds 

28,453 equity shares of H 10 each. The voting 

rights on the shares outstanding shall remain 

frozen till the rightful owner claims their 

shares. The details are given in Table 12. The 

details of the shareholders whose equity 

shares are lying in escrow account are also 

available on the Bank’s website:  

www.idfcbank.com.

11 HIGH, lOW AND VOlUMeS OF IDFC BANK’S eQUITY SHAReS FOR FY16

mOnTh BSE nSE

hIGh LOW vOLumE hIGh LOW vOLumE

Mar 2016 51.00 44.25 12,402,158 51.05 43.90 81,527,385

Feb 2016 58.80 45.45 9,016,764 58.75 45.00 56,670,417

Jan 2016 61.35 43.15 11,949,366 61.40 43.10 70,047,396

Dec 2015 62.40 54.05 8,943,339 62.40 54.05 62,271,761

Nov 2015 73.45 59.00 24,297,478 73.40 58.80 107,541,908

Note: No security of IDFC Bank limited is suspended from trading.
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unclAIMed / unPAId Interest 

Pursuant to the Demerger Scheme, the 

Financing Undertaking of IDFC limited was 

transferred to IDFC Bank w.e.f. October 01, 

2015 (effective Date of Demerger Scheme). 

Accordingly, Infra Bonds issued by IDFC 

limited under Section 80CCF of the Income 

Tax Act, 1961 and the Bonds issued by IDFC 

limited on private placement basis were 

transferred to IDFC Bank on  

October 01, 2015. The status of interest 

on 80CCF Infrastructure Bonds remaining 

unclaimed is given in Table 13 and is also 

uploaded on the Bank’s website: 

www.idfcbank.com

Pursuant to the provisions of IePF 

(Uploading of Information regarding 

Unpaid and Unclaimed amounts lying with 

Companies) Rules, 2014, the Bank will upload 

the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts 

lying with the Bank as on July 27, 2016 (date 

of ensuing AGM) on the Bank's website: 

www.idfcbank.com and on MCA website: 

www.mca.gov.in

sHAre trAnsFer systeM 

IDFC Bank has appointed Karvy 

Computershare Private limited (‘Karvy’) as 

its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All 

share transfers and related operations are 

conducted by Karvy, which is registered 

with SeBI as a Category 1 Registrar. The 

shares sent for physical transfer are 

effected after giving a 15 days notice to 

the seller for confirmation of the sale. IDFC 

Bank has a Stakeholders’ Relationship & 

Customer Service Committee for redressing 

Shareholders, Investors and Customers 

complaints, from time to time.

The Bank's shares are compulsorily traded 

in dematerialized mode. A half–yearly 

certificate of compliance with the share 

transfer formalities as required under 

Regulation 40(9) of the listing Regulations 

is obtained from the Company Secretary in 

practice and a copy of the certificate is filed 

with the Stock exchanges.

As required by SeBI, Reconciliation 

of Share Capital Audit is conducted by 

a Practising Company Secretary on a 

quarterly basis, for the purpose, inter alia, of 

reconciliation of the total admitted equity 

share capital with the depositories and in the 

physical form with the total issued / paid-up 

equity capital of the Bank. 

Certificates issued in this regard are 

forwarded to BSe and NSe on quarterly 

basis.

dIstrIButIon oF sHAreHoldIng 

The distribution of the shareholding of 

IDFC Bank’s equity shares by size and by 

ownership as on March 31, 2016 is given in 

Table 14 and Table 15 respectively. Top ten 

equity shareholders of IDFC Bank are given 

in Table 16.

deMAterIAlIsAtIon oF sHAres 
And lIquIdIty 

The Bank’s shares are compulsorily traded 

in dematerialised form on NSe and BSe 

and are available for trading on both the 

depositories in India i.e. NSDl and CDSl. 

As on March 31, 2016, over 99.99% 

equity shares of IDFC Bank were held in 

dematerialised form. Table 17 gives the 

details.

outstAndIng gdrs / Adrs /  
wArrAnts or Any convertIBle  
InstruMents, conversIon dAte 
And lIkely IMPAct on equIty 

The Bank does not have any Outstanding 

GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any other 

convertible instruments as on date.

coMModIty PrIce rIsk or 
ForeIgn excHAnge rIsk And 
HedgIng ActIvItIes 

The Bank has not undertaken any 

commodity price risk or foreign exchange 

risk and hedging activities as on the date of 

this report.

PlAnt locAtIon

As the Bank is engaged in the business of 

banking / financial services, there is no plant 

location.

BrAncHes 

As on June 25, 2016 IDFC Bank had a total 

of 65 branches.

Investor corresPondence 
sHould Be Addressed to -

registrar and share transfer Agent 

Karvy Computershare Private limited 

(Unit: IDFC Bank limited)

Karvy Selenium Tower B,

Plot 31 & 32, Financial District,

Gachibowli, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,

Hyderabad - 500 032

Telangana, India.

Tel: +91 40 67162222 

Fax : +91 40 23420814  

Toll Free: 1800 345 4001 

e-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com 

Website: www.karvycomputershare.com

Mr. Mahendra n. shah 

company secretary &  

chief compliance officer

IDFC Bank limited 

Naman Chambers, C-32, G Block,

Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (east), 

Mumbai - 400 051

Maharashtra, India. 

Tel: +91 22 4222 2000  

Fax: +91 22 2654 0354  

e-mail: mahendra.shah@idfcbank.com 

Website: www.idfcbank.com 

registered office Address 

IDFC Bank limited 

KRM Tower, 8th Floor, 

No. 1 Harrington Road, Chetpet, 

Chennai - 600 031

Tamil Nadu, India.

Tel: +91 44 4564 4000

Fax: +91 44 4564 4022

details of the debenture trustee 

IDBI Trusteeship Services limited

Ms. Anjalee Athalye

Assistant Vice President (Operations)

Asian Building, Ground Floor,

17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard estate,

Mumbai - 400 001

Maharashtra, India.

Tel: +91 22 4080 7018

e-mail: anjalee@idbitrustee.com

Website: http://www.idbitrustee.com 
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13 STATUS OF UNClAIMeD INTeReST AS ON MARCH 31, 2016

yEAR pARTICuLARS unCLAImED 

InTEREST (H)

DATE OF pAymEnT  

OF InTEREST

LAST DATE FOR  

CLAImInG InTEREST

2010-2011 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2010-11 667,560 12-Nov-11 11-Nov-18

2012-2013 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2010-11 662,400 12-Nov-12 11-Nov-19

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2010-11 776,400 12-Nov-13 11-Nov-20

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2010-11 793,200 12-Nov-14 11-Nov-21

2014-2015 Interest Payment-Tranche1-Series 1/2010-11 826,800 12-Nov-15 11-Nov-22

2010-2011 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 3/2010-11 1,410,075 12-Nov-11 11-Nov-18

2012-2013 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 3/2010-11 1,516,875 12-Nov-12 11-Nov-19

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 3/2010-11 1,506,375 12-Nov-13 11-Nov-20

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 3/2010-11 1,721,250 12-Nov-14 11-Nov-21

2014-2015 Interest Payment-Tranche1-Series 3/2010-11 1,735,575 12-Nov-15 11-Nov-22

2010-2011 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2010-11 6,645,560 21-Feb-12 20-Feb-19

2012-2013 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2010-11 7,679,600 21-Feb-13 20-Feb-20

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2010-11 8,064,400 21-Feb-14 20-Feb-21

2014-2015 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2010-11 9,537,920 21-Feb-15 20-Feb-22

2015-2016 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2010-11 15,356,440 21-Feb-16 20-Feb-23

2010-2011 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2010-11 3,141,237 30-Mar-12 29-Mar-19

2012-2013 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2010-11 3,376,323 30-Mar-13 30-Mar-20

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2010-11 3,202,663 28-Mar-14 27-Mar-21

2014-2015 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2010-11 3,670,771 30-Mar-15 29-Mar-22

2015-2016 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2010-11 1,475,433 30-Mar-16 29-Mar-23

2012-2013 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2011-12 4,273,200 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-19

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2011-12 4,253,850 30-Dec-13 29-Dec-20

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2011-12 4,766,040 30-Dec-14 29-Dec-21

2014-2015 Interest Payment-Tranche 1-Series 1/2011-12 5,553,000 30-Dec-15 29-Dec-22

2012-2013 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2011-12 11,411,877 21-Mar-13 20-Mar-20

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2011-12 10,615,740 21-Mar-14 20-Mar-21

2014-2015 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2011-12 10,979,139 21-Mar-15 21-Mar-22

2015-2016 Interest Payment-Tranche 2-Series 1/2011-12 42,313,624 21-Mar-16 20-Mar-23

2012-2013 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2011-12 4,236,507 30-Mar-13 30-Mar-20

2013-2014 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2011-12 3,951,149 28-Mar-14 27-Mar-21

2014-2015 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2011-12 4,020,790 31-Mar-15 30-Mar-22

2015-2016 Interest Payment-Tranche 3-Series 1/2011-12 1,260,709 31-Mar-16 30-Mar-23

12 UNClAIMeD SHAReS lYING IN THe eSCROW ACCOUNT

pARTICuLARS nO. OF CASES / 

mEmBERS

nO. OF ShARES OF  

` 10 EACh

Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 

at the beginning of the year
- -

Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account due 

to demerger of Financing Undertaking to IDFC Bank limited i.e. as on October 09, 2015 (Date 

of Allotment of IDFC Bank’s equity Shares pursuant to Demerger Scheme). 

100 28,453

Number of Shareholders who approached the issuer / registrar for transfer of shares from 

suspense account during FY16
- -

Number of Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during FY16 - -

Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 

at the end of the year i.e. as on March 31, 2016
100 28,453
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14 DISTRIBUTION OF SHAReHOlDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2016 (TOTAl) (BY SIZe)

SR.  

nO.

CATEGORy 

(ShARES)

nO. OF 

hOLDERS

% TO  

hOLDERS

nO. OF EQuITy ShARES  

(FACE vALuE OF H 10 EACh)

% TO  

EQuITy

1. 1–5000 496,055 98.44 166,958,265 4.92

2. 5001–10000 4,036 0.80 29,867,501 0.88

3. 10001–20000 1,878 0.37 27,123,500 0.80

4. 20001–30000 572 0.11 14,506,923 0.43

5. 30001–40000 275 0.05 9,669,304 0.29

6. 40001–50000 188 0.04 8,599,465 0.25

7. 50001–100000 372 0.07 26,675,108 0.79

8. 100001 and above 516 0.10 3,109,223,270 91.65

TOTAL 503,892 100.00 3,392,623,336 100.00

15 DISTRIBUTION OF SHAReHOlDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2016 (TOTAl) (BY OWNeRSHIP)

SR.  

nO.

CATEGORy nO. OF  

hOLDERS

nO. OF EQuITy ShARES  

(FACE vALuE OF H 10 EACh)

% TO  

EQuITy

1.

Promoter - Bodies Corporate - 

IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 1 1,797,512,668 52.98

2. Foreign Institutional Investors 168 768,151,580 22.64

3. Resident Individuals 480,191 281,756,442 8.30

4. President of India 1 261,400,000 7.70

5. Bodies Corporates 3,714 122,216,102 3.60

6. Mutual Funds 86 57,896,594 1.71

7. Insurance Companies 29 48,522,313 1.43

8. H U F 12,576 15,072,977 0.44

9. Non Resident Indians 6,754 13,690,456 0.40

10. Trusts 44 9,869,586 0.29

11. Banks 30 5,428,184 0.16

12. Foreign Corporate Bodies 1 5,151,271 0.15

13. Indian Financial Institutions 8 3,060,061 0.09

14. Clearing Members 260 1,624,284 0.05

15. NBFC 24 1,261,443 0.04

16. Foreign Nationals 4 7,375 0.00

17. Overseas Corporate Bodies 1 2,000 0.00

Total 503,892 3,392,623,336 100.00
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17 DeMATeRIAlISATION OF SHAReS AS ON MARCH 31, 2016

CATEGORy nO. OF EQuITy ShARES % TO EQuITy

Physical 56,018 0.00 (Negligible)

NSDl 3,300,256,009 97.28

CDSl 92,311,309 2.72

TOTAL 3,392,623,336 100.00

16 TOP TeN eQUITY SHAReHOlDeRS OF IDFC BANK AS ON MARCH 31, 2016

SR.  

nO.

nAmE nO. OF EQuITy ShARES % TO EQuITy

1. IDFC Financial Holding Company limited 1,797,512,668 52.98

2. President of India 261,400,000 7.70

3. Sipadan Investments (Mauritius) limited 151,145,989 4.46

4.
National Westminster Bank PlC as Depositary of First State Asia Pacific leaders Fund a Sub 
Fund of First State Investments ICVC

88,125,165 2.60

5. ClSA Global Markets Pte. limited 61,289,435 1.81

6. Orbis Sicav - Asia ex-Japan equity Fund 42,215,857 1.24

7. Actis Hawk limited 37,091,569 1.09

8. HSBC Pooled Investment Fund A/C HSBC Pooled Invest 29,431,469 0.87

9. First State Investments (Hongkong) limited A/c First State Asian equity Plus Fund 21,771,232 0.64

10. Orbis Global equity Fund limited 17,919,198 0.53
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 PROFIleS OF DIReCTORS OF  

 THe BANK 

Mr. AnIl BAIjAl

Independent non-executive chairman  

Mr. Anil Baijal, aged 69 years, joined the 

Indian Administrative Service in 1969. He 

retired from the service in October, 2006 as 

Secretary, Ministry of Urban Development, 

Government of India. While in that Ministry, 

he anchored the designing and roll-out 

of the flagship programme of Jawaharlal 

Nehru National Urban Renewal Mission 

(‘JNNURM’) with a federal grant equivalent 

of about H 60,000 crore, for improvement of 

infrastructure and provision of basic services 

in urban areas of India.

In his long service career spanning over 

38 years, Mr. Baijal held various important 

assignments like that of the Union Home 

Secretary, Chairman & Managing Director, 

Indian Airlines, Chief executive Officer, 

Prasar Bharti Corporation (Broadcasting 

Corporation of India), Vice-Chairman, Delhi 

Development Authority, Development 

Commissioner, Goa and Counselor in-charge 

of Indian Aid Programme in Nepal.

After his retirement from Government 

service, Mr. Baijal is at present working as 

Chairman of IDFC Foundation. Besides 

advising a couple of equity funds, Mr. Baijal 

is also the Non-executive Director on the 

Boards of ITC limited, DHFl Pramerica 

life Insurance Company limited and 

International Travel House limited.

dr. rAjIv B. lAll

Founder Managing director & ceo 

(executive director)

Dr. Rajiv B. lall, aged 58 years, was the 

executive Chairman of IDFC limited until 

September 2015. He has about three 

decades of experience with leading global 

investment banks, multilateral agencies and 

in academia. His areas of expertise include 

project finance, private equity / venture 

capital, international capital markets, trade, 

infrastructure and macroeconomic policy 

issues with a focus on emerging markets 

including India and China in particular.

Dr. lall straddles the policy making 

and finance worlds. He currently chairs 

the National Committee on Infrastructure 

Financing of CII (Confederation of Indian 

Industry) a leading business chamber 

in the country. He is a member of the 

Managing Committee of ASSOCHAM; 

the CII National Council on Financial 

Sector Development and the CII National 

Committee on Banking. Internationally, 

he is a member of the Advisory Board of 

Columbia Global Centers, South Asia, set 

up by the Columbia University, New York. 

He is also on the International Advisory 

Board of the Centre for the Advanced 

Study of India (‘CASI’) at the University of 

Pennsylvania; and a member of the City 

of london’s Advisory Council on India. He 

was the President of Bombay Chamber of 

Commerce and Industry and has chaired 

the Global Agenda Council on Infrastructure 

of the World economic Forum. Dr. lall 

was India’s representative to the G20 

Workgroup on Infrastructure and was also 

a member of the Planning Commission’s 

Steering Committee on Urban Development 

Management; the Prime Minister’s 

Committees on Infrastructure Finance and 

Transport Sector Development; expert 

Group on Modernisation of Indian Railways 

of Ministry of Railways Government of India; 

and the RBI’s Committee on NBFCs. Dr. lall 

has served on several other Government 

Committees including those focused 

on Urban Infrastructure, Bond Market 

Development and Financial Sector Reform.

Prior to joining IDFC, Dr. lall was 

variously, a Partner with Warburg Pincus 

in New York; Head of Asian economic 

Research with Morgan Stanley in Hong 

Kong; a senior staff member of the World 

Bank in Washington, D.C. and of the Asian 

Development Bank in Manila and faculty 

member of the Florida Atlantic University 

Department of economics.

Dr. lall has a number of publications and 

articles to his credit. He has been a regular 

columnist with the Business Standard, a 

leading financial daily in India. He has a BA 

in Politics, Philosophy and economics from 

Oxford University and a Ph.D. in economics 

from Columbia University.

Mr. ABHIjIt sen

Independent director

Mr. Abhijit Sen, aged 65 years, recently 

retired from Citi India after serving as the 

Chief Financial Officer-India Subcontinent 

for over 18 years. In this role he was 

responsible for the Finance function in India, 

Bangladesh and Sri lanka for the entire Citi 

franchise including Controllership, Corporate 

Treasury, Financial Planning, Product Control 

and Tax. He was a member of all Policy level 

Committees as well as Boards of constituent 

Citi companies, and had a significant 

ongoing involvement in various areas of 

Management of the franchise with special 

emphasis on Business planning / Strategy, 

regulatory aspects, financial planning and 

policies and corporate governance / legal 

entity management. He was also responsible 

for interfacing with external rating agencies, 

banks and investors to broad-base funding 

of non-bank vehicles.

In addition to his CFO role, Mr. Sen 

was Chairman of Citicorp Services India 

limited which provides a variety of services 

in the analytics, financial modeling and 
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planning, processing and technology space 

engaging over 3000 professionals serving 

a variety of Citi businesses overseas. As 

Chairman of the Board, he was responsible 

for providing governance oversight and 

ensuring performance of service delivery, 

while protecting regulatory standards. He 

also earlier provided oversight to a variety 

of functions including Compliance & Control, 

Procurement, Premises Management and 

Utilities.

On retirement from Citi, Mr. Sen joined 

General Atlantic Pvt. ltd India, as an Advisor 

with effect from March 01, 2015, to provide 

broad strategic support for investments in 

the Banking and Financial Services Sector. 

He also currently serves on several Boards 

including Trent ltd and Ujjivan Financial 

Services ltd and in the past on the Board of 

National Securities Depository limited.

Mr. Sen holds an Honours degree in 

engineering from IIT, Kharagpur and an MBA 

from IIM-Calcutta.

Mr. AjAy sondHI

Independent director

Mr. Ajay Sondhi, aged 55 years, is based 

in Singapore and is the Founder and CeO 

of Sentinel Advisors Pte ltd, a boutique 

business and strategy advisory services firm 

focusing on India, ASeAN and North Asia 

markets, with particular sector focus on 

Financial Services, Health Sciences and Real 

estate. Mr. Sondhi has had an over 33-year 

career in wholesale, investment and private 

banking in India and overseas. Mr. Sondhi 

was the Regional Head for Private Wealth 

Management at Goldman Sachs Singapore 

from 2008 till taking early retirement in  

mid-2014. Prior to that he was head of 

Global India markets for Citi Private Bank 

based in Singapore from 2005 to 2008. 

Mr. Sondhi has previously been Vice 

Chairman and MD of Kotak Mahindra Capital 

Company and a Board member of Kotak 

Mahindra Bank, India; MD and Country 

Head for UBS AG, India; Group CeO for 

Barclays Bank / BZW, India; and Director 

& Head-South Asia for Salomon Brothers, 

Hong Kong. Mr. Sondhi started his career 

with Citibank in India, and held various 

positions in corporate banking culminating 

in becoming Country Corporate Bank and 

Corporate Finance Head before he left in 

1993.

Mr. Sondhi is a member of the Board 

of Advisors of Tufts University School 

of Medicine, Boston, USA; a Board 

Dignitaries of  

government of India with 

IDFC Bank Directors and  

Core Management Team at 

the inauguration of the Bank
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Committee member of SPD, a voluntary 

welfare organisation serving the disabled 

in Singapore; and a Director of Maxx 

Medical Pte, a medical devices company 

headquartered in Singapore. Mr. Sondhi 

holds a Master in Management Studies 

degree from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of 

Management Studies, Mumbai, and is a 

graduate of St. Stephens College, Delhi 

University.

dr. AsHok gulAtI

Independent director

Dr. Ashok Gulati, aged 62 years, is currently 

Infosys Chair Professor for Agriculture 

at the Indian Council for Research on 

International economic Relations (‘ICRIeR’), 

which he joined in March, 2014. During 

March 2011-February 2014, he was Chairman 

of the Commission for Agricultural Costs 

and Prices (‘CACP’), a body responsible 

for recommending Minimum Support 

Prices (‘MSPs’) of 23 important agri-

commodities to Government of India. 

Prior to this, Dr. Gulati was Director at 

the International Food Policy Research 

Institute (‘IFPRI’) for more than 10 years 

(January 2001-February 2011). Before 

joining IFPRI, he also served as NABARD 

Chair Professor at the Institute of economic 

Growth, and Chief economist at the National 

Council of Applied economics Research in 

India. He has his M.A. and Ph.D. in economics 

from the Delhi School of economics (India). 

Dr. Gulati has been deeply involved in 

agri-policy analysis and advice in India. He 

has been a member of the Prime Minister’s 

economic Advisory Council; a member of 

the State Planning Board of Karnataka; 

and a member of the economic Advisory 

Committee of the Chief Minister of Andhra 

Pradesh; and a member of several expert 

committees from time to time. He has to his 

credit more than 10 books on issues related 

to Asian Agriculture (with a focus on India) 

from publishers of repute such as Johns 

Hopkins University Press, Oxford University 

Press, Mac Millan, Academic Foundation, 

etc. He has published widely in international 

and Indian journals, and is a prolific writer in 

media as well.

He has been recently awarded Padma Shri 

by the Government.

Mr. rAjAn AnAndAn

Additional director  

(Independent director)

Mr. Rajan Anandan, aged 47 years, is the 

Vice President and Managing Director of 

Google South east Asia and India and is 

responsible for Sales and Operations in the 

region. Mr. Anandan is focused on expanding 

the Internet ecosystem in the region, 

increasing adoption among consumers and 

businesses and accelerating innovation. 

South east Asia and India, with over two 

billion consumers and 500 million Internet 

users, is the fastest growing Internet user 

base in the world. 

Mr. Anandan joined Google in early 2011 

to lead Google’s business in India. His career 

includes leadership roles at Microsoft, Dell 

and McKinsey & Company. Prior to Google, 

Mr. Anandan was the Managing Director 

of Microsoft India and built India’s largest 

software business. Before joining Microsoft, 

he was a Vice President with Dell where he 

held several global leadership roles including 

that of the executive Assistant to Chairman 

Michael Dell. Before Dell, Mr. Anandan was 

a Partner with McKinsey & Company in 

Chicago.

He holds an MSc from Stanford University 

and a BSc from MIT.

8 2  I D F C  B A N K  A N N U A l  R e P O R T  2 0 1 5 – 2 0 1 6



Ms. veenA MAnkAr

Independent director

Ms. Veena Mankar, aged 63 years, is a 

Banking and Financial Services professional 

with expertise in trade and structured 

finance, financing for MSMes and 

microfinance.

She has over 35 years of experience in 

financial services with banks and financial 

institutions and as a strategic consultant.

She is the Founder of three entities 

under the Swadhaar brand, set up with the 

objective of promoting financial inclusion, 

including a non-profit that provides financial 

literacy training. She is the Chairperson of 

two of the entities, Swadhaar FinServe Pvt. 

ltd, an NBFC-MFI and Swadhaar Information 

& Management Services Pvt. ltd., a Business 

Correspondent.

She is also a Director on the Board of 

liberty Videocon General Insurance Co. ltd.

She started her career in 1975 with ICICI, 

the development finance institution in India, 

and precursor of the present day ICICI Bank, 

which was followed by commercial banking 

experience in Dubai. She set up and headed 

the Indian Representative Office of West lB, 

a German state-owned bank and thereafter 

was the founding MD of a Factoring Non-

Banking Financial Company, a joint venture 

of the same Bank with two other financial 

institutions (including IFC, Washington). She 

later advised FIM Bank, Malta on their global 

factoring strategy and assisted in setting 

up specialised joint ventures in Dubai and 

egypt, where she also served as FIM Bank’s 

Nominee Director on the Boards of these 

joint ventures companies.

In the past, she has been on the 

Governing Board of Sa-Dhan, the 

Association of Microfinance & Community 

Development Institutions in India.

She has a BA in economics from lady 

Shree Ram College, Delhi and a post-

graduation in Business Administration 

from the Indian Institute of Management, 

Ahmedabad.

She is widely travelled, including to study 

factoring / financial inclusion initiatives in 

other countries, and as a guest speaker at 

national and international conferences and 

seminars on the subjects of trade finance, 

factoring, forfaiting and microfinance.

Mr. vIkrAM lIMAye

nominee director  

(non-executive director)

Mr. Vikram limaye, aged 49 years, is the 

Managing Director & CeO of IDFC limited. 

He started his professional career with 

Arthur Andersen in Mumbai in 1987 while 

pursuing his Chartered Accountancy and 

worked in the audit and business advisory 

services groups of Arthur Andersen, ernst 

& Young and the consumer banking group 

of Citibank before going to the US in 1994 

to pursue a MBA. After completing his MBA, 

he worked on Wall Street in USA for 8 years 

with Credit Suisse First Boston in a variety of 

roles in investment banking, capital markets, 

structured finance and credit portfolio 

management before returning to Mumbai, 

India in 2004.

He has contributed to various committees 

of Government and industry associations on 

a range of topics surrounding infrastructure, 

economic policy, markets, trade, minority 

affairs etc. He has been a speaker at various 

domestic and international conferences 

and been part of international Government 

delegations for infrastructure and foreign 

direct investments into India.

He completed his Bachelors in Commerce 

from HR College of Commerce & economics, 

Chartered Accountancy and a MBA in 

Finance and Multinational Management from 

the Wharton School of the University of 

Pennsylvania, USA.

Mr. vInod rAI

nominee director  

(non-executive director)

Mr. Vinod Rai, aged 68 years, is the 

Independent Non-executive Chairman 

of IDFC limited. He was the former 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

He has been recently honoured with the 

Padma Bhushan Award by the Government 

of India. Mr. Rai has wide experience of 

working in various capacities at both, the 

Central and State Governments. His previous 

position was as Secretary in the Ministry 

of Finance-GoI, where he was responsible 

for managing the Financial Services sector, 

including banks and insurance companies. 

He had been a Director on several Boards 

including the State Bank of India, ICICI Bank, 

IDBI Bank, life Insurance Corporation of 

India etc. Mr. Rai was instrumental in setting 

up the India Infrastructure Finance Company 

limited and was also on the Board of this 

company. 

Mr. Rai has also been the Principal 

Secretary (Finance) in the State Government 

of Kerala, apart from holding senior positions 

in the Ministries of Commerce and Defence, 

GOI.

Mr. Vinod Rai has a Masters Degree in 

economics from Delhi School of economics, 

University of Delhi. He has a Masters Degree 

in Public Administration from Harvard 

University, USA.
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 PROFIleS OF THe CORe MANAGeMeNT  

 TeAM OF THe BANK 

dr. rAjIv B. lAll

Founder Managing director & ceo

Dr. Rajiv lall was the executive Chairman 

of IDFC limited until September 2015. He 

has about three decades of experience 

with leading global investment banks, 

multilateral agencies and in academia. His 

areas of expertise include project finance, 

private equity/venture capital, international 

capital markets, trade, infrastructure and 

macroeconomic policy issues with a focus 

on emerging markets including India and 

China in particular.

Dr. lall straddles the policy making 

and finance worlds. He currently chairs 

the National Committee on Infrastructure 

Financing of CII (Confederation of Indian 

Industry) a leading business chamber 

in the country. He is a member of the 

Managing Committee of ASSOCHAM; 

the CII National Council on Financial 

Sector Development and the CII National 

Committee on Banking. Internationally, 

he is a member of the Advisory Board of 

Columbia Global Centers, South Asia, set 

up by the Columbia University, New York. 

He is also on the International Advisory 

Board of the Centre for the Advanced 

Study of India (‘CASI’) at the University of 

Pennsylvania; and a member of the City 

of london’s Advisory Council on India. He 

was the President of Bombay Chamber of 

Commerce and Industry and has chaired 

the Global Agenda Council on Infrastructure 

of the World economic Forum. Dr. lall 

was India’s representative to the G20 

Workgroup on Infrastructure and was also 

a member of the Planning Commission’s 

Steering Committee on Urban Development 

Management; the Prime Minister’s 

Committees on Infrastructure Finance and 

Transport Sector Development; expert 

Group on Modernisation of Indian Railways 

of Ministry of Railways Government of India; 

and the RBI’s Committee on NBFCs. Dr. lall 

has served on several other Government 

Committees including those focused 

on Urban Infrastructure, Bond Market 

Development and Financial Sector Reform.

Prior to joining IDFC, Dr. lall was 

variously, a Partner with Warburg Pincus 

in New York; Head of Asian economic 

Research with Morgan Stanley in Hong 

Kong; a senior staff member of the World 

Bank in Washington, D.C. and of the Asian 

Development Bank in Manila and faculty 

member of the Florida Atlantic University 

Department of economics.

Dr. lall has a number of publications and 

articles to his credit. He has been a regular 

columnist with the Business Standard, a 

leading financial daily in India. He has a BA 

in Politics, Philosophy and economics from 

Oxford University and a Ph.D. in economics 

from Columbia University. 

Mr. AjAy MAHAjAn

Head - commercial & wholesale Banking

Mr. Ajay Mahajan is the Head of Commercial 

& Wholesale Banking. He has over 25 years 

of experience in the banking industry and 

has now been with IDFC for two years.  

Mr. Mahajan started his career with Bank 

of America in 1990, where he last served 

as Managing Director & Country Treasurer 

responsible for all financial markets, balance 

sheet management and capital markets 

businesses. After 14 years with Bank of 

America, he joined the founding team 

of Yes Bank, a greenfield bank, serving 

as Group President of Financial Markets, 

Institutions and Investment Management. 

This was a very entrepreneurial role as it 

involved setting up various functions in the 

Bank from scratch. In 2008, Mr. Mahajan 

joined UBS to build their banking franchise 

in India when they got licensed by RBI to 

commence banking operations in India. This 

was an equally entrepreneurial role building 

a foreign bank’s capabilities, processes 

and clients business in the country and 

leading the team as the Managing Director. 

Thereafter, Mr. Mahajan stepped away 

from formal employment to set up his 

entrepreneurial ventures. He was Managing 

Partner and Co-Founder of R-Square 

Advisors, an investment management and 

market risk advisory firm, where he provided 

quant-oriented risk management, fixed 

income and credit modeling solutions to 

clients. earlier he also founded FICC Capital, 

with the objective of building a structured 

credit business. Mr. Mahajan has served as 

a Director on the Board of Fixed Income, 

Money Markets and Derivatives Association 

of India (‘FIMMDA’), promoted by banks 

and financial institutions to facilitate the 

development of securities and derivatives 

markets in India. He has a Masters from 

Faculty of Management Studies and has 

B.e. (Hons) in electrical and electronics 

engineering from BITS Pilani and CFA from 

the CFA institute, USA.

Mr. AnIMesH kuMAr

Head - Hr, Brand & Foundation 

Mr. Animesh Kumar leads the Human 

Resources, Brand and the Community 

engagement agenda for Bank. He is also the 

CeO - IDFC Foundation. 

As the HR Head for the Bank, Animesh 

leads the effort of building an organization 

that is predicated on its purpose and DNA 

of serving the nation and driving all aspects 

of internal service delivery, reinforcing 
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IDFC’s position as an employer of repute and 

stability. Animesh’s key focus is to create 

and nourish a culture that is not only aligned 

with the organization’s core values but is 

also able to create an enabling environment 

that brings to life the philosophy of  

‘un-bank’. 

As the Head of Brand, Animesh drives the 

organization’s Marketing, Communication 

and Public Relations agenda. He is 

responsible for building the reputation of 

IDFC Bank across all channels including 

social media across the varied stakeholder 

groups. 

As the CeO of IDFC Foundation, 

Animesh is responsible for facilitating the 

Foundation’s evolution into a community 

engagement focused ‘think and do tank’ 

that works specifically in the areas of 

Health and education. His keen interest 

in the areas of urbanization and social 

infrastructure serve to further fuel the 

Foundation’s engagements with civil society 

organizations, academia and Government, 

driving the Foundation’s mandate of 

catalyzing change in local communities. 

Animesh has over two decades of 

experience in leadership roles in Human 

Resources across Banking and FMCG 

sectors. Prior to joining IDFC, Animesh was 

a part of the HR leadership team at ABN 

AMRO / Royal Bank of Scotland Group. 

Previously, he has also held positions with 

Marico Industries, Thomas Cook, Standard 

Chartered Bank and YeS Bank.

Animesh holds a Post Graduate Diploma 

in Human Resources from XlRI, Jamshedpur, 

India and is an economics graduate from 

Shri Ram College of Commerce, Delhi.

Mr. AvtAr MongA

chief operating officer

Mr. Avtar Monga is the Chief Operating 

Officer of IDFC Bank. He has over 32 years 

of experience in working with Banking and 

Financial Industry. Prior to joining IDFC, 

Mr. Monga served with Bank of America 

as Managing Director Global Delivery 

Centers of expertise (‘GDCe’) globally. 

He was responsible for providing services 

across Operations, Technology, Data Centre 

Management, Finance and Accounting, 

Analytics, Operational Risk and HR across 

multiple lines of businesses and geographies. 

He established Bank's Captives known as 

BA Continuum across India and led the 

expansion into Costa Rica, Mexico and the 

Philippines as well as managed Six Sigma 

learning organisation for Bank of America. In 

addition to leading a large employee base 

across locations, he was also responsible for 

managing strategic partner relationships on 

behalf of the bank for delivery of Technology 

and Operations. Prior to re-joining Bank 

of America in 2003, he worked with Ge 

Capital for 5 years. Mr. Monga was part of 

management team to establish their credit 

card joint venture with State Bank which 

went on to become the fastest growing Visa 

business across Asia. He later also served 

as Chief executive Officer for Ge Capital 

Business Process Management ltd. He also 

served as Chief executive Officer of Ge 

Capital Transport Financial services and was 

responsible for its’s turnaround.

Mr. PAvAn kAusHAl

chief risk officer

Mr. Pavan Pal Kaushal is the Chief Risk 

Officer of IDFC Bank. He is a career banker 

with about three decades of experience with 

leading global banks and in consulting. His 

areas of expertise include Corporate, Retail 
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and Commercial Credit Risk management, 

Operations Risk, Market Risk and Treasury. 

Mr Kaushal has extensive experience 

across emerging markets and developed 

markets having worked in multiple markets 

covering, Australia, Centeral and eastern 

europe, United Kingdom , Russia, Asia and 

India. Prior to joining IDFC, Mr. Kaushal was 

variously, a Partner with ernst & Young in 

India responsible for leading the Financial 

Services Risk Management Practice; Chief 

Risk Officer at ANZ Bank in India; Head of 

Commercial Credit Risk Asia Pacific with 

ANZ Bank in Hong Kong, Senior Credit 

Officer – eMeA Global Consumer Bank with 

Citibank in london; Head of Commercial 

Risk = Citibank in Poland and India; and 

worked in several senior leadership roles 

both in the Global Corporate & Investment 

Bank & Global Consumer Bank at Citibank. 

Mr. Kaushal holds a Masters in Finance from 

Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management 

Studies & is A.C.A. from the Indian Institute 

of Chartered Accountants.

dr. rAjeev uBeroI

general counsel and Head - legal & Audit

Dr. Rajeev Uberoi joined IDFC as General 

Counsel and Group Head - legal and 

Compliance in 2009. Having worked in the 

banking and finance space for more than 

three decades, Dr Uberoi commands a 

unique position in the legal fraternity and 

is looked upon by many institutional heads 

for his ability to effectively strategize and 

formulate business - legal decisions which 

have led to consummation of some path 

breaking transactions in the domestic and 

international markets. Having worked as an 

in- house counsel in multi-functional and 

multi-jurisdictional organizations with rich 

experience in banking spanning more than 

30 years, he has the ability to seamlessly 

advice on complex matters including cross 

border regulatory regimes and enforcement 

practices, local jurisdiction issues, tax 

implications, capital market regulations, 

Mergers & Acquisitions (both domestic 

and cross-border) including the latest 

demerger of IDFC limited and IDFC Bank, 

corporate restructuring, Private equity 

Investments, JVs, foreign collaborations, 

divestments, major commercial contracts, 

civil and criminal litigation, property matters 

and many other incidental issues of legal 

& regulatory nature. Dr. Uberoi has been 

instrumental in setting up the governance 

structure at IDFC that adheres to ethical 

standards, best practices and compliance 

of relevant laws to protect the interest of 

the shareholders. His global outlook has 

set the foundation for IDFC to collaborate 

with illustrious law schools like Harvard law 

School and Jindal Global law School and 

facilitate dissemination of calibrated course 

contents, allow secondments to student and 

publish research papers Prior to joining IDFC 

limited, Dr. Uberoi worked with Standard 

Chartered Bank where he was Regional Head 

- Operational Risk & Assurance, South Asia. 

In his previous experiences, he has worked 

with several domestic and multinational 

banks such as Union Bank of India, State 

Bank of India, RBI as Asst. General Manager, 

Dept. of Banking Supervision, Citibank as 

Vice President & Regulatory Head; ANZ 

Grindlays Bank as Head - Risk Management 

& Compliance - India. Dr. Uberoi is also a 

profound writer and has a lot of publications 

to his credit. He is also a member of various 

committees and has been active on the 

Speaker circuit. He is a recipient of many 

accolades and awards and his contribution 

to the legal fraternity has been recognised 
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in the Industry. Dr. Uberoi is a lawyer and 

a Canadian Commonwealth Scholar with 

a Masters from McMaster University and a 

Ph.D. in economics. He also possesses an 

MBA degree from MDI, Gurgaon.

Mr. rAvI sHAnkAr

Head - Bharat Banking

Mr. Ravi Shankar is the Head of Bharat 

Banking for IDFC Bank limited. He has 

over 25 years of experience across sectors 

including retail finance, business consulting, 

advertising, automotive, aviation etc. Prior 

to joining IDFC, Ravi was Head of Business & 

Marketing at Fullerton India Credit Co. ltd. In 

this role, he was responsible for both urban 

and rural businesses along with Marketing, 

Corporate Communications and CSR. At 

Fullerton India, he helped build a profitable 

and robust rural finance network of over 200 

branches across India, called ‘Gramshakti’. 

He was also responsible for conceptualizing 

and implementing the marketing and 

communication initiatives for the company. 

Prior to Fullerton, he worked with TNS 

India Pvt. ltd. as Senior Vice President & 

Head - Stakeholder Management Research 

and Strategic Consulting for clients across 

B2B, automotive, finance & technology 

sectors. Prior to joining TNS India, Ravi 

worked with organizations like Publicis India 

Communications Pvt. ltd., Modiluft ltd., 

Maadhyam Advertising Pvt. ltd. and the 

eicher Group. He began his corporate career 

with living Media India ltd. Ravi holds a 

Bachelor’s degree in economics & a Post 

Graduate Diploma in Management.

Mr. sunIl kAkAr

chief Financial officer

Mr. Sunil Kakar is the Group Chief Financial 

Officer at IDFC and was named in this 

position in 2011. In this role, he is responsible 

for Finance & Accounts, Business Planning 

and Budgeting, Investor Relations, Resource 

Raising and IT. Prior to joining IDFC, Mr. 

Kakar worked with Max New York life 

Insurance Company since 2001, as CFO. He 

led numerous initiatives including Planning, 

Investments / Treasury, Finance and 

Accounting, Budgeting and MIS, Regulatory 

Reporting and Taxation. As part of the start-

up team in Max New York life, Mr. Kakar was 

part of the core group responsible for the 

successful development of the insurance 

business. In his previous assignment, he 

worked with Bank of America for 18 years 

in various roles, covering Business Planning 

& Financial Control, Branch Administration 

and Operations, Market Risk Management, 

Project Management and Internal Controls. 

As a CFO from 1996 to 2001, Mr. Kakar 

spearheaded the Finance function at Bank of 

America. Mr. Kakar holds an MBA in Finance 

from XlRI and a degree in engineering from 

IIT Kanpur.
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We, Rajiv B. Lall, Founder managing 

Director & Chief Executive Officer and 

Sunil Kakar, Chief Financial Officer, of IDFC 

Bank Limited (the ‘Bank’), hereby certify to 

the Board that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements 

and the cash flow statement for the year 

ended March 31, 2016 and that to the best 

of our knowledge and belief:

  n these statements do not contain any 

materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading;

  n these statements together present 

a true and fair view of Bank’s affairs 

and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and 

regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge 

and belief, no transactions entered into 

by the Bank during the year which are 

fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 

Bank’s Code of Conduct.

c. We are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and we have evaluated the 

effectiveness of internal control systems 

of the Bank pertaining to financial 

reporting. We have disclosed to the 

Auditors and the Audit Committee, 

deficiencies in the design or operation 

of such internal controls, if any, of which 

we are aware and the steps we have 

taken or propose to take to rectify these 

deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and 

the Audit Committee:

  n significant changes in internal control over 

financial reporting during the year;

  n significant changes in accounting policies 

during the year and the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements; and

  n instances of significant fraud of which we 

have become aware and the involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an 

employee having a significant role in the 

listed entity’s internal control system over 

financial reporting.

e. We affirm that no personnel has been 

denied access to the Audit Committee of 

the Bank (in respect of matters involving 

alleged misconduct, if any).

f.  We further declare that all Board 

members and Senior Management 

Personnel have affirmed compliance 

with the ‘Code of Conduct for Board 

of Directors & Senior Management 

Personnel’ for the current year.

Rajiv B. Lall

Founder Managing Director & CeO

Sunil Kakar

Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai | April 22, 2016

CERTIFICATIOn 
By CEO 
AnD CFO
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1. We have examined the compliance of 

conditions of Corporate Governance by 

IDFC BANK lIMITeD (‘the Bank’), for the 

period from November 06, 2015 (date of 

listing of the Bank) to March 31, 2016 as 

stipulated in:

  n Clause 49 [excluding clause 49(VII)(e)] 

of the listing Agreements of the Bank 

with stock exchanges for the period from 

November 06, 2015 to November 30, 

2015.

  n Regulation 23(4) of the SeBI 

(listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the 

listing Regulations) for the period from 

November 06, 2015 to March 31, 2016 and

  n Regulations 17 to 27 [excluding 

Regulation 23(4)] and clauses (b) to (i) 

of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and e 

of Schedule V of the listing Regulations 

for the period from December 01, 2015 to 

March 31, 2016.

2. The compliance of conditions 

of Corporate Governance is the 

responsibility of the Management. 

Our examination was limited to the 

procedures and implementation thereof, 

adopted by the Bank for ensuring 

compliance with the conditions of the 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an 

audit nor an expression of opinion on 

the financial statements of the Bank.

3. We have examined the relevant records 

of the Bank in accordance with the 

Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

in India, to the extent relevant, and as 

per the Guidance Note on Certification 

of Corporate Governance issued by the 

Institute of the Chartered Accountants 

of India.

4. In our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to our 

examination of the relevant records and 

the explanations given to us and the 

representations made by the Directors 

and the Management, we certify that the 

Bank has complied with the conditions 

of Corporate Governance as stipulated 

in Clause 49 of the listing Agreement 

and Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses  

(b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para 

C, D and e of Schedule V of the listing 

Regulations for the respective periods 

of applicability as specified under 

paragraph 1 above, during the period 

from November 06, 2015 to March 31, 

2016.

5. We state that such compliance is 

neither an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Bank nor the efficiency 

or effectiveness with which the 

Management has conducted the affairs 

of the Bank. 

For deloItte HAskIns & sells

Chartered Accountants

(Firm‘s Registration No. 117365W)

Kalpesh J. mehta

(Membership No. 48791)

Mumbai | June 25, 2016

InDEpEnDEnT 
AuDITORS’ 
CERTIFICATE

To the Members 

of IDFC Bank 

Limited
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TO THE MEMBERS OF IDFC BANK LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDFC BANK LIMITED (“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, 
in so far as applicable to banks, and the Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for 
safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to 
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Bank’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Bank’s Directors, and evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements.

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2016, and its 
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 1 of Schedule 18 to the financial statements which describes the demerger of financial undertaking of IDFC 
Limited in to the Bank in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement under section 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 approved by 
Hon’ble Madras High Court vide its order dated June 25, 2015.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.  As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act and Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank.

 c) As explained in paragraph 2 below, the financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralised and, therefore, accounting 
returns are not required to be submitted by the Branches.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
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 d) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

 e) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

 f) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act, as applicable. 

 g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as at 31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Bank and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Bank’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

 i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

  i. The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements – Refer 
Schedule 17/D-11 and Schedule 18- Note 51 to the financial statements;

  ii. The Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts – Refer Schedule 17/D-11 and 
Schedule 18- Note 51 to the financial statements; 

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Bank.

2.  We report that during the course of our audit we have performed select relevant procedures at 19 branches. Since the 
Bank considers its key operations to be automated, with the key applications largely integrated to the core banking 
systems, it does not require its branches, to submit any financial returns. Accordingly our audit is carried out centrally at 
the Head Office and Central Processing Units based on the necessary records and data required for the purposes of the 
audit and made available to us.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117365W) 

Kalpesh J. Mehta 
Partner
(Membership No. 48791) 

Place : Mumbai
Date :  April 26, 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
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(Referred to in paragraph 1.h under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IDFC BANK LIMITED (“the Bank”) as at 31st March, 2016 in 

conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the 

Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 

and the Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards 

on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 

an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Bank’s 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles and other applicable regulations. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes 

those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Bank has, in all material respects, an 

adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at 31st March, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117365W) 

Kalpesh J. Mehta 
Partner
(Membership No. 48791) 

Place : Mumbai
Date :  April 26, 2016

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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BAlANcE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016

SCHEDULE 
NO.

AS AT 
MARCH 31, 2016

AS AT 
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Capital 1 33,926,233  500 

Employees' stock options outstanding 1a 33,235  -   

Reserves and surplus 2 102,366,054 (25,849)

Deposits 3 82,190,453  -   

Borrowings 4 479,138,308  -   

Other liabilities and provisions 5 42,044,422  25,857 

TOTAL 739,698,705  508 

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 19,008,369  -   

Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 7 10,030,700  500 

Investments 8 200,911 ,792  -   

Advances 9 456,994,297  -   

Fixed assets 10 6,728,549  -   

Other assets 11 46,024,998  8 

TOTAL 739,698,705  508 

Contingent liabilities 12 729,367,008  -  

Bills for collection  -    -   

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 17 & 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
IDFC Bank Limited

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Anil Baijal
Chairman

Rajiv B. Lall
Founder Managing Director & CEO

Abhijit Sen
Director

Vikram Limaye
Director

Mumbai | April 26, 2016
Sunil Kakar
Chief Financial Officer

Mahendra N. Shah
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
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PROfIT & lOSS AccOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

SCHEDULE  
NO.

 YEAR ENDED  
MARCH 31, 2016

PERIOD ENDED  
OCTOBER 21, 2014 

TO MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I INCOME

Interest earned 13  36,488,324  -   

Other income 14  4,031,974  -   

TOTAL  40,520,298  -   

II EXPENDITURE

Interest expended 15  28,015,025  -   

Operating expenses 16  5,105,816  25,858 

Provisions and contingencies 18.28  2,730,924 (9)

TOTAL  35,851,765  25,849 

III NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR / PERIOD (I-II)  4,668,533 (25,849)

Balance in profit and loss account brought forward from previous year / 
period

(25,849)  -   

Profit brought forward on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC 
Limited

18.1  11,962,952  -   

IV AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION  16,605,636 (25,849)

V APPROPRIATIONS :

Transfer to statutory reserve 18.30  1,180,000  -   

Transfer to investment reserve 18.30  -    -   

Transfer to capital reserve 18.30  825,000  -   

Transfer to special reserve 18.30  1,450,000  -   

Proposed dividend (includes tax on dividend)  1,021,380  -   

Balance in profit and loss account carried forward  12,129,256 (25,849)

TOTAL  16,605,636 (25,849)

VI EARNINgS PER EqUITY SHARE (FACE VALUE ` 10 PER SHARE) 18.44

Basic (`) 2.34 (516.98)

Diluted (`) 2.34 (516.98)

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 17 & 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
IDFC Bank Limited

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Anil Baijal
Chairman

Rajiv B. Lall
Founder Managing Director & CEO

Abhijit Sen
Director

Vikram Limaye
Director

Mumbai | April 26, 2016
Sunil Kakar
Chief Financial Officer

Mahendra N. Shah
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
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cASH flOw STATEmENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

SCHEDULE 
NO.

 YEAR ENDED  
MARCH 31, 2016

PERIOD ENDED  
OCTOBER 21, 2014 

TO MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

A. CASH FLOw FROM OPERATINg ACTIVITIES

Net profit / (loss) before taxes  7,157,630 (25,858)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on fixed assets 16 (V)  407,453  -   

Provision for depreciation in value of investments 18.28  40,215  -   

Amortisation of premium on held to maturity investments  69,224  -   

Provision / (write back) for non performing advances 18.28 (169,925)  -   

Additional specific provisions 18.28  314,450  -   

Provision on unhedged foreign currency exposure 18.28  81,740  -   

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 14 (IV)  318  -   

Provision / (write back) for restructured assets 18.28 (29,403)  -   

Other provisions and contingencies 18.28  4,637  -   

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/decrease in investments (89,874,280)  -   

(Increase)/decrease in advances (37,743,150)  -   

Increase/(decrease) in deposits 82,190,453  -   

(Increase)/decrease in other assets (5,007,525)  -   

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities and provisions 6,991,682 25,858 

Direct taxes paid (2,309,682)  -   

Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) (37,876,163)  -   

B. CASH FLOw FROM INVESTINg ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (1,790,485)  -   

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 5,740  -   

(Increase)/decrease in held to maturity investments 73,495,580  -   

Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 71,710,835  -   

C. CASH FLOw FROM FINANCINg ACTIVITIES

Increase/(decrease) in borrowings (excluding subordinated debt, perpetual 
debt & upper Tier II instruments)

(88,069,071)  -   

Proceeds from issue of share capital 70,358,165  500 

Payment of dividend  -    -   

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (17,710,906)  500 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  16,123,766  500 

Cash and cash equivalents on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited*  12,914,803  -   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  500  -   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  29,039,069  500 

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement:

Represented by :

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 6  19,008,369  -   

Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 7  10,030,700  500 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  29,039,069  500 

*  Cash flow from operations, investing and financing activities excludes movement in assets and liabilities on demerger of Financing 
Undertaking acquired by the Bank from IDFC Limited. The net cash and cash equivalent acquired on demerger is reflected separately, 
in addition to net increase in cash and cash equivalents due to banking operations from October 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
IDFC Bank Limited

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Anil Baijal
Chairman

Rajiv B. Lall
Founder Managing Director & CEO

Abhijit Sen
Director

Vikram Limaye
Director

Mumbai | April 26, 2016
Sunil Kakar
Chief Financial Officer

Mahendra N. Shah
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
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ScHEDUlE 1 CAPITAL

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

AUTHORISED CAPITAL  

5,000,000,000 (Previous Year - 5,000,000,000) equity shares of ` 10 each  50,000,000  50,000,000 

EqUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital *^

3,392,623,336 (Previous Year - 50,000) equity shares of ` 10 each, fully paid up  33,926,233  500 

TOTAL  33,926,233  500 

* During the year, 1,594,020,668 equity share were issued to shareholders of IDFC Limited on demerger of Financing Undertaking of 
IDFC Limited and 1,797,462,668 equity shares were issued to IDFC Financial Holding Company Limited - Non-operative Financial 
Holding Company.

^  Includes 1,090,000 equity shares alloted pursuant to the exercise of options under the IDFC Bank Limited Employee Stock Option 
Scheme.

ScHEDUlE 1a EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDINg

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

Employee stock option outstanding*  33,235  - 

TOTAL  33,235  - 

* Includes ` 6.56 crore on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited as reduced by ` 3.24 crore transferred to General 
Reserve on exercise of ESOPs (refer note 18.1).

ScHEDUlE 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I STATUTORY RESERVES

Opening balance  -    - 

Additions during the year (refer note 18.30)  1,180,000  - 

Deduction during the year  -    - 

Closing balance  1,180,000  - 

II CAPITAL RESERVES

Opening balance  -    - 

Additions during the year (refer note 18.30)*  825,000  - 

Deduction during the year  -    - 

Closing balance  825,000  - 

* Represents profit on sale of investments in held to maturity category, net of taxes, and transfer to Statutory reserve.

III SHARE PREMIUM

Opening balance  -    - 

Additions during the year*  79,912,414  - 

Deduction during the year  -    - 

Closing balance  79,912,414  - 

* Includes ` 2,753.98 crore on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited (refer note 18.1)
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 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

IV gENERAL RESERVE

Opening balance  -    - 

Additions during the year@  6,869,384  - 

Deduction during the year  -    - 

Closing balance  6,869,384  - 

@ Includes ` 683.70 crore on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited (refer note 18.1)

V SPECIAL RESERVE 

Opening balance  -    -   

Additions during the year (refer note 18.30)  1,450,000  -   

Deduction during the year  -    -   

Closing balance  1,450,000  -   

VI BALANCE IN PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ^  12,129,256 (25,849)

^ Includes ` 1,196.30 crore on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited (refer note 18.1)

TOTAL (I+II+III+IV+V+VI)  102,366,054 (25,849)

ScHEDUlE 3 DEPOSITS

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

A I DEMAND DEPOSITS

(i) From banks  244,340  - 

(ii) From others  3,450,406  - 

II SAVINgS BANK DEPOSITS  755,961  - 

III TERM DEPOSITS

(i) From banks  3,430,411  - 

(ii) From others  74,309,335  - 

TOTAL (I+II+III)  82,190,453  - 

B I Deposits of branches in India  82,190,453  - 

II Deposits of branches outside India  -    - 

TOTAL  82,190,453  - 

ScHEDUlE 4 BORROwINgS

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I BORROwINgS IN INDIA

(i) Reserve Bank of India  -    - 

(ii) Other banks ^  34,864,080  - 

(iii) Other institutions and agencies $  377,403,771  - 

II BORROwINgS OUTSIDE INDIA*  66,870,457  - 

TOTAL (I+II)  479,138,308  - 

Secured borrowings included in I and II above - -

^ Borrowings from banks include long term infrastructure bonds of ` 356.50 crore (Previous Year Nil).

$  Borrowings from other institutions and agencies include long term infrastructure bonds of ` 9,597.50 crore (Previous Year Nil) and 
Bonds under section 80CCF of the Income tax Act, 1961 of ` 2,325.22 crore (Previous Year Nil)

*  Borrowings outside India include External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) of ` 6,467.46 crore (Previous Year Nil).
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ScHEDUlE 5 OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I Bills payable  145,844  - 

II Inter-office adjustments (net)  -    - 

III Interest accrued  27,782,372  - 

IV Proposed dividend (includes tax on dividend)  1,021,380  - 

V Contingent provision against standard assets  3,318,668  - 

VI Others (including provisions) *  9,776,158  25,857 

TOTAL  42,044,422  25,857 

*  Includes payable on derivative contracts of ` 325.15 crore (Previous Year Nil), provision for expenses of ` 210.43 crore  
(Previous Year Nil) and funded interest term loan provision of ` 202.77 crore (Previous Year Nil).

ScHEDUlE 6 CASH AND BALANCES wITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I CASH IN HAND (INCLUDING FOREIGN CURRENCY NOTES)  116,137  - 

II BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA:

(i)  In current accounts  18,892,232  - 

(ii) In other accounts  -    - 

TOTAL (I+II)  19,008,369  - 

ScHEDUlE 7 BALANCES wITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I IN INDIA

(i) Balance with banks

(a) In current accounts  361,464  500 

(b) In other deposit accounts  -    - 

(ii) Money at call and short notice

(a) With banks  3,000,000  - 

(b) With other institutions  4,168,904  - 

TOTAL  7,530,368  500 

II OUTSIDE INDIA

(i) In current accounts  181,232  - 

(ii) In other deposit accounts  -    - 

(iii) Money at call and short notice  2,319,100  - 

TOTAL  2,500,332  - 

GRAND TOTAL (I+II)  10,030,700  500 
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ScHEDUlE 8 INVESTMENTS (NET OF PROVISIONS)

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I INVESTMENTS IN INDIA IN :  

(i)  Government securities*  116,922,672 -

(ii) Other approved securities  -    - 

(iii) Shares (includes equity and preference shares)  5,055,646  - 

(iv) Debentures and bonds  58,946,875  - 

(v)  Investment in subsidiaries / joint ventures  -    - 

(vi) Others (venture capital fund, commercial papers, certificate of deposits,
security receipts etc.)

 19,986,599  - 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS IN INDIA  200,911,792  - 

II INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA IN :

(i)  Government securities (including local authorities)  -    - 

(ii) Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures abroad -  - 

(iii) Others -  - 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA -  - 

GRAND TOTAL (I+II)  200,911,792  - 

* Net of repo borrowing of ` 9,637.43 crore (Previous Year Nil) under the liquidity adjustment facility (LAF)

ScHEDUlE 9 ADVANCES (NET OF PROVISIONS)

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

A (i)  Bills purchased and discounted  3,598,547  - 

(ii) Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand  8,949,905  - 

(iii) Term loans  444,445,845  - 

TOTAL  456,994,297  - 

B (i)  Secured by tangible assets*  294,731,581  - 

(ii)  Covered by bank / government guarantees $  23,362,264  - 

(iii) Unsecured  138,900,452  - 

TOTAL  456,994,297  - 

C I  Advances in India

(i) Priority sector  22,376,638  - 

(ii) Public sector   26,611,011  - 

(iii) Banks  525,956  - 

(iv) Others  407,480,692  - 

TOTAL  456,994,297  - 

C II  Advances Outside India

(i) Due from banks  -    - 

(ii) Due from others :  

 (a) Bills purchased and discounted  -    - 

 (b) Syndicated loans  -    - 

 (c) Others  -    - 

TOTAL  -    - 

GRAND TOTAL (C I+C II)  456,994,297  - 

The above advances are net of provisions of ` 1,615.91 crore towards non-performing advances, provision ` 303.35 crore against funded interest 
term loans classified as non-performing advances, specific provision of ` 780.91 crore on restructured assets, specific provision on identified 
advances of ` 1,267.45 crore against risk of possible slippages and provision of ` 0.37 crore for diminution in fair value of restructured assets.

* Includes advances against book debts

$ Includes advances against LCs issued by banks
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ScHEDUlE 10 FIXED ASSETS

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I PREMISES

Gross block

At cost at the beginning of the year  -    - 

Additions on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  3,100,830  - 

Additions during the year  326,531  - 

Deductions during the year  -    - 

TOTAL   3,427,361  - 

Depreciation

As at the beginning of the year  -    - 

Accumulated depreciation on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited (412,858)  - 

Charge for the year (54,114)  - 

Deductions during the year  -    - 

Depreciation to date (466,972)  - 

Net block of premises  2,960,389  - 

II OTHER FIXED ASSETS (INCLUDINg FURNITURE AND FIXTURES) 

Gross block

At cost at the beginning of the year  -    - 

Additions on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  811,982  - 

Additions during the year  3,364,093  - 

Deductions during the year (10,172)  - 

TOTAL  4,165,903  - 

Depreciation

As at the beginning of the year  -    - 

Accumulated depreciation on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited (340,659)  - 

Charge for the year (353,340)  - 

Deductions during the year 4, 1 1 4  - 

Depreciation to date (689,885)  - 

Net block of other fixed assets (including furniture and fixtures)  3,476,018  - 

III CAPITAL wORK-IN-PROgRESS (INCLUDINg CAPITAL ADVANCES)*  292,142  - 

GRAND TOTAL (I+II+III)  6,728,549  - 

* Includes ` 219.23 crore on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited; of which ` 210.61 was subsequently capitalised.

ScHEDUlE 11 OTHER ASSETS

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I Inter-office adjustments (net)  -    - 

II Interest accrued  8,745,966  - 

III Tax paid in advance / tax deducted at source (net of provisions)  4,156,607  - 

IV Stationery and stamps  12  - 

V Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims  -    - 

VI Others*  33,122,413  8 

TOTAL (I+II)  46,024,998  8 

*  Includes Deferred Tax Asset (net) of ` 1,684.05 crore (Previous Year ` ß crore) (refer note 18.27), receivables on derivative contracts of  
` 347.43 crore (Previous Year Nil) and application money pending allotment of ` 275.00 crore (Previous Year Nil).
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ScHEDUlE 12 CONTINgENT LIABILITIES

 AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

 AS AT   
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts  1,432,238  - 

II Liability for partly paid investments  4,242,482  - 

III Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange and derivative contracts :

(a) Forward Contracts  399,058,585  - 

(b) Interest rate swaps, currency swaps, forward rate agreement and interest rate futures  234,278,073  - 

(c) Foreign currency options  36,517,210  - 

TOTAL (a+b+c)  669,853,868  - 

IV Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

In India  24,714,487  - 

Outside India  -    - 

V Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations  26,349,676  - 

VI Other items for which the bank is contingently liable (capital commitments)  2,774,257  - 

GRAND TOTAL (I+II+III+IV+V+VI)  729,367,008  - 
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ScHEDUlE 13 INTEREST EARNED

YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2016

PERIOD ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I Interest / discount on advances / bills  23,514,136  - 

II Income on investments *  12,342,818  - 

III Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and other inter-bank funds  72,994  - 

IV Others **  558,376  - 

TOTAL  36,488,324  - 

* Includes interest on  investments of ` 44.20 crore for the period 1.4.2015 to 30.9.2015, prior to commencement of banking operations.

** Includes interest on income tax refunds amounting to ` 24.42 crore (Previous Year Nil).

ScHEDUlE 14 OTHER INCOME

YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2016

PERIOD ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I Commission, exchange and brokerage  677,423  - 

II Profit / (loss) on sale of investments (net)^  3,506,752  - 

III Profit / (loss) on revaluation of investments (net)  -    - 

IV Profit / (loss) on sale of premises and other fixed assets (net) (318)  - 

V Profit / (loss) on exchange / derivative transactions (net) (169,541)  - 

VI Income earned by way of dividends etc. from subsidiaries / companies and / or joint 
venture abroad / in India

 -    - 

VII Miscellaneous Income  17,658  - 

TOTAL  4,031,974  - 

^ Includes profit on sale of investments of ̀  47.61 crore for the period 1.4.2015 to 30.9.2015, prior to commencement of banking operations.

ScHEDUlE 15 INTEREST EXPENDED

YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2016

PERIOD ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I Interest on deposits  628,083  - 

II Interest on borrowings from Reserve Bank of India / inter-bank borrowings  5,508,159  - 

III Others  21,878,783  - 

TOTAL  28,015,025  - 

ScHEDUlE 16 OPERATINg EXPENSES $

YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2016

PERIOD ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015

 (` IN THOUSANDS)  (` IN THOUSANDS)

I Payments to and provisions for employees  2,566,275  - 

II Rent, taxes and lighting  561,923  - 

III Printing and stationery  26,826  43 

IV Advertisement and publicity  87,035  - 

V Depreciation on bank's property  407,453  - 

VI Directors' fees, allowance and expenses  11,260  - 

VII Auditors' fees and expenses  14,793  84 

VIII Law charges  30,384  - 

IX Postage, telegrams, telephones etc.  110,617  - 

X Repairs and maintenance  145,217  - 

XI Insurance  47,524  - 

XII Other expenditure*  1,096,509  25,731 

TOTAL  5,105,816  25,858 

$ Includes operating expenses of ` 0.60 crore for the period 1.4.2015 to 30.9.2015, prior to commencement of banking operations.

* Includes professional fees of ` 61.90 crore, software cost of ` 15.22 crore and travelling cost of ` 13.70 crore.

ScHEDUlES fORmING PART Of THE PROfIT AND lOSS AccOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
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17 SIgNIFICANT ACCOUNTINg POLICIES FORMINg PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2016

A. BACKGROuND

 IDFC Bank Limited (“the Bank”) was incorporated on October 21, 2014 as a Company under the Companies Act, 2013. Further, 
to the grant of the universal banking license issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘the RBI’) on July 23, 2015 and pursuant to the 
filing and approval of the Scheme of Arrangement under Section 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956, between IDFC Limited and 
IDFC Bank Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme of Arrangement’), by the Hon’ble Madras High Court 
vide its order dated June 25, 2015 and on fulfilment of all conditions specified under the Scheme and final banking license, the 
Bank has commenced its Banking operations on October 1, 2015, mainly in Commercial & Wholesale, Personal & Business Banking 
and Bharat (rural) Banking business. The Bank is regulated by the RBI and governed under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The 
Bank’s shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited since November 6, 2015.

 Under the Scheme of Arrangement, the Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited was demerged into the Bank with effect from 
October 1, 2015. The Financing Undertaking as defined under the Scheme of Arrangement included lending and financing business 
undertaking of IDFC Limited including project finance (fund based and non fund based), fixed income and treasury. Financing 
Undertaking comprises of all oustanding loans and deposits, borrowings, investments, current assets, sundry debtors, all debts, 
liabilities including contingent liabilities, licenses, approvals, tax credit, properties - movable and immovable, plant and machinery, 
furniture and fixtures, office equipment, software and licenses, insurance, policies, all contracts, agreements, collateral, all staff and 
employees employed in connection with Financing Undertaking etc.   

B. BASIS OF pREpARAtION

 The financial statements have been prepared based on historical cost convention and accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the requirements prescribed under Section 29 and third schedule of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and in conformity with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India to comply with the statutory requirements prescribed under the circulars and 
guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time and the Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, in so far as applicable to banks, to the extent applicable and practices generally prevalent in the banking industry in India.

C. uSE OF EStIMAtES

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires the Management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affects the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. The management believes that the estimates used 
in preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates and the 
differences between the actual results and the estimates would be recognised in the periods in which the results are known / 
materialised.

D. SIGNIFICANt ACCOuNtING pOLICIES :

17.1 INVESTMENTS

Classification :

 In accordance with the RBI Guidelines on investment classification and valuation; Investments are classified on the date of 
purchase into:

 ¡ Held for Trading (HFT),

 ¡ Available for Sale (AFS) and

 ¡ Held to Maturity (HTM).

 Reclassification of securities if any, in any categories are accounted for as per the RBI guidelines. However, for disclosure in the 
Balance Sheet, investments in India are classified under six categories - Government Securities, Other approved securities, Shares, 
Debentures and Bonds, Investment in Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures and Others. 

Basis of classification and accounting :

 Investments that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified under HFT category. 
Further, as per the RBI guidelines, HFT securities, which remain unsold for a period of 90 days are reclassified to AFS category. 
Investments which the Bank intends to hold till maturity are classified as HTM securities. Investments which are not classified in 
either of the above categories are classified under AFS category. Investments are recorded on value date except for equity shares 
which are recorded on trade date. 

Cost of acquisition :

 ¡ Costs including brokerage and commission pertaining to investments paid at the time of acquisition are charged to the 

Profit and Loss Account.

 ¡ Cost of investments is computed based on First in First out Method for all categories of Investments including Short sales.

 ¡ Broken period interest (the amount of interest from the previous interest payment date till the date of purchase / sale of 
instrument) on debt instrument is treated as a revenue item. 
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Valuation :

 Investments classified under HTM category are carried at their acquisition cost and not marked to market. Any premium on 
acquisition is amortised over the remaining maturity period of the security on a constant Yield-to-Maturity (‘YTM’) basis while 
discount is not accreted. Such amortisation of premium is adjusted against interest income under the head “Income from 
investments” as per the RBI guidelines. Any diminution, other than temporary, in the value of investments in HTM Category is 
provided for.

 Investments classified under AFS and HFT categories are marked to market as per the RBI guidelines. Traded investments are 
valued based on the trades / quotes on the recognised stock exchanges, or prices/yields declared by Primary Dealers Association 
of India (PDAI) jointly with Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association (‘FIMMDA’), periodically.

 ¡ The market value of unquoted government securities which qualify for determining the Statutory Liquidity Ratio (‘SLR’) 
included in the AFS and HFT categories is computed as per the YTM rates published by FIMMDA.

 ¡ The valuation of other unquoted fixed income securities (viz. State Government securities, Other approved securities, Bonds 
and Debentures) and preference shares, wherever linked to the YTM rates, is done with a mark-up (reflecting associated 
credit and liquidity risk) over the YTM rates for government securities published by FIMMDA.

 ¡ Unquoted equity shares are valued at the break-up value, if the latest balance sheet is available or at ` 1 as per the RBI 
guidelines in case the latest balance sheet is not available.

 ¡ Units of mutual funds are valued at the latest repurchase price / net asset value (‘NAV’) declared by the mutual fund.

 ¡ Treasury Bills, Commercial Papers and Certificate of Deposits being discounted instruments, are valued at carrying cost. 
Accretion of discount on discounted Money Market Securities is computed on straight line method and for long term 
discounted securities, constant YTM method is used.

 ¡ Security receipts are valued as per NAV as provided by the Reconstruction Company (RC) / Securitization Company (SC) 
on a half yearly basis.

 ¡ Units of Venture Capital Funds (‘VCF’) and Alternate Investment Fund (‘AIF’) held under AFS category are marked to 
market based on the NAV provided by VCF/AIF based on the latest financial statements. In case the audited financials are 
not available for a period beyond 18 months, the investments are valued at ` 1 per VCF/AIF. Banks’ investments in units of 
VCFs is classified under HTM for an initial period of three years and valued at cost during this period, in accordance with the 
RBI guidelines.

 Securities are valued script wise and depreciation / appreciation is aggregated for each category. Net depreciation, if any, 
compared to the acquisition cost, in any of the categories, is charged to the Profit and Loss Account. The net appreciation in each 
category, if any, is not recognised except to the extent of depreciation already provided. The valuation of investments includes 
securities under repo transactions.

 Non-performing investments are identified and depreciation / provision is made thereon based on the RBI guidelines. The 
depreciation / provision is not set off against the appreciation in respect of other performing securities. Interest on non-performing 
investments is recognised on cash basis.

Short sales :

 The Bank undertakes short sale transactions in Central Government dated securities in accordance with RBI guidelines. The short 
position is marked to market and loss, if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss Account while gain, if any, is ignored. Profit / loss on 
settlement of the short position are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 

Repo and Reverse Repo transaction :

 In accordance with the RBI guidelines Repo and Reverse Repo transactions in government securities and corporate debt securities 
(excluding transactions conducted under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (‘LAF’) and Marginal Standby Facility (‘MSF’) with RBI) 
are reflected as borrowing and lending transactions respectively. Borrowing cost on repo transactions is accounted for as interest 
expense and revenue on reverse repo transactions are accounted for as interest income.

 In respect of repo transactions under LAF and MSF with RBI, amount borrowed from RBI is credited to investment account. Costs 
thereon are accounted for as interest expense. In respect of reverse repo transactions under LAF and MSF, amount lent to RBI 
is debited to investment account and reversed on maturity of the transaction. Revenues thereon are accounted for as interest 
income.

17.2 ADVANCES

 In accordance with the RBI guidelines, advances are classified as performing and non-performing. These advances are stated net 
of specific provisions, provisions for funded interest term loan classified as non-performing advances, claims received from Export 
Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Ltd. (ECGC) and provisions in lieu of diminution in the fair value of restructured asset. 
Non-Performing advances are further classified as Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets in accordance with the RBI guidelines 
on Income Recognition and Asset Classification (IRAC). In addition, based extant environment or specific information on risk of 
possible slippages or current pattern of servicing, the Bank makes provision on identified advances in infrastructure sector which 
are classified as standard advances as these are not non-performing advances.
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17.3 PROVISIONS / wRITE OFF ON LOANS AND OTHER CREDIT FACILITIES

(a) On legacy advances - loans acquired on demerger of Financing undertaking of IDFC Limited

  In addition to the minimum provisioning level prescribed by RBI, IDFC Limited on a prudent basis made provisions on 
specific advances in infrastructure sector that are not NPAs (‘identified advances’) but had reason to believe risk of possible 
slippages on the basis of the extant environment or specific information or current pattern of servicing. These provisions 
being specific in nature are netted off from gross advances.

  At each Balance Sheet date, these provisions are reviewed and reassessed to determine their adequacy. 

(b) On loans and other credit facilities disbursed after commencement of banking operations

  The Bank makes general provisions on all standard advances based on the rates under each category of advance as 
prescribed by the RBI. The provision on standard advances is not reckoned for arriving at net NPAs. The provisions towards 
standard advance is not netted from gross advance but shown separately as “Contingent Provisions against Standard 
Assets” under “Other Liabilities”.

  Specific loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing advances are made based on management’s assessment of the 
degree of impairment of wholesale and retail advances, subject to the minimum provisioning level prescribed by the RBI.

  In case of corporate loans, provision is made for substandard and doubtful assets at the rates prescribed by the RBI. Loss 
assets and the unsecured portion of doubtful assets are provided / written off as per the extant RBI guidelines or higher as 
approved by the management. Provision on retail loans and advances, subject to minimum provisioning requirement of the 
RBI are assessed at borrower level, on the basis of ageing of loans based on internal provisioning policy of the Bank.

  The Bank considers an account as restructured where the Bank for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s 
financial difficulty, grants to the borrower concessions that the Bank would not otherwise consider. Restructuring would 
normally involve modification of terms of the advance / securities, which would generally include, among others, alteration 
of repayment period / repayable amount / the amount of instalments / rate of interest (due to reasons other than 
competitive reasons). Necessary provision for diminution in the fair value of a restructured account is made in accordance 
with the RBI guidelines.

  Under the RBI guidelines, with a view to ensuring more stake of promoters in reviving stressed accounts and provide 
banks with enhanced capabilities to initiate change of ownership in accounts which fail to achieve the projected viability 
milestones, banks may, at their discretion, undertake a ‘Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR)’ by converting loan dues to 
equity shares. The invocation of SDR is not treated as restructuring for the purpose of asset classification and provisioning 
norms. On completion of conversion of debt to equity as approved under SDR, the existing asset classification of the 
account, as on the reference date, continues for a period of 18 months from the reference date. Thereafter, the asset 
classification is as per the extant IRAC norms, assuming the aforesaid ‘stand-still’ in asset classification had not been given. 
In addition, under the guidelines, the Bank is required to build provisions such that, by the end of the 18 month period from 
the reference date, the Bank holds provision of at least 15 per cent of the residual loan.

  In order to further enhance banks’ ability to bring in a change in ownership of borrowing entities which are under stress 
primarily due to operational/ managerial inefficiencies despite substantial sacrifices made by the lending banks, the RBI 
has permitted banks to upgrade the credit facilities extended to borrowing entities whose ownership has been changed 
outside SDR, to ‘Standard’ category upon such change in ownership, subject to conditions. On such change in ownership 
of the borrowing entities, credit facilities of the concerned borrowing entities may be upgraded as ‘Standard’. However, the 
quantum of provision held by the bank against the said account as on the date of change in ownership of the borrowing 
entities shall be revsered only when all the outstanding loan/facilities of the borrowing entities perform satisfactorily during 
the ‘specified period’.

  In accordance with the RBI guidelines, accelerated provision is made on advances which were not earlier reported by the 
Bank as Special Mention Account under “SMA-2” category to Central Repository of Information on Large Credits (CRILC). 
Accelerated provision is also made on advances which are erstwhile SMA-2 accounts with Aggregate Exposure (AE) of  
` 1,000 million or above and Joint Lenders’ Forum (JLF) is not formed or they fail to agree upon a common Corrective 
Action Plan (CAP) within the stipulated time frame. In addition as an incentive for banks to communicate their decision on 
the agreed CAP in a time bound manner wherein penal provisioning norms have been stipulated for the Bank, subject to 
certain conditions.

  Provision on loans and advances restructured / rescheduled is made in accordance with the applicable RBI guidelines. In 
respect of non-performing loans and advances accounts subjected to restructuring, the account is upgraded to standard 
only after the specified period (as prescribed by the RBI) subject to satisfactory performance of the account during the 
period. A restructured loan is upgraded to the standard category when satisfactory payment performance is evidenced 
during the specified period and after the loan reverts to the normal level of standard asset provisions / risk weights.

  Amounts recovered against debts written off in earlier years are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and included 
under Other Income.
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  Provision for Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of borrowers is made as per the RBI guidelines and disclosed 
under Contingent Provision against Standard Assets. In addition to the provisions required to be held according to the 
asset classification status, provisions are held for individual country exposure (other than for home country as per the 
RBI guidelines). The countries are categorised into seven risk categories as mentioned in the ECGC guidelines namely 
insignificant, low, moderate, high, very high, restricted and off-credit and provision is made on exposures exceeding 180 
days on a graded scale ranging from 0.25% to 100%. For exposures with contractual maturity of less than 180 days, 25% 
of the normal provision requirement is held. If the country exposure (net) of the Bank in respect of each country does not 
exceed 1% of the total funded assets, no provision is maintained on such country exposure. 

17.4 REVENUE RECOgNITION 

Interest income :

 Interest Income is recognised on accrual basis in the Profit and Loss Account, except in the case of Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) 
and identified advances as defined in para 2 above, where it is recognised upon realisation. The unrealised interest, fees and 
charges booked in respect of NPAs and identified advances is reversed and recognised on cash basis.

 Interest Income on coupon bearing securities is recognised over the tenure of the instrument on a straight line method and on 
non-coupon bearing securities over the tenure on yield basis. Any premium on acquisition of securities held under HTM category 
is amortised over the remaining maturity period of the security on a straight line method basis.

 Dividend on equity shares, preference shares and on mutual fund units is recognised as income when the right to receive the 
dividend is established. 

Fees and charges :

 Loan originating fees, when it becomes due, is recognised upfront as income. Arrangership / syndication fee is recognised as 
income on completion of the significant act / milestone and when right to recovery is established. Fee and commission income is 
recognised as income when due and reasonable right of recovery is established and can be reliably measured.

 Commission received on guarantees and letter of credit issued is recognised on straight line basis over the period of the contract 
or the period for which commission is received except for commission not exceeding ` 25 lacs which is recognised when due, 
unless the Bank is uncertain of ultimate collection.

 Fee on rescheduling of outstanding debt is recognised on accrual basis over the period of time covered by the rescheduled 
extension period. Underwriting fees is recognised as income on closure of issue and revenue can be reliably measured. All other 
fees and charges is recognised as and when they become due and revenue can be reliably measured and reasonable right of 
recovery is established.

Investments :

 Profit / loss on sale of investments under the HTM, AFS and HFT categories are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. The 
profit from sale of investment under HTM category, net of taxes and transfer to Statutory Reserves, is appropriated from Profit 
and Loss Account to “Capital Reserve” (net of applicable taxes and transfer to Statutory Reserve) in accordance with the RBI 
guidelines. Losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

 Exchange gain or loss arising on account of revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities is recognised in the Profit and Loss 
Account as per the revaluation rates published by Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India (FEDAI). 

 OTHER OPERATINg INCOME :  

Securitisation transactions :

 Net income arising on account of sale of standard asset, being the difference between the sale consideration and book value, 
is amortised over the life of the securities issued by the SPV. Any loss arising on account of sale is recognised in the Profit and 
Loss Account in the year in which the sale occurs. In case of gain on sale of Non-Performing Assets to Securitisation Company 
(SC) / Reconstruction Company (RC), excess provision will be reversed on sale of NPA in the year in which amount is received 
and shortfall if any is charged to the Profit and Loss Account. If sale is against issuance of SRs / PTCs by SC / RC, the sale will be 
recognised at lower of redemption value of SRs / PTCs and net book value of financial asset sold. Upon realisation of proceeds on 
redemption of SR / PTC, the gain and shortfall is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 

Direct Assignments :

 Profit / premium arising on account of sale of standard asset, being the difference between the sale consideration and book value, 
is amortised over the residual life of the loan. Any loss arising on account of sale is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account 
in the year in which the sale occurs. In case of gain on sale of non-performing assets, the excess provision shall not be reversed 
but will be utilised to meet the shortfall / loss on account of sale of other non-performing financial assets and shortfall if any is 
charged to the Profit and Loss Account. However, in accordance with the RBI guidelines, in case of non - performing loans sold to 
SC / RC, the Bank can reverse the excess provision in Profit and Loss Account in the year in which amounts are received.
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17.5  TRANSACTIONS INVOLVINg FOREIgN EXCHANgE

 Foreign currency income and expenditure items of domestic operations are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date 
of the transaction. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities of domestic and integral foreign operations are translated at 
closing exchange rates notified by FEDAI. The resulting gain or loss on revaluation are included in the Profit and Loss Account in 
accordance with the RBI / FEDAI guidelines. The forward exchange contracts of longer maturities where exchange rates are not 
notified by FEDAI are revalued at the forward exchange rates implied by the swap curves in respective currencies. The resultant 
gains or losses are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

 Premium / discount on currency swaps undertaken to hedge foreign currency assets and liabilities and funding swaps is 
recognized as interest income / expense on accrual basis and is amortized on a pro-rata basis over the underlying swap period.

 Contingent liabilities on account of forward exchange and derivative contracts, guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other 
obligations denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed at closing rates of exchange notified by FEDAI. 

17.6  ACCOUNTINg FOR DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS

 Derivative transactions comprises of forward contracts, futures, swaps and options. The Bank undertakes derivative transactions 
for trading and hedging on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. All trading transactions are marked to market and resultant gain or 
loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

 For hedge transactions, the Bank identifies the hedged item (asset or liability) at the inception of the transaction itself. Hedge 
swaps and funding swaps are not subjected to marked to market, unless underlying transactions are marked to market. In such 
cases swaps are marked to market with the resultant gain or loss recorded as an adjustment to the market value of the underlying 
transactions.

 Premium in option transaction is recognized as income / expense on expiry or early termination of the transaction. Mark to 
market gain / loss (adjusted for premium received / paid on options contracts) is recorded as other income. Pursuant to the RBI 
guidelines, any receivables under derivative contracts which remain overdue for more than 90 days and mark-to-market gains on 
other derivative contracts with the same counter-parties are reversed in Profit and Loss Account.

 Currency futures contracts are marked-to-market using daily settlement price on a trading day, which is the closing price of the 
respective futures contracts on that day. All open positions are marked to market based on the settlement price and the resultant 
marked to market profit/loss settled with the exchange. The amounts received / paid on cancellation of option contracts are 
recognized as realized gain / loss on options. Charges receivable / payable on cancellation / termination of foreign exchange 
forward contracts is recognized as income / expense on the date of cancellation / termination under ‘Other Income’. Any resultant 
profit or loss on termination of hedge swaps is amortized over the life of the swap or underlying liability whichever is shorter.

 As per the RBI guidelines on ‘Prudential Norms for Off balance Sheet Exposures of Banks’, a standard asset provision is made on 
the current gross MTM gain of the contract for all outstanding interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions. Realised 
gain / loss arise when the derivatives expire or mature or when the underlying trading assets / liabilities are sold.

17.7  FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

 Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes freight, duties, 
taxes and incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the asset.

 Depreciation is charged over the estimated useful life of a fixed asset on a straight-line basis. The rates of depreciation for fixed 
assets, which are not lower than the rates prescribed in Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, are given below :

ASSEtS EStIMAtED uSEFuL LIFE

Building – RCC Frame 60 Years

Building – Other than RCC Frame 30 Years

Computers – Desktops, Laptops, End User Devices 3 Years

Computers – Server & Network 6 Years

Vehicles 4 Years

Furniture 10 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Leasehold Improvements Over the extended period of lease

Others (including software and system development) 5 years

 Depreciation on vehicles and mobile phone is higher than the rates prescribed under the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, 
based on the internal assessment of the useful life of these assets.

 All fixed assets individually costing less than ` 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of installation.

 Depreciation on assets sold during the year is recognized on a pro-rata basis to the Profit and Loss Account till the date of 
sale. Profit on sale of premises net of taxes and transfer to statutory reserve is appropriated to Capital Reserve as per the RBI 
guidelines.
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17.8 INCOME TAX

 Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax charge. The current tax expense and deferred 

tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and as per Accounting Standard 22 - 

Accounting for Taxes on Income respectively.

 Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for 

the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax 

laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

 Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future. In case 

of unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual 

certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and appropriately adjusted to 

reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain to be realized. The impact of changes in the deferred tax assets / liabilities 

is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

17.9 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

 The Bank has formulated Employee Stock Option Scheme - IDFC Bank Limited ESOS -2015 (‘the Scheme’) in accordance with the 

SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. The ESOS provides for the grant 

of options to acquire equity shares of the Bank to its employees. The options granted to employees vest in a graded manner and 

these may be exercised by the employees within a specified period.

 In addition, against each outstanding employee stock of options granted by IDFC Limited to its employees, equivalent options of 

IDFC Bank Limited were granted under the Scheme of Arrrangement. The price of these options are determined by multiplying 

the existing grant price of the options granted by IDFC Limited to its employess under the IDFC Limited Employee Stock Option 

Scheme by the proportion that the net worth of the Financing Undertaking bears to the total net book value of IDFC Limited 

immediately prior to the effectiveness of the Scheme of Arrangement.

 The Bank follows the intrinsic value method to account for its stock-based employee compensation plans. Compensation cost is 

measured by the excess, if any, of the market price / fair value of the underlying stock over the grant price as determined under 

the option plan. Compensation cost, if any is amortized over the vesting period on a straight line method. In case the vested stock 

options expire unexercised, the balance in stock options outstanding is transferred to the general reserve. In case the unvested 

stock options get cancelled, the balance in stock option outstanding account is transferred to the Profit and Loss Account.

17.10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution plan :

 The contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund and pension fund are considered as defined plans and are charged to 

the Profit and Loss Account as they fall due, based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are 

rendered

Defined benefit plan :

 The net present value of obligations towards gratuity to employees is actuarially determined as at the Balance Sheet based on the 

projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account for the year.

Compensated absences :

 Based on the leave rules of the Bank, employees are not permitted to accumulate leave for encashment. Any unavailed privilege 

leave to the extent encashable is paid to the employees and charged to the Profit and Loss Account for the year. Short term 

compensated absences are provided based on estimates of availment / encashment of leaves.

17.11  PROVISIONS, CONTINgENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINgENT ASSETS

 A provision is recognised when the Bank has a present obligation as a result of past event where it is probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not 

discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet 

date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

 Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are lower 

than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value 

of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a 

provision is established, the Bank recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
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 A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is :

 ¡ a possible obligation arising from a past event, the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Bank; or

 ¡ a present obligation arising from a past event which is not recognised as it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

 When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made.

 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is 
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which 
the change occurs. 

17.12  EARNINgS PER SHARE

 The Bank reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with AS-20, Earnings per Share, as notified under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

 Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were 
exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity 
shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at the year end, except where the results are anti-dilutive. 

17.13 LEASES

 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership over the lease term are classified as 
operating lease. Amount due under the operating leases, including cost escalation, are charged on a straight line method over the 
lease term in the Profit and Loss account. Initial direct cost incurred specifically for operating leases are recognised as expense in 
the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which they are incurred.

17.14 SEgMENT REPORTINg

 The disclosure relating to segment information is in accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI and Accounting Standard as 
notified. 

17.15 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

 The carrying amount of the assets at each Balance Sheet date is reviewed for impairment. If any indication of impairment based 
on internal / external factors exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised wherever 
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and 
its value in use, which is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value, based on an appropriate discounting 
factor. If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an indication that previously recognised impairment loss no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount, subject to a maximum of the depreciable 
historical cost and reversal of such impairment loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account, except in case of revalued assets.

17.16 CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with the RBI, balances with other banks and money at call and short 
notice.
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18 NOTES FORMINg PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

 Amounts in notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 are denominated in ` crore to 
conform with the extant RBI guidelines.

18.1 IDFC Bank Limited (‘’the Bank”) was incorporated as a Company under the Companies Act, 2013 on October 21, 2014. The Bank 
commenced its Banking operations on October 1, 2015, post receipt of final banking license by the RBI. Accordingly, figures for 
the previous period / year is not comparable since Banking operations were not carried out during the previous period / year. In 
addition, RBI guidelines on Disclosure in Financial Statements - ‘Notes to Accounts’ is not applicable for the period /  year ended 
March 31, 2015.

 Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, the Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited was demerged in the Bank with effect from 
October 1, 2015. Accordingly assets amounting to ` 66,237.46 crore and liabilities amounting to ` 60,002.90 crore resulting in net 
assets amounting to ` 6,234.56 crore along with contingent liabilities of ` 285.63 crore, capital commitment of ` 840.05 crore and 
notional principal of derivative contract of ` 13,903.57 crore pertaining to the Financing Undertaking were transferred from IDFC 
Limited to the Bank and in consideration, equity shares of the Bank, in the ratio of 1:1 have been issued to the shareholders of IDFC 
Limited equivalent to 47% of the equity shareholding of IDFC Bank Limited. In addition, shares were issued to the Non-operative 
Financial Holding Company, IDFC Financial Holding Company Limited in compliance with RBI Guidelines for Licensing of New 

Banks in the Private Sector.

 Details of net assets acquired by the Bank on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited are as under:

(` IN CRORE)

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India  2.55 

Balances with banks and money at call and short notice  1,190.07 

Investments  18,464.25 

Advances*  41,936.63 

Fixed assets  535.16 

Other assets  4,108.80 

 66,237.46 

Less:  Borrowings  56,720.74 

 Other liabilities and provisions  3,282.16 

 60,002.90 

NET ASSETS  6,234.56 

 *  The above advances are net of provisions, of which provisions of ` 2,500.00 crore were created by IDFC Limited on specific 
advances, based on the policy approved by the Board of Directors of IDFC Limited and approval of the RBI.

 In accordance with the accounting treatment, as defined under the Scheme of Arrangement, the Bank has recorded the assets 
and liabilities at the respective book values as appearing in the books of the Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited at the close 
of business of the day immediately preceding the Appointed date i.e. September 30, 2015. The Bank has credited Share Capital by 
the aggregate face value of the new equity shares issued to the shareholders of IDFC Limited i.e. 1,594,020,668 shares of  
` 10 each. The excess of net assets over face value of new equity shares allotted are credited to respective reserves in the same 
proportion as debited in the books of IDFC Limited and to stock option outstanding account by an equivalent amount debited by 
IDFC Limited to stock option outstanding account as detailed below.

(` IN CRORE)

Share Capital  1,594.02 

Share Premium  2,753.98 

General Reserve  683.70 

Balance in Profit and Loss Account  1,196.30 

Employee Stock Option Outstanding  6.56 

 6,234.56 
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18.2 CAPITAL ADEqUACY

 The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank, calculated as per the RBI guidelines (under Basel III) is set out below :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Tier I capital 13,311 .76  - 

 of which common equity tier I capital 13,311 .76  - 

Tier II capital 331.87  - 

TOTAL CAPITAL 13,643.63  - 

Common equity Tier I capital ratio (%) 21.50%  - 

Tier I capital ratio (%) 21.50%  - 

Tier II capital ratio (%) 0.54%  - 

TOTAL CAPITAL RATIO (CRAR) (%) 22.04% -

Amount of equity capital raised ** 3,391.48  0.05 

Amount of additional tier I capital raised; of which

 Perpetual non cumulative preference shares - -

 Perpetual debt instruments - -

Amount of tier II capital raised; of which

 Debt capital instrument - -

 Preference share capital instruments - -

 ** Includes ` 1,594.02 crore of equity share capital issued to shareholders of IDFC Limited on account of demerger and ` 1,797.46 
crore held by IDFC Financial Holding Company Limited - Non Operative Financial Holding Company.

18.3 BUSINESS RATIOS ** / INFORMATION

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Interest income as a percentage to working funds $ ** 8.42%  - 

Non-interest income as a percentage to working funds $ ** 0.83%  - 

Operating profit as a percentage to working funds $ **& 1.52%  - 

Return on assets @ ** 1.10%  - 

Business per employee # ^ (` in crore) 28.78  - 

Profit per employee ^ (` in crore) 0.22  - 

 ** The Bank has commenced its banking operations from October 1, 2015 and has been in operations only for a period of six 
months. Accordingly, figures considered for the computation of ratios are for the period October 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016 and 
ratios stated above are annualized (i.e. by multiplying 366 over actual number of days in operations).

 $ Working funds represents average of total assets as reported to the RBI in Form X under Section 27 of the Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949, during the 6 months of the financial year (i.e. after commencement of banking operations from October 01, 2015).

 @ Return on assets is computed based on net asset basis.
 # Business is the total of net advances and deposits (net of inter-bank deposits).
 ^ Productivity ratios are based on average employee numbers, which excludes contract staff, intern etc.
 & Operating profit is profit for the year before provisions and contingencies.

18.4 INVESTMENTS

 I VALUE OF INVESTMENTS :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

I gROSS VALUE OF INVESTMENTS

(a) In India  21,285.92 -

(b) Outside India  -   -

II PROVISIONS FOR DEPRECIATION

(a) In India (1,194.74) -

(b) Outside India  -   -

III NET VALUE OF INVESTMENTS (I- II)

(a) In India  20,091.18 -

(b) Outside India  -   -
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 II Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments (including provision towards non-performing 
investments)

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Opening balance  -  - 

Add: Provisions transferred on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  869.27  - 

Add: Transfer due to conversion of loans into investments  321.45  - 

Add: Provisions made during the year  6.30  - 

Less: Write-off / (write-back) of excess provisions during the year (2.28)  - 

Closing balance  1,194.74  - 

18.5 REPO TRANSACTIONS

 In accordance with the RBI guidelines, accounting of repo / reverse repo transactions (in face value terms) excludes those done 
with the RBI. Following are the details of the repo / reverse repo transactions deals done during the years ended March 31, 2016 
and March 31, 2015 :

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 ( ` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS MINIMuM 
OutStANDING DuRING 

tHE yEAR

MAxIMuM 
OutStANDING DuRING 

tHE yEAR

DAILy AVERAGE 
OutStANDING DuRING  

tHE yEAR

OutStANDING  
AS ON MARCH 31, 2016

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPO

i  Government securities - 12,042.72 5,897.02 -

ii  Corporate debt securities - - - -

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER 
REVERSE REPO

i  Government securities -  1,918.06  847.67  415.00 

ii  Corporate debt securities - - - -

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 ( ` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS MINIMuM 
OutStANDING DuRING 

tHE yEAR

MAxIMuM 
OutStANDING DuRING 

tHE yEAR

DAILy AVERAGE 
OutStANDING DuRING  

tHE yEAR

OutStANDING  
AS ON MARCH 31, 2016

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPO

i  Government securities - - - -

ii  Corporate debt securities - - - -

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER 
REVERSE REPO

i  Government securities - - - -

ii  Corporate debt securities - - - -

 Outstanding repo and deals with the RBI under Liquidity Adjustment Facility / Marginal Standing Facility as of March 31, 2016 
were ` 9,637.43 crore (Previous Year Nil). There were no outstanding reverse repo deals with the RBI under Liquidity Adjustment 
Facility/ Marginal Standing Facility as of March 31, 2016 (Previous Year: Nil).
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18.6 NON-SLR INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

 I ISSUER COMPOSITION OF NON SLR INVESTMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2016 :

 (` IN CRORE)

NO ISSuER tOtAL AMOuNt ExtENt OF 
pRIVAtE 

pLACEMENt

ExtENt OF 
"BELOw 

INVEStMENt 
GRADE" 

SECuRItIES

ExtENt OF 
"uNRAtED" 
SECuRItIES

ExtENt OF 
"uNLIStED" 
SECuRItIES

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

i Public sector undertakings 384.80 2.50  -    -    -   

ii Financial institutions 3,186.14 2,254.65  -    -    830.46 

iii Banks 245.91 48.90  -    -    197.02 

iv Private corporates 4,630.25 4,556.90  -    386.39  1,957.96 

v Subsidiaries / joint ventures  -    -    -    -    -   

vi Others 1,145.50 1,145.50  -    -    1,145.50 

vii Provision held towards  depreciation (1,193.70)

TOTAL 8,398.90 8,008.45  -    386.39  4,130.94 

 Amounts reported under columns (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive.

 Issuer composition of non SLR investments as at March 31, 2015 :

(` IN CRORE)

NO ISSuER tOtAL AMOuNt ExtENt OF 
pRIVAtE 

pLACEMENt

ExtENt OF 
"BELOw 

INVEStMENt 
GRADE" 

SECuRItIES

ExtENt OF 
"uNRAtED" 
SECuRItIES

ExtENt OF 
"uNLIStED" 
SECuRItIES

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

i Public sector undertakings - - -  -    -   

ii Financial institutions - -  -    -   -

iii Banks - -  -    -   -

iv Private corporates - -  -   - -

v Subsidiaries / joint ventures  -    -    -    -    -   

vi Others - -  -    -   -

vii Provision held towards  depreciation -

TOTAL - - - - -

 Amounts reported under columns (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive.

 II NON PERFORMINg NON-SLR INVESTMENTS:

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Opening balance of Non performing Non-SLR investments  -   -

Additions on account of demerger of Financing Undertaking  90.65 -

Transfer on account of conversion of loans into investments  321.45 -

Additions during the year  -   -

Reductions during the year (0.01) -

Closing balance of Non performing Non-SLR investments  412.09 -

total provisions held 412.09 -
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18.7 During the year ended March 31, 2016, the value of sales / transfers of securities to / from HTM category (excluding one-time 
transfer of securities permitted to be undertaken by banks at the beginning of the accounting year and with approval of the Board 
of Directors and sales to the RBI under open market operation auctions) exceeded 5% of the book value of investments held in 
HTM category at the beginning of the year.

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Market value of investments held in HTM category  10,170.83 -

Excess of book value over market value for which provision is not made  -   -

18.8 FORwARD RATE AgREEMENT / INTEREST RATE SwAP (IRS)

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2015

i  The notional principal of swap agreements  19,621.00 -

ii  Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations 
under the agreements

 194.87 -

iii  Collateral required by the bank upon entering into swaps  -   -

iv  Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps  -   -

v  The fair value of the swap book  170.21 -

 the nature and terms of the IRS as on March 31, 2016 are set out below :

(` IN CRORE)

NAtuRE NO. OF DEALS NOtIONAL 
pRINCIpAL

BENCHMARK tERMS

Hedging 86  3,471.00 INROIS Receive Fixed/Pay Float

Hedging 5  500.00 INRINBMK Receive Fixed/Pay Float

Hedging 17  1,250.00 INRMIOIS Receive Fixed/Pay Float

Trading 3  150.00 INRMIFOR Trading Positions

Trading 245  14,250.00 INROIS Trading Positions

TOTAL 356  19,621.00 

18.9 EXCHANgE TRADED INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVES

(` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

i  Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken 
during the year  
Bond Futures 1,592.18  - 

ii  Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 
as on March 31,  
Bond Futures 54.52  - 

iii  Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 
and not “highly effective”  
Bond Futures 54.52  - 

iv  Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and 
not “highly effective”  
Bond Futures (0.34)  - 
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18.10 DISCLOSURES ON RISK EXPOSURE IN DERIVATIVES

 qUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES :

 a. Structure and organisation for management of risk in derivatives trading, the scope and nature of risk measurement, 
risk reporting and risk monitoring systems, policies for hedging and / or mitigating risk and strategies and processes for 
monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges / mitigants :

  i The Bank undertakes transactions in FX and derivatives for the purpose of hedging the Balance Sheet, support 
customer FX and Derivatives hedging / business requirements and takes proprietary positions. Bank deals in various 
kinds of products viz. FX spot and forwards, INR and CCY Swaps and Foreign currency options. The Bank undertakes 
trading positions FX Spot, Forward, Swaps and Futures. Bank does not run Option book as of now. All the Option 
products are offered to the clients on a back to back basis.

  ii Treasury Sale Desk is a customer centric desk that caters to customers’ requirements in FX and Derivatives 
products subject to regulatory and internal requirements. Product offering to the clients is based on Suitability and 
Appropriateness policy of the Bank as well as by the extant RBI guidelines. The policy ensures that the product being 
offered by the Bank are in sync with the nature of the underlying, risk sought to be hedged giving due regard to the 
risk appetite of the customer and understanding of the risk by the customer. Market Risk exposures of clients arising 
out of FX and Derivative transactions are monitored by the Bank on a daily basis through current exposure method. 
Exposures are independently monitored and reported.

  iii The Bank recognises all derivative contracts (other than those designated as hedges) at fair value. The mark to 
market movement on the positions is monitored on a daily basis. Changes in the fair value of derivatives other than 
those designated as hedges are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. Hedge transactions are accounted for on 
an accrual basis. Hedging transactions are undertaken by the Bank to protect the variability in the fair value or the 
cash flow of the underlying Balance Sheet item.

  iv All the derivative transactions are governed by the FX & Derivative policy, Market Risk Management policy and 
Limit Management Framework of the Bank. Limit Management Framework details various types of market risk limits 
which are monitored on a daily basis and breaches, if any, are reported promptly. Risk assessment of the portfolio is 
undertaken periodically and presented to the Market Risk Committee / Asset Liability Committee. These limits are set 
up taking into account market volatility, risk appetite, business strategy and management experience. The Bank has a 
clear functional segregation of Treasury operations between Front Office, Market Risk and Back Office.

 b. Accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions; recognition of income, premiums and discounts; 
valuation of outstanding contracts; provisioning, collateral and credit risk mitigation :

  Interest rate swaps are booked with the objective of managing the interest rate risk on liabilities. Interest rate swaps in the 
nature of hedge are recorded on accrual basis and these transactions are not marked-to-market. Any resultant profit or loss 
on termination of the hedge swaps is amortised over the life of the swap or underlying liability, whichever is shorter.

  Currency interest rate swaps in the nature of hedge, booked with the objective of managing the currency and interest rate 
risk on foreign currency liabilities are recorded on accrual basis and these transactions are not marked-to-market. Any 
resultant profit or loss on termination of hedge swaps is amortised over the life of swap or underlying liability, whichever is 
shorter. The foreign currency balances on account of principal of currency interest rate swaps outstanding as at the balance 
sheet date are revalued using the closing rate.

 qUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE ON RISK EXPOSURE IN DERIVATIVES :

 (` IN CRORE)

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016

CuRRENCy  
DERIVAtIVES

INtERESt RAtE 
DERIVAtIVES

1 DERIVATIVES (NOTIONAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT)

(a) For hedging 7,090.95 5,221.00

(b) For trading 40,218.92 14,454.52

2 MARKED TO MARKET POSITIONS 

(a) Asset (+) 540.80 194.94 

(b) Liability (-) (375.69) (25.08)

3 CREDIT EXPOSURE 1,479.21 347.46

4 LIKELY IMPACT OF ONE PERCENTAgE CHANgE IN INTEREST RATE (100*PV01)

(a) On hedging derivatives 10.59 152.91 

(b) On trading derivatives 0.20 72.38 
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 (` IN CRORE)

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016

CuRRENCy  
DERIVAtIVES

INtERESt RAtE 
DERIVAtIVES

5 MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM OF 100*PV01 OBSERVED DURINg YEAR

a.  On hedging

   -  minimum 10.59 143.48 

   -  maximum 22.09 174.82 

b.  On trading

   -  minimum 0.18 1.57 

   -  maximum 0.22 72.38 

PARTICULARS  (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2015

CuRRENCy  
DERIVAtIVES

INtERESt RAtE 
DERIVAtIVES

1 DERIVATIVES (NOTIONAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT)

(a) For hedging - -

(b) For trading - -

2 MARKED TO MARKET POSITIONS 

(a) Asset (+) - -

(b) Liability (-) - -

3 CREDIT EXPOSURE - -

4 LIKELY IMPACT OF ONE PERCENTAgE CHANgE IN INTEREST RATE (100*PV01)

(a) On hedging derivatives - -

(b) On trading derivatives - -

5 MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM OF 100*PV01 OBSERVED DURINg YEAR

a.  On hedging

   -  minimum - -

   -  maximum - -

b.  On trading

   -  minimum - -

   -  maximum - -

 i The notional principal amount of derivatives reflect the volume of transactions outstanding as at the balance sheet date and 
do not represent the amounts at risk.

 ii The Bank has computed the maximum and minimum of PV01 for the year based on daily average.

 iii In respect of derivative contracts, the Bank evaluates the credit exposure arising therefrom, in line with RBI guidelines. 
Credit exposure has been computed using the Current Exposure Method (CEM) which is the sum of :

  a. the current replacement cost (marked-to-market value including accrued interest) of the contract or zero whichever 
is higher; and

  b. the Potential Future Exposure (PFE) is a product of the notional principal amount of the contract and a factor that 
is based on the grid of credit conversion factors prescribed in RBI guidelines, which is applied on the basis of the 
residual maturity and the type of contract. 
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18.11  ASSET qUALITY

PARTICULARS  (` IN CRORE)

AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2016

AS AT  
MARCH 31, 2015

I NET NPAS TO NET ADVANCES (%) 2.39% -

II MOVEMENT OF gROSS NPAS :

a.  Opening balance  -   -

b.  Additions on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  1,467.30  -   

 Additions during the year  1,957.60  -   

c.  Reductions during the year 

  -  Upgradation (65.90)  -   

  -  Transfer due to conversion of loans into investments (283.45) -

 -  Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts) (17.25)  -   

 -  Technical / prudential write-offs  -    -   

 -  Write-offs other than technical / prudential write-offs  -    -   

d.  Closing balance  3,058.30 -

III MOVEMENT OF NET NPAS :

a.  Opening balance  -   -

b.  Additions on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  453.45  -   

 Additions during the year  734.98  -   

c.  Reductions during the year : (49.39) -

d.  Closing balance  1,139.04 -

IV MOVEMENT OF PROVISIONS FOR NPAS (EXCLUDINg PROVISIONS ON 
STANDARD ASSETS) :

a.  Opening balance  -   -

b.  Additions during the year 

 Provisions transferred on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  1,013.85  -   

 Provisions debited to Profit and Loss Account  0.26  -   

 Provisions on downgrade of restructured advances to sub standard  1,084.35  -   

 Specific provisions on identified advances 138.00  -   

c.  Reductions during the year :

 Provisions transfer to non-performing investments on conversion (283.45)  -   

 Transfer to Restructured on upgradation (16.50)  -   

 Write-back on recovery / upgradation (17.25)  -   

d.  Closing balance  1,919.26 -
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18.13 SPECIFIC PROVISION

 The Bank holds on a prudent basis, provisions on identified advances in infrastructure sector that were extended by IDFC Limited 
and acquired by the Bank on demerger of Financing Undertaking, that are not non-performing (as on balance sheet date), on the 
basis of extant environment or specific information on risk of possible slippages or current pattern of servicing.

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Opening balance  -    -   

Addition on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  1,374.00  -   

Addition during the year  31.45  -   

Transfer to provisions on NPA (138.00)  -   

Closing balance  1,267.45  -   

18.14 MOVEMENT IN TECHNICAL / PRUDENTIAL wRITTEN-OFF ACCOUNTS :

 Technical or prudential write-offs refers to the amount of non-performing assets which are outstanding in the books of the 
branches, but have been written-off (fully or partially) at the head office level. Movement in the stock of technically or prudentially 
written-off accounts given below:

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Opening balance of technical / prudential written- off accounts  -    -   

Add  : Technical / prudential write-offs during the year  -    -   

Less :  Recoveries made from previously technical / prudential written-off accounts during 
the year

 -    -   

Closing balance of technical / prudential write off -  -   

18.15 THE BANK SELLS LOANS THROUgH SECURITISATION AND DIRECT ASSIgNMENT. THE DETAILS ON 
SECURITISATION AND DIRECT ASSIgNMENT ACTIVITY OF THE BANK  ARE MENTIONED IN THE BELOw TABLES:

Details of financial assets sold to securitisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction

Particulars (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

No. of accounts  -    -   

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC  -    -   

Aggregate consideration  -    -   

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -

Aggregate gain / loss over net book value -  -   

Details of book value of investments in security receipts

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Backed by NPAs sold by the bank as underlying* 175.30  -   

Backed by NPAs sold by other banks / financial institutions / non banking financial 
companies as underlying

21.13  -   

TOTAL 196.43  -   

 * NPAs were sold by IDFC Limited,  security receipts forming part of the Financing Undertaking were transferred to the Bank on 
demerger.
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Disclosures relating to securitisation

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

1 No. of SPVs sponsored by the bank for securitisation transactions -  -   

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the bank -  -   

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the bank to comply with MRR as on the date 
of balance sheet

a  Off-balance sheet exposures

 First loss - -

 Others - -

b  On-balance sheet exposures

 First loss - -

 Others - -

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

a Off-balance sheet exposures

 i Exposure to own securitizations

  First loss - -

  Others - -

 ii Exposure to third party securitisations

  First loss - -

  Others  121.91 -

b On-balance sheet exposures

 i Exposure to own securitizations

  First loss - -

  Others - -

 ii Exposure to third party securitisations

  First loss - -

  Others 0.14 -

Disclosures relating to loans sold through direct assignment

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

1 Total amount of assets sold through direct assignment during the year 125.21  -   

2 Total amount of exposures retained by the bank to comply with MRR as on the date 
of balance sheet

a  Off-balance sheet exposures

 First loss - -

 Others - -

b  On-balance sheet exposures

 First loss - -

 Others 414.95 -

18.16 DETAILS OF NON-PERFORMINg FINANCIAL ASSETS PURCHASED / SOLD

 During the year / period ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 there were no non-performing financial assets purchased / sold 
by the Bank from / to other banks / FIs / NBFCs (excluding securitisation / reconstruction companies).
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18.17 PROVISIONS ON STANDARD ASSETS

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Provisions on standard assets  331.87  -   

18.18 EXPOSURE TO REAL ESTATE SECTOR

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

1 Direct exposure

i  Residential mortgages 609.64 -

  of which housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector advances 588.16  -   

ii  Commercial real estate 2,518.87  -   

iii  Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised 
exposures

 a.  Residential 0.14

 b.  Commercial real estate  -    -   

2 Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and 
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

 2,041.96 -

Others 206.58  -   

TOTAL EXPOSURE TO REAL ESTATE SECTOR 5,377.19 -

18.19 EXPOSURE TO CAPITAL MARKET

Particulars (` in crore)

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

1 Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and 
units of equity oriented mutual funds, the corpus of which is not exclusively invested 
in corporate debt

 1,694.83 -

2 Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis 
to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, 
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds

- -

3 Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible 
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security

 250.00 -

4 Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of 
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 
mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / 
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover 
the advances

- -

5 Secured and unsecured advances to stock brokers and guarantees issued on behalf of 
stockbrokers and market makers

- -

6 Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures 
or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity 
of new companies in anticipation of raising resources

 567.72 -

7 Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -

8 Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue of 
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 
mutual funds

- -

9 Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading - -

10 All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)  1,453.90 -

TOTAL EXPOSURE TO CAPITAL MARKET  3,966.45 -
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18.20 RISK CATEgORY wISE COUNTRY EXPOSURE

(` IN CRORE)

RISK CAtEGORy MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

ExpOSuRE (NEt) pROVISION HELD ExpOSuRE (NEt) pROVISION HELD

Insignificant 18.12  -    -    -   

Low  -    -    -    -   

Moderate  -    -    -    -   

High  -    -    -    -   

Very High  -    -    -    -   

Restricted  -    -    -    -   

Off-credit  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL 18.12 -  -    -   

18.21 MATURITY PATTERN OF CERTAIN ITEMS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

A maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2016 :

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS DAy 1 2 DAyS  
 tO  

7 DAyS

8 DAyS   
tO  

14 DAyS

15 DAyS  
tO  

28 DAyS

29 DAyS  
tO  

3 MONtHS

OVER  
3 MONtHS 

AND up 
tO  

6 MONtHS

OVER  
6 MONtHS 

AND up 
tO  

1 yEAR

OVER  
1 yEAR  

& up tO  
3 yEARS

OVER  
3 yEARS  
& up tO  
5 yEARS

OVER  
5 yEARS

tOtAL

Deposits  74.30  590.53  195.09  496.49  4,943.40  352.58  807.81  757.87  0.28  0.70  8,219.05 

Advances 33.77  47.99  67.92  287.81  1,173.80  1,983.58  2,783.28 11,783.64 10,681.25 16,856.39 45,699.43 

Investments  13.24 3,065.91  37.36  92.99  2,210.71  208.45  1,146.92  2,879.48 4,026.52 6,409.60  20,091.18 

Borrowings  -    64.94  3.70  -    1,280.43  869.27  3,330.41 10,725.73  7,951.51 23,687.84  47,913.83 

Foreign Currency assets  26.93  231.92  0.01  0.02  51.01  311.36  -    66.26  -    -    687.51 

Foreign Currency liabilities *  1.03  6.16  7.19  14.26  725.77  662.60  70.99 2,059.43  1,656.51 2,222.66 7,426.60 

 * Includes ECB borrowings of ` 6,120.20 crores. The FX risk arising out of these borrowings is dynamically hedged by the Balance 
Sheet Management Group of the Bank.

A maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2015 :

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS DAy 1 2 DAyS  
 tO  

7 DAyS

8 DAyS   
tO  

14 DAyS

15 DAyS  
tO  

28 DAyS

29 DAyS  
tO  

3 MONtHS

OVER  
3 MONtHS 

AND up 
tO  

6 MONtHS

OVER  
6 MONtHS 

AND up 
tO  

1 yEAR

OVER  
1 yEAR  

& up tO  
3 yEARS

OVER  
3 yEARS  
& up tO  
5 yEARS

OVER  
5 yEARS

tOtAL

Deposits - - - - - - - - - - -

Advances - - - - - - - - - - -

Investments - - - - - - - - - - -

Borrowings - - - - - - - - - - -

Foreign Currency assets - - - - - - - - - - -

Foreign Currency liabilities - - - - - - - - - - -

 Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as 
used by the Bank for compiling the return submitted to the RBI, which has been relied upon by the auditors. Maturity profile of 
foreign currency assets and liabilities is excluding off balance sheet items.

18.22 DETAILS OF SINgLE BORROwER LIMIT (SgL) / gROUP BORROwER LIMIT (gBL) EXCEEDED BY THE BANK

 During the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the Bank’s credit exposure to single borrower and group borrowers was 
within the prudential exposure limits prescribed by the RBI.

18.23 UNSECURED ADVANCES

 During the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 there are unsecured advances of  ` 3,651.52 crore and ` Nil respectively 
for which intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority etc. has been taken as collateral by the Bank.
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18.24 DISCLOSURE OF PENALTIES IMPOSED BY RBI

 During the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the RBI has not imposed any penalty on the bank.

18.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 I THE BANK HAS CHARgED THE FOLLOwINg AMOUNTS IN THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT TOwARDS 
CONTRIBUTION TO DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS wHICH ARE INCLUDED UNDER SCHEDULE 16 (I) :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Provident fund 8 .1 2  -   

Superannuation fund 0.54  -   

Pension fund 0.79  -   

 II gRATUITY

  The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and 
funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan :

 profit and Loss Account

  Net employee benefit expenses (recognised in payments to and provisions for employees) :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Current service cost  1 . 14  -   

Interest on defined benefit obligation  0.56  -   

Expected return on plan assets (0.48)  -   

Net actuarial losses / (gains) recognised in the year  0.80  -   

Past service cost  -    -   

Losses / (gains)  on Curtailment & Settlements  -    -   

Losses / (gains)  on Acquisition / Divestiture  2.23  -   

Effect of the limit in Para 59(b)  -    -   

Total included in “employee benefit expense” [schedule 16(I)]  4.25  -   

Actual return on plan assets  0.36  -   

 Balance Sheet

  Details of provision for gratuity :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Fair value of plan assets 25.43  -   

Present value of funded obligations (26.68)  -   

Present value of unfunded obligations  -    -   

Unrecognised Past Service Cost  -    -   

Amount not recognised as an Asset (limit in Para 59 (b))  -    -   

Net (Liability) / Asset (1.25)  -   

AMOUNTS IN BALANCE SHEET  -   

Liabilities 1.25  -   

Assets  -    -   

Net Liability (included under schedule 5 – other liabilities) 1.25  -   
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  Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

Particulars (` in crore)

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Opening defined benefit obligation  -    -   

Current service cost  1.14  -   

Interest cost  0.56  -   

Actuarial losses / (gains)  0.68  -   

Past service cost  -    -   

Actuarial losses / (gains) due to Curtailment  -    -   

Liabilities extinguished on settlement  -    -   

Liabilities assumed on acquisition / (settled on divestiture)  25.26  -   

Benefits paid (0.96)  -   

Closing defined benefit obligation 26.68  -   

 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Opening fair value of plan assets  -    -   

Expected return on plan assets  0.48  -   

Actuarial gains / (losses) (0.12)  -   

Asset distributed on settlement  -    -   

Contributions by employer  3.00  -   

Assets acquired on acquisition / (distributed on divestiture)  23.03  -   

Benefits paid (0.96)  -   

Closing fair value of plan assets 25.43  -   

Expected Employers Contribution Next Year 2.00  -   

 Experience adjustments :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Defined benefit obligations 26.68  -   

Plan assets 25.43  -   

Surplus / (deficit) (1.25)  -   

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities  0.51  -   

Experience adjustments on plan assets (0.12)  -   

 Major categories of plan assets (managed by Insurers) as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets :

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Government securities 42.03%  -   

Bonds, debentures and other fixed income instruments 38.17%  -   

Deposits and money market instruments 9.63%  -   

Equity shares 10.17%  -   
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principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Discount rate (p.a.) 8.00%  -   

Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a.) 9.00%  -   

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 8.00%  -   

18.26 SEgMENT REPORTINg

Business Segments :

 The business of the Bank is divided into three segments : Treasury, Corporate / Wholesale Banking and Retail Banking Business. 
These segments have been identified and reported taking into account, the target customer profile, the nature of products and 
services, the differing risks and returns, the organisation structure, the internal business reporting system and the guidelines 
prescribed by the RBI.

SEGMENt pRINCIpAL ACtIVItIES

Treasury The treasury segment primarily consists of Bank’s investment portfolio, money market borrowing and 
lending, investment operations and entire foreign exchange and derivative portfolio of the Bank. Revenue 
of treasury segment consist of interest income on investment portfolio, gains or losses from trading 
operations, fees on FX & derivative trades and capital market deals. The principal expenses consists 
of interest expenses from external sources, premises expenses, personnel cost, direct and allocated 
overheads.

Corporate / 
Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides loans, non-fund facilities and transaction services to corporate 
relationship not included under Retail Banking, corporate advisory, project appraisal placement and 
syndication. Revenues of the wholesale banking segment consist of interest earned on loans to customers, 
interest / fees earned on transaction services, earnings from trade services and other non-fund facilities. 
The principal expenses of the segment consist of interest expense on funds borrowed from internal 
segments, premises expenses, personnel costs, other direct overheads and allocated expenses of delivery 
channels, specialist product groups, processing units and support groups.

Retail Banking Retail Banking constitutes lending to individuals / business banking customers through the branch network 
and other delivery channels subject to the orientation, nature of product, granularity of the exposure and 
the quantum thereof. Revenues of the retail banking segment are derived from interest earned on retail 
loans and fees from services rendered. Expenses of this segment primarily comprise interest expense on 
deposits, commission paid to retail assets sales agents, infrastructure and premises expenses for operating 
the branch network and other delivery channels, personnel costs, other direct overheads and allocated 
expenses of specialist product groups, processing units and support groups.

Unallocated All items which are reckoned at an enterprise level are classified under this segment. This includes 
unallocable assets and liabilities such as taxes (including deferred tax), prepaid expenses, provision for 
expenses etc. Revenue & expense of this segment includes income & expenditure  which are not directly 
attributable to any of the above segments. Revenue includes interest on income tax refund and expense 
of this segment mainly includes employee cost, establishment & technology expense which is not directly 
attributable to any segment.

 Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2016 are set out below :

pARtICuLARS (` IN CRORE)

tREASuRy CORpORAtE/
wHOLESALE 

BANKING

REtAIL 
BANKING

OtHER BANKING 
BuSINESS

uNALLOCAtED tOtAL

Revenue (i) 3,193.15 2,410.83 10.39  -    24.42 5,638.79

Less : inter segment revenue (ii)  -    -    -    -    -   (1,586.76)

total Revenue (i-ii)  4,052.03 

Segment Results before tax  420.27  580.20 (118.81)  -   (165.90)  715.76 

Less: Provision for tax  -    -    -    -   (248.91) (248.91)

Net profit  466.85 

Total Segment assets  25,103.91  45,503.19  768.89  -    2,593.88  73,969.87 

Total Segment liabilities  23,490.93  36,329.26  320.70  -    196.43  60,337.32 

Net assets  1,612.98  9,173.93  448.19  -    2,397.45  13,632.55 

Capital expenditure for the year  2.70  57.59  27.29  -    281.48 369.06

Depreciation on fixed assets for 
the year

 0.69  8.08  4.59  -    27.39  40.75 
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 Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2015 are set out below :

pARtICuLARS (` IN CRORE)

tREASuRy CORpORAtE/
wHOLESALE 

BANKING

REtAIL 
BANKING

OtHER BANKING 
BuSINESS

uNALLOCAtED tOtAL

Revenue (i)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Less : inter segment revenue (ii)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

total Revenue (i-ii)  -   

Segment Results before tax  -    -    -    -   2.58  2.58 

Less: Provision for tax  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net profit  2.58 

Total Segment assets  -    -    -    -    0.05  0.05 

Total Segment liabilities  -    -    -    -    2.58  2.58 

Net assets  -    -    -    -   (2.53) (2.53)

Capital expenditure for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Depreciation on fixed assets for 
the year

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Geographic segments

 The business of the Bank is concentrated in India. Accordingly, geographical segment results have not been reported.

18.27 DEFERRED TAX

 The major components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arising out of timing differences are as under :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Deferred tax assets on account of provisions for loan losses  1,584.87  -   

Deferred tax assets on account of provision for diminution in value of investments  162.98  -   

Deferred tax assets on account of other contingencies  53.71 ß

Deferred tax assets (A)  1,801.56 ß

Deferred tax liabilities on account of depreciation on fixed assets  67.36 -

Others [special reserve under section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961]  50.15 -

Deferred tax liabilities (B)  1 1 7. 5 1  -   

Net Deferred tax assets (A-B)  1,684.05 ß

18.28 PROVISIONS AND CONTINgENCIES

 ‘Provisions and contingencies’ shown under the head expenditure in Profit and Loss Account comprise of :

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Provision made towards income tax

 Current tax *  214.25  -   

 Deferred tax  34.67 ß

 248.92 ß

Provisions for depreciation on investment 4.02 -

Provision / (write back) towards non-performing advances (16.99) -

Provision / (write back) for restructured assets (2.94) -

Provision for unhedged foreign currency exposure  8.17 -

Additional specific provisions  31.45 -

Provision and other contingencies  0.46 -

TOTAL  273.09 ß

 * net of tax adjustment of prior years of ` 43.81 crore relating to Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited
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18.29 FLOATINg PROVISIONS

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

a Opening balance in the floating provisions account  -   -

b The quantum of floating provisions made in the accounting year  -    -   

c Amount of draw down made during the accounting year  -    -   

d Closing balance in the floating provisions account  -   -

18.30 DRAw DOwN FROM RESERVES

 The Bank has not undertaken any draw down from reserves during the year.

APPROPRIATION TO RESERVES

 i Statutory Reserve

  As mandated by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, all banking companies incorporated in India shall create a reserve fund, 

out of the balance of profit of each year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared and 

transfer a sum equivalent to not less than twenty five per cent of such profit. The Bank has transferred ` 118.00 crore to 

Statutory Reserve for the year. 

 ii Investment Reserve Account (IRA)

  As per RBI guidelines, if provisions created on account of depreciation in the ‘AFS’ or ‘HFT’ categories are found to be in 

excess of the required amount in any year, the excess shall be credited to the Profit and Loss Account and an equivalent 

amount (net of taxes, if any and net of transfer to Statutory Reserves as applicable to such excess provision) shall be 

appropriated to Investment Reserve Account. During the financial year, the Bank did not have any excess provision in the 

AFS / HFT category and hence there was no transfer to IRA.

 iii Capital Reserve

  As per RBI Guidelines, profit / loss on sale of investments in the ‘Held to Maturity’ category is recognised in the Profit and 

Loss Account and profit is thereafter appropriated (net of applicable taxes and statutory reserve requirements) to Capital 

Reserve. Profit / loss on sale of investments in ‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading’ categories is recognised in the Profit 

and Loss Account. Accordingly, the Bank has appropriated ` 82.50 crore being profit on sale of investments in the HTM 

category net of applicable taxes and transfer to statutory reserve.

 iv Special Reserve

  As per the provisions under Section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961, the specified entity is allowed the deduction in 

respect of any special reserve created and maintained by it, i.e. an amount not exceding twenty per cent of the profits 

derived from eligible business computed under the head “Profits and gains of business or profession” (before making any 

deduction under this clause). This would be applicable till the aggregate of the amounts carried to such reserve account 

from time to time exceeds twice the amount of the paid up share capital (excluding the amounts capitalized from reserves) 

of the entity. During the year, the Bank has transferred an amount of  ` 145.00 crores to Special Reserve.

18.31 DISCLOSURE OF COMPLAINTS

A. COMpLAINtS By CuStOMERS / StAKEHOLDERS / BONDHOLDERS

 i Customer complaints :

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

a No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year / period  -   -

b No. of complaints received during the year / period  -    -   

c No. of complaints redressed during the year / period  -    -   

d No. of complaints pending at the end of the year / period  -   -

 ii Investors complaints :

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

a No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year / period  -   -

b No. of complaints received during the year / period 249  -   

c No. of complaints redressed during the year / period 249  -   

d No. of complaints pending at the end of the year / period  -   -
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 iii Retail bondholder’s complaints :

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

a No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year / period  -   -

b No. of complaints received during the year / period  4,969  -   

c No. of complaints redressed during the year / period  4,969  -   

d No. of complaints pending at the end of the year / period  -   -

B. AwARDS pASSED By tHE BANKING OMBuDSMAN

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

a No. of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year / period  -   -

b No. of awards passed by the banking ombudsmen during the year / period  -    -   

c No. of awards implemented during the year / period  -    -   

d No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year / period  -   -

18.32 DISCLOSURE OF LETTERS OF COMFORT (LOCS) ISSUED BY BANKS

 The Bank has not issued any Letter of Comfort during the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015.

18.33 BANCASSURANCE BUSINESS

 Details of income earned from bancassurance business are as under:

NATURE OF INCOME (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

1 For selling life insurance policies  -   -

2 For selling non-life insurance policies  -    -   

3 For selling mutual fund products  -    -   

4 Others  -    -   

TOTAL  -   -

18.34 CONCENTRATION OF DEPOSITS, ADVANCES, EXPOSURES AND NPAs

i Concentration of deposits

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 5,476.01 -

Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the bank 66.63% -

ii Concentration of advances *

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 22,579.30 -

Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the bank 40.60% -

  * Advances represent credit exposure (funded and non-funded) including derivative exposure computed as per current 
exposure method in accordance with RBI guidelines.

iii Concentration of exposures *

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers  24,139.79 -

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total exposure of the 
bank on borrowers / customers

33.34% -

  * Exposure includes credit exposure (funded and non-funded), derivative exposure and investment exposure (including 
underwriting and similar commitments) in accordance with RBI guidelines.
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iv Concentration of NpAs

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 2,127.12 -

v Intra-group exposures

  Intra-group exposures in accordance with RBI guidelines are as follows :

NATURE OF INCOME (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

i Total amount of intra-group exposures 1,945.22 -

ii Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures 1,945.22  -   

iii Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the bank on borrowers / customers 2.69%  -   

iv Details of breach of limits on intra-group exposures and regulatory action thereon, if any -  -   

18.35 UNHEDgED FOREIgN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

 The Bank’s Credit Policy lays down that the Bank will evaluate risks arising out of unhedged foreign currency exposures of the 
borrowers and will also monitor the same. Both at the time of initial approval as well as subsequent reviews, the assessment of 
credit risk arising out of foreign currency exposure of the borrowers include details of imports, exports, repayments of foreign 
currency borrowings, as well as hedges done by the borrowers or naturally enjoyed by them vis-a-vis their intrinsic financial 
strength, history of hedging and losses arising out of foreign currency volatility. The details of unhedged foreign currency 
exposure of customers are monitored periodically. The Bank also maintains additional provision and capital, in line with RBI 
guidelines.

 During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Bank has made incremental provision of ` 8.17 crore and held incremental capital of  
` 22.55 crore towards borrowers having unhedged foreign currency exposures.

18.36 SECTOR-wISE ADVANCES
(` IN CRORE)

SECtOR MARCH 31, 2016

OutStANDING 
tOtAL 

ADVANCES

GROSS NpAS % OF GROSS 
NpAS tO 

tOtAL 
ADVANCES IN 
tHAt SECtOR

A PRIORITY SECTOR *

i Agriculture and allied activities 15.48  -    -   

ii Advances to industries sector eligible as priority sector lending, of which :^ 1,614.53  -    -   

  Loans to MFI for on-lending 889.49  -    -   

  Loans to HFC for on-lending 725.00  -    -   

iii Trade and Services 26.56  -    -   

iv Personal loans, of which : 581.09  -    -   

  Housing 581.09  -    -   

SUB TOTAL (A) 2,237.66  -    -   

B NON PRIORITY SECTOR *

i Agriculture and allied activities  -    -    -   

ii Industry, of which ^ 45,787.45  3,058.30 6.68%

  Infrastructure- Energy 20,662.52  2,395.09 11.59%

  Infrastructure- Transport 10,864.52  64.14 0.59%

  Infrastructure- Communication 9,457.92  183.16 1.94%

iii Trade and services 1,620.68  -    -   

iv Personal loans, of which : ^ 21.63  -    -   

Housing 21.48  -    -   

SUB TOTAL (B) 47,429.76 3,058.30 6.45%

TOTAL (A)+(B) 49,667.42 3,058.30 6.16%

 * Since the Bank commenced its banking operations on October 1, 2015, the norms relating to Priority Sector Lending under the 
RBI guidelines were not applicable as on March 31, 2016.

 ^ Sub-sectors have been disclosed where advances exceed 10% of total advances in that sector at reporting date.
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(` IN CRORE)

SECtOR MARCH 31, 2016

OutStANDING 
tOtAL 

ADVANCES

GROSS NpAS % OF GROSS 
NpAS tO tOtAL 

ADVANCES IN 
tHAt SECtOR

A PRIORITY SECTOR

i Agriculture and allied activities -  -    -   

ii Advances to industries sector eligible as priority sector lending -  -    -   

iii Trade and Services -  -    -   

iv Personal loans -  -    -   

SUB TOTAL (A) -  -    -   

B NON PRIORITY SECTOR

i Agriculture and allied activities  -    -    -   

ii Industry - - -

iii Trade and services -  -    -   

iv Personal loans -  -    -   

SUB TOTAL (B) - - -

TOTAL (A)+(B) - - -

18.37 OVERSEAS ASSETS, NPAs AND REVENUE
PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Total assets  -    -   

Total NPAs  -    -   

Total revenue -  -   

18.38 OFF-BALANCE SHEET SPVs SPONSORED 

 Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored as on March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015

NAME OF tHE SpV SpONSORED

(` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

DOMEStIC OVERSEAS DOMEStIC OVERSEAS

Nil - - - -

18.39 DISCLOSURES ON REMUNERATION

 Qualitative disclosures

 a Information relating to the composition and mandate of the Remuneration Committee :

  The Board nomination and remuneration committee comprised of the following members :

  Mr. Ajay Sondhi   Chairman

  Mr. Anil Baijal   Member

  Ms. Veena Mankar   Member

  Mr. Vinod Rai   Member

  The functions of the Committee include :

  i Evaluate performance of the Whole Time Directors (WTDs) (including the Managing Director & CEO) against 
predetermined parameters

  ii Make recommendations on remuneration (including performance bonus and perquisites) of Whole Time Directors

  iii Approve policy and quantum of variable pay, bonus, stock options and increments for the employees of the Bank

  iv Frame guidelines for the Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) and recommend grants of the Bank’s stock 
options to Whole Time Directors of the Bank
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 b Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes and the key features and objectives of 
remuneration policy:

  The Bank has under the guidance of the Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, follows compensation 
practices intended to drive pay for performance within the framework of prudent risk management.

  Specific principles and objectives of IDFC Bank remuneration policy and design include :

  i Help attract and retain employees :

	 	 ¡ Pay elements and structure to be market competitive

	 	 ¡ Flexibility and agility in approach to design / review structure

	 	 ¡ Differentiate market through benefit programs that build and reinforce organization values and loyalty

	 	 ¡ Reward meritocracy, with differentiation based on performance

  ii Foster a culture of authentic service and prudent risk taking :

 ¡ Reward programs to be designed to incentivize

 ¡ Superior and consistent customer service and

 ¡ Specifically discourage miss-selling, thereby help build trust and faith of customers

 ¡ Rewards not just based on quantitative (financial) parameters alone; but also on how performance is achieved, 

including process adopted, prudent judgement and controls exercised

 ¡ Reward good behaviour and organizational stewardship, that conserves franchise reputation

 ¡ Revenue producers will not determine compensation for risk managers and other control functions

 ¡ Compensation programs to be overlaid with requisite conformity to the RBI guidelines.

  iii Emphasize alignment with our stated Bank Values of Balance, Collaboration, Drive and Honesty :

 ¡ Compensation program design to promote, measure and reward excellence on these key organization values

 ¡ Short term and long term incentives, and staff recognition framework to specifically incorporate metrics on 

these

  iv Evaluate and Reward Performance over Time

 ¡ Program design to ensure balance between short term versus long term financial performance and health of 

the organization

 ¡ Drive long term commitment and ownership for decisions through LTI and/or equity awards with deferred 

vesting schedule

  v Balance between market competitiveness and internal alignment

 ¡ Pay levels to be referenced to the 66th percentile of Indian Private Sector banks

 ¡ Aspire to stay best-in-class within competitive cost parameters; balance between basic and lifestyle benefits

 ¡ Internal pay parity for roles staffed with employees with similar skills and seasoning

 c Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the remuneration process including the 
nature and type of the key measures used to take account of these risks :

  The Board approves the risk framework for the Bank and the business activities of the Bank are undertaken within this 

framework to achieve the financial plan. The risk framework includes the Bank’s risk appetite, limits framework and policies 

and procedures governing various types of risk. The performance evaluation framework of Whole Time Directors, equivalent 

positions and senior management personnel in material risk taker roles incorporates these risk and control aspects as 

detailed by the Board. These factors include (but are not limited to) elements such as consistency in asset quality, rating 

slippage of existing loans, RORWA, operational risk parameters and quality of systems. The performance management 

framework of the Bank will evolve over time and get more sophisticated and mature. As regards linkage to remuneration, 

the compensation for Whole Time Director’s, etc is paid in fixed pay, performance linked variable pay and stock options 

which is approved by the NRC. Furthermore, material risk takers will not be put on any guaranteed bonus framework. 

Performance evaluation of individuals in Credit and Risk, and Control functions will have requisite line of independence to 

revenue making senior management personnel.

 d Description of the ways in which the bank seeks to link performance during a performance measurement period with 

levels of remuneration :

  While the bank is yet to have a first performance review cycle having started its operations only on October 1, 2015, 

performance and its linkage to levels of remuneration will be guided by the objectives / principles as spelt out in Item b 
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above. Annual Remuneration package will comprise of a combination of fixed salary, cash bonus and ESOPs, in a mix that 

ensures appropriate alignment with RBI guidelines and long term value creation and stability of the Bank. Further, total pay 

levels will be referenced against 66th percentile of Indian private sector banks.

 e Bank’s policy on deferral and vesting of variable remuneration and a discussion of the bank’s policy and criteria for 

adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and after vesting :

  As outlined in Item (d) above, deferral structures will be incorporated and published to the staff over the next 12 months. 

For senior levels and material risk taker roles, remuneration package will represent a mix of fixed pay, cash bonus and ESOP 

in a manner that ensures deferred vesting schedule of ESOPs. Further, the deferred / unvested portions will be subject to 

“malus” provision in conformity with RBI guidelines.

 f Description of the different forms of variable remuneration (i.e. cash, shares, ESOps and other forms) that the bank utilizes 

and the rationale for using these different forms.

  The bank at this juncture primarily has an annual cash bonus process and ESOPs. The ESOP scheme has been designed with 

a view to ensure an appropriate risk balanced remuneration architecture. Further, for junior roles in front-line sales where 

quarterly formulae based incentive programs get rolled-out, there will be requisite emphasis on risk and control parameters. 

We are piloting the first such quarterly plan for junior roles in a specific business area (Bharat Banking), where there is 

adequate emphasis on risk / collections and compliance to set-out processes.

Quantitative disclosures

 The quantitative disclosures cover the Bank’s Whole Time Directors and other Key Risk Takers.

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

a i  Number of meetings held by the Remuneration Committee during the financial 
year

5 -

ii Remuneration paid to its members (sitting fees) (`) 400,000 -

b Number of employees having received a variable remuneration award during the 
financial year

- -

c Number and total amount of sign-on awards made during the financial year - -

d Details of guaranteed bonus, if any, paid as joining / sign-on bonus - -

e Details of severance pay, in addition to accrued benefits, if any - -

f Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration, split into cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other forms

- -

g Total amount of deferred remuneration paid out in the financial year NA -

h Breakdown of amount of remuneration awards for the financial year to show fixed 
and variable, deferred and non-deferred

NA -

i Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and retained remuneration 
exposed to ex-post explicit and/or implicit adjustments

NA -

j Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to ex-post explicit 
adjustments

NA -

k Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to ex-post implicit 
adjustments

NA -

18.40 CREDIT DEFAULT SwAPS

 The Bank has not undertaken any transactions in Credit Default Swaps (CDS) during the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015.

18.41 TRANSFERS TO DEPOSITOR EDUCATION AND AwARENESS FUND (DEAF)

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF  -   -

Add : Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year  -    -   

Less : Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims  -    -   

Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF  -   -
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18.42 LIqUIDITY COVERAgE RATIO

Qualitative disclosure

 Liquidity risk management of the Bank is undertaken by the Balance Sheet Management Group (BSMG) under the central 
oversight of the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) in accordance with the Board approved policies and ALCO 
approved funding plans. The Bank has adopted the Basel III framework on liquidity standards as prescribed by RBI for reporting of 
the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR).

 The mandated regulatory threshold as per the transition plan is embedded into the Limit Management Framework of the Bank 
with appropriate cushion to ensure maintenance of adequate liquidity buffers. Risk department computes the LCR and reports the 
same to the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO), Risk Management Committee of the Board and Board for oversight 
and periodical review. The Bank has been submitting LCR reports to RBI from January 2016.

 Currently the Liquidity Coverage Ratio is significantly higher than minimum regulatory threshold. As a strategy, the Bank is highly 
invested into GOI Bonds and  corporate bonds which has resulted in a high level of HQLA. The Bank follows the criteria laid down 
by the RBI for month-end calculation of High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA), gross outflows and inflows within the next 30 day 
period. HQLA predominantly comprises Government securities in excess of minimum SLR requirement viz. Treasury Bills, Central 
and State Government securities and corporate bonds in form of CP, CD and Bonds rated AA- and above with mandated haircuts 
applied thereto. 

 Bank is predominantly funded through long term borrowings viz Bonds and ECBs. Further the reliance on retail deposits and 
CASA is minimal as of now. All significant outflows and inflows determined in accordance with RBI guidelines are included in the 
prescribed LCR computation. Bank expects the LCR to reduce in the coming quarters primarily on account of growth in advances 
and increased focus on raising retail deposits.   

 The Risk department measures and monitors the liquidity profile of the Bank with reference to the Board approved limits on a 
static  as well as on a dynamic basis by using the gap analysis technique supplemented by monitoring of key liquidity ratios and 
periodical liquidity stress testing. The Bank assesses the impact on short term liquidity gaps dynamically under various scenarios 
covering business projections under normal as well as varying market conditions. Periodical reports are placed before the Bank’s 
ALCO for perusal and review.

 Quantitative disclosures

PARTICULARS

(` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

tOtAL 
uNwEIGHtED 

VALuE (AVERAGE)

tOtAL wEIGHtED 
VALuE (AVERAGE)

tOtAL 
uNwEIGHtED 

VALuE (AVERAGE)

tOtAL wEIGHtED 
VALuE (AVERAGE)

HIgH qUALITY LIqUID ASSETS

1 Total high quality liquid assets (HQLA) - 8,421.95 -  -   

CASH OUTFLOwS

2 Retail deposits and deposits from small business 
customers, of which :

93.86 9.11 - -

i  Stable deposits 5.53 0.28 - -

ii Less stable deposits 88.32 8.83 - -

3 Unsecured wholesale funding, of which : 1,598.75 1,555.79 - -

i  Operational deposits (all counterparties)  -    -   - -

ii Non-operational deposits (all counterparties)  -    -   - -

iii Unsecured debt 1,598.75 1,555.79 - -

4 Secured wholesale funding - - - -

5 Additional requirements, of which : 431.33 431.33 - -

i  Outflows related to derivative exposures and 
other collateral requirements

431.33 431.33 - -

ii Outflows related to loss of funding on debt 
products

 -    -   - -

iii Credit and liquidity facilities  -    -   - -

6 Other contractual funding obligations  829.20  829.20 - -

7 Other contingent funding obligations 7,369.63 368.48 - -

8 TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS - 3,193.91 - -
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PARTICULARS

(` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

tOtAL 
uNwEIGHtED 

VALuE (AVERAGE)

tOtAL wEIGHtED 
VALuE (AVERAGE)

tOtAL 
uNwEIGHtED 

VALuE (AVERAGE)

tOtAL wEIGHtED 
VALuE (AVERAGE)

CASH INFLOwS

9 Secured lending (e.g.reverse repos) 830.76  -   - -

10 Inflows from fully performing exposures  -    -   - -

11 Other cash inflows 2,066.02 1,574.63 - -

12 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 2,896.78 1,574.63 -

TOTAL ADJUSTED 
VALUE

TOTAL ADJUSTED 
VALUE

tOtAL HQLA 8,421.95 -

total Net Cash Outflows 1,689.10 -

Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 498.61%  -   

18.43 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE :

 As per AS-18, Related Party Disclosure, the Bank’s related parties are disclosed below :

A. uLtIMAtE HOLDING COMpANy

  IDFC Limited

B. HOLDING COMpANy

  IDFC Financial Holding Company Limited

C. FELLOw SuBSIDIARIES

  IDFC Alternatives Limited

  IDFC Asset Management Company Limited

  IDFC AMC Trustee Company Limited

  IDFC Finance Limited

  IDFC Foundation

  IDFC Infra Debt Fund Limited

  IDFC Projects Limited

  IDFC Securities Limited

  IDFC Trustee Company Limited

  IDFC Capital (USA) Inc.

  IDFC Capital (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

  IDFC Investment Advisors Limited

  IDFC Investment Managers (Mauritius) Limited

  IDFC Securities Singapore Pte. Limited

D. ASSOCIAtES

 i Direct

   Feedback Infra Private Limited

   Millennium City Expressway Private Limited

 ii Indirect (through fellow subsidaries)

   Jetpur Somnath Tollways Private Limited

   Delhi Integrated Multi-Modal Transit System Limited

   Infrastructure Development Corporation (Karnataka) Limited

   Uttarakhand Infrastructure Development Company Limited

   India PPP Capacity Building Trust
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E. KEy MANAGEMENt pERSONNEL

  Dr. Rajiv B. Lall (Founder Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)

F. RELAtIVES OF KEy MANAGEMENt pERSONNEL:

  Tara Lall, Ambika Lall, Indrani Gangadhar, Kishen Behari Lall, Bunty Chand, Reena Khanna

  In accordance with paragraph 5 and 6 of AS - 18, the Bank has not disclosed certain transactions with relatives of key 
management personnel as they are in the nature of banker-customer relationship.

  The significant transactions between the Bank and related parties for year ended March 31, 2016 are given below. A specific 
related party transaction is disclosed as a significant related party transaction wherever it exceeds 10% of all related party 
transactions in that category:

 ¡ Interest Expense :

   IDFC Limited ` 2.11 crore (Previous Year Nil); IDFC Financial Holding Company Limited ` 1.58 crore (Previous Year Nil); 
IDFC Finance Limited ` 0.46 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Interest income earned :

   Feedback Infra Private Limited ` 3.96 crore (Previous Year Nil); Millennium City Expressways Private Limited ` 20.03 
crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Receiving of services :

   IDFC Securities Limited ` 5.92 crore (Previous Year Nil); IDFC Alternatives Limited ` 1.77 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Rendering of services :

   IDFC Securities Limited ` 6.55 crore (Previous Year Nil); IDFC Asset Management Company Limited ` 0.91 crore 
(Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Managerial Remuneration :

   Rajiv B. Lall ` 1.92 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Sale of investments :

   IDFC Infra Debt Fund Limited ` 108.83 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ profit on sale of Investments :

   IDFC Infra Debt Fund Limited ` 1.03 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ purchase of fixed assets :

   IDFC Securities Limited ` 0.34 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ placement of security deposits :

   IDFC Alternatives Limited ` 1.77 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Advance repaid :

   Millennium City Expressways Private Limited ` 8.26 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Sell down of loans :

   IDFC Infra Debt Fund Limited ` 125.21 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Deposits with the Bank :

   IDFC Limited ` 218.97 crore (Previous Year Nil); IDFC Financial Holding Company Limited ` 44.23 crore (Previous Year 
Nil); IDFC Infra Debt Fund Limited ` 102.39 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Investment of related party in the Bank :

   IDFC Financial Holding Company Limited ` 7,030.07 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Other receivables (net) :

   IDFC Securities Limited ` 0.75 crore (Previous Year Nil).

 ¡ Other payables (net) :

   IDFC Securities Limited ` 1.18 crore (Previous Year Nil).
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 The details of the transactions of the Bank with its related party during the year ended March 31, 2016 are given below :

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS RELAtED pARty

uLtIMAtE 
HOLDING 

COMpANy

HOLDING 
COMpANy

FELLOw 
SuBSIDIARy 
COMpANIES  

 ASSOCIAtES   KEy 
MANAGEMENt 

pERSONNEL  

Interest expense  2.11  1.58  0.81  0.08  0.01 

Interest income earned  -    -    -    23.99  -   

Investment of related party in  
the Bank

 -    -    -    -    1.20 

Sale of investments  -    -    108.83  -    -   

Profit on sale of Investments  -    -    1.03  -    -   

Managerial Remuneration  -    -    -    -    1.92 

Purchase of fixed assets  -    -    0.37  -    -   

Sale of fixed assets  -    -    0.02  -    -   

Placement of security deposits  -    -    1.77  -    -   

Advance repaid  -    -    -    8.26  -   

Sell down of loans  -    -    125.21  -    -   

Receiving of services  -    -    8.40  -    -   

Rendering of services  0.29  -    8.40  -    -   

 The balances payable to / receivable from the related parties of the Bank as on March 31, 2016 are given below:

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS RELAtED pARty

uLtIMAtE 
HOLDING 

COMpANy

HOLDING 
COMpANy

FELLOw 
SuBSIDIARy 
COMpANIES  

 ASSOCIAtES   KEy 
MANAGEMENt 

pERSONNEL  

Deposits with the Bank  218.97  44.23  165.57  8.54  0.64 

Advances  -    -    -    469.11  -   

Investment of the Bank  -    -    -    214.09  -   

Investment of related party in the Bank  -    7,030.07  -    -    1.20 

Other receivables (net)  -    -    0.75  -    -   

Other payables (net)  -    -    1.21  -    -   

 The maximum balances payable to/receivable from the related parties of the Bank during the year ended March 31, 2016 are given 
below:

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS RELAtED pARty

uLtIMAtE 
HOLDING 

COMpANy

HOLDING 
COMpANy

FELLOw 
SuBSIDIARy 
COMpANIES  

 ASSOCIAtES   KEy 
MANAGEMENt 

pERSONNEL  

Deposits with the Bank  427.45  44.47  166.71  8.72  0.64 

Advances  -    -    -    477.43  -   

Investment of the Bank  -    -    -    214.09  -   

Investment of related party in the Bank  -    7,030.07  -    -    1.20 

Other receivables (net)  0.21  -    2.04  -    -   

Other payables (net)  0.73  -    3.04  -    -   
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 The details of the transactions of the Bank with its related party during the year ended March 31, 2015 are given below : 

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS RELAtED pARty

uLtIMAtE 
HOLDING 

COMpANy

HOLDING 
COMpANy

FELLOw 
SuBSIDIARy 
COMpANIES  

 ASSOCIAtES   KEy 
MANAGEMENt 

pERSONNEL  

Receiving of services 2.58  -    -    -    -   

Investment of related party in the Bank 0.05  -    -    -    -   

 The balances payable to / receivable from the related parties of the Bank as on March 31, 2015 are given below: 

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS RELAtED pARty

uLtIMAtE 
HOLDING 

COMpANy

HOLDING 
COMpANy

FELLOw 
SuBSIDIARy 
COMpANIES  

 ASSOCIAtES   KEy 
MANAGEMENt 

pERSONNEL  

Other payables (net)  2.58  -    -    -    -   

Investment of related party in the Bank  0.05  -    -    -    -   

 The maximum balances payable to/receivable from the related parties of the Bank during the year ended March 31, 2015 are given 
below: 

(` IN CRORE)

pARtICuLARS RELAtED pARty

uLtIMAtE 
HOLDING 

COMpANy

HOLDING 
COMpANy

FELLOw 
SuBSIDIARy 
COMpANIES  

 ASSOCIAtES   KEy 
MANAGEMENt 

pERSONNEL  

Other payables (net)  2.58  -    -    -    -   

Investment of related party in the Bank  0.05  -    -    -    -   

18.44 EARNINg PER SHARE (‘EPS’)

 Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are computed in accordance with AS 20 - Earnings per share. Basic earnings per 
equity share are computed by dividing net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing net profit after tax 
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares and weighted average number of dilutive 
potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive. Dilution of equity is on account of 
stock options granted to employees by the Bank.

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

BASIC

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in crore) 199.14  0.01 

Net Profit after Tax (` in crore) 466.85 (2.58)

Basic earning per share (`)  2.34 (516.98)

DILUTED

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in crore) 199.45  0.01 

Net Profit after Tax (` in crore) 466.85 (2.58)

Diluted earning per share (`) 2.34 (516.98)

Nominal value of shares (`) 10.00  10.00 

18.45 MOVEMENT IN STOCK OPTIONS gRANTED UNDER THE IDFC BANK LIMITED - ESOS 2015 IS AS UNDER:

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Outstanding as at beginning of the period / year  -    -   

Add: Grants on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited  32,210,878  -   

Add: Fresh grant during the period / year  45,440,500  -   

Less: Exercised during the period / year  1,090,000  -   

Less: Lapsed / forfeited during the period / year  1 , 9 10 ,2 17  -   

Outstanding as at the end of the period / year  74, 6 5 1 , 1 6 1  -   
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18.46 UNCLAIMED SHARES

 Details of unclaimed shares as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 are as follows :

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Aggregate number of shareholders at the beginning of the year  -    -   

Total outstanding shares in Unclaimed Suspense Account at the beginning of the year -  -   

Aggregate number of shareholders with Unclaimed shares due to demerger of Financing 
Undertaking to IDFC Bank Limited

 100  -   

Total outstanding shares in Unclaimed Suspense Account due to demerger of Financing 
Undertaking to IDFC Bank Limited

 28,453  -   

Number of shareholders who approached to issuer for transfer of shares from Unclaimed 
Suspense Account during the year

- -

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from Unclaimed Suspense 
Account during the year

- -

Aggregate number of shareholders at the end of the year  100  -   

Total outstanding shares in Unclaimed Suspense Account at the end of the year  28,453  -   

18.47 LEASES

 In accordance with Accounting Standard 19 on ‘Leases’ as notified under the Accounting Standards specfied under Section 133 of 
the 2013 Act, the following disclosures in respect of operating leases are made:

 (This comprise of office premises / branches / ATMs taken on lease.)

PARTICULARS (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

Future lease rentals payable as at the end of the year :     

 Not later than one year 94.91  -   

 Later than one year and not later than five years 270.52  -   

 Later than five years 132.83  -   

Total of minimum lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account for the year 42.36 -

Total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under non-
cancellable subleases

 -   -

Sub-lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account for the year  -    -   

 The Bank has not sub-leased any of its properties taken on lease. There are no provisions relating to contingent rent. The terms 
of renewal/ purchase options and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreements. There are generally no 
undue restrictions or onerous clauses in the agreements.

18.48 OTHER FIXED ASSETS

 The movement in fixed assets capitalised as application software is given below : 

PARTICULARS] (` IN CRORE)

MARCH 31, 2016 MARCH 31, 2015

COST     

At the beginning of the year  -    -   

Additions during the year 253.39  -   

Additions on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited 15.93  -   

Deductions during the year  -   -

TOTAL (I) 269.32 -

DEPRECIATION 

Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year - -

Depreciation charge for the year 22.14 -

Depreciation transfer on demerger of Financing Undertaking of IDFC Limited 14.72 -

TOTAL (II) 36.86 -

NET VALUE (I-II) 232.46 -
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18.49 SMALL AND MICRO INDUSTRIES

 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from October 2, 2006, certain 
disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been no reported cases of delays 
in payments to micro and small enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such payments.  

18.50 DISCLOSURE ON FACTORINg

 As per the RBI circular Ref No. DBR.No.FSD.BC.32/24.01.007/2015-16 dated July 30, 2015, banks are required to disclose factoring 
exposures. Receivables acquired under factoring are treated as part of loans and advances and reported under the head 
‘Bills Purchased and Discounted’ in Schedule 9 of the Balance Sheet. The Bank has factoring exposure of ` 200.25 crore and 
outstanding of ` 200.21 crore as on March 31, 2016 (Previous Year Nil).

18.51 DESCRIPTION OF CONTINgENT LIABILITIES

i Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts

  The Bank is a party to taxation matters which are in dispute and are under appeal. The demands have been partly paid/ 
adjusted and will be received as refund if the matters are decided in favour of the Bank.

ii Liability for partly paid investments

  This represents amounts remaining unpaid towards liability for partly paid investments. These payment obligations of the 
Bank do not have any profit / loss impact.

iii Liability on account of forward exchange and derivative contracts

  The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts, currency options, forward rate agreements, currency swaps and 
interest rate swaps with inter-bank participants on its own account and for customers. Forward exchange contracts are 
commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at a future date at the contracted rate. Currency swaps are commitments to 
exchange cash flows by way of interest / principal in one currency against another, based on predetermined rates. Interest 
rate swaps are commitments to exchange fixed and floating interest rate cash flows. Interest rate futures are standardised, 
exchange-traded contracts that represent a pledge to undertake a certain interest rate transaction at a specified price, on 
a specified future date. Forward rate agreements are agreements to pay or receive a certain sum based on a differential 
interest rate on a notional amount for an agreed period. A foreign currency option is an agreement between two parties in 
which one grants to the other the right to buy or sell a specified amount of currency at a specific price within a specified 
time period or at a specified future time. An exchange traded currency option contract is a standardised foreign exchange 
derivative contract, which gives the owner the right, but not the obligation, to exchange money denominated in one 
currency into another currency at a pre-agreed exchange rate on a specified date on the date of expiry. Currency Futures 
contract is a standardised, exchange-traded contract, to buy or sell a certain underlying currency at a certain date in the 
future, at a specified price.

iv Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

  As a part of its banking activities, the Bank issues guarantees on behalf of its customers to enhance their credit standing. 
Guarantees represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the event of the customer failing to fulfill 
its financial or performance obligations.

v Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations

  These includes documentary credit issued by the Bank on behalf of its customers and bills drawn by the Bank’s customers 
that are accepted or endorsed by the Bank.

vi Other items

  Other items represent estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account.

18.52 The figures of ` 50,000 or less have been denoted by ß.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
IDFC Bank Limited

Anil Baijal
Chairman

Rajiv B. Lall
Founder Managing Director & CEO

Abhijit Sen
Director

Vikram Limaye
Director

Mumbai | April 26, 2016
Sunil Kakar
Chief Financial Officer

Mahendra N. Shah
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
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Basel Pillar iii disclosures as at March 31, 2016
Pillar 3 disclosures as at March 31, 2016 as per Basel III guidelines of Reserve Bank of India have been disclosed separately on the 

Bank’s website under “Regulatory Disclosures” on the home page. 

The link to this section is http://www.idfcbank.com/regulatory-disclosures.html

The secTion conTains following disclosures:

1. Qualitative and Quantitative disclosures as at March 31, 2016

	 •	 Scope of Application

	 •	 Capital Adequacy

	 •	 Credit Risk - General Disclosure

	 •	 Credit Risk - Disclosure under standardised Approach

	 •	 Market Risk in Trading Book

	 •	 Operational Risk

	 •	 Interest rate risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)

	 •	 Liquidity Risk

	 •	 General Disclosure for exposures related to Counterparty Credit Risk

	 •	 Equities – Disclosure for Banking Book Positions 

2. leverage ratio

3. liquidity coverage ratio as at March 31, 2016

4. capital disclosure

	 •	 Composition of Capital 

	 •	 Composition of Capital & reconciliation requirements 

	 •	 Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments March 31, 2016

	 •	 Terms and Conditions of Equity Shares

Basel 
Pillar iii 
disclosures
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idfc BanK liMiTed
corporate identity number: U65110TN2014PLC097792 

email: bank.info@idfcbank.com website: www.idfcbank.com

regd. office: KRM Tower, 8th Floor, No. 1 Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai - 600 031, Tamil Nadu, India.

Tel: + 91 44 4564 4000 fax: +91 44 4564 4022

corp. office: Naman Chambers, C-32, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India.  

Tel: + 91 22 4222 2000 fax: +91 22 2654 0354

NOTICE
noTice is hereby given that the 2nd Annual General Meeting 

(‘AGM’) of the Members of idfc BanK liMiTed (‘IDFC Bank’ 

or the ‘Bank’) will be held on wednesday, July 27, 2016 at  

10.00 a.m. at the Music Academy, T.T.K Auditorium (Main Hall), 

Near Acropolis Building, New No. 168 (Old No. 306), T.T.K. Road, 

Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014, Tamil Nadu, India, to transact 

the following business:

ordinarY Business

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements 

of the Bank for the financial year ended March 31, 2016, 

together with the reports of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares of the Bank.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vinod Rai  

(DIN - 01119922), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint Auditors of the Bank and to fix their remuneration 

and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, 

the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

 “resolVed ThaT pursuant to the provisions of  

Sections 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, 

if any, the applicable provisions of the Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949 (including any statutory modification(s) or  

re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), 

the rules, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India (‘RBI’), from time to time and subject to the 

approval of the RBI and such other regulatory authorities, 

as may be applicable, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 117365W), be and 

are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 

Bank for a period of One (1) year, to hold office from the 

conclusion of Second Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) 

until the conclusion of the Third AGM of the Bank, at a 

remuneration to be determined by the Board of Directors 

of the Bank, based on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee of the Bank, in addition to reimbursement of 

all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the audit 

of the accounts of the Bank for the financial year ending 

March 31, 2017.”

sPecial Business

5. appointment of Mr. rajan anandan as an independent 

director

 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following as an 

ordinary resolution:

 “resolVed ThaT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

10-A and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Banking 

Regulation Act, 1949, Sections 149, 150, 152, 160, 161 and 

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 

of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if any, 

and Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (including  

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof 

for the time being in force), the rules, circulars and 

guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) 

and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, Mr. Rajan Anandan (DIN-02395272), who was 

appointed as an Additional Director of the Bank with 

effect from December 01, 2015 and who holds office upto 

the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of 

whom the Bank has received a notice in writing from a 

Member along with the deposit of the requisite amount 

under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing 

his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby 

appointed as an Independent Director of the Bank to hold 

office for a period of Three (3) consecutive years from the 

said date up to November 30, 2018 and who shall not be 

liable to retire by rotation.

 resolVed furTher ThaT Mr. Rajan Anandan be paid 

such fees, profit related commission and remuneration as 
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NOTICE (continued)

the Board and Members may approve from time to time 

and within the limits as prescribed under the Companies 

Act, 2013, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and within the 

directions issued by the RBI, from time to time.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board of Directors of 

the Bank and Mr. Mahendra N. Shah, Company Secretary 

& Chief Compliance Officer, be and are hereby severally 

authorized to file the requisite forms with the statutory  / 

regulatory authority(ies) and to do all such acts, deeds 

and things as may be necessary to give effect to the above 

resolution.”

6. offer and issue of debt securities on Private Placement 

basis

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following as a 

special resolution:

 “resolVed ThaT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 

42 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008, the Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949, the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Foreign 

Exchange Management Act, 1999 (including any statutory 

amendment(s) or modification(s) or re-enactments 

thereof for the time being in force), the rules, circulars and 

guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) from 

time to time and all other relevant provisions of applicable 

law(s) and pursuant to the Articles of Association of 

the Bank and subject to receipt of such approval(s), 

consent(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) as may be 

necessary from the concerned statutory or regulatory 

authority(ies), the consent of the Members of the Bank 

be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of 

the Bank (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which 

term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof) 

for borrowing / raising funds, from time to time, in Indian 

currency / Foreign currency, by issue of debt securities 

including but not limited to Non-Convertible Debentures 

and Bonds (including bonds forming part of Tier I / Tier 

II capital in accordance with and subject to the terms and 

conditions specified in the Basel III Capital Regulations 

prescribed by RBI, long-term infrastructure bonds or such 

other securities as may be permitted by RBI from time to 

time), on private placement basis, upto an amount not 

exceeding ̀  15,000 crore (Rupees Fifteen Thousand Crores 

only), outstanding at any point of time, in one or more 

tranches and / or series, in domestic and / or overseas 

market, as per the agreed structure and within the limits 

permitted by RBI and other regulatory authorities, to 

eligible investors, during a period of One (1) year from 

the date of passing of this resolution, within the overall 

borrowing limits of ̀  1,50,000 crore (Rupees One Lakh Fifty 

Thousand Crores only) as approved by the Members of  

of the Bank at the 1st Annual General Meeting held on 

September 29, 2015 and on such terms and conditions as 

may be approved by the Board, from time to time.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board be and is hereby 

authorised to sign all such forms and returns and other 

documents and to do all such acts, deeds and things as 

may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution.”

7. reduction in esoP pool from 7% to 6% of the paid up 

share capital of the Bank and ratification of idfc Bank 

limited employee stock option scheme 2015 (‘idfc 

BanK esos - 2015’ or the ‘scheme’)

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following as a 

special resolution:

 “resolVed ThaT in supersession of the resolution passed 

by the Members of the Bank at its 1st Annual General 

Meeting (‘AGM’) held on September 29, 2015 and pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014 (‘SEBI Regulations’), Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 

Regulations’) (including any statutory modification or  

re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the 

Articles of Association of the Bank and in accordance with 

the provisions of any other applicable laws or regulations 

including rules, circulars and guidelines issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and subject to such other approval(s), 

permission(s) and sanction(s) as may be necessary and 

subject to such conditions and modifications as may 

be prescribed or imposed by any authority(ies) while 

granting such approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s), 

the consent of the Members of the Bank be and is hereby 

accorded to ratify IDFC Bank Limited Employee Stock 

Option Scheme 2015 (‘IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015’) and grants 

made to Eligible Employees and Directors under IDFC 

Bank ESOS - 2015 from the inception of the Scheme till 

the date of the 2nd AGM of the Bank.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the consent of the Members 

of the Bank be and is hereby granted to reduce the 

existing pool of Employee Stock Options (‘ESOPs’) that 

can be granted to the Eligible Employees / Directors of the 

Bank and / or its subsidiary companies under IDFC Bank 

ESOS - 2015 from current 7% to 6% of the issued and paid 

up share capital of the Bank, from time to time.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board of Directors of the 

Bank (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’, which term 

shall be deemed to include any Director / official in single 

capacity and / or any Committee of Directors as may be 

authorized by the Board in this regard) be and is hereby 

authorised to create, issue, offer and allot, directly or 

indirectly, to the Eligible Employees and Directors of the 

Bank, in India / outside India, excluding the Independent 
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Directors, at any time, equity shares arising out of exercise 

of ESOPs granted, at such price, in such manner, during 

such period, in one or more tranches and on such terms 

and conditions as the Board may decide prior to the issue 

thereof, which upon exercise could give rise to the issue 

of a number of equity shares not exceeding in aggregate 

6% of the issued & paid up share capital of the Bank, 

from time to time, under IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015, or any 

modifications thereof.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the equity shares allotted 

pursuant to the aforesaid resolution shall rank  

pari-passu with the then existing equity shares of the Bank 

for all purposes.

 resolVed furTher ThaT for the purpose of giving 

effect to this resolution, regarding creation, offer, issue, 

allotment and listing of such shares, the Board be and is 

hereby authorized to make any modifications, changes, 

variation, alteration or revisions in IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 

or to suspend, withdraw or revive the same from time to 

time in accordance with applicable laws and / or as may 

be specified by any appropriate authority and to do all 

such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such 

deeds, documents, instruments and writings as it may in 

its absolute discretion deem necessary, desirable, usual or 

proper in relation thereto with the liberty to the Board on 

behalf of the Bank to settle any question, difficulties or 

doubts whatsoever may arise with regard to such creation, 

offer, issue, allotment and listing of shares without requiring 

the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the 

Members of the Bank.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized to take all necessary steps for listing of the 

shares allotted under IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 on the Stock 

Exchanges as per the provisions of Listing Regulations, 

SEBI Regulations and other applicable laws and regulations.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board be and is hereby 

authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein 

conferred to any Committee of Directors, or any Director(s) 

or any Officer(s) of the Bank.”      

8. ratification of idfc Bank limited employee stock option 

scheme 2015 (‘idfc Bank esos - 2015’ or the ‘scheme’) 

and grant of options to the eligible employees  / directors 

of the subsidiary company(ies) of the Bank under the 

scheme

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 

Resolution as a special resolution:

 “resolVed ThaT pursuant to the provisions of  

Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 

(‘SEBI Regulations’) and Securities Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) (including any 

statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the 

time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the 

Bank and in accordance with the provisions of any other 

applicable laws or regulations including rules, circulars 

and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India and 

subject to such other approval(s), permission(s) and 

sanction(s) as may be necessary and subject to such 

conditions and modifications as may be prescribed 

or imposed by any authority(ies) while granting such 

approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s), the consent of 

the Members of the Bank be and is hereby accorded to 

ratify IDFC Bank Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 

2015 (‘IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015’) and the Board of Directors 

of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’, which 

term shall be deemed to include any Director / official in 

single capacity and / or any Committee of Directors as 

may be authorized by the Board in this regard) be and 

are hereby authorised to create, offer, issue and allot, 

directly or indirectly, equity shares under IDFC Bank ESOS 

- 2015, from time to time, to the Eligible Employees of the 

Subsidiary(ies) Companies (Present & Future), whether 

working in India or out of India, and to Directors of the 

Subsidiaries (Present & Future), excluding the Independent 

Directors and to such other persons as may from time to 

time be allowed to be eligible for the benefits of the stock 

options under applicable laws and regulations prevailing 

from time to time (all such persons are hereinafter referred 

to as ‘Eligible Employees’) on the terms and conditions as 

detailed in the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto 

or on such other terms and conditions and at such price 

and in such number of tranches as may be decided by the 

Board in its absolute discretion.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the maximum number of 

stock options granted to Eligible Employees of both, the 

Employees of the Bank and its Subsidiaries under IDFC 

Bank ESOS - 2015 shall not cumulatively exceed 6% of the 

issued & paid up share capital of the Bank from time to 

time.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the equity shares to be issued 

as stated aforesaid shall rank pari passu with all the existing 

equity shares of the Bank for all purposes.

 resolVed furTher ThaT for the purpose of giving 

effect to this resolution, regarding creation, offer, issue, 

allotment and listing of such shares, the Board be and is 

hereby authorized to make any modifications, changes, 

variation, alteration or revisions in IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 

or to suspend, withdraw or revive the same from time to 

time in accordance with applicable laws and / or as may 

be specified by any appropriate authority and to do all 

such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such 

deeds, documents, instruments and writings as it may in 

its absolute discretion deem necessary, desirable, usual or 

proper in relation there to with the liberty to the Board on 

behalf of the Bank to settle any question, difficulties or 
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doubts whatsoever may arise with regard to such creation, 

offer, issue, allotment and listing of shares without requiring 

the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the 

Members of the Bank.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized to take necessary steps for listing of the shares 

allotted under IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 on the Stock 

Exchanges as per the provisions of Listing Regulations, 

SEBI Regulations and other applicable laws and regulations.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board be and is hereby 

authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein 

conferred to any Committee of Directors, or any Director(s) 

or any Officer(s) of the Bank.” 

9. Payment of commission to non-executive directors 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following as an 

ordinary resolution:

 “resolVed ThaT pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if 

any, applicable provisions of the Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and 

Guidelines on Compensation of Non-Executive Directors 

of Private Sector Banks dated June 01, 2015 issued by 

the Reserve Bank of India (the ‘RBI’), applicable rules, 

circulars and other guidelines issued by the RBI, from 

time to time, the consent of the Members of the Bank be 

and is hereby accorded to the payment of remuneration 

by way of commission to the Non-Executive Directors of 

the Bank (i.e. Directors other than Managing Director and  

Whole-time Directors), not exceeding in aggregate, 1% of 

the net profits of the Bank as computed in the manner 

laid down in Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 

or maximum of ` 10 Lakhs to each of such Directors, 

whichever is lower; in such manner and in such respects 

as may be decided by the Board of Directors from time 

to time and such payments shall be made with respect to 

the profits of the Bank for each year commencing from  

April 01, 2015. 

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board of Directors of the 

Bank (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term 

shall include the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

(‘NRC’) and / or any other Committee constituted by the 

Board for this purpose), be and are hereby authorized to 

do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all 

such steps as may be required in this connection including 

seeking all approvals as may be required to give effect to 

this resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or 

doubts that may arise in this regard.

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board be and is hereby 

authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein 

conferred to any Committee of Directors or any Director(s) 

or any Officer(s) of the Bank.”

10. approval of remuneration payable to dr. rajiv B. lall, 

founder Managing director & ceo of the Bank 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following as an 

ordinary resolution:

 “resolVed ThaT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 

196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if any, Schedule V 

of the Companies Act, 2013, provisions of Section 35B 

and other applicable provisions of the Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949 (including any statutory amendment(s), 

modification(s), variation or re-enactment thereof, for 

the time being in force), Articles of Association of the 

Bank, the rules, guidelines and circulars issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’), in this regard, from time to 

time and pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and subject to the approval of the 

RBI and such other approvals as may be required, the 

approval of the Members of the Bank be and is hereby 

accorded to the revision in the remuneration payable to  

Dr. Rajiv B. Lall (DIN - 00131782), as the Founder Managing 

Director & CEO of the Bank, with effect from April 01, 2016, 

detailed as under:

 i. Term: From October 01, 2015 upto September 30, 2018 

as the Founder Managing Director & CEO of the Bank.

 ii. Basic Salary: In the range of ` 8,00,000 p.m. to  
` 10,00,000 p.m.

 iii. Perquisites and Allowances: House rent allowance or 
rent free furnished accommodation in lieu thereof, 
house maintenance allowance, conveyance allowance, 
use of Company car for official purposes, leave travel 
allowance, medical reimbursement, club membership, 
telephone at residence, insurance, contribution to 
provident fund, superannuation fund, payment of 
gratuity, variable pay / performance linked incentives, 
employees stock options, special allowance and 
such other perquisites, allowances and benefits in 
accordance with the rules of the Bank or as may be 
agreed by the Board of Directors of the Bank with  
Dr. Lall, from time to time.

 iv. Loans: Loan facilities to be provided as per the Bank’s 
policy, at the rate of interest applicable to other 
employees.

 For the purpose of calculating the above ceiling, perquisites 
and allowances shall be evaluated as per income tax rules, 
wherever applicable.



N O T I C E   1 4 7

NOTICE (continued)

 resolVed furTher ThaT the Board of the Bank be 
and is hereby authorized to fix the actual amount of 
remuneration and perquisites, payable or to be provided 
to Dr. Lall and alter, modify, vary or increase the same from 
time to time, within the limits approved by the Members, to 
the extent the Board may consider appropriate and as may 
be permitted or authorised by the RBI on an application 
made by the Bank.

 resolVed furTher ThaT where in any financial 
year, the Bank has no profits or inadequate profits, the 
remuneration as decided by the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall 
include any Committee which the Board of Directors of the 
Bank may have constituted or may thereafter constitute 
and delegate with the powers necessary for the purpose), 
shall be paid to Dr. Lall as minimum remuneration with the 
approval of the Central Government, if required read with 
the applicable provisions of Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

 resolVed furTher ThaT for purpose of giving effect to 
the foregoing resolution, the Board and / or Mr. Mahendra 
Shah, Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer, be 
and are hereby authorized jointly and / or severally, to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its 
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable 
and to execute any agreements, documents or instructions 
as may be required and to settle any question, difficulty or 
doubt that may arise in the said regard.”

By order of the Board of directors 

Mahendra N. shah 

Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer

Mumbai | June 25, 2016

noTes: 

1. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Special Business to 

be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’ or 

‘Meeting’) is annexed hereto. 

2. ProXies

 a)  a MeMBer eNtitled to atteNd aNd Vote at 
the aGM is eNtitled to aPPoiNt oNe or More 
ProXY(ies) to atteNd aNd Vote iNstead oF 
hiMselF aNd a ProXY so aPPoiNted Need Not 
Be a MeMBer oF the BaNk. ProXY iN order to 
Be eFFectiVe, Must Be receiVed at the BaNk’s 
reGistered oFFice Not less thaN 48 hours 
BeFore the coMMeNceMeNt oF the MeetiNG. 
oNlY dulY Filled, siGNed aNd staMPed ProXY 
ForM Will Be coNsidered Valid.

 b)  A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members 

not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate 

not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share 

capital of the Bank. A Member who is holding more 

than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the 

Bank may appoint a single person as proxy and such 

person shall not act as proxy for any other person 

or Shareholder. The instrument appointing a proxy 

shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly 

authorised in writing, or if the appointer is a body 

corporate, it shall be under its seal and be signed by 

an officer or an attorney duly authorised by it.

 c) During the period beginning 24 hours before the time 

fixed for the commencement of the AGM and ending 

with the conclusion of the AGM, a Member would be 

entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, during the 

business hours from 9.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. at the 

Registered Office, provided that not less than three 

days of notice in writing is given to the Bank.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised 

representatives to attend the AGM are requested to send 

a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising 

their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at 

the AGM. The documents are required to be sent to the 

Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Bank 

or alternatively the Shareholder may send an e-mail on 

mahendra.shah@idfcbank.com.

4. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such 

joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 

entitled to vote.

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection 

by the Members at the Registered Office of the Bank and 

at the AGM. 

6. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements, in which 

directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection 

by the Members at the Registered Office of the Bank and 

at the AGM. 

7. The Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Bank 

certifying that the Bank’s Employees Stock Option Scheme 

is being implemented in accordance with the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 

Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and in accordance with the 

resolutions passed by the Members of the Bank, will be 

available for inspection by the Members at the AGM.

8. Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 

on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India (‘ICSI’), information 

in respect of the directors seeking appointment /  

re-appointment / revision in remuneration at the AGM, is 

given in the Exhibit to the Notice.
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9. Members desirous of getting any information about the 

accounts and / or operations of the Bank are requested 

to write to Mr. Mahendra N. Shah, Company Secretary and 

Chief Compliance Officer at least seven days before the 

date of the AGM to enable the Bank to keep information 

ready at the AGM. 

10. diVidend

 a) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 

will remain closed from Thursday, July 21, 2016 to 

wednesday, July 27, 2016 (both days inclusive) for 

determining the names of Members eligible to receive 

dividend on equity shares. 

 b) Dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2016, at the 

rate of 2.5% i.e. ` 0.25 per equity share of ` 10 each, if 

approved by the Members at the AGM, will be payable 

on or after Thursday, July 28, 2016, to those Members 

who hold shares -

	 	 	 In dematerialised mode, based on the beneficial 

ownership details to be received from National 

Securities Depository Limited and Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited as at the 

close of business hours on wednesday, July 20, 
2016. 

	 	 	 In physical mode, if their names appear in the 

Register of Members at the close of business 

hours on wednesday, July 20, 2016. The 

instruments of transfer in respect of shares held 

in physical form of the Bank should be lodged 

with Karvy Computershare Private Limited [Unit: 

IDFC Bank Limited], Karvy Selenium Tower 

B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, 

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 

500 032, India (‘Karvy’), so as to reach them on 

or before wednesday, July 20, 2016.

 c) Members are encouraged to utilize the Electronic 

Clearing System (‘ECS’) for receiving dividends.

11. Members are requested to address all correspondence, 

including change in address, bank account details and 

dividend matters, to Karvy. Members whose shareholding 

is in the electronic mode are requested to direct change of 

address notifications and updation of bank account details 

to their respective Depository Participants (‘DP’).

12. Members can avail the facility of nomination in respect 

of shares held by them in physical form pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Members desiring to avail of this facility may send their 

nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled, 

to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Bank i.e. Karvy. 

Members holding shares in electronic form may contact 

their respective Depository Participants for availing this 

facility.

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) 

has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 

Number (‘PAN’) by every participant in securities market. 

Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 

requested to submit their PAN details to their Depository 

Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are 

required to submit their PAN details to the Bank / Karvy.

14. All the documents referred to in the Notice and Statement 

pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, are 

open for inspection between 9.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. on all 

working days upto the date of the AGM at the Corporate 

Office i.e. Naman Chambers, C-32, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla 

Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051 and at the 

Registered Office i.e. KRM Tower, 8th Floor, No. 1 Harrington 

Road, Chetpet, Chennai - 600 031 and will also be available 

at the venue of the AGM. 

15. green iniTiaTiVe

 a) In support of the Green Initiative, copies of the Annual 

Report for FY16 are being sent by electronic mode 

only to those Members whose e-mail addresses are 

registered with the Bank / Depository Participant(s) 

for communication purposes unless any Member has 

requested for a hard copy of the same. For Members 

who have not registered their e-mail addresses, 

physical copies of the Annual Report FY16 are 

being sent by the permitted mode. Members may 

also note that Notice and Explanatory Statement 

are also available for download on the website of 

the Bank i.e. www.idfcbank.com. Members who 

require communication from the Bank in physical 

form may write to the Company Secretary on  

mahendra.shah@idfcbank.com.

 b) The Bank requests the Members who have not updated 

their e-mail addresses to update the same with their 

respective Depository Participant(s) or communicate 

their e-mail addresses to the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agents i.e. Karvy or the Bank, so that the Bank 

can send future communications to these Members in 

electronic mode. Members are requested to send a 

signed letter, communicating their Name, Folio No. / 

DP ID / Client ID and e-mail address either by e-mail 

(scanned copy) to einward.ris@karvy.com or send a 

hard copy thereof to Karvy. Alternatively the Members 

can also update their e-mail addresses with Bank by 

sending an e-mail to bank.info@idfcbank.com.

16. e-VoTing

 a) In terms of Sections 108 of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and 

Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Bank 

is providing e-voting facility to its Members holding 
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shares in physical or dematerialized form, as on the 

cut-off date i.e. wednesday, July 20, 2016, to exercise 

their right to vote through electronic means from a 

place other than a venue of the meeting on any or 

all of the businesses specified in the accompanying 

Notice (the ‘Remote e-voting’). The Bank has engaged 

the services of Karvy Computershare Private Limited 

as the agency to provide e-voting facility. The Remote 

e-voting commences on friday, July 22, 2016 at  
9:00 a.m. and ends on Tuesday, July 26, 2016 at  
5:00 p.m. A person who is not a Member as on the 

cut-off date should treat this notice for information 

purpose only.

 b) In terms of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 with respect to the Voting 

through electronic means, the Bank is also offering 

the facility for voting by way of physical ballot at the 

AGM. The Members attending the AGM shall note that 

those who are entitled to vote but have not exercised 

their right to vote by Remote e-voting, may vote at 

the AGM through physical ballot for all the businesses 

specified in this Notice. The Members who have 

exercised their right to vote by Remote e-voting may 

attend the AGM but shall not be eligible to vote at 

the AGM and their vote, if cast at the Meeting shall be 

treated as invalid. The voting rights of the Members 

shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Bank as on the cut-off 

date i.e. wednesday, July 20, 2016, subject to the 

provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, as 

amended from time to time.

 c) The Board of Directors has appointed  

Mr. B. Narasimhan, Company Secretary of M/s BN & 

Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer 

to scrutinize the Remote e-voting process and voting 

process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

 d) An Attendance Slip containing the e-voting USER ID 

& PASSWORD along with the detailed instructions for 

Remote e-voting is enclosed with this Notice.

17. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s 

Report(s) will be available on the website of the Bank  

(www.idfcbank.com) and on the Service Provider’s website 

(https://evoting.karvy.com) and communication of the 

same will be sent to BSE Limited and the National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited and shall also be displayed on 

the Notice Board of the registered and corporate office of 

the Bank within 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM.

18. The route map of the venue of the Meeting is given at the 

end of the Notice.

19.  aTTendance regisTraTion:

 a) Members / Proxies / Authorized Representatives are 

requested to bring their copy of Annual Report along 

with duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to 

attend the AGM. 

 b) Shareholders are requested to tender their attendance 

slips at the registration counters at the venue of 

the AGM and seek registration before entering the 

meeting hall.

 c) Alternatively, to facilitate smooth registration / entry, 

the Bank has also provided a ‘web check-in’ facility, 

which would help the shareholder enter the AGM 

hall directly without going through the registration 

formalities at the registration counters.

 d) The online registration facility will be available from 
friday, July 22, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. to Tuesday, July 26, 
2016 until 5:00 p.m. (i.e. during the e-voting period).

The Procedure of web check-in is as follows:

a) Log in to https://karisma.karvy.com and click on the online 

registration link.

b) Select the company name.

c) Pass through the security credentials viz., DP ID, Client ID  / 

Folio entry, PAN no., and ‘CAPTCHA’ as directed by the 

system and click on the submit button.

d) The system will validate the credentials. Click on the 

‘Generate my attendance slip’ button that appears on the 

screen.

e) The attendance slip in PDF format will appear on the 

screen. Select the ‘PRINT’ option for direct printing or 

download and save for printing.

a Member / Proxy / authorised representative needs to 
furnish a duly signed ‘attendance slip’ along with a valid 
identity proof such as Pan card, Passport, aadhar card or 
driving license to enter the agM hall.

NOTICE (continued)
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 
statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the companies act, 
2013 setting out all material facts:

item no. 5

appointment of Mr. rajan anandan as an independent 
director

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of IDFC Bank 

Limited had appointed Mr. Rajan Anandan as an Additional 

Director, in the category of Independent Director (‘ID’), on 

December 01, 2015. He holds the office of Director up to the 

date of this AGM pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Bank. 

The Bank has received a notice in writing under the provisions 

of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member 

along with a deposit of ` 1,00,000 proposing the candidature 

of Mr. Rajan Anandan for appointment as an ID of the Bank.

As per the recommendations of Dr. Ganguly Group Report, due 

diligence of Mr. Anandan was done in regard to his suitability for 

the post of Independent Director of the Bank. Mr. Anandan had 

given consent and various declarations as per the provisions 

of the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) and Companies Act, 2013.  

A deed of covenant has been executed by Mr. Anandan binding 

him to discharge his responsibilities to the best of his abilities, 

individually and collectively, as per the RBI Circular No. DBOD.

No.BC.105/08.139.001/2003-04 dated June 25, 2004. 

He has given a declaration of Independence pursuant to 

Sections 149(6) and 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 

of Directors) Rules, 2014 alongwith his affirmance to the Code 

of Independent Directors as prescribed under Schedule IV of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Anandan fulfils the conditions 

specified in the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made 

thereunder, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

and is Independent of the Management. 

Mr. Rajan Anandan’s appointment is in compliance with the 

provisions of Section 10-A of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, 

in particular, on account of he having the requisite experience  / 

expertise required under Section 10-A(2) of the Banking 

Regulation Act, 1949. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Anandan is a person of integrity 

and has the necessary knowledge, experience and expertise for 

being appointed as an ID. A detailed profile of Mr. Anandan 

along with Directorships and Committee positions held by 

him in other Companies has been given in the Exhibit to this 

Notice and is also included in the Corporate Governance report 

forming part of this Annual Report. 

Mr. Rajan Anandan is proposed to be appointed as an ID for a 

period of Three (3) consecutive years from December 01, 2015 

to November 30, 2018 and he shall not be liable to retire by 

rotation. He will be paid such fees, profit related commission 

and remuneration as the Board and Members may approve 

from time to time and within the limits as prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and 

within the directions issued by RBI, from time to time.

Mr. Rajan Anandan is not related with any other Director or Key 

Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of the Bank.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of Ordinary 

Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of this Notice.

Except Mr. Rajan Anandan, none of the Directors or KMP and / 

or his relatives, are in any way, financial or otherwise, interested 

or concerned in this resolution.

item no. 6

offer and issue of debt securities on Private Placement basis

Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of 

the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 

2014, lays down the provisions subject to which a company is 

allowed to issue securities on Private Placement (‘PP’) basis. 

Every proposed offer of Securities or invitation to subscribe to 

Securities on PP basis requires prior approval of Members of 

the company by way of Special Resolution. However, in case 

of offer / issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures (‘NCDs’), 

passing of a Special Resolution by the Members for all such 

offers / invitation for such debentures, once in a year is 

sufficient. 

Accordingly, the Bank had obtained the approval of Members 

at the last Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on September 

29, 2015 for borrowing / raising funds by issue of debt securities 

pursuant to the relevant provisions of the applicable circulars 

or guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India, upto ` 150,000 

crores (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Crores only), in one 

or more tranches. Pursuant to the said approval, the Bank has 

raised an amount of ` 480 crores (Rupees Four Hundred and 

Eighty Crore only) by way of issue of Bonds till the date of this 

notice of AGM.

In order to facilitate the raising of funds by way of issue of debt 

securities, it would be necessary to have the fresh approval of 

Members in place. Accordingly, the Board of Directors, after 

assessing its fund requirements, has proposed to obtain the 

consent of the Members of the Bank for borrowing / raising 

funds from time to time, in Indian currency / Foreign currency, 

by issue of debt securities, on private placement basis, upto 

an amount not exceeding ` 15,000 crore (Rupees Fifteen 

Thousand Crores only), outstanding at any point of time. 

The said limit of ` 15,000 crores (Rupees Fifteen Thousand 

Crores only) shall be within the overall borrowing limit of  

` 1,50,000 crores (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Crores 

only) approved under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013 by the Members at the 1st AGM held on September 29, 2015.

The proposed resolution under Section 42 of Companies Act, 

2013 shall be valid for a period of one year from the date of 

passing of this resolution.

NOTICE (continued)
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The pricing of the Bonds and NCDs will depend primarily 

upon the then prevailing market conditions and the regulatory 

scenario. The pricing for each of the issuance would be 

approved by the Board of Directors or any of its Committee 

duly authorized in this regard.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the Special 

Resolution as set out in Item No. 6 of this Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and / or 

their relatives, are in any way, financial or otherwise, interested 

or concerned in this resolution.

item no. 7 and 8

reduction in esoP pool from 7% to 6% of the paid up share 

capital of the Bank and ratification of idfc Bank limited 

employee stock option scheme 2015 (‘idfc BanK esos - 

2015’ or the ‘scheme’) and grant of options to the eligible 

employees / directors of the subsidiary company(ies) of the 

Bank under the scheme

Employee Stock Options (‘ESOPs’ or ‘Options’) act as a good 

tool in fostering employee morale and attracting and retaining 

talented employees, since employees who participate in ESOPs 

are likely to have a greater sense of ownership. 

The Shareholders of IDFC Bank Limited (‘IDFC Bank’ or 

‘the Bank’) at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on  

December 09, 2014 had adopted an Employee Stock Option 

Scheme namely IDFC Bank Limited ESOS - 2015 (‘IDFC 

Bank ESOS - 2015’) and had resolved to issue to the Eligible 

Employees and Directors of IDFC Bank, its Holding Company 

or Subsidiary Company(ies), in India / outside India, excluding 

the Independent Directors, under IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015, 

ESOPs not more than 2.5% of the paid-up equity share capital 

of the Bank at any point of time, in one or more tranches.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement among IDFC Limited 

and IDFC Bank Limited and their respective shareholders and 

creditors under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 

(‘Demerger Scheme’), on the Effective Date, the Employees that 

were transferred with the Financing Undertaking to IDFC Bank 

Limited, as well as all remaining Employees of IDFC Limited or 

their respective Subsidiary Companies, who had been granted 

Options under IDFC Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 

2007, which were not exercised (vested or unvested), as of 

the Record Date, were granted One (1) Option by IDFC Bank 

Limited under IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 for every One (1) Option 

held in IDFC Limited by such Employee. 

Therefore, it was necessary to increase the limit of ESOPs that 

can be granted under IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 from 2.5% to 7% so 

as to accomodate grants to IDFC Group Employees (pursuant 

to the Demerger Scheme) and grants to new Employees of 

IDFC Bank. Accordingly, the shareholders at the 1st Annual 

General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Bank held on September 29, 

2015, approved and increased the pool of ESOPs from 2.5% to 

7% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Bank at any point 

of time, in one or more tranches.

NOTICE (continued)

Prior to listing of IDFC Bank shares on November 06, 

2015, ESOPs were granted to the Employees of IDFC and 

its Subsidiary Companies and Employees of IDFC Bank.  

Till the date of this Notice, IDFC Bank has cumulatively granted 

95,422,878 ESOPs. 

Since, IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 was formed and grants were 

made thereunder before listing of the Bank’s equity shares, 

the approval of the Members is sought at the ensuing AGM for 

ratifying IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 and grants made thereunder.

With large capital base, the Management is now of the view 

that the reduced ESOP pool of 6% would be sufficient to 

adequately compensate the Employees of IDFC Bank and its 

Subsidiary Companies in next 2-3 years. Going forward, the 

Bank would issue ESOPs only to the Eligible Employees of the 

Bank and / or its Subsidiary Companies, if any and not to the 

Employees of the Holding Company.

The Resolution contained in Item No. 7 seeks Members 

approval for reduction of ESOP pool from 7% to 6% of the paid 

up equity share capital of the Bank and to ratify IDFC Bank  

ESOS - 2015 Scheme & Options granted to the Eligible 

Employees / Directors of IDFC Bank under the said Scheme.

The Resolution contained in Item No. 8 seeks Members 

approval to ratify IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 Scheme and grant 

Options to the Eligible Employees / Directors of the Subsidiary 

Company(ies) of the Bank under the said Scheme.

Presently, the Bank has no subsidiary companies.

A copy of the IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 will also be available for 

inspection at the Registered Office and Corporate Office of the 

Bank between 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on all working days up to 

the date of the AGM.

As per Regulation 6 and Regulation 14 of the SEBI Regulations, 

the key details of the aforesaid Scheme are set out below:

a. Brief description of the scheme

 The objective of IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015 is to reward the 

Employees for their past association and performance as 

well as to motivate them to contribute to the growth and 

profitability of the Bank. The Bank also intends to use this 

Scheme to attract and reward talent and performance in 

the organization. The Bank views Employee Stock Options 

as instruments that would enable the Employees to share 

the value they would create and contribute for the Bank in 

the years to come.

b.  Total number of options to be granted

 Each Option would entitle an Employee to acquire 

one equity share of the Bank. The Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) shall determine the 

Options to be granted to the Employees of the Bank and 

subsidiary company(ies), as applicable, under IDFC Bank  

ESOS - 2015. However, allotment of such number of equity 

shares pursuant to exercise of the Options by Employees, 

shall not exceed in aggregate 6% of the issued and paid up 

share capital of the Bank from time to time.
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c. identification of classes of employees entitled to 
participate and be beneficiaries in the scheme

 All the Employees and Directors, as defined under SEBI 

Regulations, of the Bank & Subsidiary Companies (Present 

& future), as applicable, whether working in India or outside 

India, will be entitled to participate in IDFC Bank ESOS - 

2015, subject to fulfillment of such eligibility criteria(s) as 

may be specified in the SEBI Regulations 2014 and / or 

as may be determined by Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (‘NRC’) from time to time.

d. requirements of vesting and period of vesting

 The vesting of an Option would also be subject to the 

terms and conditions as may be stipulated by the NRC 

from time to time including but not limited to satisfactory 

performance of the Employees, their continued 

employment with the Bank and Subsidiary Companies, 

as applicable. The vesting period shall commence any 

time after the expiry of one year from the date of the 

grant of the Options to the Employee and shall end over 

a maximum period of 5 years from the date of the grant 

of the Options. The Options could vest in tranches. The 

number of ESOPs and terms of the same made available 

to Employees (including the vesting period) could vary at 

the discretion of the NRC.

e. Maximum period (subject to regulation 18(1) and 24(1) 
of the regulations, as the case may be) within which the 
options shall be vested

 Five years from the date of the grant.

f. exercise price or pricing formula

 Exercise Price shall be as decided by the NRC, subject to a 

minimum of the face value per share.

g.  exercise period and process of exercise

 Exercise period - Upto 5 Years from the date of Vesting of 

Options

 Process of Exercise - The Option Grantee may, at any time 

during the Exercise Period, and subject to fulfillment of 

conditions of Vesting, Exercise the Options by submitting 

Exercise Application to the Bank accompanied by 

payment of an amount equivalent to the Exercise Price 

and applicable tax amount, in respect of such Shares. 

The Exercise Application shall be in such form as may be 

prescribed in this regard and the NRC may determine the 

procedure for Exercise from time to time.

h. The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of 
employees for the scheme

 The specific Employees to whom the Options would be 

granted and their eligibility criteria (including but not 

limited to performance, merit, grade, conduct and length 

of service of the Employee) would be determined by the 

NRC, at its absolute discretion. This power of NRC can be 

delegated by NRC to any official of the Bank.

i. Maximum number of options to be issued per employee 
and in aggregate

 In aggregate, ESOPs can be granted not exceeding 6% of 
the issued & paid up capital of the Bank from time to time.

j. Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per 
employee under a scheme

 As per applicable SEBI Regulations.

k. whether the scheme is to be implemented and 
administered directly by the company or through a trust

 Scheme is to be implemented and administered directly by 
the Bank.

l. whether the scheme involves new issue of shares by the 
company or secondary acquisition by the trust or both

 Scheme involves new issue of shares by the Bank.

m. The amount of loan to be provided for implementation 
of the scheme by the company to the trust, its tenure, 
utilization, repayment terms, etc.

 NIL

n. Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition (subject 
to limits specified under the regulations) that can be 
made by the trust for the purposes of the scheme

 Not Applicable

o. a statement to the effect that the company shall conform 
to the accounting policies specified in regulation 15

 The Bank shall comply with the accounting policies 
specified in the requirements on the guidance note 
on accounting for employees share based payments 
(‘Guidance Note’) or Accounting Standards as may be 
prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (‘ICAI’) from time to time, including disclosure 
requirements prescribed therein.

p. The method which the company shall use to value its 
options

 The Bank shall follow the intrinsic value method for 
computing the compensation cost for the Options 
granted. The difference between the compensation cost 
so calculated and the compensation cost that would have 
been recognised if the Bank had used fair value method 
and its impact on the profits and earnings per share shall 
be disclosed as per Applicable Laws, wherever required.

q. The following statement, if applicable; ’In case the 
company opts for expensing of share based employee 
benefits using the intrinsic value, the difference between 
the employee compensation cost so computed and 
the employee compensation cost that shall have been 
recognized if it had used the fair value, shall be disclosed 
in the Directors’ report and the impact of this difference on 
profits and on earnings per share of the company shall also 
be disclosed in the Directors’ report.’ 

 Will be disclosed in the Boards’ Report, whenever 
applicable.



N O T I C E   1 5 3

r. listing of shares

 Subject to the approval of the Stock Exchanges, the 

relevant equity shares on exercise of the Options shall be 

listed on the Stock Exchanges on which the securities of 

the Bank are listed.

Pursuant to the SEBI Regulations, a separate resolution is 

required to be passed, if the grant of Option is made to the 

Employees / Directors of Subsidiary Company(ies).

The Board of Directors accordingly recommend passing of the 

Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 7 and 8 of this Notice.

The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives may 

be deemed to be concerned or interested in these resolutions 

to the extent of the ESOPs granted to them under the Scheme 

and to the extent of their shareholding as Members.

item no. 9

Payment of commission to non-executive directors 

The Board of Directors of IDFC Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) bring 

with them, a wide range of significant professional expertise 

and rich experience across a wide spectrum of functional areas 

such as Management and Administration, Economics, Banking, 

Commercial Banking, Investment Banking, Micro-Finance, 

Finance, Audit and Accounting, Agriculture etc.

In the current competitive business environment, Directors 

are required to take far more complex business decisions than 

before and are required to commit their time and provide 

expertise for the company’s business. In addition, with the more 

stringent Accounting Standards and Corporate Governance 

norms, the Directors not only have to ensure compliance with 

various statutory requirements but also enhance the level and 

quality of Corporate Governance. 

Therefore, it is proposed to compensate the Directors 

adequately for the efforts that will be put in by them for the 

growth of the Bank.

As per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘Act’), the Directors (excluding Managing Director and 

Whole-time Director) may be paid remuneration by way 

of Commission, either by way of a monthly payment or at a 

specified percentage of the Net Profits of the Bank or partly 

by one way and partly by the other, not exceeding 1% of the 

Net Profits of the Bank computed in the manner referred to in 

Section 198 of the Act.

Also, as per the Reserve Bank of India’s “Guidelines on 

Compensation of Non-Executive Directors of Private Sector 

Banks” dated June 01, 2015, the Board may, at its discretion, 

provide for in the compensation policy, payment of 

compensation in the form of profit related commission to the 

Non-Executive Directors (other than the part-time chairman), 

subject to the bank making profits. Such compensation, 

however, shall not exceed ` 10 Lakhs per annum for each such 

Director.

Considering the above, the Board of Directors of the Bank have, 

subject to the approval of Members of the Bank, proposed to 

remunerate the Non-Executive Directors (i.e. Directors other 

than Managing Director and Whole-time Directors) by way of 

profit related commission, the lowest of the limits as under, 

with effect from April 01, 2015:

(i)  Maximum of ` 10 Lakhs per annum for each of such  

Non-Executive Directors, in such manner and in all respects 

as may be decided by the Board of Directors; or

(ii)  Profit related commission not exceeding in aggregate 

one per cent (1%) of the net profits of the Bank for each 

financial year in terms of the provisions of Section 197 

of the Act and as computed in the manner laid down in 

Section 198 of the Act.

In addition to the above, Non-Executive Directors will be paid 

sitting fees for attending Board and Committee meetings, 

travelling expenses including airfare, hotel stay and car on rental 

basis for attending the meetings and such other expenses as are 

incurred by the Directors and allowed to be reimbursed as per 

the provisions of the Act, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and 

Reserve Bank of India Circulars / Guidelines / Notifications  / 

Directions issued from time to time.

No Commission shall be paid to the Executive Directors of the 

Bank.

The Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel, Senior Managerial Personnel and other Employees 

of IDFC Bank inter alia, provides for remuneration to  

Non-Executive Directors by way of commission to the extent 

approved by the Members.

The payment of Commission to the Non-Executive Directors of 

the Bank will require the approval of the Shareholders by way 

of an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of Ordinary 

Resolution as set out in Item No. 9 of this Notice.

Except all the Non-Executive Directors of the Bank, none of 

the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and / or their 

relatives are, in any way, financial or otherwise, interested or 

concerned in this resolution.

item no. 10

approval of remuneration payable to dr. rajiv B. lall, founder 
Managing director & ceo of the Bank 

IDFC Limited (‘IDFC’) was granted an In-principle approval 

by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) on April 09, 2014 (‘RBI 

In-Principle Approval’) to set up a new bank in the private 

sector under Section 22 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. 

Accordingly, a new company namely IDFC Bank Limited (‘IDFC 

Bank’ or ‘the Bank’) was incorporated on October 21, 2014. The 

terms and conditions contained in the RBI In-Principle Approval 

and the Guidelines for Licensing of New Banks in the Private 

Sector dated February 22, 2013 (‘RBI New Banking Guidelines’) 

required IDFC to transfer its lending and financing business 
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(‘Financing Undertaking’) to IDFC Bank. Accordingly, the 

Financing Undertaking was demerged into IDFC Bank pursuant 

to a Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 391 to 394 of the 

Companies Act, 1956 (‘Demerger Scheme’). The Effective Date 

of the Demerger Scheme was October 01, 2015. 

Dr. Rajiv B. Lall was the Executive Chairman of IDFC until 

September 30, 2015. The Board of Directors of IDFC, the 

promoter company of IDFC Bank had considered and 

nominated Dr. Rajiv B. Lall as the Executive Vice-Chairman and 

Managing Director of IDFC Bank. 

Further, the Shareholders of IDFC Bank at its 1st Annual General 

Meeting held on September 29, 2015, had appointed Dr. Rajiv B. 

Lall as Executive Vice-Chairman and Managing Director of the 

Bank for a period of 5 years w.e.f October 01, 2015 on the same 

Fixed Remuneration of ` 3.29 crore what he was getting from  

IDFC, subject to the approval of the RBI.

Subsequently, the RBI granted its approval to the appointment 

of Dr. Rajiv B. Lall as the Managing Director and CEO of the 

Bank for a period of 3 years w.e.f. October 01, 2015. Also, 

RBI granted its approval for remuneration of ` 3.29 crore p.a.  

to Dr. Lall.

The Board of Directors of the Bank at its meeting held on 

January 27, 2016 designated Dr. Rajiv B. Lall as the Founder 

Managing Director & CEO of IDFC Bank.

Considering the market benchmark, the responsibilities handled 

by the Founder Managing Director & CEO and the performance 

of the Bank in its first six months of operations under his 

leadership, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

and the Board of the Directors, subject to approval of the 

RBI, recommend an annual increment of 5% on Fixed Pay to  

Dr. Rajiv B. Lall for FY17.

The remuneration proposed to be paid to Dr. Rajiv B. Lall for 

FY17 is as under:

IN `

Basic Salary 9,600,000 p.a.

Performance Bonus As may be decided by the 
Board of Directors, subject to 
approval of RBI.

Special Allowance  23,778,000 p.a.

Perquisites

1.  Free furnished house Company Leased 
Accommodation

2.  Free use of 
Company’s car for 
official purposes

Company maintained car with 
driver

3.  Provident Fund  1,152,000 p.a.

4.  Medical benefits  15,000 p.a. 

 Total 34,545,000 p.a.

5.  Other benefits, if any 

 (i)  Gratuity As per Scheme of the Bank

 (ii)  Club Membership As per Scheme of the Bank

 (iii)  Other Benefits As per Scheme of the Bank

Brief profile and other details of Dr. Lall are provided in the 

Exhibit to Notice.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of Ordinary 

Resolution as set out in Item No. 10 of this Notice.

Dr. Rajiv B. Lall may be deemed to be concerned or interested 

in the Resolution relating to his remuneration. He is not related 

with any other Director, Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) or 

their relatives. 

Except Dr. Rajiv B. Lall, none of the other Directors, KMP 

and / or their relatives are, in any way, financial or otherwise, 

interested or concerned in this resolution.
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NOTICE (continued)

EXHIBIT TO NOTICE
Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SS-2 by ICSI.

name of the director Mr. Vinod rai Mr. rajan anandan  dr. rajiv B. lall

date of Birth May 23, 1948 October 13, 1968  August 02, 1957

age 68 years 47 years  58 years

date of first appointment 
on the Board

July 27, 2015 December 01, 2015  October 21, 2014

Brief resume, 
Qualification, experience 
and nature of expertise in 
specific functional areas

Mr. Vinod Rai is the Non-Executive 
Chairman (Independent Director) 
of IDFC Limited. He was the 
former Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India. Mr. Rai has wide 
experience of working in various 
capacities at both, the Central and 
State Governments. His previous 
position was as Secretary in the 
Ministry of Finance - GoI, where he 
was responsible for managing the 
Financial Services sector, including 
banks and insurance companies. 
He had been a Director on several 
Boards including the State Bank 
of India, ICICI Bank, IDBI Bank, Life 
Insurance Corporation of India etc. 
Mr. Rai was instrumental in setting 
up the India Infrastructure Finance 
Company Limited and was also on 
the Board of this company. Mr. 
Rai has also been the Principal 
Secretary(Finance) in the State 
Government of Kerala, apart 
from holding senior positions in 
the Ministries of Commerce and 
Defence, Government of India. 
Mr. Vinod Rai has a Master’s 
Degree in Economics from Delhi 
School of Economics, University 
of Delhi. He has a Master’s Degree 
in Public Administration from 
Harvard University, USA. He has 
been recently honoured with the 
Padma Bhushan award by the 
Government of India. 

Mr. Rajan Anandan, was appointed 
as Additional (Non-Executive) 
Director of IDFC Bank on 
December 1, 2015.Mr. Anandan is 
the Vice President and Managing 
Director of Google South East 
Asia and India and is responsible 
for Sales and Operations in the 
region. Mr. Anandan is focused on 
expanding the Internet ecosystem 
in the region, increasing adoption 
among consumers and businesses 
and accelerating innovation. 
South East Asia and India, with 
over two billion consumers and 
500 million Internet users, is the 
fastest growing Internet user 
base in the world. Mr. Anandan 
joined Google in early 2011 to 
lead Google’s business in India. 
His career includes leadership 
roles at Microsoft, Dell and 
McKinsey & Company. Prior to 
Google, Mr. Anandan was the 
Managing Director of Microsoft 
India and built India’s largest 
software business. Before joining 
Microsoft, he was a Vice President 
with Dell where he held several 
global leadership roles including 
that of the Executive Assistant 
to Chairman Michael Dell. Before 
Dell, Mr. Anandan was a Partner 
with McKinsey & Company in 
Chicago. He holds a MSc from 
Stanford University and a BSc 
from MIT. 

Dr. Rajiv B. Lall, was the Executive Chairman 
of IDFC Limited until September 2015. He has 
about three decades of experience with leading 
global investment banks, multilateral agencies 
and in academia. His areas of expertise include 
project finance, private equity / venture capital, 
international capital markets, trade, infrastructure 
and macroeconomic policy issues with a focus 
on emerging markets including India and China 
in particular. Dr. Lall straddles the policy making 
and finance worlds. He currently chairs the 
National Committee on Infrastructure Financing 
of CII (Confederation of Indian Industry) a leading 
business chamber in the country. He is a member 
of the Managing Committee of ASSOCHAM; 
the CII National Council on Financial Sector 
Development and the CII National Committee 
on Banking. Internationally, he is a member of 
the Advisory Board of Columbia Global Centers, 
South Asia, set up by the Columbia University, 
New York. He is also on the International 
Advisory Board of the Centre for the Advanced 
Study of India (CASI) at the University of 
Pennsylvania; and a member of the City of 
London’s Advisory Council on India. He was the 
President of Bombay Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry and has chaired the Global Agenda 
Council on Infrastructure of the World Economic 
Forum. Dr. Lall was India’s representative to the 
G20 Workgroup on Infrastructure and was also a 
member of the Planning Commission’s Steering 
Committee on Urban Development Management; 
the Prime Minister’s Committees on Infrastructure 
Finance and Transport Sector Development; 
Expert Group on Modernisation of Indian 
Railways of Ministry of Railways Government of 
India; and the RBI’s Committee on NBFCs. Dr. 
Lall has served on several other Government 
Committees including those focused on Urban 
Infrastructure, Bond Market Development and 
Financial Sector Reform. Prior to joining IDFC, Dr. 
Lall was variously, a Partner with Warburg Pincus 
in New York; Head of Asian Economic Research 
with Morgan Stanley in Hong Kong; a senior staff 
member of the World Bank in Washington, D.C. 
and of the Asian Development Bank in Manila and 
faculty member of the Florida Atlantic University 
Department of Economics. Dr. Lall has a number 
of publications and articles to his credit. He 
has been a regular columnist with the Business 
Standard, a leading financial daily in India. He has 
a BA in Politics, Philosophy and Economics from 
Oxford University and a Ph.D. in Economics from 
Columbia University.



1 5 6  I D F C  B A N K  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 5 – 2 0 1 6

NOTICE (continued)

name of the director Mr. Vinod rai Mr. rajan anandan  dr. rajiv B. lall

no. of Board Meetings 
attended during fY16

5 2  8

directorships held in other 
companies 

Public companies

1. IDFC Limited

2. IDFC Financial Holding 
Company Limited

3. Apollo Tyres Limited 

Public companies

NIL

Public companies

NIL

Private / section 8 / foreign 
companies

1. Grassroot Trading Network for 
Women

2. Shubham Housing 
Development Finance 
Company Private Limited

Private / section 8 / foreign 
companies

1. Reach Process Outsourcing 
Private Limited

2. Webklipper Technologies 
Private Limited

3. Kardo Design Private Limited

4. Sensibol Audio Technologies 
Private Limited

Private / section 8 / foreign companies

1. IDFC Foundation

2. Lok Social Services

Memberships / 
chairmanships of 
committees of other 
Boards

audit committee

- IDFC Limited (Member)

- IDFC Financial Holding 
Company Limited (Member)

stakeholders’ relationship 
committee

- IDFC Limited (Chairman)

nomination & remuneration 
committee

- IDFC Limited (Member)

- IDFC Financial Holding 
Company Limited (Member)

risk Management committee

- IDFC Limited (Member)

- IDFC Financial Holding 
Company Limited (Member)

investment committee

- IDFC Limited (Chairman)

 NIL  NIL

remuneration last drawn Refer Table 04 of Corporate Governance Report which forms part of 2nd Annual Report of IDFC Bank.

details of remuneration 
sought to be paid

Sitting fees as approved by the 
Board of Directors of the Bank 
within the limits of the applicable 
laws.

Sitting fees and Commission 
as approved by the Board of 
Directors / Members of the Bank 
within the limits of the applicable 
laws.

Remuneration as approved by the Reserve Bank 
of India, Board of Directors and Members of the 
Bank, within the limits of the applicable laws.

shareholding of director

in idfc Bank

NIL NIL 2,444,984 equity shares 

relationship with other 
directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel of 
the Bank

NIL NIL  NIL

   

EXHIBIT TO NOTICE
Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SS-2 by ICSI.
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2Nd aNNual GeNeral MeetiNG (‘aGM’) – JulY 27, 2016

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered address :

Folio No. / DP ID No. Client ID No.: E-mail Id:

I / We, being the holder(s) of __________________ equity shares of IDFC Bank Limited, hereby appoint :

1. Name :_________________________________________________________________________  E-mail Id :_________________________________

 Address:__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 _______________________________________________________________________________  Signature: _______________ or failing him / her

2. Name :_________________________________________________________________________  E-mail Id :_________________________________

 Address:___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 _______________________________________________________________________________  Signature: ________________________________

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 2nd AGM of the Bank, to be held on Wednesday, July 27, 
2016 at 10:00 a.m. at The Music Academy, T.T.K Auditorium (Main Hall), Near Acropolis Building, New No. 168 (Old No. 306), T.T.K. Road, Royapettah,  
Chennai - 600 014, Tamil Nadu, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

sr.  
no.

Particulars Vote (optional#)
(Please put a () mark or 

please mention no. of shares)

ordiNarY BusiNess for against abstain

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Bank for the financial year ended March 31, 2016, 
together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares of the Bank.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vinod Rai (DIN - 01119922), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint Auditors of the Bank and to fix their remuneration.

sPecial BusiNess

5. Appointment of Mr. Rajan Anandan as an Independent Director.

6. Offer and Issue of Debt Securities on Private Placement basis.

7. Reduction in ESOP pool from 7% to 6% of the paid up share capital of the Bank and Ratification of IDFC Bank 
Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 (‘IDFC BANK ESOS - 2015’ or the ‘Scheme’).

8. Ratification of IDFC Bank Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 (‘IDFC Bank ESOS - 2015’ or the ‘Scheme’) 
and grant of Options to the Eligible Employees / Directors of the Subsidiary Company(ies) of the Bank under the 
Scheme.

9. Payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors.

10. Approval of remuneration payable to Dr. Rajiv B. Lall, Founder Managing Director & CEO of the Bank.

Signed this _________________ day of _________________ 2016

Signature of Shareholder ________________________________ Signature of Proxy holder(s) ______________________

Note:  1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the Bank, not less than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the Meeting. 

 2. #it is optional to indicate your preference. if you leave the “for”, “against” or “abstain” column blank against any or all of the resolutions, your proxy 
will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she may deem appropriate.

AFFIX
Revenue 
Stamp of 

` 1

Form No. MGt-11

ProXY ForM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

idFc BaNk liMited
corporate identity number: U65110TN2014PLC097792

email: bank.info@idfcbank.com website: www.idfcbank.com

regd. office: KRM Tower, 8th Floor, No. 1 Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai – 600 031 Tel: +91 44 4564 4000 fax: +91 44 4564 4022

corp. office: Naman Chambers, C-32, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051 Tel: +91 22 4222 2000 fax: +91 22 2654 0354
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IDFC BANK
www.idfcbank.com    
bank.info@idfcbank.com

REGISTERED OFFICE
KRM Tower, 8th Floor, 
No. 1 Harrington Road, Chetpet, 
Chennai - 600 031, Tamil Nadu, India.

CORPORATE OFFICE
Naman Chambers, C-32, G-Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra East, 
Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India.



ATTENDANCE SLIP

IDFC BANK LIMITED
Corporate Identity Number: U65110TN2014PLC097792

Email: bank.info@idfcbank.com Website: www.idfcbank.com

Regd. Office: KRM Tower, 8th Floor, No. 1 Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai - 600 031, Tamil Nadu, India.

Tel: + 91 44 4564 4000 Fax: +91 44 4564 4022

Corp. Office: Naman Chambers, C-32, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India. 

Tel: + 91 22 4222 2000 Fax: +91 22 2654 0354

Regd. Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID

Name and Address of the Member

Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s), if any

No. of shares held

Full name of Proxy / Authorised Representative

Member’s / Proxy’s / Authorised Representative’s 

Signature

I hereby record my presence at the 2ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of IDFC Bank Limited held on Wednesday, July 27, 2016 at 

10.00 a.m. at The Music Academy, T.T.K Auditorium (Main Hall), Near Acropolis Building, New No. 168 (Old No. 306), T.T.K. Road, 

Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014, Tamil Nadu, India.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) User ID Password

Notes:

1. A Member / Proxy / Authorised Representative needs to furnish a duly signed ‘Attendance Slip’ along with a valid Identity proof
such as PAN card, Passport, Aadhar card or Driving License to enter the AGM hall.

2. Members / Proxy / Authorised Representatives holders are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report for reference at the AGM.

3. E-voting letter is being sent to those Members of the Bank who are holding shares as on Friday, June 24, 2016. In case a
person becomes the Member of the Bank, post June 24, 2016 and continues to hold shares till the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday,
July 20, 2016, he / she may write to mahendra.shah@idfcbank.com requesting for User ID and Password. After receipt of the above
credentials, please follow all the steps mentioned overleaf on ‘Instructions on Remote e-voting’ to cast the vote.

4. The Remote e-voting period will commence on Friday, July 22, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. and ends on Tuesday, July 26, 2016 at
5:00 p.m. The e-voting module shall be disabled for voting thereafter. During the Remote e-voting, the Members of the Bank
holding shares in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, July 20, 2016, may cast their vote
by electronic means in the manner and process set out overleaf. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he / she shall
not be allowed to change it subsequently. Further, the Members who have cast their vote electronically shall not be allowed to vote
by way of Physical Ballot at the AGM and their vote, if cast at the Meeting shall be treated as invalid. A person who is not a Member
as on the cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose only.

5. The Company has also provided “web check-in” facility which will be available from Friday, July 22, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. to
Tuesday, July 26, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. This will help the Shareholders to enter the AGM hall directly without going through the
registration formalities at the registration counters. Please log in to https://karisma.karvy.com. Click on tab ‘Web Checkin for
General meetings (AGM / EGM / CCM)’ and follow the procedure mentioned therein.



The instructions and other information relating to Remote 
e-voting are as under:

1.A. In case a Member receiving an email from Karvy [for 
Members whose email IDs are registered with the Bank / 
Depository Participant(s)]:

 i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL:  
https://evoting.karvy.com

 ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and Password 
provided in the email). Your Folio No. /  DP ID-Client 
ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already 
registered with Karvy for e-voting, you can use your 
existing User ID and Password for casting your vote.

 iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“LOGIN”.

 iv. You will now reach password change menu wherein 
you are required to mandatorily change your 
password. The new password shall comprise of 
minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case 
(A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) 
and a special character (@,#,$,etc.). The system will 
prompt you to change your password and update 
your contact details like mobile number, e-mail id, etc. 
on first login. You may also enter a secret question 
and answer of your choice to retrieve your password 
in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended that 
you do not share your password with any other person 
and that you take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.

 v. You need to login again with the new credentials.

 vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to 
select the “EVEN”. Please select EVEN of IDFC Bank 
Limited.

 vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares 
(which represents the number of votes) as on the 
cut-off date under “FOR / AGAINST” or alternatively, 
you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and 
partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR  / 
AGAINST” taken together should not exceed your 
total shareholding as mentioned hereinabove. If the 
Member does not indicate either “FOR” or “AGAINST” 
it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will 
not be counted under either head.

 viii. Members holding multiple folios / demat accounts 
shall choose the voting process separately for each 
folios / demat accounts.

 ix. Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice 
separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote 
on any specific item it will be treated as Abstained.

 x. You may then cast your vote by selecting an 
appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

 xi. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to 
confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, 
you will not be allowed to modify or change the votes 
cast. During the voting period, Members can login 
any number of times till they have voted on all the 
Resolutions.

 xii. Corporate / Institutional Members (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are also required to send 
scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the 
Board Resolution / Authority Letter, etc. together 
with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly 

authorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer 
at e-mail id: idfcbank.evoting2016@karvy.com 
with a copy marked to mahendra.shah@idfcbank.com. 
The scanned image of the above mentioned 
documents should be in the naming format “Corporate 
Name_EVEN”. The documents should reach the 
Scrutinizer on or before Tuesday, July 26, 2016 
at 5.00 p.m. at Karvy Computershare Private 
Limited [Unit: IDFC Bank Limited], Karvy Selenium 
Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 
500 032.

B.  In case of Members receiving physical copy of the AGM 
Notice by Courier [for Members whose e-mail ids are not 
registered with the Bank / Depository Participant(s)]:

 i. EVEN, User ID and initial Password are provided 
overleaf.

 ii. Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (i) to (xii) as 
mentioned in (A) above, to cast your vote.

2.  In case of any query / grievance pertaining to e-voting, please 
visit Help & FAQ’s section of https://evoting.karvy.com 
(Karvy’s website) or contact Mr. M R V Subrahmanyam at Karvy 
Computershare Private Limited [Unit: IDFC Bank Limited], 
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial 
District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 
500 032, Contact No.: +91 40 67161500, +91 40 33211000 
and Toll Free No.: 1800 345 4001.

3. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to 
their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Bank, 
as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, July 20, 2016.

4. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. B. Narasimhan, 
Company Secretary of M/s BN & Associates, Company 
Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner.

5. The Members who are entitled to vote but have not 
exercised their right to vote through Remote e-voting may 
vote at the AGM through Physical Ballot for all businesses 
specified in the accompanying Notice.

6. The Scrutinizer, immediately after the conclusion of 
voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the 
AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through Remote 
e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in 
the employment of the Bank and will make, not later than 
48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or 
against, if any, to the Chairperson or a person authorised 
by him in writing who shall countersign the same. The 
Chairperson or a person authorised by him in writing will 
declare the results of voting forthwith.

7. The Results on resolutions shall be declared not later than 
48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM of the Bank and 
the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the AGM 
date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in 
favour of the Resolutions.

8. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s 
Report(s) will be available on the website of the Bank 
(www.idfcbank.com) and on Karvy’s (Service Provider’s) 
website (https://evoting.karvy.com) and communication of 
the same will be sent to the BSE Limited and the National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited and shall also be displayed 
on the Notice Board of the registered and corporate office 
of the Bank within 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM.

INSTRUCTIONS ON REMOTE E-VOTING


